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AMOUNTS, MATURITIES, INTEREST RATES AND PRICES

$9,560,000 Serial Bonds
Maturity Interest
(Julyl) Amount Rate Price
2005 $475,000 3.000% 101.169%
2006 505,000 3.000 101.259
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2012 625,000 4.000 100.541
2013 645,000 4.000 99.403
2014 680,000 4125 99.393
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2017 765,000 4.500 99.415
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$2,310,000 5.000% Term Bonds Due July 1, 2024 - Price 98.754%
$1,635,000 5.125% Term Bonds Due July 1, 2029 - Price 98.955%
$2,080,000 5.125% Term Bonds Due July 1, 2034 - Price 98.715%
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NO BROKER, DEALER, SALESMAN, OR OTHER PERSON HAS BEEN AUTHORIZED BY
THE ISSUER OR THE UNDERWRITER TO GIVE ANY INFORMATION OR TO MAKE ANY
REPRESENTATIONS OTHER THAN THOSE CONTAINED IN THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT, AND
IF GIVEN OR MADE, SUCH OTHER INFORMATION OR REPRESENTATIONS MUST NOT BE
RELIED UPON AS HAVING BEEN AUTHORIZED BY ANY OF THE FOREGOING. THIS OFFICIAL
STATEMENT DOES NOT CONSTITUTE AN OFFER TO SELL OR THE SOLICITATION OF AN
OFFER TO BUY ANY OF THE BONDS AND THERE SHALL BE NO OFFER, SOLICITATION, OR
SALE OF THE BONDS BY ANY PERSON IN ANY JURISDICTION IN WHICH IT IS UNLAWFUL FOR
SUCH PERSON TO MAKE SUCH OFFER, SOLICITATION, OR SALE.

THE INFORMATION SET FORTH HEREIN HAS BEEN OBTAINED FROM PUBLIC
DOCUMENTS,RECORDS AND OTHER SOURCES WHICH ARE BELIEVED TO BERELIABLE, BUT
IT IS NOT GUARANTEED AS TO ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS BY AND IS NOT TO BE
CONSTRUED AS A REPRESENTATION OF THE UNDERWRITER. THE INFORMATION AND
EXPRESSIONS OF OPINION HEREIN CONTAINED ARESUBJECT TO CHANGE WITHOUT NOTICE
AND NEITHER THE DELIVERY OF THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT NOR ANY SALE MADE
HEREUNDERSHALL UNDER ANY CIRCUMSTANCES CREATE ANY IMPLICATION THAT THERE
HAS BEEN NO CHANGE IN THE AFFAIRS OF THE ISSUER OR THE BORROWERS SINCE THE
DATE HEREOF.

CERTAIN OF THE INFORMATION HEREIN REGARDING THE BORROWERS IS BEYOND
THE KNOWLEDGE OF THE ISSUER. WHILE THE ISSUER HAS NO REASON TO BELIEVE THAT
SUCH INFORMATION IS INCOMPLETE OR INACCURATE, THE ISSUER HAS NOT
INDEPENDENTLY INVESTIGATED OR CONFIRMED THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS
THEREOF AND HAS INCLUDED SUCH INFORMATION IN THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT IN
RELIANCE UPON THE REPRESENTATION AND WARRANTY OF THE RESPECTIVE BORROWERS
THAT SUCH INFORMATION DOES NOT CONTAIN ANY UNTRUE STATEMENT OF A MATERIAL
FACT AND DOES NOT OMIT TO STATE ANY MATERIAL FACT NECESSARY IN ORDER TO
MAKE THE STATEMENTS MADE HEREIN, IN THE LIGHT OF THE CIRCUMSTANCES UNDER
WHICH THEY ARE MADE, NOT MISLEADING

THE BONDS HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933 NOR
HAS THE INDENTURE BEEN QUALIFIED UNDER THE TRUST INDENTURE ACT OF 1939, IN
RELIANCE UPON EXEMPTIONS CONTAINED IN SUCH ACTS. THE REGISTRATION OR
QUALIFICATION OF THE BONDS UNDER THE SECURITIES LAWS OF THE JURISDICTIONS IN
WHICH THEY HAVE BEEN REGISTERED OR QUALIFIED, IF ANY, SHALL NOT BE REGARDED
AS A RECOMMENDATION THEREOF. NEITHER THESE JURISDICTIONS NOR ANY OF THEIR
AGENCIES HAVE PASSED UPON THE MERITS OF THE BONDS OR THE ACCURACY OR
COMPLETENESS OF THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT.

THE UNDERWRITER HAS PROVIDED THE FOLLOWING SENTENCE FOR INCLUSION IN
THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT. THE UNDERWRITER HAS REVIEWED THE INFORMATION IN
THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT IN ACCORDANCE WITH, AND AS PART OF, ITS RESPONSIBILITIES
TO INVESTORS UNDER THE FEDERAL SECURITIES LAWS AS APPLIED TO THE FACTS AND
CIRCUMSTANCES OF THIS TRANSACTION, BUT THE UNDERWRITER DOES NOT GUARANTY
THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF SUCH INFORMATION.
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OFFICIAL STATEMENT
Relating To

$15,585,000
FLORIDA MUNICIPAL LOAN COUNCIL
Revenue Bonds
Series 2004A-1

INTRODUCTION

The purpose of this Official Statement, including the cover page and the Appendices hereto, is to
furnish certain information with respect to the original issuance and sale of $15,585,000 Florida Municipal
Loan Council Revenue Bonds, Series 2004A-1 (the "Bonds") to be issued by the Florida Municipal Loan
Council (the "Issuer").

This Introduction is only a brief description of the matters described in this Official Statement, and
a full review of this Official Statement should be undertaken by potential investors in the Bonds. This
Official Statement speaks only as of its date, and the information contained herein is subject to change.

The Issuer is a separate legal entity under the laws of the State of Florida. The Issuer was created by
an Interlocal Agreement (the "Interlocal Agreement"), dated December 1, 1998, initially among the City of
Stuart, the City of Deland and the City of Rockledge, each of which is a Florida municipality. Gadsden
County, Florida, Jackson County, Florida and Leon County, Florida have each joined in the Interlocal
Agreement subsequent to December 1, 1998.

The Bonds are being issued pursuant to the Constitution of the State of Florida, Chapter 163, Florida
Statutes, and other applicable provisions of law (collectively, the "Act"), authorizing resolutions adopted by
the Issuer on December 17, 1998 and April 13,2004 and a Trust Indenture (the "Indenture"), dated as of July
1, 2004, between the Issuer and Wachovia Bank, National Association, as trustee (the "Trustee").

The Bonds are being issued to provide funds to make loans to four municipalities of the State of
Florida further described herein. The proceeds to be received by the Issuer from the sale of the Bonds will
be loaned to the State of Florida municipalities of the City of Haines City, Village of Pinecrest, City of
Oakland Park and City of St. Augustine Beach (collectively, the "Borrowers," and individually, a
"Borrower") pursuant to Loan Agreements, dated as of July 1, 2004, between the Issuer and each Borrower
(collectively, the "Loan Agreements"). Each Borrower will use proceeds of the loan made to it by the Issuer
(a"Loan") to finance, refinance or reimburse itself for the cost of a governmental undertaking approved by
the governing body of that Borrower for a public purpose (a "Project") and to pay a proportionate share of
the costs of issuance of the Bonds. Each Project to be financed or refinanced with proceeds of the Bonds
is briefly described herein under the caption "Purpose of the Bonds."

Pursuant to each Loan Agreement, each Borrower agrees to make payments (the "Basic Payments")
in such amounts and at such times as shall be sufficient to pay the principal of, premium, if any, and interest
on the Loan to that Borrower when due. The Basic Payments correlate to the debt service on a principal
amount of Bonds equal to the principal amount of the Loan. The aggregate scheduled Basic Payments under
all Loan Agreements equals the scheduled payments of principal and interest on the Bonds. Not all Loans
mature on the same date. No Borrower is obligated to pay the principal of, premium, if any, or interest on,
or any other amount payable with respect to, a Loan made to a different Borrower. The Basic Payments for
each Borrower are set forth herein under the caption "Debt Service Requirements."

Pursuant to each Loan Agreement, each Borrower also agrees to make certain other payments (the
"Additional Payments"), including, but not limited to, the fees and expenses of the Issuer, the Program



Administrator and the Trustee and the Borrower's proportionate share of any fees, including any rebate
obligation with respect to the Bonds related to a particular Borrower's Loan.

The Basic Payments and the Additional Payments are jointly referred to as the "Loan Repayments."

The City of Haines City, Village of Pinecrest and City of Oakland Park have each agreed to
appropriate in their annual budgets, by amendment, if required, and to pay when due under their respective
Loan Agreements (such Loan Agreements being referred to herein as the "Covenant Loan Agreements"), as
promptly as money becomes available, amounts of Non-Ad Valorem Revenues (hereinafter defined) of such
Borrower sufficient to satisfy the Loan Repayment obligations of such Borrower. "Non-Ad Valorem
Revenues" means all revenues and taxes of the particular Borrower derived from any source whatever, other
than ad valorem taxation on real and personal property, which are legally available for Loan Repayments.

The Loan Agreement between the City of St. Augustine Beach and the Issuer is referred to herein as
the "St. Augustine Beach Loan Agreement." The Loan Repayment obligations of the City of St. Augustine
Beach will be payable from and secured solely by a pledge of and lien upon the City's Discretionary
Communications Services Tax Revenues (hereinafter described). Further information concerning the St.
Augustine Beach Loan Agreement and the Discretionary Communications Services Tax Revenues of the
City of St. Augustine Beach is contained herein under the caption "Security and Sources of Payment - City
of St. Augustine Beach Loan."

Pursuant to the Indenture, the Issuer has assigned and pledged to the Trustee all of the Issuer's right,
title and interest (with certain exceptions specified therein) in and to the Loan Agreements, including the
Issuer's right to receive Loan Repayments.

The Bonds are not a general debt, liability or obligation of the Issuer, but are limited obligations
of the Issuer, payable solely from (i) the payments to be made by the Borrowers pursuant to the Loan
Agreements (the “Revenues”), (ii) all amounts in certain funds and accounts created pursuant to the
Indenture, and (iii) any proceeds of the Bond Insurance Policy (as defined in the Indenture), any
proceeds of the Surety Bond (as defined in the Indenture) any and all other property, rights and
interest of every kind and nature from time to time hereafter by delivery or by writing of any kind
subjected to the Indenture, as and for additional security for the Bonds, by the Issuer or by any other
person on its behalf or with its written consent (collectively, the "Trust Estate'), as more fully
described herein. The obligations of the respective Borrowers pursuant to the Loan Agreements are
not a general debt, liability or obligation of the respective Borrowers, but are limited obligations of
the Borrowers payable from the sources described herein. The Bonds are not a debt, liability or
obligation of the State of Florida or any political subdivision or entity thereof other than the Issuer.

Payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds when due will be insured by a financial guaranty
insurance policy to be issued by MBIA Insurance Corporation (the "Insurer") simultaneously with the
delivery of the Bonds.

There follow in this Official Statement descriptions of the Bonds, the Issuer, the Insurer, the
Borrowers and certain other matters. The descriptions and information contained herein do not purport to
be complete, comprehensive, or definitive, and all references herein to documents or reports are qualified
in their entirety by reference to the complete text of such documents or reports. Copies of documents and
reports referred to herein that are not included in their entirety herein may be obtained from the Underwriter
at 1640 Gulf-to-Bay Boulevard, FL2-020-01-04, Clearwater, Florida 33755 prior to delivery of the Bonds
and thereafter from the Trustee upon payment of any required fee. Unless otherwise defined herein, terms



used in capitalized form in this Official Statement shall have the same meanings as in the Indenture. See
Appendices C and D for definitions of certain terms used in this Official Statement.

THE BONDS

General Description

The Bonds are being issued as fully registered bonds without coupons in principal denominations of
$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof (the "Authorized Denominations"). The Bonds will be dated as of
the date of their initial issuance and delivery, will bear interest from that date at the rates per annum and will
mature on the dates and in the amounts set forth on the inside cover page of this Official Statement. The
Bonds will be subject to the redemption provisions set forth below. Interest on the Bonds will be computed
on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months and will be payable semiannually on each
July 1 and January 1 (each, an "Interest Payment Date,"), commencing January 1, 2005.

The principal and premium of the Bonds shall be payable when due by check or draft, upon
presentation and surrender of the Bonds at the Designated Office (initially, Charlotte, North Carolina) of
Wachovia Bank, National Association, as Trustee (the "Trustee"), and interest will be payable by check or
draft mailed by the Trustee on each Interest Payment Date to the holders of the Bonds registered as such as
of the Record Date; provided, however, that at the expense of and upon the written request of a holder of
$1,000,000 or more (or of all Bonds if less than $1,000,000 shall be outstanding) interest will be paid by wire
transfer to an account in the United States. The Record Date with respect to any Interest Payment Date is
the fifteenth day of the calendar month preceding such Interest Payment Date. For so long as the book-entry
only system of ownership of the Bonds is in effect, payments of principal, premium, if any , and interest on
the Bonds will be made as described below under the caption "Book-Entry Only System."

All payments of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds shall be payable in any coin
or currency of the United States of America which at the time of payment is legal tender for the payment of
public and private debts.

Redemption Provisions

Optional Redemption. The Bonds maturing on or before July 1, 2014 are not subject to optional
redemption prior to maturity. The Bonds maturing after July 1, 2014 are subject to redemption at the option
of the Issuer on or after July 1,2014 as a whole or in part at any time, in any manner as determined by the
Trustee in its discretion taking into consideration the maturity of the Loan being prepaid by a particular
Borrower, at the redemption price equal to the principal amount of the Bonds to be redeemed, plus accrued
interest to the redemption date.




Scheduled Mandatory Redemption. The Bonds maturing on July 1, 2024 are subject to mandatory
redemption, in part, by lot, at redemption prices equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof plus interest
accrued to the redemption date, beginning on July 1, 2020 and on each July 1 thereafter, in the following
principal amounts in the following years:

Year Principal Amount
2020 $415,000
2021 440,000
2022 460,000
2023 485,000
2024* 510,000

*Maturity, not a redemption.

The Bonds maturing on July 1, 2029 are subject to mandatory redemption, in part, by lot, at
redemption prices equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof plus interest accrued to the redemption date,
beginning on July 1, 2025 and on each July 1 thereafter, in the following principal amounts in the following
years:

Year Principal Amount
2025 $295,000
2026 310,000
2027 330,000
2028 340,000
2029%* 360,000

*Maturity, not a redemption

The Bonds maturing on July 1, 2034 are subject to mandatory redemption, in part, by lot, at
redemption prices equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof plus interest accrued to the redemption date,
beginning on July 1, 2030 and on each July 1 thereafter, in the following principal amounts in the following
years:

Year Principal Amount
2030 $375,000
2031 395,000
2032 415,000
2033 435,000
2034* 460,000

*Maturity, not a redemption

Extraordinary Mandatory Redemption. The Bonds are also subject to extraordinary mandatory
redemption as a result of acceleration of a Loan pursuant to a Loan Agreement at any time, in whole or in
part, at a redemption price equal to the principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest to the redemption date,
without premium, but only with the approval of the Insurer, from all Liquidation Proceeds or Insurance
Proceeds received by the Trustee as a result of an acceleration of any Loan. "Liquidation Proceeds" means
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amounts received by the Trustee or the Issuer in connection with the enforcement of any of the remedies
under a Loan Agreement after the occurrence of an "event of default" under a Loan Agreement which has
not been waived or cured. "Insurance Proceeds" means amounts which are deposited by the Insurer with the
Trustee pursuant to Article IX of the Indenture as a condition of the direction of acceleration of all or a
portion of the Bonds by the Insurer.

Whenever any Event of Default shall have occurred with respect to any Loan Agreement, the Issuer
or the Trustee, shall, with the written consent of the Insurer, or upon the direction of the Insurer, accelerate
the Loan made pursuant to such Loan Agreement. Such Events of Default include, but are not limited to,
failure by any Borrower to timely pay any Loan Repayment, a failure by any Borrower to observe and
performany covenant, condition or agreement contained in the Loan Agreement, subject to certain provisions
regarding notice and an opportunity to cure, bankruptcy of any Borrower and other events. See "Appendix
C - Form of the Indenture" and "Appendix D - Form of the Covenant Loan Agreement," for a further
description of the events which might trigger an acceleration.

To the extent that one or more Loan or Loans, but not all Loans, are being accelerated, the Bonds
to be redeemed shall be selected by the Trustee by lot or in such other manner as the Issuer in its discretion
may deem appropriate, provided, however, that only such Bonds which correspond in terms of amount and
scheduled maturity date to the principal loan payment obligations of the Loan or Loans being accelerated
are subject to such extraordinary mandatory redemption, and provided further that, in the event the
Liquidation Proceeds are not sufficient to redeem all such corresponding Bonds, the portion of the
corresponding Bonds to be so redeemed shall be selected on a pro-rata basis based upon the ratio of
Liquidation Proceeds to the total amount of Bonds which corresponds to the Loan or Loans being
accelerated.

Selection of Bonds to Be Redeemed. The Bonds may be redeemed only in Authorized
Denominations. The Bonds or portions of the Bonds to be redeemed shall, except as otherwise specified in
the Indenture, be selected by the Registrar by lot or in such other manner as the Trustee in its discretion may
deem appropriate.

Notice of Redemption. In the case of every redemption, the Trustee shall cause notice of such
redemption to be given to the registered Owner of any Bonds designated for redemption in whole or in part,
at such Owner's address as the same shall last appear on the Bond registration books, by mailing a copy of
the redemption notice by first class mail at least thirty days prior to the redemption date. The failure of the
Registrar to give notice to a Bondholder or any defect in such notice shall not affect the validity of the
redemption of any other Bonds.

Each notice of redemption shall specify the date fixed for redemption, the redemption price to be
paid, the place or places of payment, that payment will be made upon presentation and surrender of the
Bonds to be redeemed, that interest, if any, accrued to the date fixed for redemption will be paid as specified
in said notice, and that on and after said date interest thereon will cease to accrue. If less than all of the
outstanding Bonds are to be redeemed, the notice of redemption shall specify the numbers of the Bonds or
portions thereof, including CUSIP identification numbers to be redeemed.

Notice of redemption is also required to be sent by registered or certified mail or overnight delivery
service to certain securities depositories, provided, however, that such mailing is not a condition precedent
to any redemption and a failure to mail any such notice shall not affect the validity of any proceedings for
the redemption of Bonds.



Effect of Calling for Redemption. On the redemption date, the principal amount of each Bond to be
redeemed, together with the accrued interest thereon to such date, shall become due and payable; and from
and after such date, notice (if required) having been given and moneys available for such redemption being
on deposit with the Trustee in accordance with the provisions of the Indenture, then notwithstanding that any
Bonds called for redemption shall not have been surrendered, no further interest shall accrue on any of such
Bonds or portions thereof to be redeemed. From and after such date ofredemption (such notice having been
given and moneys available solely for such redemption being on deposit with the Trustee), the Bonds or
portions thereof to be redeemed shall not be deemed to be Outstanding under the Indenture and the Issuer
shall be under no further liability in respect thereof.

Book-Entry Only System

The information provided immediately below concerning DTC and the Book-Entry Only System has
been obtained from DTC and is not guaranteed as to accuracy or completeness by, and is not to be construed
as a representation by, the Underwriter, the Issuer, the Trustee or the Borrowers.

Unless the book-entry system described herein is terminated, as hereinafter described, The
Depository Trust Company ("DTC"), New York, New York, will act as securities depository for the Bonds.
The Bonds will be issued as fully registered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC's
partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. One
fully registered Bond certificate will be issued for each maturity of the Bonds, in the aggregate principal
amount of such maturity, and will be deposited with DTC or with the Trustee on behalf of DTC.

DTC, the world's largest depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New
York Banking Law, a "banking organization" within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member
of the Federal Reserve System, a "clearing corporation" within the meaning of the New York Uniform
Commercial Code and "clearing agency" registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 2 million issues of U.S.
and non-U.S. equity issues, corporate and municipal debt issues and money market instruments from over
85 countries that DTC's participants ("Direct Participants") deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the
settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited securities, through
electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participant's accounts, thereby
eliminating the need for physical movement of securities certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S.
and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations and certain other
organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation
("DTCC"). DTCC, in turn, is owned by a number of Direct Participants of DTC and Members of the
National Securities Clearing Corporation, Government Securities Clearing Corporation, MBS Clearing
Corporation, and Emerging Markets Clearing Corporation, (NSCC, GSCC, MBSCC, and EMCC, also
subsidiaries of DTCC), as well as by the New York Stock Exchange, Inc., the American Stock Exchange,
LLC, and the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. Access to the DTC system is also available
to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, and trust companies that clear
through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly ("Indirect
Participants"). DTC has Standard and Poor's highest rating: AAA. The DTC rules applicable to its
Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. More information about DTC can be
found at www.dtcc.com.

Purchases of the Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants,
which will receive a credit for the Bonds on DTC's records. The ownership interest of each actual purchaser
of'each Bond (a "Beneficial Owner") is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants' records.
Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase, but Beneficial Owners



are expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic
statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner
entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the Bonds are to be accomplished by entries
made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial
Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership interests in the Bonds, except in the event
that use of the book-entry system for the Bonds is discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Participants with DTC are registered in
the name of DTC's partnership nominee, Cede & Co. The deposit of Bonds with DTC and their registration
in the name of Cede & Co. effect no change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual
Beneficial Owners of the Bonds; DTC's records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose
accounts such Bonds are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Direct and Indirect
Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct
Participantsto Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners
will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may
be in effect from time to time.

Beneficial Owners of the Bonds may wish to take certain steps to augment the transmission to them
of notices of significant events with respect to the Bonds, such as redemptions, defaults and proposed
amendments to Bond documents. Beneficial Owners of the Bonds may wish to ascertain that the nominee
holding the Bonds for their benefit has agreed to obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners.

Redemption notices shall be sent only to Cede & Co. for so long as it is the registered owner of the
Bonds. If less than all of the Bonds of a maturity are being redeemed, DTC's practice is to determine by lot
the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such maturity issue to be redeemed.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to the
Bonds. Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the Issuer as soon as possible after the
record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.'s consenting or voting rights to those Direct
Participants to whose accounts the Bonds are credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to
the Omnibus Proxy).

Payments of principal, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds will be made to Cede & Co. or
such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC's practice is to credit
Direct Participants' accounts on the payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on
DTC's records, unless DTC has reason to believe that it will not receive payment on the payable date.
Payments by Direct or Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions
and customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or
registered in "street name" and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC, the Trustee,
or the Issuer, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time.
Payment of principal, premium, if any, and interest to DTC is the responsibility of the Issuer or the Trustee,
disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants shall be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement
of such payments to the Beneficial Owners shall be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants.

NONE OF THE ISSUER, THE BORROWERS OR THE TRUSTEE WILL HAVE ANY
RESPONSIBILITY OR OBLIGATION TO THE DTC PARTICIPANTS OR THE PERSON FOR WHOM
THEY ACT AS NOMINEES WITH RESPECT TO THE PAYMENTS TO OR THE PROVIDING OF
NOTICE FOR THE DTC PARTICIPANTS, THE INDIRECT PARTICIPANTS OR THE BENEFICIAL



OWNERS OF THE BONDS. THE ISSUER CANNOT AND DOES NOT GIVE ANY ASSURANCES
THAT DTC, DIRECT PARTICIPANTS OR OTHERS WILL DISTRIBUTE PAYMENTS OF PRINCIPAL
OF, PREMIUM, IF ANY, OR INTEREST ON THE BONDS PAID TO DTC OR ITS NOMINEE, AS THE
REGISTERED OWNER, OR ANY NOTICES TO THE BENEFICIAL OWNERS OR THAT THEY WILL
DO SO ON A TIMELY BASIS, OR THAT DTC WILL ACT IN THE MANNER DESCRIBED IN THIS
OFFICIAL STATEMENT.

The Issuer and the Trustee have entered into a letter of representations (the "Book-Entry
Agreement") with DTC providing for such book-entry only system. However, the book-entry only system
may be terminated upon the happening of either of the following: (a) DTC discontinues providing its services
as securities depository by giving reasonable notice to the Issuer or the Trustee, or (b) the Issuer, elects to
terminate the book-entry only system by notice to DTC. Ifthe Issuer does not replace DTC, the Trustee shall
notify DTC of the availability of definitive or temporary Bond certificates (the "Replacement Bonds") to
Beneficial Owners requesting the same in an aggregate outstanding amount representing the interest of each
such Beneficial Owner, making such adjustments and allowances as the Trustee may find necessary or
appropriate as to accrued interest and previous payments of principal. Definitive Replacement Bonds shall
be issued only upon surrender to the Trustee of the Bonds of each maturity by DTC, accompanied by
registration instructions for the definitive Replacement Bonds for such maturity from DTC. Neither the Issuer
nor the Trustee shall be liable for any delay in delivery of such instructions and conclusively may rely on and
shall be protected in relying on such instructions of DTC.

THE ISSUER

The Issuer was created pursuant to the Florida Interlocal Cooperation Act of 1969, Section 163.01,
Florida Statutes, as amended, through an Interlocal Agreement dated as of December 1, 1998 (the "Interlocal
Agreement"), initially by and among the City of Stuart, Florida, the City of Deland, Florida and the City of
Rockledge, Florida. Gadsden County, Florida, Jackson County, Florida and Leon County, Florida have each
joined in the Interlocal Agreement subsequent to December 1, 1998.

The Issuer is a separate legal entity created for the purpose of enabling participating municipalities
and counties or other participating governmental entities to finance or refinance (including reimbursement
of prior expenditures) undertakings on a cooperative and cost effective basis and to benefit from the
economies of scale associated with larger scale financings which might otherwise be unrealized if separate
financings were undertaken. The Bonds are being issued in furtherance of the Issuer's program (the
"Program") of making loans to participating governmental units. Pursuant to the Interlocal Agreement, the
Issuer has the power to issue, from time to time, in various series, bonds, notes or other obligations to finance
and re-finance loans to participating governmental entities.

Membership in the Issuer consists of those governmental entities which from time to time have been
admitted to membership by the affirmative vote of two-thirds of the board of directors of the Issuer and
which have joined in the Interlocal Agreement. While membership in the Issuer is open to other
governmental entities, membership in the Issuer is not a pre-condition to becoming a Borrower under the
Program.

The Issuer is governed by a board of directors which consists of not less than one or more than seven
elected public officials, each of which shall be appointed by the President of the Florida League of Cities,
Inc. There is no limitation upon the term of office of a director, and directors serve until the expiration of
their term in elected office, their resignation or their removal. A director may be removed upon the
affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the members of the Issuer.



The duration of the Issuer shall continue so long as any obligation of the Issuer or any obligation of
any participating governmental entity issued under the Program remains outstanding.

The Bonds constitute the eleventh series of bonds to be issued by the Issuer. On the same day as the
Bonds are being issued, the Issuer is also issuing its Revenue Bonds, Series 2004A-2. The Series 2004A-2

Bonds are secured separately from the Bonds.

The current Board of Directors of the Issuer consists of the following elected officials:

Name Elected Position

Raul Martinez Mayor, City of Hialeah

Dottie K. Reeder Mayor, City of Seminole

Lizbeth Benaquisto Council Member, Village of Wellington
H.L. (Roy) Tyler Commissioner, City of Haines City
Larry Ady Commissioner, City of Belle Isle

THE ADMINISTRATOR AND THE ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT
The Administrator

The Administrator of the Issuer's Program is the Florida League of Cities, Inc., a Florida non-profit
corporation established in 1922. The mission of the Administrator, as outlined in its charter, is primarily to
provide assistance to Florida municipalities on matters of common interest. The Administrator will provide
loan origination and administration services under the Indenture pursuant to the Program Administration
Agreement (hereinafter described).

The Administrator is a Florida corporation not-for-profit. The Administrator is organized on a non-
stock membership basis. The members of the Administrator consist of over 400 Florida cities and counties.
The Administrator is governed by a Board of Directors consisting of 54 members. Directors are elected by
the members of the Administrator.

In addition to the Issuer's ten outstanding bond issues, the Administrator has also provided loan
origination and administration services in connection with other prior loan pools established by entities other
than the Issuer and, in that capacity, has participated in the origination of numerous loans to Florida
municipalities and counties.

In addition to loan pool origination and administration services, the Administrator provides services
to its members in the areas of pool insurance and advice on current and emerging constitutional, legislative,
and regulatory issues. The Administrator has 160 full-time employees and an annual operating budget of
approximately $17.0 million.

The Bonds are not obligations of the Administrator. The Administrator is neither obligated nor
expected to advance its own funds to pay principal of or interest on the Bonds or to perform the other
obligations of the Issuer under the Indenture.



The Administration Agreement

The Issuer and the Administrator have entered into an ongoing Administration Agreement (the
"Administration Agreement"). Under the terms of the Administration Agreement, the Administrator agrees
to receive and review applications of municipalities and counties to participate in the Program and to forward
the same to any institutions as may be providing credit support for the Program. The Administrator agrees
to meet with representatives of applicants and to aid applicants in determining whether to participate in the
Program. The Administrator agrees to abide by the terms of the Indenture and to use its best efforts to ensure
that the Loans comply with the terms of the Indenture. Under the terms of the Administration Agreement,
the Administrator is to be paid a semi-annual fee based upon the principal balance of all Loans outstanding.
The annual amount of the fee does not exceed 1/10 of one percent of the par amount of the Loans
outstanding, and based upon the original par amount at issuance for each individual Loan, the fee decreases
as a percentage as the par amount increases above certain levels.

THE BORROWERS

CERTAIN OF THE INFORMATION HEREIN REGARDING THE BORROWERS IS BEYOND
THE KNOWLEDGE OF THE ISSUER. WHILE THE ISSUER HAS NO REASON TO BELIEVE THAT
SUCH INFORMATION IS INCOMPLETE OR INACCURATE, THE ISSUER HAS NOT
INDEPENDENTLY INVESTIGATED OR CONFIRMED THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS
THEREOF AND HAS INCLUDED SUCH INFORMATION IN THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT IN
RELIANCE UPON THE REPRESENTATION AND WARRANTY OF THE RESPECTIVE BORROWERS
THAT SUCH INFORMATION DOES NOT CONTAIN ANY UNTRUE STATEMENT OF A MATERIAL
FACT AND DOES NOT OMIT TO STATE ANY MATERIAL FACT NECESSARY IN ORDER TO
MAKE THE STATEMENTS MADE HEREIN, IN THE LIGHT OF THE CIRCUMSTANCES UNDER
WHICH THEY ARE MADE, NOT MISLEADING

The Borrowers consist of four municipalities of the State of Florida. A brief description of each
Borrower is set forth below. Financial information with respect to each of the Borrowers is contained in
Appendices G through J hereof.

The City of Haines City - The City of Haines City 1is located in Polk County, Florida and was
incorporated in 1914. The City of Haines City has an estimated population of approximately 14,115 people.

The Village of Pinecrest - The Village of Pinecrest is located in Miami-Dade County, Florida and
was incorporated in 1996. The Village of Pinecrest has an estimated population of approximately 19,000
people.

The City of Oakland Park - The City of Oakland Park is located in Broward County, Florida and was
incorporated in 1929. The City of Oakland Park has an estimated population of approximately 31,000 people.

The City of St. Augustine Beach - The City of St. Augustine Beach is located in St. Johns County,

Florida and was incorporated in 1959. The City of St. Augustine Beach has an estimated population of
approximately 4,000 people.
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PURPOSE OF THE BONDS
In General

The proceeds to be received by the Issuer from the sale of the Bonds will be used by the Issuer to
make Loans to the Borrowers for the purpose of providing funds to (i) finance or refinance the costs of the
Projects and (i) pay costs and expenses related to the issuance of the Bonds, including the premiums for the
Bond Insurance Policy and the Debt Service Reserve Fund Surety Bond described below.

Under the terms of the Indenture, an amount sufficient to pay the costs of issuance of the Bonds will
be deposited into the Costs of Issuance Fund and the balance of the proceeds of the Bonds will be deposited
into accounts in the Project Loan Fund, to be disbursed upon requisition therefor to the respective Borrowers.
Although not actually disbursed to each Borrower, each Borrower is responsible for repayment of that
portion of the Bonds corresponding to its pro-rata share of costs of issuance through its debt service
payments. The borrowing amount set forth below for each Borrower is the principal amount of the Bonds
corresponding to the Loan to such Borrower.

City of Haines City - The City of Haines City is borrowing the proceeds of $8,200,000 principal
amount of the Bonds (which inclusive of original issue discount is $8,175,143.75) for the purpose of
financing construction of a rail spurand various community redevelopment capital projects. The Haines City
Loan is expected to be repaid over a period of 30 years. Although Haines City is entering into a Covenant
Loan Agreement, for internal budgetary purposes, the City intends to obtain funds to repay a portion of the
Loan from tax increment revenues derived from a community redevelopment area of the City.

Village of Pinecrest - The Village of Pinecrest is borrowing the proceeds of $3,075,000 principal
amount of the Bonds (which inclusive of original issue discount is $3,062,443.95) for the purpose of
financing a library/community center and other capital projects. The Pinecrest Loan is expected to be repaid
over a period of 20 years.

City of Oakland Park - The City of Oakland Park is borrowing the proceeds of $1,810,000 principal
amount of the Bonds (which inclusive of original issue discount is $1,795,674.75) for the purpose of
financing various water and sewer capital projects. The Oakland Park Loan is expected to be repaid over
a period of 30 years.

City of St. Augustine Beach - The City of St. Augustine Beach is borrowing the proceeds of
$2,500,000 principal amount of the Bonds (which inclusive of original issue discount is $2,480,042.25) for
the purpose of financing the purchase of land for conservation and off-beach parking. The St. Augustine
Beach Loan is expected to be repaid over a period of 30 years.

The annual debt service on each Loan is set forth below under the caption "Debt Service
Requirements."
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Estimated Sources and Uses

The following table sets forth the estimated sources and uses of funds in connection with the Bonds:

SOURCES OF FUNDS:

Par AMOUNL . . ..ottt $15,585,000.00
Net Original Issue Discount ............. .. ...t (71,695.30)
TOTAL SOURCES: . ... e $15,513,304.70
USES OF FUNDS:
Deposit to Project Loan Fund .. ........ ... ... .. ... ... .. ... $15,214,315.54
Costsof Issuance(l) . ...t i 298.989.16
TOTAL USES: ... e $15,513,304.70
(1) This includes legal fees, underwriter's discount, bond insurance and reserve surety premiums, costs of printing

and other incidental expenses.

SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT

Limited Obligations; Trust Estate

The Bonds are not a general debt, liability or obligation of the Issuer, but are limited
obligations of the Issuer, payable solely from (i) the payments to be made by the Borrowers pursuant
to the Loan Agreements (the “Revenues”), (ii) all amounts in certain funds and accounts created
pursuant to the Indenture, and (iii) any proceeds of the Bond Insurance Policy (as defined in the
Indenture), any proceeds of the Surety Bond (as defined in the Indenture) any and all other property,
rights and interest of every kind and nature from time to time hereafter by delivery or by writing of
any kind subjected to the Indenture, as and for additional security for the Bonds, by the Issuer or by
any other person on its behalf or with its written consent (collectively, the "Trust Estate'), as more
fully described herein. The obligations of the respective Borrowers pursuant to the Loan Agreements
are not a general debt, liability or obligation of the respective Borrowers, but are limited obligations
of the Borrowers payable from the sources described herein. The Bonds are not a debt, liability or
obligation of the State of Florida or any political subdivision or entity thereof other than the Issuer.

A portion of the proceeds to be received by the Issuer from the sale of the Bonds will be loaned by
the Issuer to the Borrowers pursuant to the Loan Agreements. Each Loan Agreement provides that the
particular Borrower will make payments to the Trustee (the "Basic Payments") in such amounts and at such
times so as to provide sufficient funds to pay the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Loan to
the Borrower. Each Loan Agreement represents the several obligation of the relevant Borrower and no
Borrower is obligated under the Loan Agreement of any other Borrower. Therefore, each Borrower is only
responsible for making Basic Payments that constitute the security for a proportionate share of the debt
service on the Bonds. The aggregate principal and interest payments included in the Basic Payments
scheduled to be made by the Borrowers equal the scheduled debt service on the Bonds.

The City of Haines City, Village of Pinecrest and City of Oakland Park have each agreed to
appropriate in their annual budgets, by amendment, if required, and to pay when due under their respective
Loan Agreements (such Loan Agreements being referred to herein as the "Covenant Loan Agreements"), as
promptly as money becomes available, amounts of Non-Ad Valorem Revenues (hereinafter defined) of such
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Borrower sufficient to satisfy the Loan Repayment obligations of such Borrower. "Non-Ad Valorem
Revenues" means all revenues and taxes of the particular Borrower derived from any source whatever, other
than ad valorem taxation on real and personal property, which are legally available for Loan Repayments.

The Loan Agreement between the City of St. Augustine Beach and the Issuer is referred to herein
as the "St. Augustine Beach Loan Agreement." The Loan Repaymentobligations ofthe City of St. Augustine
Beach will be payable from and secured solely by a pledge of and lien upon the City's Discretionary
Communications Services Tax Revenues (hereinafter described). Further information concerning the St.
Augustine Beach Loan Agreement and the Discretionary Communications Services Tax Revenues of the
City of St. Augustine Beach is contained herein under the caption "Security and Sources of Payment - City
of St. Augustine Beach Loan."

Pursuant to the Indenture, the Issuer has assigned and pledged to the Trustee all of the Issuer's right,
title and interest (with certain exceptions specified therein) in and to the Loan Agreements, including the
Issuer's right to receive Loan Repayments, as the source of payment of and security for the Bonds.

Reserve Fund

The Indenture establishes a Reserve Fund which is required to be and which shall be funded at
closing by the Debt Service Reserve Fund Surety Bond described below.

The Debt Service Reserve Fund Surety Bond also serves as the reserve fund for the Issuer's
(i) Revenue Bonds, Series 2001A, issued November 15,2001, and outstanding as of the date of this Official
Statement in the principal amount of $84,085,000, (ii) Revenue Bonds, Series 2002A, issued May 17, 2002,
and outstanding as of the date of this Official Statement in the principal amount 0f$47,050,000, (iii) Revenue
Bonds, Series 2002B, issued August 15, 2002, and outstanding as of the date of this Official Statement in
the principal amount of $66,385,000, (iv) Revenue Bonds, Series 2002C, issued November 22, 2002, and
outstanding as of the date of this Official Statement in the principal amount of $26,215,000, (v) Revenue
Bonds, Series 2003 A, issued May 16, 2003, and outstanding as of the date of this Official Statement in the
principal amount of $75,430,000 and (vi) Revenue Bonds, Series 2003B, issued December 17, 2003, and
outstanding as of the date of this Official Statement in the principal amount of $46,805,000. The Insurer has
also issued financial guaranty insurance policies with respect to these prior bonds of the Issuer.

The Indenture provides that the Issuer may issue additional bonds and that the Debt Service Reserve
Fund Surety Bond may serve as the reserve fund for such additional bonds, but only with the written consent
of the Insurer. The Issuer may also substitute an Alternate Surety Bond for the Debt Service Reserve Fund
Surety Bond, again only with the written consent of the Insurer.

Moneys on deposit in the Reserve Fund (including the Debt Service Reserve Fund Surety Bond) shall
be applied to cure any deficiency in the Revenue Fund. Under the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code
applicable to the Bonds, it is generally not feasible to establish a debt service reserve fund with respect to
general obligation bonds or the portion of bonds ultimately payable from a general obligation pledge. Thus,
amounts on deposit in the Reserve Fund are available to cure a deficiency in the Revenue Fund resultant from
the failure of any Borrower to timely pay debt service on its Loan.

MBIA Insurance Corporation (the "Insurer") has committed to issue a debt service reserve surety
bond (the "Debt Service Reserve Fund Surety Bond"). The Debt Service Reserve Fund Surety Bond will
provide that upon notice from the Issuer or the Trustee to the Insurer to the effect that insufficient amounts
are on deposit in the Revenue Fund to pay the principal of (at maturity or pursuant to mandatory redemption
requirements) and interest on the Bonds, the Insurer will promptly deposit with the Issuer or the Trustee an
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amount sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds or the available amount of the Debt
Service Reserve Fund Surety Bond, whichever is less. Upon the later of (i) three (3) days after receipt by
the Insurer of a Demand for Payment in the form attached to the Debt Service Reserve Fund Surety Bond,
duly executed by the Issuer or the Trustee; or (ii) the payment date of the Bonds as specified in the Demand
for Payment presented by the Issuer or the Trustee to the Insurer, the Insurer will make a deposit of funds
in an account with the Trustee sufficient for the payment of amounts which are then due to the Trustee (as
specified in the Demand for Payment, subject to the Debt Service Reserve Fund Surety Bond coverage).

The available amount of the Debt Service Reserve Fund Surety Bond is the initial face amount of
the Debt Service Reserve Fund Surety Bond less the amount of any previous deposits by the Insurer with the
Trustee which have not been reimbursed by the Issuer. The Issuer and the Insurer have entered into a
Financial Guaranty Agreement (the "Agreement"). Pursuant to the Agreement, the Issuer is required to
reimburse the Insurer from amounts it has received, within one year of any deposit, the amount of such
deposit made by the Insurer with the Trustee under the Debt Service Reserve Fund Surety Bond. Such
reimbursement shall be made only after all required deposits to the Revenue Fund have been made.

Under the terms of the Agreement, the Trustee is required to reimburse the Insurer, from the funds
supplied to the Trustee, with interest, until the face amount of the Debt Service Reserve Fund Surety Bond
is reinstated. No optional redemption of Bonds corresponding to a Loan with respect to which a draw has
been made under the Debt Service Reserve Fund Surety Bond may be made until the Debt Service Reserve
Fund Surety Bond is reinstated. The Debt Service Reserve Fund Surety Bond is provided as an alternative
to the Issuer depositing funds in the Reserve Fund. The Debt Service Reserve Fund Surety Bond has already
been issued in the face amount of $12,356,500 and the premium therefor has been previously paid. At the
time of issuance of the Bonds, the face amount of the Debt Service Reserve Fund Surety Bond will be
increased by $779,250 to $13,135,750, and the premium for such increase will be paid by the Issuer at the
time of delivery of the Bonds.

Anti-Dilution Covenant

The City of Haines City, Village of Pinecrest and City of Oakland Park (herein referred to as the
"Covenant Borrowers"), pursuant to their respective Loan Agreement, have each covenanted (such covenant
being referred to as the "Anti-Dilution Covenant") that as soon as practicable upon the issuance of debt
which is secured by its Non-Ad Valorem Revenues, it will deliver to the Issuer and the Insurer a certificate
setting forth the calculations of the financial ratios described below and certifying that it is in compliance
with such covenants:

(1) Non-Ad Valorem Revenues (average of actual receipts over the prior two years) must cover
projected maximum annual debt service on debt secured by and/or payable solely from such Non-Ad
Valorem Revenues by at least 150%; and

(i1) projected maximum annual debt service requirements for all debt secured by and/or payable
solely from such Non-Ad Valorem Revenues will not exceed 20% of Governmental Fund Revenues (defined
as General Fund, Special Fund, Debt Service Fund and Capital Projects Fund), exclusive of (x) ad valorem
revenues restricted to payment of debt service on any debt and (y) any debt proceeds, based on the particular
Borrower's audited financial statements (average of actual receipts over the prior two years).

For purposes of the foregoing, "maximum annual debt service" means the lesser of the actual maximum

annual debt service on all debt or 15% of the original par amount of the debt, in each case, secured by the
Borrower's Non-Ad Valorem Revenues.
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Additional Bonds: Permitted Parity Indebtedness

No additional Bonds or debt of the Issuer may be issued pursuant to the Indenture. However, the
Issuer may issue additional indebtedness, including future series of bonds, for any other purposes of the
Issuer (including in order to make loans to borrowers), provided that such indebtedness may not be payable
from the Trust Estate pledged to the repayment of the Bonds.

There is no limitation on the issuance of additional debt by the Borrowers except as may result from
compliance with the obligations described above under the caption "Anti-dilution Covenant."

The Covenants to Budget and Appropriate

The information under this caption applies only to the Covenant Borrowers.

In General. Ineach Loan Agreement, each Covenant Borrower covenants and agrees to appropriate
(such covenant being referred to as the "Covenant to Budget and Appropriate") in its annual budget, by
amendment if required, and to pay when due under its Loan Agreement, as promptly as money becomes
available, amounts of Non-Ad Valorem Revenues of the Covenant Borrower to satisfy its Loan Repayment
obligations. Such covenant is subject in all respects to the payment of obligations secured by a pledge of
Non-Ad Valorem Revenues heretofore or hereinafter entered into. The Covenant Borrowers do not covenant
to maintain any services or programs which generate Non-Ad Valorem Revenues or to maintain the charges
they collect as of the date of this Official Statement for any such services or programs.

"Non-Ad Valorem Revenues" means all revenues and taxes of the Borrower derived from any source
whatever, other than ad valorem taxation on real and personal property, and which are legally available for
Loan Repayments.

In Florida, the revenues received by municipalities may be classified based upon whether such
revenues are derived from ad valorem taxation. Ad valorem taxes are taxes levied by municipalities upon
taxable real and tangible personal property located within the geographic jurisdiction of the municipality.
Ad valorem taxes are levied based upon the assessed value of taxable property, and are imposed ata uniform
rate per thousand dollars of assessed value. This rate is referred to as the "millage rate," with one mill
representing one dollar of ad valorem taxes per thousand dollars of assessed valuation. Exclusive of millage
levied pursuant to the approval of the qualified electors of a municipality, municipalities may not levy ad
valorem taxes at a rate in excess of ten mills annually.

Revenues received by a municipality other than from ad valorem taxation are referred to as "Non-Ad
Valorem Revenues." Florida municipalities collect Non-Ad Valorem Revenues from a variety of sources.
Certain Non-Ad Valorem Revenues are not lawfully available to be used by municipalities to satisfy their
Loan Repayments.

Under the terms of the Loan Agreements, each Covenant Borrower may pledge its Non-Ad Valorem
Revenues to obligations that itissuesin the future and certain Covenant Borrowers may have already pledged
certain of their Non-Ad Valorem Revenues to existing indebtedness. In the event of any such pledge, such
Non-Ad Valorem Revenues would be required to be applied to said obligations prior to being used to repay
a Loan.

The amount and availability of Non-Ad Valorem Revenues of each of the Covenant Borrowers are

subject to change, including reduction or elimination by change of state law or changes in the facts and
circumstances according to which certain of the Non-Ad Valorem Revenues are collected. The amount of
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Non-Ad Valorem Revenues collected by a Covenant Borrower is, in certain circumstances, beyond the
control of the Covenant Borrower.

City of St. Augustine Beach Loan

The Loan Repayment obligations of the City of St. Augustine Beach are payable from and are
secured by a pledge of and lien upon the "Discretionary Communications Services Tax Revenues " of the
City. Except as described under this caption, the St. Augustine Beach Loan Agreement is substantially
similar to the standard Covenant Loan Agreement.

Discretionary Communications Services Tax in General. Each municipality in Florida is permitted
to levy a discretionary communications services tax. A municipality which levies the tax is, subject to certain

exemptions, required to levy it on all "communications services" which originate or terminate in the State
of Florida and which are charged to a service address within the particular municipality.

"Communications services" is defined in the CSTA to mean the transmission, conveyance or routing
of voice, data, audio, video, or any other information or signals, including cable services, to a point, or
between points, by or through any electronic, radio, satellite, cable, optical, microwave, or other medium or
method now in existence of hereafter devised, regardless of the protocol used for such transmission or
conveyance. However, the term "communications services" does not include "information services,"
installation or maintenance of wiring or equipment on a customer's premises, the sale or rental of tangible
personal property, the sale of advertising, including, but not limited to directory advertising, bad check
charges, late payment charges, billing and collection services or internet access service, electronic mail
service, electronic bulletin board service or similar on-line computer services. "Information service" means,
in general, the offering of a capability for generating, acquiring, storing, transforming, processing, retrieving,
using, or making available information via communications services, including but not limited to, electronic
publishing, web-hosting service and end-user 900 number service.

Services provided to the federal, state or local governments are exempt from the Discretionary
Communications Services Tax. Sales to certain non-profit homes for the aged, religious institutions and
educational institutions are also exempt from the tax. Inaddition, the Discretionary Communications Services
Tax does not apply to any direct-to-home satellite service. Under certain circumstances, the Discretionary
Communications Services Tax maynot exceed $25,000 per calendar year oncommunication services charges
billed to a service address located in a municipality imposing the tax for interstate communications services
that originate outside Florida and terminate within Florida.

The maximum rate at which any municipality may impose the Discretionary Communications
Services Tax is 5.22%, although certain municipalities may not levy at a rate in excess of 5.10%. The City
of St. Augustine Beach has advised the Issuer that the City is currently subject to the 5.10% maximum.

The Discretionary Communications Services Tax is required to be paid by the purchaser of the
communication service and collected from such purchaser by the dealer of the communications services.
Failure to pay, collect and remit the tax as required by law may subject the offender to criminal penalties.

The proceeds of the tax are required to be remitted by the dealer to the State of Florida Department
of Revenue ("FDOR"). Providers of communications services may deduct 0.75% of the tax due and
accounted for and remitted to the FDOR as a collection fee (or 0.25% in the case of providers who do not
employ an enhanced zip code database or a database that is either supplied or certified by the FDOR).
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FDOR is permitted to deduct its cost of administering the tax, not to exceed 1% of the total tax
collections, and then distributes the remaining proceeds to the taxing municipality on a monthly basis. Under
the CSTA, local governments must work with FDOR to properly identify service addresses to each taxing
authority. If the City of St. Augustine Beach fails to provide FDOR with accurate service address
information, it risks losing tax proceeds that it should receive. The City of St. Augustine Beach has advised
the Issuer that it believes it has provided FDOR with all information that the FDOR has requested as of the
date hereof and that such information is accurate.

Revenues raised by a municipality from the Discretionary Communications Services Tax may be
used for any public purpose, including pledging such revenues to indebtedness.

The City of St. Augustine Beach has imposed a Discretionary Communications Services Tax since
October 1, 2001, the first date on which the tax was authorized under Florida law. For the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2002, the City imposed the tax at the rate of 5.50%, which was the maximum rate permitted
under the law at that time. Effective October 1, 2002 the City changed the rate to 5.10%, which is the current
maximum rate permitted.

Historical Collection Data and Pro-Forma Coverage. The following table sets for the amount of
Discretionary Communications Services Tax Revenues of the City for the fiscal years ended September 30,
2001 through 2003, and pro-forma coverage of projected maximum annual debt service on the Series 2004
Bonds.

Discretionary Communication
Services Tax Revenues
Fiscal Years Ended September 30
and Pro-Forma Maximum Annual Debt Service Coverage

Discretionary 2001 2002 2003
Communications

Services Tax Revenues $200,609 $222,438 $224,376
Approximate Maximum

Annual Debt Service $164,000 $164,000 $164,000
Pro-Forma Coverage 1.22x 1.36x 1.37x

The City estimates that Discretionary Communications Services Tax Revenues received during the
fiscal year ending September 30, 2004 will be approximately $258,385. Maximum annual debt service for
the Basic Payments portion of the St. Augustine Beach loan is approximately $164,000, which results in
estimated debt service coverage for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2004 of approximately 158%.

Under the St. Augustine Beach Loan Agreement, the City of St. Augustine Beach covenants to take
all lawful steps necessary in order to impose on a continuing basis the Discretionary Communications
Services Tax at such rate and on such services as permitted by law in order to receive revenues therefrom
sufficient at all times to timely pay the Loan Repayments.

Under the terms of the St. Augustine Beach Loan Agreement, the City of St. Augustine Beach is
permitted to issue additional debt payable from and secured by a lien upon and pledge of the Discretionary
Communications Services Tax Revenues on a parity with the Loan Repayment obligations under the St.
Augustine Beach Loan Agreement provided that, among other things, the amount of Discretionary
Communications Services Tax Revenues received by the City for any twelve consecutive months within the
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twenty-four months immediately preceding the date of the additional debt equals at least 135% of the
maximum annual debt service on the City of St. Augustine Beach Loan Agreement (Basic Payments only)
and the proposed parity debt.

The City of St. Augustine Beach does not plan on incurring any indebtedness payable from
Discretionary Communications Services Tax Revenues for the foreseeable future.

Financial Statements of the Borrowers

Appendices G through J include financial information about each of the Borrowers.

FINANCIAL GUARANTY INSURANCE
General
Payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds will be insured by a Financial Guaranty
Insurance Policy (the "Policy") to be issued by MBIA Insurance Corporation simultaneously with the

delivery of the Bonds.

Financial Guaranty Insurance

The following information has been furnished by MBIA Insurance Corporation (the "Insurer") for
use in this Official Statement. Reference is made to Appendix F for a specimen of the Insurer's Policy.

The Insurer's Policy unconditionally and irrevocably guarantees the full and complete payment
required to be made by or on behalf of the Issuer to the Paying Agent or its successor of an amount equal to
(i) the principal of (either at the stated maturity or by an advancement of maturity pursuant to a mandatory
sinking fund payment) and interest on, the Bonds as such payments shall become due but shall not be so paid
(except that in the event of any acceleration of the due date of such principal by reason of mandatory or
optional redemption or acceleration resulting from default or otherwise, other than any advancement of
maturity pursuant to amandatory sinking fund payment, the payments guaranteed by the Insurer's Policy shall
be made in such amounts and at such times as such payments of principal would have been due had there not
been any such acceleration); and (ii) the reimbursement of any such payment which is subsequently
recovered from any owner of the Bonds pursuant to a final judgment by a court of competent jurisdiction that
such payment constitutes an avoidable preference to such owner within the meaning of any applicable
bankruptcy law (a "Preference").

The Insurer's Policy does not insure against loss of any prepayment premium which may at any time
be payable with respect to any Bond. The Insurer's Policy does not, under any circumstance, insure against
loss relating to: (i) optional or mandatory redemptions (other than mandatory sinking fund redemptions); (ii)
any payments to be made on an accelerated basis; (iii) payments of the purchase price of Bonds upon tender
by an owner thereof; or (iv) any Preference relating to clauses (i) through (iii) of this paragraph. The
Insurer's Policy also does not insure against nonpayment of principal of or interest on the Bonds resulting
from the insolvency, negligence or any other act or omission of the Paying Agent or any other paying agent
for the Bonds.

Upon receipt of telephonic or telegraphic notice, such notice subsequently confirmed in writing by

registered or certified mail, or upon receipt of written notice by registered or certified mail, by the Insurer
from the Paying Agent or any owner of a Bond the payment of an insured amount for which is then due, that
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such required payment has not been made, the Insurer on the due date of such payment or within one business
day after receipt of notice of such nonpayment, whichever is later, will make a deposit of funds, in an account
with U.S. Bank Trust National Association, in New York, New York, or its successor, sufficient for the
payment of any such insured amounts which are then due. Upon presentment and surrender of such Bonds
or presentment of such other proof of ownership of the Bonds, together with any appropriate instruments of
assignment to evidence the assignment of the insured amounts due on the Bonds as are paid by the
Insurer, and appropriate instruments to effect the appointment of the Insurer as agent for such owners of the
Bonds in any legal proceeding related to payment of insured amounts on the Bonds, such instruments being
in a form satisfactory to U.S. Bank Trust National Association, U.S. Bank Trust National Association shall
disburse to such owners or the Paying Agent payment of the insured amounts due on such Bonds, less any
amount held by the Paying Agent for the payment of such insured amounts and legally available therefor.

The Insurer is the principal operating subsidiary of MBIA Inc., a New York Stock Exchange listed
company (the "Company"). The Company is not obligated to pay the debts or claims against the Insurer.
The Insurer is domiciled in the State of New York and licensed to do business in and subject to regulation
under the laws of all 50 states, the District of Columbia, the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, the
Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands, the Virgin Islands of the United States and the Territory
of Guam. The Insurer has three branches, one in the Republic of France, one in the Republic of Singapore
and one in the Kingdom of Spain. New York has laws prescribing minimum capital requirements, limiting
classes and concentrations of investments and requiring the approval of policy rates and forms. State laws
also regulate the amount of both the aggregate and individual risks that may be insured, the payment of
dividends by the Insurer, changes in control and transactions among affiliates. Additionally, the Insurer is
required to maintain contingency reserves on its liabilities in certain amounts and for certain periods of time.

The Insurer does not accept any responsibility for the accuracy or completeness of this Official
Statement or any information or disclosure contained herein, or omitted herefrom, other than with respect
to the accuracy of the information regarding the Policy and the Insurer set forth under the heading "Financial
Guaranty Insurance." Additionally, the Insurer makes no representation regarding the Bonds or the
advisability of investing in the Bonds.

The Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy is not covered by the Property/Casualty Insurance Security
Fund specified in Article 76 of the New York Insurance Law.

The following documents filed by the Company with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the
"SEC") are incorporated herein by reference:

(1) The Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003; and
) The Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2004.

Any documents filed by the Company pursuantto Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, after the date of this Official Statement and prior to the termination of
the offering of the Bonds offered hereby shall be deemed to be incorporated by reference in this Official
Statement and to be a part hereof. Any statement contained in a document incorporated or deemed to be
incorporated by reference herein, or contained in this Official Statement, shall be deemed to be modified or
superseded for purposes of this Official Statement to the extent that a statement contained herein or in any
other subsequently filed document which also is or is deemed to be incorporated by reference herein modifies
or supersedes such statement. Any such statement so modified or superseded shall not be deemed, except
as so modified or superseded, to constitute a part of this Official Statement.
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The Company files annual, quarterly and special reports, information statements and other
information with the SEC under File No. 1-9583. Copies of the SEC filings (including (1) the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003, and (2) the Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2004) are available (i) over the Internet at the SEC’s
web site at http://www.sec.gov; (ii) at the SEC’s public reference room in Washington D.C.; (iii) over the
Internet at the Company’s web site at http://www.mbia.com; and (iv) at no cost, upon request to MBIA
Insurance Corporation, 113 King Street, Armonk, New York 10504. The telephone number of MBIA is
(914) 273-4545.

As of December 31, 2003, the Insurer had admitted assets of $9.9 billion (audited), total liabilities
of $6.2 billion (audited), and total capital and surplus of $3.7 billion (audited) determined in accordance with
statutory accounting practices prescribed or permitted by insurance regulatory authorities. As of March 31,
2004, the Insurer had admitted assets of $10.3 billion (unaudited), total liabilities of $6.5 billion (unaudited),
and total capital and surplus of $3.8 billion (unaudited) determined in accordance with statutory accounting
practices prescribed or permitted by insurance regulatory authorities.

Moody's Investors Service, Inc. rates the financial strength of the Insurer "Aaa."

Standard & Poor's, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc., rates the financial strength of
the Insurer "AAA."

Fitch Ratings rates the financial strength of the Insurer "AAA."

Each rating of the Insurer should be evaluated independently. The ratings reflect the respective
rating agency's current assessment of the creditworthiness of the Insurer and its ability to pay claims on its
policies of insurance. Any further explanation as to the significance of the above ratings may be obtained
only from the applicable rating agency.

The above ratings are not recommendations to buy, sell or hold the Bonds, and such ratings may be
subject to revision or withdrawal at any time by the rating agencies. Any downward revision or withdrawal
of any of the above ratings may have an adverse effect on the market price of the Bonds. The Insurer does
not guaranty the market price of the Bonds nor does it guaranty that the ratings on the Bonds will not be
reversed or withdrawn.

The insurance provided by the Insurer's Policy is not covered by the Florida Insurance Guaranty
Association created under Chapter 631, Florida Statutes.
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DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS

The following table sets forth the total annual scheduled debt service requirements for the Bonds.

Year Ending
July 1 Total Annual
(Inclusive) Principal Interest Debt Service
2005 $475,000.00 $658,667.46 $1,133,667.46
2006 505,000.00 669,093.78 1,174,093.78
2007 525,000.00 653,943.78 1,178,943.78
2008 540,000.00 638,193.78 1,178,193.78
2009 560,000.00 620,643.78 1,180,643.78
2010 575,000.00 601,043.78 1,176,043.78
2011 600,000.00 579,481.28 1,179,481.28
2012 625,000.00 555,481.28 1,180,481.28
2013 645,000.00 530,481.28 1,175,481.28
2014 680,000.00 504,681.28 1,184,681.28
2015 700,000.00 476,631.28 1,176,631.28
2016 730,000.00 446,881.28 1,176,881.28
2017 765,000.00 414,943.78 1,179,943.78
2018 795,000.00 380,518.78 1,175,518.78
2019 840,000.00 344,743.78 1,184,743.78
2020 415,000.00 305,893.76 720,893.76
2021 440,000.00 285,143.76 725,143.76
2022 460,000.00 263,143.76 723,143.76
2023 485,000.00 240,143.76 725,143.76
2024 510,000.00 215,893.76 725,893.76
2025 295,000.00 190,393.76 485,393.76
2026 310,000.00 175,275.02 485,275.02
2027 330,000.00 159,387.52 489,387.52
2028 340,000.00 142,475.02 482,475.02
2029 360,000.00 125,050.02 485,050.02
2030 375,000.00 106,600.02 481,600.02
2031 395,000.00 87,381.26 482,381.26
2032 415,000.00 67,137.52 482,137.52
2033 435,000.00 45,868.76 480,868.76
2034 460,000.00 23.575.02 483.575.02
Total $15,585,000 $10,508,793.10 $26,093,793.10
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The following tables set forth the annual Basic Payments for each Borrower.

Year Ending

July 1 City of Village of City of City of
(inclusive) Haines City Pinecrest Oakland Park St. Augustine Beach
2005 $640,487.56 $227,438.16 $112,141.41 $153,600.33
2006 658,906.26 239,212.50 114,318.76 161,656.26
2007 664,306.26 235,912.50 118,418.76 160,306.26
2008 664,256.26 237,612.50 117,368.76 158,956.26
2009 663,043.76 238,875.00 116,231.26 162,493.76
2010 660,618.76 239,675.00 115,006.26 160,743.76
2011 661,931.26 239,987.50 118,693.76 158,868.76
2012 661,731.26 239,787.50 117,093.76 161,868.76
2013 660,931.26 239,387.50 115,493.76 159,668.76
2014 664,531.26 238,787.50 118,893.76 162,468.76
2015 661,793.76 237,806.26 117,037.50 159,993.76
2016 662,881.26 236,431.26 115,125.00 162,443.76
2017 662,537.52 239,650.00 118,156.26 159,600.00
2018 660,712.52 237,225.00 115,906.26 161,675.00
2019 662,987.52 239,575.00 118,656.26 163,525.00
2020 208,475.00 236,250.00 116,112.50 160,056.26
2021 208,475.00 237,000.00 118,362.50 161,306.26
2022 208,225.00 237,250.00 115,362.50 162,306.26
2023 207,725.00 237,000.00 117,362.50 163,056.26
2024 206,975.00 236,250.00 119,112.50 163,556.26
2025 205,975.00 -- 115,612.50 163,806.26
2026 204,568.76 -- 117,025.00 163,681.26
2027 207,906.26 -- 118,181.26 163,300.00
2028 205,731.26 -- 114,081.26 162,662.50
2029 208,300.00 -- 114,981.26 161,768.76
2030 205,356.26 -- 115,625.00 160,618.76
2031 207,156.26 -- 116,012.50 159,212.50
2032 203,443.76 -- 116,143.76 162,550.00
2033 204,475.00 -- 116,018.76 160,375.00
2034 204.993.76 -- 115.637.50 162.943.76
Total $13,009,437.80 $4,751,113.18 $3,494,172.83  $4,839,069.29
TAX MATTERS

General

The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code") establishes certain requirements which
must be met subsequent to the issuance and delivery of the Bonds in order that interest on the Bonds be and
remain excluded from gross income for purposes of Federal income taxation. Non-compliance may cause
interest on the Bonds to be included in Federal gross income retroactive to the date of issuance of the Bonds,
regardless of the date on which such non-compliance occurs or is ascertained. These requirements include,
but are not limited to, provisions which prescribe yield and other limits within which the proceeds of the
Bonds and the other amounts are to be invested and require that certain investment earnings on the foregoing
must be rebated on a periodic basis to the Treasury Department of the United States. The Issuer has
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covenanted in the Indenture and the Borrowers have covenanted in the Loan Agreements to comply with such
requirements in order to maintain the exclusion from Federal gross income of the interest on the Bonds.

In the opinion of Bond Counsel, assuming compliance with the aforementioned covenants, under
existing laws, regulations, judicial decisions and rulings, interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income
for purposes of Federal income taxation. Interest on the Bonds is not an item of tax preference for purposes
of the Federal alternative minimum tax imposed on individuals or corporations; however, interest on the
Bonds may be subject to the alternative minimum tax when any Bond is held by a corporation. The
alternative minimum taxable income of a corporation must be increased by 75% of the excess of such
corporation's adjusted current earnings over its alternative minimum taxable income (before this adjustment
and the alternative tax net operating loss deduction). "Adjusted Current Earnings" will include interest on
the Bonds. In addition, in the opinion of Bond Counsel the Bonds are exempt from all present intangible
personal property taxes imposed pursuant to Chapter 199, Florida Statutes.

Except as described above, Bond Counsel will express no opinion regarding the Federal income tax
consequences resulting from the ownership of, receipt or accrual of interest on, or disposition of Bonds.
Prospective purchasers of Bonds should be aware that the ownership of Bonds may result in collateral
Federal income tax consequences, including (i) the denial of a deduction for interest on indebtedness incurred
or continued to purchase or carry Bonds, (ii) the reduction of the loss reserve deduction for property and
casualty insurance companies by 15% of certain items, including interest on the Bonds, (iii) the inclusion
of interest on the Bonds in earning of certain foreign corporations doing business in the United States for
purposes of a branch profits tax, (iv) the inclusion of interest on Bonds in passive income subject to Federal
income taxation of certain Subchapter S corporations with Subchapter C earnings and profits at the close of
the taxable year, and (v) the inclusion of interest on the Bonds in "modified adjusted gross income" by
recipients of certain Social Security and Railroad Retirement benefits for purposes of determining whether
such benefits are included in gross income for Federal income tax purposes.

PURCHASE, OWNERSHIP, SALE OR DISPOSITION OF THE BONDS AND THE RECEIPT OR
ACCRUAL OF THE INTEREST THEREONMAY HAVE ADVERSE FEDERAL TAX CONSEQUENCES
FOR CERTAIN INDIVIDUAL AND CORPORATE BONDHOLDERS. PROSPECTIVEBONDHOLDERS
SHOULD CONSULT WITH THEIR TAX SPECIALISTS FOR INFORMATION IN THAT REGARD.

During recent years legislative proposals have been introduced in Congress, and in some cases
enacted, that altered certain Federal tax consequences resulting from the ownership of obligations that are
similar to the Bonds. In some cases these proposals have contained provisions that altered these
consequences on a retroactive basis. Such alteration of Federal tax consequences may have affected the
market value of obligations similar to the Bonds. From time to time, legislative proposals are pending which
could have an effect on both the Federal tax consequences resulting from ownership Bonds and their market
value. No assurance can be given that legislative proposals will not be introduced or enacted that would or
might apply to, or have an adverse effect upon, the Bonds.

Tax Treatment of Bond Premium

The Bonds maturing in the years 2005 through 2012, were offered at a price in excess of the principal
amount thereof. Under the Code, the excess of the cost basis of a bond over the principal amount of the bond
(other than for a bondholder who holds a bond as inventory, stock in trade, or for sale to customers in the
ordinary course of business) is generally characterized as “bond premium.” For federal income tax purposes,
bond premium is amortized over the term of the bonds. A bondholder will therefore be required to decrease
his basis in the Bonds by the amount of the amortizable bond premium attributable to each taxable year he
holds such Bond. The amount of the amortizable bond premium attributable to each taxable year is
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determined on an actuarial basis at a constant interest rate compounded on each interest payment date. The
amortizable bond premium attributable to a taxable year is not deductible for federal income tax purposes.

Holders of the Bonds described above should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the
precise determination for federal income tax purposes of the treatment of bond premium upon sale,

redemption, or other disposition of such Bonds.

Tax Treatment of Original Issue Discount

Under the Code, the difference between the principal amount of the Bonds maturing in the years
2013 through 2034 and the initial offering price to the public, excluding bond houses, brokers or similar
persons or organizations acting in the capacity of underwriters or wholesalers, at which price a substantial
amount of the Bonds of the same maturity was sold is “original issue discount.” Original issue discount will
accrue over the term of such Bonds at a constant interest rate compounded periodically. A purchaser who
acquires such Bonds in the initial offering at a price equal to the initial offering price thereof to the public
will be treated as receiving an amount of interest excludable from gross income for federal income tax
purposes equal to the original issue discount accruing during the period he holds such Bonds, and will
increase his adjusted basis in such Bonds by the amount of such accruing discount for purposes of
determining taxable gain or loss on the sale or other disposition of such Bonds. The federal income tax
consequences of the purchase, ownership and redemption, sale or other disposition of the Bonds which are
not purchased in the initial offering at the initial offering price may be determined according to rules which
differ from those above. Owners of such Bonds should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the
precise determination for federal income tax purposes of interest accrued upon sale, redemption or other
disposition of Bonds and with respect to the state and local tax consequences of owning and disposing of
such Bonds.

LITIGATION

On the date of delivery of the Bonds, counsel to each respective Borrower, will render an opinion
that there is no action, suit, proceeding or investigation at law or in equity before or by any court, public
board or body, pending, or to the best of such counsel's knowledge after due inquiry threatened, against or
affecting such Borrower wherein an unfavorable decision, ruling or finding would adversely affect such
Borrower, its financial condition or its ability to comply with its obligations under the Loan Agreement or
the validity or enforceability of the Loan Agreement.

On the date of delivery of the Bonds, counsel to the Issuer will render an opinion that there is no
action, suit, proceeding or investigation at law or in equity before or by any court, public board or body,
pending, or to the best of his knowledge, after due inquiry of the Issuer, threatened against or affecting the
Issuer, wherein an unfavorable decision, ruling or finding would adversely affect the validity of the Bonds,
the Indenture or the Loan Agreements.

VALIDATION
On February 13, 2003, the Circuit Court of the Second Judicial Circuit of Florida in and for Leon

County, Florida, entered an order validating the Bonds. The time for filing an appeal from such judgment
expired with no appeal having been filed.
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LEGAL MATTERS

Certain legal matters incident to the authorization, issuance and sale by the Issuer of the Bonds are
subject to the approving opinion of Bryant Miller and Olive P.A. bond counsel. Bond counsel has not
undertaken to independently verify, and therefore expresses no opinion as to the accuracy, completeness or
fairness of any of the statements in this Official Statement or in the Appendices hereto, except as to the
fairness and accuracy of the information in the sections hereof captioned "The Bonds" (except for the
information contained in the subheading thereunder captioned "Book-Entry Only System" as to which no
opinion will be expressed), "Security and Sources of Payment" (except for the information under the
subheadings thereunder captioned "City of St. Augustine Beach Loan" as to which no opinion will be
expressed) and "Tax Matters." A form of the approving opinion of bond counsel is included herein as
Appendix E. Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the Issuer by its counsel, Kraig A. Conn, Esquire,
counsel to the Issuer, as assistant general counsel to the Florida League of Cities, Inc. and for the Underwriter
by its counsel, Moyle, Flanigan, Katz, Raymond & Sheehan, P.A. Certain legal matters will be passed upon
for certain of the Borrowers by their respective counsel.

Bond Counsel, counsel to the Issuer and counsel to the Underwriter will receive fees for services
rendered in connection with the issuance of the Bonds, which fees are contingent upon the issuance and sale
of the Bonds.

RATINGS

Standard and Poor's Ratings Services, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies and Fitch, Inc.
have assigned ratings of "TAAA" and "AAA," respectively, to the Bonds with the understanding that upon
delivery of the Bonds, a financial guaranty insurance policy will be issued by the Insurer. In addition, S&P
has assigned a rating of "A-" to the Bonds without regard to the insurance policy. The ratings reflect only
the views of the rating agencies and an explanation of the significance of the ratings may be obtained only
from the rating agencies. The ratings are not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold the Bonds and there is
no assurance that such ratings will remain in effect for any given period of time or that they will not be
revised downward or withdrawn entirely if, in the judgment of either or both of the rating agencies,
circumstances so warrant. Any downward revision or withdrawal of such ratings may have an adverse effect
on the market price of the Bonds. Neither the Underwriter nor the Issuer has undertaken responsibility to
bring to the attention of the holders of the Bonds any proposed revision or withdrawal of the ratings of the
Bonds, or to oppose any proposed revision or withdrawal.

UNDERWRITING

Banc of America Securities LLC, the Underwriter, has agreed, subject to certain customary
conditions precedent, to purchase the Bonds at a price of $15,419,950.55 (which includes net original issue
discount of $71,695.30 and underwriter's discount of $93,354.15), and to reoffer the Bonds at the prices
shown on the inside cover hereof. If obligated to purchase any of the Bonds, the Underwriter will be
obligated to purchase all of the Bonds. The initial public offering prices may be changed from time to time
by the Underwriter.

There can be no assurance that there will be a secondary market for purchase or sale of the Bonds.
Depending upon prevailing market conditions, including the financial condition or market positions of firms
which may make the secondary market, evaluation of the Borrowers' capabilities and the financial condition
and results of their operations, there may not be a secondary market for the Bonds from time to time, and
investors in the Bonds may be unable to divest themselves of their interests therein.

25



FINANCIAL ADVISOR TO THE ISSUER

The Issuer has retained Waters and Company, LLC, Birmingham, Alabama, as Financial Advisor
in connection with the Bonds. The Financial Advisor is not obligated to undertake and has not undertaken
to make, an independent verification or to assume responsibility for the accuracy, completeness or fairness
of the information contained in this Official Statement.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

In compliance with Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15c¢2-12 under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (17 CFR Part 240, 240.15¢2-12) (the "Rule"), the Issuer and each
Borrower have entered into a covenant (each, a "Continuing Disclosure Covenant") that constitutes the
written undertaking for the benefit of the holders of the Bonds required by Section (b)(5)(i) of the Rule. The
form of the Continuing Disclosure Covenants for the Issuer and the Borrowers are contained in Appendices
A and B hereof.

ENFORCEABILITY OF REMEDIES

The remedies available to the owners of the Bonds upon an event of default under the Indenture and
any policy of insurance referred to herein are in many respects dependent upon judicial actions which are
often subject to discretion and delay. Under existing constitutional and statutory law and judicial decisions,
the remedies specified by the federal bankruptcy code, the Indenture, the Bonds and any policy of insurance
referred to herein may not be readily available or may be limited. The various legal opinions to be delivered
concurrently with the delivery of the Bonds (including Bond Counsel's approving opinion) will be qualified,
as to the enforceability of the remedies provided in the various legal instruments, by limitations imposed by
bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency or other similar laws affecting the rights of creditors enacted before
or after such delivery.

MISCELLANEOUS

The summaries of and references to all documents, statutes, reports and other instruments referred
to herein do not purport to be complete, comprehensive or definitive, and each such reference or summary
is qualified in its entirety by reference to each such document, statute, report or other instrument. So far as
any statements made in this Official Statement involve matters of opinion or are estimates, whether or not
expressly stated, they are set forth as such and not as representations of fact, and no representation is made
that any of the estimates will be realized.

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL LOAN COUNCIL

By: /s/ Raul Martinez
Its Chairman
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APPENDIX A

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT FOR BORROWERS

This CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT dated as of July 1, 2004 (the
"Continuing Disclosure Agreement") is executed and delivered by , a Florida
municipality ("Borrower"), and by Florida League of Cities, Inc., a Florida corporation not-for-profit,
as Dissemination Agent (the "Dissemination Agent") hereunder. Additional capitalized terms used
herein shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in Section 2 hereof.

SECTION 1.__ Nature of Undertaking. This Continuing Disclosure Agreement
constitutes an undertaking by the Borrower under paragraph (b)(5) of the Rule to provide Financial
Information and notice of the occurrence of certain events with respect to the Bonds, as provided in
paragraph (b)(5)(1)(C) of the Rule, and otherwise to assist the Participating Underwriter in complying
with paragraph (b)(5) of the Rule with respect to the Offering of the Bonds. Among other things, the
Borrower is hereby undertaking (i) to disseminate an Annual Report not later than 270 days after the
end of each Fiscal Year of the Borrower in accordance with Section 4 hereof, which contains
Financial Information with respect to the Borrower, (ii) if an Annual Report does not contain the
Audited Financial Statements, to disseminate the Audited Financial Statements in accordance with
Section 4 hereof as soon as practicable after they shall have been approved by the Governing Body,
(ii1) to provide notice in a timely manner, in accordance with Section 6 hereof, of the occurrence of
any of the Listed Events related to the Borrower and (iv) to provide notice in a timely manner, in
accordance with Section 4(e) hereof, of any failure to disseminate an Annual Report in accordance
with the preceding clause (i) of this sentence.

SECTION2. Definitions. In addition to the definitions set forth above and in the herein-
defined Indenture, which shall apply to any capitalized terms used herein, the following capitalized
terms shall have the following meanings, unless otherwise defined therein:

""Annual Report' means adocument or set of documents which (a) identifies the Borrower;
(b) contains (or includes by reference to documents which were provided to each Repository or filed
with the SEC or, if by reference to the Final Official Statement, filed with the MSRB prior to the
date that the Annual Report containing such reference is provided to the Dissemination Agent in
accordance with Section 4 hereof): (i) Financial Information and Operating Data for the Borrower;
(i1) Audited Financial Statements if such Audited Financial Statements shall have been approved by
the Governing Body at the time the Annual Report is required to be provided to the Dissemination
Agent in accordance with Section 4 hereof; and (iii) Unaudited Financial Statements if the Audited
Financial Statements shall not have been approved by the Governing Body at the time the Annual
Report is required to be provided to the Dissemination Agent in accordance with Section 4 hereof;
(c) in the event that the Borrower delivers a Continuing Disclosure Certificate to the Dissemination
Agent pursuant to Section 5(b) hereof, contains (in the case of the Annual Report disseminated on
or immediately after the date such Continuing Disclosure Certificate is so delivered) a narrative
explanation of the reasons for the changes in Financial Information and/or Operating Data set forth
in such Continuing Disclosure Certificate and the effect of the changes on the types of Financial
Information and/or Operating Data being provided in such Annual Report; and (d) in the event that
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the Borrower authorizes a change in the accounting principles by which its Audited Financial
Statements are prepared, contains (in the case of the Annual Report disseminated on or immediately
after the date of such change) (1) a comparison between the Financial Information prepared on the
basis of the new accounting principles which is contained in such Annual Report and the Financial
Information prepared on the basis of the former accounting principles which was contained in the
previous Annual Report disseminated immediately prior to such Annual Report and (2) a discussion
of the differences between such accounting principles and the effect of such change on the
presentation of the Financial Information being provided in such Annual Report.

"Annual Report Certificate" means an Annual Report Certificate in the form attached
hereto as Exhibit A.

""Annual Report Date" means the date which is 270 days after the end of a Fiscal Year.

"Audited Financial Statements' means the financial statements of the Borrower which
have been examined by independent certified public accountants in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards.

"Bondholder'" means (i) the registered owner of a Bond and (ii) the beneficial owner of a
Bond, as the term "beneficial owner" is used in any agreement with a securities depository for the
Bonds and as the term may be modified by an interpretation by the SEC of paragraph (b)(5) of the
Rule.

"Bonds" means the $ Florida Municipal Loan Council Revenue Bonds,
Series 2004A-1.

"Continuing Disclosure Agreement' means this Continuing Disclosure Agreement, as the
same may be supplemented and amended pursuant to Section 8 hereof.

"Continuing Disclosure Certificate' means a Continuing Disclosure Certificate in the form
attached hereto as Exhibit B delivered by the Borrower to the Dissemination Agent pursuant to
Section 5 hereof.

"Dissemination Agent" means Florida League of Cities, Inc., acting in its capacity as
Dissemination Agent hereunder, or any successor Dissemination Agent which is appointed pursuant
to Section 3 hereof or to which the responsibilities of Dissemination Agent under this Continuing
Disclosure Agreement shall have been assigned in accordance with Section 9 hereof.

"Event Notice" means notice of the occurrence of a Listed Event.

"Final Official Statement" means the Final Official Statement prepared in connection
with the Offering of the Bonds.

"Financial Information' means financial information related to the Borrower of the types

identified in the Continuing Disclosure Certificate most recently delivered by the Borrower to the
Dissemination Agent in accordance with Section 5 hereof. The Financial Information (i) shall be
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prepared for the Fiscal Year immediately preceding the date of the Annual Report containing such
Financial Information, and (ii) shall be prepared on the basis of the Audited Financial Statements
to be provided to the Dissemination Agent concurrently with the Annual Report, provided that, if
the Audited Financial Statements are to be provided to the Dissemination Agent subsequent to the
date that the Annual Report is provided to the Dissemination Agent, such Financial Information may
be prepared on the basis of the Unaudited Financial Statements.

"Governing Body' shall mean the governing body of the Borrower which shall approve the
Audited Financial Statements.

"Indenture" means the Trust Indenture dated as of July 1, 2004 by and between Florida
Municipal Loan Council, as Issuer, and Wachovia Bank, National Association, as Trustee.

"Insurer' means MBIA Insurance Corporation.
"Issuer" means Florida Municipal Loan Council.

"Loan Agreement' means the Loan Agreement dated as of July 1, 2004, between the Issuer
and the Borrower.

"Listed Events" means any of the events which are set forth in Section 6 hereof.
"MSRB'" means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board.

"NRMSIR" means, as of the date of determination, any Nationally Recognized Municipal
Securities Information Repository for purposes of paragraph (b)(5) of the Rule.

"Offering" shall have the primary offering of the Bonds for sale by the Participating
Underwriter.

"Operating Data' means operating data of the types identified in the Continuing Disclosure
Certificate most recently delivered by the Borrower to the Dissemination Agent in accordance with
Section 5 hereof. The Operating Data shall be prepared for the Fiscal Year immediately preceding
the date of the Annual Report containing such Operating Data.

"Participating Underwriter" means Banc of America Securities LLC.

“Rating Agencies” means Fitch, Inc. and Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services.

"Repository" or "Repositories' means the NRMSIRs and the SIDs, either individually or
collectively, as the context requires.

"Rule' means Rule 15¢2-12 adopted by the SEC under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended, as the Rule may be amended from time to time, or any successor provision thereto.

"SEC" means the Securities and Exchange Commission.
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"SID" means, as of the date of determination, any public or private repositories or entities
which are designated by the State of Florida as state information depositories for purposes of
paragraph (b)(5) of the Rule and recognized as such by the SEC.

"Trustee'" means Wachovia Bank, National Association, as trustee under the Indenture.

"Unaudited Financial Statements' means unaudited financial statements of the Borrower
for any Fiscal Year which have been prepared on a basis substantially consistent with the Audited
Financial Statements to be subsequently prepared for such Fiscal Year. The Unaudited Financial
Statements for any Fiscal Year shall be prepared on a comparative basis with the Audited Financial
Statements prepared for the preceding Fiscal Year.

SECTION 3. Appointment of Dissemination Agent: Obligations of Borrower
Respecting Undertaking. (a) The Borrower hereby appoints Florida League of Cities, Inc. to act

as the initial Dissemination Agent hereunder. Florida League of Cities, Inc. hereby accepts such
appointment. The Borrower may, from time to time, appoint a successor Dissemination Agent or
discharge any then acting Dissemination Agent, with or without cause. If at any time there shall be
no Dissemination Agent appointed and acting hereunder or the then appointed and acting
Dissemination Agent shall fail to perform its obligations hereunder, the Borrower shall discharge
such obligations until such time as the Borrower shall appoint a successor Dissemination Agent or
the then appointed and acting Dissemination Agent shall resume the performance of such
obligations.

(b) The Borrower hereby acknowledges that the Borrower is obligated to
comply with this Continuing Disclosure Agreement and that the appointment of the Dissemination
Agent as agent of the Borrower for the purposes herein provided does not relieve the Borrower of
its obligations with respect to this Continuing Disclosure Agreement.

SECTION 4. Annual Financial Information. (a) The Financial Information shall be
contained in the Annual Reports and, if provided separately in accordance with Section 5(b) hereof,
the Audited Financial Statements which the Borrower is required to deliver to the Dissemination
Agent for dissemination in accordance with this Section 4.

(b) The Dissemination Agent shall notify the Borrower of each Report Date and
of the Borrower's obligation hereunder not more than 60 and not less than 30 days prior to each
Report Date. The Borrower shall provide an Annual Report to the Dissemination Agent, together
with an Annual Report Certificate, not later than each Annual Report Date, provided that, if the
Annual Report does not include the Audited Financial Statements, the Borrower shall provide the
Audited Financial Statements to the Dissemination Agent as soon as practicable after they shall have
been approved by the Governing Body.

(c) The Dissemination Agent shall provide the Annual Report and, if received
separately in accordance with Section 4(b) hereof, the Annual Financial Statements, to each
Repository, the Trustee, the Issuer, the Rating Agencies and the Insurer within five (5) Business
Days after receipt thereof from the Borrower.



(d) The Dissemination Agent shall provide the Issuer, the Borrower and the
Trustee written confirmation that the Annual Report and, if received separately in accordance with
Section 4(b) hereof, the Annual Financial Statements, were provided to each Repository in
accordance with Section 4(c) hereof.

(e) If the Dissemination Agent shall not have filed the Annual Report by the
Annual Report Date, the Dissemination Agent shall so notify the Borrower, the Repositories, the
Trustee and the Insurer within five (5) Business Days of the Annual Report Date.

SECTION 5. Continuing Disclosure Certificates. (a) The Borrower shall prepare a
Continuing Disclosure Certificate in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B in connection with the
Offering of the Bonds and shall deliver the same to the Dissemination Agent for dissemination to
the Participating Underwriter, Issuer and Trustee.

(b) Prior to the deletion or substitution of any Financial Information and
Operating Data from the information listed in Exhibit B hereto the Borrower will obtain an opinion
of nationally recognized disclosure counsel (which may also act as outside counsel to of the
Borrower) addressed to the Issuer, the Participating Underwriter, the Trustee and the Dissemination
Agent to the effect that the Financial and Operating Data to be provided will comply with the Rule,
as in effect on the date of the Offering of the Bonds and taking into account any amendment or
interpretation of the Rule by the SEC or any adjudication of the Rule by a final decision of a court
of competent jurisdiction which may have occurred subsequent to the execution and delivery of this
Continuing Disclosure Agreement. The Dissemination Agent is entitled to rely on such opinion
without further investigation.

(©) Notwithstanding Section 5(b) hereof, the Borrower shall not be required to
comply with Section 5(b) hereof if such Section shall no longer be deemed to be required in order
for this Continuing Disclosure Agreement to comply with the Rule as a result of the adoption,
rendering or delivery of (i) an amendment or interpretation of the Rule by the SEC, (ii) an
adjudication of the Rule by a final decision of a court of competent jurisdiction or (iii) an opinion
ofnationally recognized disclosure counsel (which may also act as outside counsel to the Borrower),
in each case, to that effect.

(d) Any delivery of a Continuing Disclosure Certificate pursuant to Section 5(b)
hereof shall not be deemed to be an amendment to this Continuing Disclosure Agreement and shall
not be subject to the provisions of Section 8 hereof.

SECTION 6. Reporting of Listed Events. (a) This Section 6 governs the provision of
Event Notices relating to Listed Events with respect to the Bonds. The following events are "Listed
Events":

(1) principal and interest payment deficiencies;

(i)  non-payment related defaults;



(ii1))  unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial
difficulties;

(iv)  unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial
difficulties;

(v) substitution of credit or liquidity providers or their failure to perform;

(vi)  adverse tax opinions or events affecting the tax-exempt status of the
Bonds;

(vil)  modifications to the rights of the holders of the Bonds;
(viii) optional, contingent or unscheduled redemption calls;
(ix)  defeasances;

(%) release, satisfaction or sale of property securing repayment of the
Bonds; and

(xi)  rating changes;

provided that each of the Listed Events shall be interpreted in accordance with any interpretation of
the Rule by the SEC or adjudication of the Rule by a final decision of a court of competent
jurisdiction which may occur subsequent to the date of the original execution and delivery hereof.

(b) Whenever the Borrower obtains actual knowledge of the occurrence of any
of the Listed Events with respect to or caused by the Borrower, the Borrower shall, on a timely basis
and in any event within ten (10) Business Days, determine whether the occurrence of such event is
material to any of the Bondholders.

(c) If the Borrower determines that the occurrence of any of the Listed Events is
material to any of the Bondholders, the Borrower shall promptly notify the Dissemination Agent of
such determination in writing and instruct the Dissemination Agent to provide Event Notice in
accordance with Section 6(¢) hereof.

(d) If the Borrower determines that the occurrence of the Listed Event described
in such notice is not material, the Borrower shall notify the Dissemination Agent of such
determination, and no Event Notice shall be provided pursuant to Section 6(e) hereof. The
determination of the Borrower under this paragraph (d) shall be conclusive and binding on all parties
hereto.

(e) Ifthe Borrower instructs the Dissemination Agent to provide an Event Notice
pursuant to Section 6(c) hereof, the Dissemination Agent shall, within three (3) Business Days
thereafter, file an Event Notice with each Repository, the Trustee, the Rating Agencies, the Issuer
and the Insurer. The Dissemination Agent shall provide the Borrower, the Issuer and the Trustee
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written confirmation that such Event Notice was provided to each Repository inaccordance with this
Section 6(e).

6] Notwithstanding the foregoing, an Event Notice with respect to a Listed Event
described in Section 6(a)(viii) or (ix) shall not be given under this Section 6 any earlier than the
notice (if any) of such event is given to the affected Bondholders pursuant to the Indenture, as
confirmed to the Dissemination Agent by the Trustee. The Dissemination Agent shall have no
liability for failure of notice given to Bondholders if it does not receive the necessary confirmation
from the Trustee after written request.

(2) Notwithstanding the foregoing, whenever the Borrower authorizes a change
in either its Fiscal Year or the accounting principles by which its Audited Financial Statements are
prepared, the Borrower shall provide the Dissemination Agent with written notice of such change
and instruct the Dissemination Agent to file a copy of such notice with each Repository, the Issuer,
the Insurer, the Rating Agencies and the Trustee, and the Dissemination Agent shall, within three
(3) Business Days thereafter, file a copy of such notice with each Repository, the Issuer, the Insurer,
the Rating Agencies and the Trustee. The Dissemination Agent shall provide the Borrower written
confirmation that such notice was provided to each Repository in accordance with this Section 6(g).

SECTION7. Additional Information. Nothing in this Continuing Disclosure Agreement
shall be deemed to prevent (i) the Borrower from disseminating any information or notice of the
occurrence of any event using the means of dissemination specified in this Continuing Disclosure
Agreement or other means or (ii) the Borrower from including in an Annual Report any information
which shall be in addition to the Financial Information, Operating Data and Audited or Unaudited
Financial Statements required by Section 4 hereof to be included in such Annual Report, provided
that this Continuing Disclosure Agreement shall not be deemed to require the Borrower to include
or update any such additional information in any subsequently prepared Annual Report.

SECTIONS8. Amendments: Waivers. This Continuing Disclosure Agreement may be
amended, and any provision hereof may be waived, by the parties hereto if, prior to the effective date
of any such amendment or waiver, the Borrower delivers to the Dissemination Agent, the Issuer and
the Trustee an opinion of nationally recognized disclosure counsel (which may also act as outside
counsel to one or more members of the Borrower), to the effect that this Continuing Disclosure
Agreement (taking into account such amendment or waiver) complies with the Rule, as in effect on
the date of the Offering of Bonds or after the execution and delivery of this Continuing Disclosure
Agreement, taking into account any amendment or interpretation of the Rule by the SEC or any
adjudication of the Rule by a final decision of a court of competent jurisdiction which may have
occurred subsequent to the execution and delivery of this Continuing Disclosure Agreement. The
Dissemination Agent shall notify the Repositories of any such amendment and shall provide the
Repositories with a copy of any such amendment.

SECTION 9. Assignment. The Borrower may not assign its obligations under this
Continuing Disclosure Agreement. The Dissemination Agent may assign its rights and
responsibilities hereunder to a third party with the consent of the Borrower which shall not be
unreasonably withheld.
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SECTION 10. Compensation of the Dissemination Agent. As compensation to the
Dissemination Agent for its services pursuant to this Continuing Disclosure Agreement, the
Borrower agrees to pay all fees and all expenses of the Dissemination Agent including, without
limitation, all reasonable expenses, charges, costs and other disbursements in the administration and
performance of its duties hereunder, and shall to the extent permitted by law indemnify and save the
Dissemination Agent and its officers, directors, attorneys, agents and employees harmless from and
against any costs, expenses, damages or other liabilities (including attorneys fees) which it (or they)
may incur in the exercise of its (or their) powers and duties hereunder, except with respect to its (or
their) willful misconduct or gross negligence. Nothing contained herein is intended to be nor shall
it be construed as a waiver of any immunity from or limitation of liability that the Borrower may be
entitled to pursuant to the Doctrine of Sovereign Immunity or Section 768.28, Florida Statutes.

SECTION 11. Concerning the Dissemination Agent and the Borrower. (a)The
Dissemination Agent is not answerable for the exercise of any discretion or power under this

Continuing Disclosure Agreement or for anything whatever in connection herewith, except only its
own willful misconduct or gross negligence. The Dissemination Agent shall have no liability to the
Bondholders or any other person with respect to the undertakings described in Section 1 hereof,
except as expressly set forth in this Continuing Disclosure Agreement regarding its own willful
misconduct or gross negligence.

(b) The Dissemination Agent has no responsibility or liability hereunder for
determining compliance for any information submitted hereunder with any law, rule or regulation
or the terms of this agreement. The Dissemination Agent shall have no responsibility for
disseminating information not delivered to it or giving notice of non-delivery except as specifically
required hereunder; and

(c) The parties to this Continuing Disclosure Agreement acknowledge and agree
that the Borrower assumes no obligations hereunder other than those specifically assumed by the
Borrower herein.

SECTION12. Termination of this Continuing Disclosure Agreement. This Continuing
Disclosure Agreement shall terminate at such time as the Loan Agreement terminates.

SECTION 13. Beneficiaries. This Continuing Disclosure Agreement shall inure solely
to the benefit of the Borrower, the Dissemination Agent, the Trustee, the Issuer, the Insurer, the
Participating Underwriter and the Bondholders. This Continuing Disclosure Agreement shall not
be deemed to inure to the benefit of or grant any rights to any party other than the parties specified
in the preceding sentence.

SECTION 14. Counterparts. This Continuing Disclosure Agreement may be executed
in several counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute one and

the same instrument.

SECTION15. Governing Law. This Continuing Disclosure Agreement shall be governed
by the laws of the State of Florida.
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IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the Borrower and the Dissemination Agent have caused this
Continuing Disclosure Agreement to executed and delivered as of the date first written above.

, as Borrower

By:

Its:

FLORIDA LEAGUE OF CITIES, INC.,
as Dissemination Agent

By:

Its:




EXHIBIT A

Form of Annual Report Certificate

The undersigned duly appointed and acting of ,
a Florida municipality, as Borrower under the Continuing Disclosure Agreement (hereinafter
described) (the "Borrower"), hereby certifies on behalf of the Borrower pursuant to the Continuing
Disclosure Agreement dated as of July 1, 2004 (the "Continuing Disclosure Agreement") executed
and delivered by the Borrower and accepted by Florida League of Cities, Inc., as Dissemination
Agent (the "Dissemination Agent"), as follows:

1. Definitions. Capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meanings
ascribed thereto in the Continuing Disclosure Agreement.

2. Annual Report. Accompanying this Annual Report Certificate is the Annual Report
for the Fiscal Year ended

3. Compliance with Continuing Disclosure Agreement. The Annual Report is being
delivered to the Dissemination Agent herewith not later than 270 days after the end of the Fiscal
Year to which the Annual Report relates. The Annual Report contains, or includes by reference,
Financial Information and Operating Data of the types identified in the Continuing Disclosure
Certificate most recently delivered to the Dissemination Agent pursuant to Section 5 of the Master
Continuing Disclosure Agreement. To the extent any such Financial Information or Operating Data
is included in the Annual Report by reference, any document so referred to has been previously
provided to the Repositories or filed with the SEC or, in the case of a reference to a Final Official
Statement, has been filed with the MSRB.

Such Financial Information and Operating Data have been prepared on the basis of the
[Audited/Unaudited] Financial Statements. [ Such Audited Financial Statements are included as part
of the Annual Report.] [Because the Audited Financial Statements have not been approved by the
Governing Body as of the date hereof, the Unaudited Financial Statements have been included as
part of the Annual Report. The Unaudited Financial Statements have been prepared on a basis
substantially consistent with such Audited Financial Statements. The Borrower shall deliver such
Audited Financial Statements to the Dissemination Agent as soon as practicable after they have been
approved by the Governing Body.]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed and delivered this Annual Report
Certificate to the Dissemination Agent, which has received such certificate and the Annual Report,
all as of the day of the  day of ,

, as Borrower

Its:

Acknowledgment of Receipt:

as Dissemination Agent

By:

Its:




EXHIBIT B

Form of Section 5(a) Continuing Disclosure Certificate

Florida League of Cities, Inc.
301 Bronough Street
Tallahassee, Florida 33401

The undersigned duly authorized signatory of (the
"Borrower") hereby certifies on behalf of the Borrower pursuant to the Continuing Disclosure
Agreementdated asof July 1, 2004 (the "Continuing Disclosure Agreement") executed and delivered
by the Borrower and accepted by Florida League of Cities, Inc., as Dissemination Agent (the
"Dissemination Agent"), as follows:

1. Definitions. Capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meanings
ascribed thereto in the Continuing Disclosure Agreement.

2. Purpose. The Borrower is delivering this Continuing Disclosure Certificate to the
Dissemination Agent pursuant to Section 5(a) of the Continuing Disclosure Agreement.

3. Financial Information and Operating Data Included in Final Official Statement. The
following types of Financial Information and Operating Data were included in the Final Official
Statement for the Bonds and are to be included in the Annual Report:

(a) Financial Information

(b) Operating Data

4. Annual Report. Until such time as the Borrower delivers a revised Continuing
Disclosure Certificate and an opinion of disclosure counsel to the Dissemination Agent pursuant to
Section 5 of the Continuing Disclosure Agreement, the Financial Information and Operating Data
of the types identified in paragraph 3 of this certificate shall be included in the Annual Reports
delivered by the Dissemination Agent pursuant to Section 4 of the Continuing Disclosure
Agreement.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed and delivered this Continuing
Disclosure Certificate to the Dissemination Agent, which has received the same, all as of the 1st day
of July, 2004.

, as Borrower

By:

Its:

Acknowledgment of Receipt:

Florida League of Cities, Inc., as
Dissemination Agent

By:

Its:
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APPENDIX B

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT FOR ISSUER

This CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT dated as of July 1, 2004 (the
"Continuing Disclosure Agreement") is executed and delivered by Florida Municipal Loan Council,
("Issuer"), and by Florida League of Cities, Inc., a Florida corporation not-for-profit, as
Dissemination Agent (the "Dissemination Agent") hereunder. Additional capitalized terms used
herein shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in Section 2 hereof.

SECTION 1. Nature of Undertaking. This Continuing Disclosure Agreement
constitutes an undertaking by the Issuer under paragraph (b)(5) of the Rule to provide Annual
Financial Information and notice of the occurrence of certain events with respect to the Bonds, as
provided in paragraph (b)(5)(1)(C) of the Rule, and otherwise to assist the Participating Underwriter
in complying with paragraph (b)(5) of the Rule with respect to the Offering of the Bonds. Among
other things, the Issuer is hereby undertaking (i) to disseminate an Annual Report not later than 270
days after the end of each Fiscal Year of the Issuer in accordance with paragraph (b)(5)(i)(A) of the
Rule and Section 4 hereof, which contains Annual Financial Information with respect to the Issuer,
(i1) if an Annual Report does not contain the Audited Financial Statements, to disseminate the
Audited Financial Statements in accordance with paragraph (b)(5)(1)(B) of the Rule and Section 4
hereof as soon as practicable after they shall have been approved by the Governing Body, (iii) to
provide notice in a timely manner, in accordance with paragraph (b)(5)(i)(C) of the Rule and Section
6 hereof, of the occurrence of any of the Listed Events related to the Issuer and (iv) to provide notice
in a timely manner, in accordance with paragraph (b)(5)(i)(D) of the Rule and Section 4(e) hereof,
of any failure to disseminate an Annual Report in accordance with the preceding clause (i) of this
sentence.

SECTION2. Definitions. In addition to the definitions set forth above and in the herein-
defined Indenture, which shall apply to any capitalized terms used herein, the following capitalized
terms shall have the following meanings, unless otherwise defined therein:

"Annual Financial Information" shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in paragraph
(H)(9) of the Rule.

""Annual Report" means a document or set of documents which (a) identifies the Issuer; (b)
contains (or includes by reference to documents which were provided to each Repository or filed
with the SEC or, if by reference to the Final Official Statement, filed with the MSRB prior to the
date that the Annual Report containing such reference is provided to the Dissemination Agent in
accordance with Section 4 hereof): (i) Financial Information and Operating Data for the Issuer; (ii)
Audited Financial Statements if such Audited Financial Statements shall have been approved by the
Governing Body at the time the Annual Report is required to be provided to the Dissemination Agent
in accordance with Section 4 hereof; and (ii1) Unaudited Financial Statements if the Audited
Financial Statements shall not have been approved by the Governing Body at the time the Annual
Report is required to be provided to the Dissemination Agent in accordance with Section 4 hereof;
(c) in the event that the Issuer delivers a Continuing Disclosure Certificate to the Dissemination
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Agent pursuant to Section 5(b) hereof, contains (in the case of the Annual Report disseminated on
or immediately after the date such Continuing Disclosure Certificate is so delivered) a narrative
explanation of the reasons for the changes in Financial Information and/or Operating Data set forth
in such Continuing Disclosure Certificate and the effect of the changes on the types of Financial
Information and/or Operating Data being provided in such Annual Report; and (d) in the event that
the Issuer authorizes a change in the accounting principles by which its Audited Financial Statements
are prepared, contains (in the case of the Annual Report disseminated on or immediately after the
date of such change) (1) a comparison between the Financial Information prepared on the basis of
the new accounting principles which is contained in such Annual Report and the Financial
Information prepared on the basis of the former accounting principles which was contained in the
previous Annual Report disseminated immediately prior to such Annual Report and (2) a discussion
of the differences between such accounting principles and the effect of such change on the
presentation of the Financial Information being provided in such Annual Report.

"Annual Report Certificate" means an Annual Report Certificate in the form attached
hereto as Exhibit A.

"Annual Report Date" means the date which is 270 days after the end of a Fiscal Year.

"Audited Financial Statements' means the financial statements of the Issuer which have
been examined by independent certified public accountants in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards.

"Bondholder" means (i) the registered owner of a Bond and (ii) the beneficial owner of a
Bond, as the term "beneficial owner" is used in any agreement with a securities depository for the
Bonds and as the term may be modified by an interpretation by the SEC of paragraph (b)(5) of the
Rule.

"Bonds'" means the $ Florida Municipal Loan Council Revenue Bonds,
Series 2004A-1.

"Continuing Disclosure Agreement' means this Continuing Disclosure Agreement, as the
same may be supplemented and amended pursuant to Section 8 hereof.

"Continuing Disclosure Certificate' means a Continuing Disclosure Certificate in the form
attached hereto as Exhibit B delivered by the Issuer to the Dissemination Agent pursuant to Section
5 hereof.

"Dissemination Agent" means Florida League of Cities, Inc., acting in its capacity as
Dissemination Agent hereunder, or any successor Dissemination Agent which is appointed pursuant
to Section 3 hereof or to which the responsibilities of Dissemination Agent under this Continuing

Disclosure Agreement shall have been assigned in accordance with Section 9 hereof.

"Event Notice" means notice of the occurrence of a Listed Event.
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"Final Official Statement" means the Final Official Statement (as defined in paragraph
(H)(3) of the Rule) prepared in connection with the Offering of the Bonds.

"Financial Information" means financial information related to the Issuer of the types
identified in the Continuing Disclosure Certificate most recently delivered by the Issuer to the
Dissemination Agent in accordance with Section 5 hereof. The Financial Information (i) shall be
prepared for the Fiscal Year immediately preceding the date of the Annual Report containing such
Financial Information, and (ii) shall be prepared on the basis of the Audited Financial Statements
to be provided to the Dissemination Agent concurrently with the Annual Report, provided that, if
the Audited Financial Statements are to be provided to the Dissemination Agent subsequent to the
date that the Annual Report is provided to the Dissemination Agent, such Financial Information may
be prepared on the basis of the Unaudited Financial Statements.

"Governing Body" shall mean the governing body of the Issuer which shall approve the
Audited Financial Statements.

"Indenture' means the Trust Indenture dated as of July 1, 2004, by and between the Issuer
and Wachovia Bank, National Association, as Trustee.

"Insurer' means MBIA Insurance Corporation.
"Issuer" means Florida Municipal Loan Council.

"Listed Events' means any of the events which are listed in paragraph (b)(5)(i)(C) of the
Rule as in effect on the date hereof and which are set forth in Section 6 hereof.

"MSRB'" means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board.

"NRMSIR" means, as of the date of determination, any Nationally Recognized Municipal
Securities Information Repository for purposes of paragraph (b)(5) of the Rule.

"Offering" shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in paragraph (a) of the Rule.

"Operating Data'" means operating data of the types identified in the Continuing Disclosure
Certificate most recently delivered by the Issuer to the Dissemination Agent in accordance with
Section 5 hereof. The Operating Data shall be prepared for the Fiscal Year immediately preceding
the date of the Annual Report containing such Operating Data.

"Participating Underwriter" means Banc of America Securities LLC.

“Rating Agencies” means Fitch, Inc. and Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services.

"Repository" or "Repositories' means the NRMSIRs and the SIDs, either individually or
collectively, as the context requires.
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"Rule' means Rule 15¢2-12 adopted by the SEC under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended, as the Rule may be amended from time to time, or any successor provision thereto.

"SEC" means the Securities and Exchange Commission.

"SID" means, as of the date of determination, any public or private repositories or entities
which are designated by the State of Florida as state information depositories for purposes of
paragraph (b)(5) of the Rule and recognized as such by the SEC.

"Trustee" means Wachovia Bank, National Association, as trustee under the Indenture.

"Unaudited Financial Statements' means unaudited financial statements of the Issuer for
any Fiscal Year which have been prepared on a basis substantially consistent with the Audited
Financial Statements to be subsequently prepared for such Fiscal Year. The Unaudited Financial
Statements for any Fiscal Year shall be prepared on a comparative basis with the Audited Financial
Statements prepared for the preceding Fiscal Year.

SECTION3. AppointmentofDissemination Agent: Obligations of Issuer Respecting
Undertaking. (a) The Issuer hereby appoints Florida League of Cities, Inc. to act as the initial

Dissemination Agent hereunder. Florida League of Cities, Inc. hereby accepts such appointment.
The Issuer may, from time to time, appoint a successor Dissemination Agent or discharge any then
acting Dissemination Agent, with or without cause. If at any time there shall be no Dissemination
Agent appointed and acting hereunder or the then appointed and acting Dissemination Agent shall
fail to perform its obligations hereunder, the Issuer shall discharge such obligations until such time
as the Issuer shall appoint a successor Dissemination Agent or the then appointed and acting
Dissemination Agent shall resume the performance of such obligations.

(b) The Issuer hereby acknowledges that the Issuer is obligated to comply with
paragraph (5)(i) of the Rule in connection with the issuance of the Bonds and that the appointment
of the Dissemination Agent as agent of the Issuer for the purposes herein provided does not relieve
the Issuer of its obligations with respect to paragraph (5)(i) of the Rule.

SECTION 4. Annual Financial Information. (a) The Annual Financial Information
shall be contained in the Annual Reports and, if provided separately in accordance with Section 5(b)
hereof, the Audited Financial Statements which the Issuer is required to deliver to the Dissemination
Agent for dissemination in accordance with this Section 4.

(b) The Dissemination Agent shall notify the Issuer of each Report Date and
of the Issuer's obligation hereunder not more than 60 and not less than 30 days prior to each Report
Date. The Issuer shall provide an Annual Report to the Dissemination Agent, together with an
Annual Report Certificate, not later than each Annual Report Date, provided that, if the Annual
Report does not include the Audited Financial Statements, the Issuer shall provide the Audited
Financial Statements to the Dissemination Agent as soon as practicable after they shall have been
approved by the Governing Body.



(©) The Dissemination Agent shall provide the Annual Report and, if received
separately in accordance with Section 4(b) hereof, the Annual Financial Statements, to each
Repository, the Trustee, the Rating Agencies and the Insurer within five (5) Business Days after
receipt thereof from the Issuer.

(d) The Dissemination Agent shall provide the Issuer and the Trustee written
confirmation that the Annual Report and, if received separately in accordance with Section 4(b)
hereof, the Annual Financial Statements, were provided to each Repository in accordance with
Section 4(c) hereof.

(e) If the Dissemination Agent shall not have filed the Annual Report by the
Annual Report Date, the Dissemination Agent shall so notify the Repositories, the Trustee and the
Insurer within five (5) Business Days of the Annual Report Date.

SECTION 5. Continuing Disclosure Certificates. (a) The Issuer shall prepare a
Continuing Disclosure Certificate in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B in connection with the
Offering of the Bonds and shall deliver the same to the Dissemination Agent for dissemination to
the Participating Underwriter and Trustee.

(b) Prior to the deletion or substitution of any Financial Information and
Operating Data from the information listed in Exhibit B hereto the Issuer will obtain an opinion of
nationally recognized disclosure counsel (which may also act as outside counsel to of the Issuer)
addressed to the Issuer, the Participating Underwriter, the Trustee and the Dissemination Agent to
the effect that the Financial and Operating Data to be provided will comply with the Rule, as in effect
on the date of the Offering of the Bonds and taking into account any amendment or interpretation
of the Rule by the SEC or any adjudication of the Rule by a final decision of a court of competent
jurisdiction which may have occurred subsequent to the execution and delivery of this Continuing
Disclosure Agreement. The Dissemination Agent is entitled to rely on such opinion without further
investigation.

(c) Notwithstanding Section 5(b) hereof, the Issuer shall not be required to
comply with Section 5(b) hereof if such Section shall no longer be deemed to be required in order
for this Continuing Disclosure Agreement to comply with the Rule as a result of the adoption,
rendering or delivery of (i) an amendment or interpretation of the Rule by the SEC, (ii) an
adjudication of the Rule by a final decision of a court of competent jurisdiction or (iii) an opinion
of nationally recognized disclosure counsel (which may also act as outside counsel to the Issuer), in
each case, to that effect.

(d) Any delivery of a Continuing Disclosure Certificate pursuant to Section 5(b)
hereof shall not be deemed to be an amendment to this Continuing Disclosure Agreement and shall
not be subject to the provisions of Section 8 hereof.

SECTION 6. Reporting of Listed Events. (a) This Section 6 governs the provision of
Event Notices relating to Listed Events with respect to the Bonds. The following events are "Listed
Events":
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(1) principal and interest payment deficiencies;
(i)  non-payment related defaults;

(ii1))  unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial
difficulties;

(iv)  unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial
difficulties;

(v) substitution of credit or liquidity providers or their failure to perform;

(vi)  adverse tax opinions or events affecting the tax-exempt status of the
Bonds;

(vil)  modifications to the rights of the holders of the Bonds;
(viii) optional, contingent or unscheduled redemption calls;
(ix)  defeasances;

(%) release, satisfaction or sale of property securing repayment of the
Bonds; and

(xi)  rating changes;

provided that each of the Listed Events shall be interpreted in accordance with any interpretation of
the Rule by the SEC or adjudication of the Rule by a final decision of a court of competent
jurisdiction which may occur subsequent to the date of the original execution and delivery hereof.

(b) Whenever the Issuer obtains actual knowledge of the occurrence of any of the
Listed Events, the Issuer shall, on a timely basis and in any event within ten (10) Business Days,
determine whether the occurrence of such event is material to any of the Bondholders.

(c) If the Issuer determines that the occurrence of any of the Listed Events is
material to any of the Bondholders, the Issuer shall promptly notify the Dissemination Agent of such
determination in writing and instruct the Dissemination Agent to provide Event Notice in accordance
with Section 6(e) hereof.

(d) If the Issuer determines that the occurrence of the Listed Event described in
such notice is not material, the Issuer shall notify the Dissemination Agent of such determination,
and no Event Notice shall be provided pursuant to Section 6(e) hereof. The determination of the
Issuer under this paragraph (d) shall be conclusive and binding on all parties hereto.

(e) If the Issuer instructs the Dissemination Agent to provide an Event Notice
pursuant to Section 6(c) hereof, the Dissemination Agent shall, within three (3) Business Days
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thereafter, file an Event Notice with each Repository, the Trustee, the Rating Agencies and the
Insurer. The Dissemination Agent shall provide the Issuer and the Trustee written confirmation that
such Event Notice was provided to each Repository in accordance with this Section 6(e).

63) Notwithstanding the foregoing, an Event Notice with respect to a Listed Event
described in Section 6(a)(viii) or (ix) shall not be given under this Section 6 any earlier than the
notice (if any) of such event is given to the affected Bondholders pursuant to the Indenture, as
confirmed to the Dissemination Agent by the Trustee. The Dissemination Agent shall have no
liability for failure of notice given to Bondholders if it does not receive the necessary confirmation
from the Trustee after written request.

(2) Notwithstanding the foregoing, whenever the Issuer authorizes a change in
either its Fiscal Year or the accounting principles by which its Audited Financial Statements are
prepared, the Issuer shall provide the Dissemination Agent with written notice of such change and
instruct the Dissemination Agent to file a copy of such notice with each Repository, the Insurer, the
Rating Agencies and the Trustee, and the Dissemination Agent shall, within three (3) Business Days
thereafter, file a copy of such notice with each Repository, the Insurer, the Rating Agencies and the
Trustee. The Dissemination Agent shall provide the Issuer written confirmation that such notice was
provided to each Repository in accordance with this Section 6(g).

SECTION7. Additional Information. Nothing in this Continuing Disclosure Agreement
shall be deemed to prevent (i) the Issuer from disseminating any information or notice of the
occurrence of any event using the means of dissemination specified in this Continuing Disclosure
Agreement or other means or (ii) the Issuer from including in an Annual Report any information
which shall be in addition to the Financial Information, Operating Data and Audited or Unaudited
Financial Statements required by Section 4 hereof to be included in such Annual Report, provided
that this Continuing Disclosure Agreement shall not be deemed to require the Issuer to include or
update any such additional information in any subsequently prepared Annual Report.

SECTIONS8. Amendments: Waivers. This Continuing Disclosure Agreement may be
amended, and any provision hereof may be waived, by the parties hereto if, prior to the effective date
of any such amendment or waiver, the Issuer delivers to the Dissemination Agent and the Trustee
an opinion of nationally recognized disclosure counsel (which may also act as outside counsel to one
or more members of the Issuer), to the effect that this Continuing Disclosure Agreement (taking into
account such amendment or waiver) complies with the Rule, as in effect on the date of the Offering
of Bonds or after the execution and delivery of this Continuing Disclosure Agreement, taking into
account any amendment or interpretation of the Rule by the SEC or any adjudication of the Rule by
a final decision of a court of competent jurisdiction which may have occurred subsequent to the
execution and delivery of this Continuing Disclosure Agreement. The Dissemination Agent shall
notify the Repositories of any such amendment and shall provide the Repositories with a copy of any
such amendment.

SECTION 9. Assignment. The Issuer may not assign its obligations under this
Continuing Disclosure Agreement. The Dissemination Agent may assign its rights and
responsibilities hereunder to a third party with the consent of the Issuer which shall not be
unreasonably withheld.
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SECTION 10. Compensation of the Dissemination Agent. As compensation to the
Dissemination Agent for its services pursuant to this Continuing Disclosure Agreement, the Issuer
agrees to pay all fees and all expenses of the Dissemination Agent including, without limitation, all
reasonable expenses, charges, costs and other disbursements in the administration and performance
of its duties hereunder, and shall to the extent permitted by law indemnify and save the
Dissemination Agent and its officers, directors, attorneys, agents and employees harmless from and
against any costs, expenses, damages or other liabilities (including attorneys fees) which it (or they)
may incur in the exercise of its (or their) powers and duties hereunder, except with respect to its (or
their) willful misconduct or gross negligence.

SECTION 11. Concerning the Dissemination Agent and the Issuer. (a) The
Dissemination Agent is not answerable for the exercise of any discretion or power under this
Continuing Disclosure Agreement or for anything whatever in connection herewith, except only its
own willful misconduct or gross negligence. The Dissemination Agent shall have no liability to the
Bondholders or any other person with respect to the undertakings described in Section 1 hereof,
except as expressly set forth in this Continuing Disclosure Agreement regarding its own willful
misconduct or gross negligence.

(b) The Dissemination Agent has no responsibility or liability hereunder for
determining compliance for any information submitted hereunder with any law, rule or regulation
or the terms of this agreement. The Dissemination Agent shall have no responsibility for
disseminating information not delivered to it or giving notice of non-delivery except as specifically
required hereunder; and

(c) The parties to this Continuing Disclosure Agreement acknowledge and agree
that the Issuer assumes no obligations hereunder other than those specifically assumed by the Issuer
herein.

SECTION12. Termination of this Continuing Disclosure Agreement. This Continuing
Disclosure Agreement shall terminate at such time as the Bonds are no longer outstanding.

SECTION 13. Beneficiaries. This Continuing Disclosure Agreement shall inure solely
to the benefit of the Dissemination Agent, the Trustee, the Issuer, the Insurer, the Participating
Underwriter and the Bondholders. This Continuing Disclosure Agreement shall not be deemed to
inure to the benefit of or grant any rights to any party other than the parties specified in the preceding
sentence.

SECTION 14. Counterparts. This Continuing Disclosure Agreement may be executed
in several counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute one and

the same instrument.

SECTION15. Governing Law. This Continuing Disclosure Agreement shall be governed
by the laws of the State of Florida.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Issuer and the Dissemination Agent have caused this
Continuing Disclosure Agreement to executed and delivered as of the date first written above.

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL LOAN COUNCIL,
as Issuer

By:

Its: Chairman

FLORIDA LEAGUE OF CITIES, INC.,
as Dissemination Agent

By:

Its: Executive Director



EXHIBIT A

Form of Annual Report Certificate

The undersigned duly appointed and acting of Florida Municipal Loan
Council, as Issuer under the Continuing Disclosure Agreement (hereinafter described) (the "Issuer"),
hereby certifies on behalf of the Issuer pursuant to the Continuing Disclosure Agreement dated as
of July 1, 2004 (the "Continuing Disclosure Agreement") executed and delivered by the Issuer and
accepted by Florida League of Cities, Inc., as Dissemination Agent (the "Dissemination Agent"), as
follows:

1. Definitions. Capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meanings
ascribed thereto in the Continuing Disclosure Agreement.

2. Annual Report. Accompanying this Annual Report Certificate is the Annual Report
for the Fiscal Year ended

3. Compliance with Continuing Disclosure Agreement. The Annual Report is being
delivered to the Dissemination Agent herewith not later than 270 days after the end of the Fiscal
Year to which the Annual Report relates. The Annual Report contains, or includes by reference,
Financial Information and Operating Data of the types identified in the Continuing Disclosure
Certificate most recently delivered to the Dissemination Agent pursuant to Section 5 of the Master
Continuing Disclosure Agreement. To the extent any such Financial Information or Operating Data
is included in the Annual Report by reference, any document so referred to has been previously
provided to the Repositories or filed with the SEC or, in the case of a reference to a Final Official
Statement, has been filed with the MSRB.

Such Financial Information and Operating Data have been prepared on the basis of the
[Audited/Unaudited] Financial Statements. [ Such Audited Financial Statements are included as part
of the Annual Report.] [Because the Audited Financial Statements have not been approved by the
Governing Body as of the date hereof, the Unaudited Financial Statements have been included as
part of the Annual Report. The Unaudited Financial Statements have been prepared on a basis
substantially consistent with such Audited Financial Statements. The Issuer shall deliver such
Audited Financial Statements to the Dissemination Agent as soon as practicable after they have been
approved by the Governing Body.]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed and delivered this Annual Report
Certificate to the Dissemination Agent, which has received such certificate and the Annual Report,
all as of the day of the  day of ,

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL LOAN COUNCIL,
as Issuer

By:

Its:

Acknowledgment of Receipt:

as Dissemination Agent

By:

Its:
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EXHIBIT B

Form of Section 5(a) Continuing Disclosure Certificate

Florida League of Cities, Inc.
Tallahassee, Florida

Wachovia Bank, National Association
Jacksonville, Florida

Florida Municipal Loan Council
Tallahassee, Florida

Banc of America Securities LLC
Clearwater, Florida

The undersigned duly appointed and acting Chairman of Florida Municipal Loan Council (the
"Issuer") hereby certifies on behalf of the Issuer pursuant to the Continuing Disclosure Agreement
dated as of July 1, 2004 (the "Continuing Disclosure Agreement") executed and delivered by the
Issuer and accepted by Florida League of Cities, Inc., as Dissemination Agent (the "Dissemination
Agent"), as follows:

1. Definitions. Capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meanings
ascribed thereto in the Continuing Disclosure Agreement.

2. Purpose. The Issuer is delivering this Continuing Disclosure Certificate to the
Dissemination Agent pursuant to Section 5(a) of the Continuing Disclosure Agreement.

3. Written Undertaking. On behalf of the Issuer, the Issuer hereby designates the
Continuing Disclosure Agreement to be the written undertaking under paragraph (b)(5) of the Rule
with respect to the $ Florida Municipal Loan Council Revenue Bonds, Series 2004A.

4. Financial Information and Operating Data Included in Final Official Statement. The
following types of Financial Information and Operating Data were included in the Final Official

Statement for the Bonds and are to be included in the Annual Report:
(a) Financial Information None
(b) Operating Data None

5. Annual Report. Until such time as the Issuer delivers a revised Continuing Disclosure
Certificate and an opinion of disclosure counsel to the Dissemination Agent pursuant to Section 5
of the Continuing Disclosure Agreement, the Financial Information and Operating Data of the types
identified in paragraph 4 of'this certificate shall be included in the Annual Reports delivered by the
Dissemination Agent pursuant to Section 4 of the Continuing Disclosure Agreement.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed and delivered this Continuing
Disclosure Certificate to the Dissemination Agent, which has received the same, all as of the 1st day
of July, 2004.

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL LOAN COUNCIL,
as Issuer

By:

Its: Chairman
Acknowledgment of Receipt:
FLORIDA LEAGUE OF CITIES, INC.,

as Dissemination Agent

By:

Its: Executive Director
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APPENDIX C

FORM OF INDENTURE

THIS TRUST INDENTURE is made and entered into as of July 1, 2004, by and between
FLORIDA MUNICIPAL LOAN COUNCIL, a legal entity and public body corporate and politic
duly created and existing under the Constitution and laws of the State of Florida (the “Council”),
and WACHOVIA BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, a national banking association, duly
organized, existing and authorized to accept and execute trusts of the character herein set out, as
Trustee (the “Trustee”).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, all capitalized undefined terms used herein shall have the meanings set forth
in Article I hereof; and

WHEREAS, the Council is duly created and existing pursuant to the Constitution and
laws of the State of Florida, including particularly Part I of Chapter 163, Florida Statutes, as
amended (the “Interlocal Act”), and initially certain resolutions of the City of Stuart, Florida, the
City of Deland, Florida and the City of Rockledge, Florida; and

WHEREAS, the Council, pursuant to the authority of the Interlocal Act and other
applicable provisions of law, is authorized, among other things, to issue revenue bonds on behalf
of and for the benefit of the Borrowers in the State in order to finance, refinance or reimburse the
cost of qualified Projects of Borrowers, such bonds to be secured by instruments evidencing and
securing loans to said Borrowers and to be payable solely out of the payments made by such
Borrowers pursuant to Loan Agreements entered into between the Borrowers and the Council or
from other moneys designated as available therefor and not otherwise pledged or used as
security, and to enter into a trust indenture providing for the issuance of such bonds and for their
payment and security; and

WHEREAS, the Council has determined that the public interest will be best served and
that the purposes of the Interlocal Act can be more advantageously obtained by the Council’s
issuance of revenue bonds in order to provide funds to loan to the participating Borrowers to
finance, refinance or reimburse the cost of qualifying Projects pursuant to Loan Agreements
between the respective Borrowers and the Council; and

WHEREAS, the Council has previously by a resolution adopted on October 23, 2002 (the
“Resolution’), authorized the issuance of its Florida Municipal Loan Council Revenue Bonds, in
various series in an additional aggregate principal amount of not exceeding $750,000,000,
pursuant to certain trust indentures, to provide funds to finance, refinance or reimburse the cost
of qualified Projects of the participating Borrowers; and



WHEREAS, the Council has now determined to issue its $ Florida
Municipal Loan Council Revenue Bonds, Series 2004A-1 at this time pursuant to this Trust
Indenture for the purposes more fully described herein; and

WHEREAS, in order to secure the payment when due of the principal of, premium, if
any, and interest on the Bonds, the Borrowers have covenanted or pledged in the Loan
Agreements to (i) budget and appropriate legally available non-ad valorem funds of the
Borrowers sufficient for that purpose, (ii) pay from ad valorem funds of the Borrowers or (iii)
pay from specific revenues of the Borrowers; and

WHEREAS, the Council has obtained a commitment from the Bond Insurer to issue a
Bond Insurance Policy in connection with the issuance of the Bonds.

NOW, THEREFORE, THIS TRUST INDENTURE
WITNESSETH:
GRANTING CLAUSES

The Council, in consideration of the premises and the acceptance by the Trustee of the
trusts hereby created and of the purchase and acceptance of the Bonds by the owners thereof, and
for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, in order
to secure the payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds according to
their tenor and effect and to secure the performance and observance by the Council of all the
covenants expressed or implied herein and in the Bonds, does hereby grant, bargain, sell, convey,
mortgage, assign, pledge and grant, without recourse, a security interest in the Trust Estate to the
Trustee, and its successors in trust and assigns forever, for the securing of the performance of the
obligations of the Council hereinafter set forth:

GRANTING CLAUSE FIRST

All right, title and interest of the Council under the Loan Agreements (excluding fees and
expenses payable to the Council and rights of the Council to indemnity and notices thereunder
and excluding any payments made by the Borrowers to comply with the rebate provisions of
Section 148(f) of the Code) if, as and when entered into by the Borrowers and any documents
securing payment thereunder, including all extensions and renewals of any of the terms of the
Loan Agreements and any documents securing payment thereunder, if any, and without limiting
the generality of the foregoing, the present and continuing right to make claim for, collect,
receive and receipt for any income, issues and profits and other sums of money payable to or
receivable by the Council to bring actions or proceedings under the Loan Agreements, any
documents securing payment thereunder or for the enforcement thereof, and to do any and all
things which the Council is or may become entitled to do under or due to its ownership of the
interests hereby granted in the Loan Agreements; and
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GRANTING CLAUSE SECOND

All moneys and securities from time to time held by the Trustee under the terms of this
Indenture (except for moneys and securities held in the Rebate Fund); and

GRANTING CLAUSE THIRD

All Revenues, any proceeds of the Bond Insurance Policy, any proceeds of the Surety
Bond, any and all other property, rights and interests of every kind and nature from time to time
hereafter by delivery or by writing of any kind granted, bargained, sold, alienated, demised,
released, conveyed, assigned, transferred, pledged, hypothecated or otherwise subjected hereto,
as and for additional security herewith, by the Council or any other person on its behalf or with
its written consent, and the Trustee is hereby authorized to receive any and all such property at
any and all times and to hold and apply the same subject to the terms hereof;

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD all and singular the Trust Estate, whether now owned or
hereafter acquired, to the Trustee and its respective successors in trust and assigns forever;

IN TRUST NEVERTHELESS, upon the terms and trusts herein set forth for the equal
and proportionate benefit, security and protection of all present and future owners of the Bonds
issued under and secured by this Indenture and the Bond Insurer without privilege, priority or
distinction as to the lien or otherwise of any of the Bonds over any of the other Bonds;

PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that the holders of the Bonds shall be entitled to payment only
from the Loan Agreements more fully described in Granting Clause First hereof pledged for the
payment of such Bonds, the Funds and Accounts set forth in Granting Clause Second hereof
established for such Bonds and the Revenues, proceeds of the Bond Insurance Policy and other
property, rights and interests described in Granting Clause Third pledged for the payment of such
Bonds;

AND FURTHER PROVIDED, that if the Council, its successors or assigns, shall well
and truly pay, or cause to be paid, the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds
due or to become due thereon, at the times and in the manner mentioned in the Bonds and as
provided in Article II hereof according to the true intent and meaning thereof, and shall cause the
payments to be made as required under Article II hereof, or shall provide, as permitted hereby,
for the payment thereof in accordance with Article VIII hereof, and shall well and truly keep,
perform and observe all the covenants and conditions pursuant to the terms of this Indenture to
be kept, performed and observed by it, and shall pay or cause to be paid to the Trustee and any
Paying Agent all sums of money due or to become due in accordance with the terms and
provisions hereof, then upon such final payments or deposits as provided in Article VIII hereof,
this Indenture and the rights hereby granted shall cease, terminate and be void and the Trustee
shall thereupon cancel and discharge this Indenture and execute and deliver to the Council such
instruments in writing as shall be requisite to evidence the discharge hereof.

THIS TRUST INDENTURE FURTHER WITNESSETH, and it is expressly declared,
that all Bonds issued and secured hereunder are to be issued, authenticated and delivered and all
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of the Trust Estate is to be dealt with and disposed of, under, upon and subject to the terms,
conditions, stipulations, covenants, agreements, trusts, uses and purposes hereinafter expressed,
and the Council has agreed and covenanted, and does hereby agree and covenant, with the
Trustee and with the respective owners, from time to time, of the Bonds, or any part thereof, as
follows:

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS AND RULES OF INTERPRETATION
SECTION 1.01. Definitions.

Unless the context otherwise requires, the terms defined in this Section shall, for all
purposes of this Indenture and of any Supplemental Indenture, have the meanings herein
specified.

“Accountant” or “Accountants” means an independent certified public accountant or a
firm of independent certified public accountants.

“Accounts” means the accounts created pursuant to Section 4.02 hereof.

“Act” means collectively, Chapter 163, Part I, Florida Statutes, Chapter 166, Part II,
Florida Statutes, and Chapter 125, Part I, as amended, and all other applicable provisions of law.

“Additional Payments” means payments required by Section 5.03 of the Loan
Agreement.

“Alternate Surety Bond” means any letter of credit or surety bond obtained to replace the
Surety Bond then in effect pursuant to this Indenture.

“Alternate Surety Bond Provider” means any provider of an Alternate Surety Bond.

“Amortization Installment” with respect to any Term Bonds, shall mean an amount so
designated for mandatory principal installments (for mandatory call or otherwise) payable on any
Terms Bonds issued under the provisions of this Indenture.

“Arbitrage Regulations” means the income tax regulations promulgated, proposed or
applicable pursuant to Section 148 of the Code, as the same may be amended or supplemented or
proposed to be amended or supplemented from time to time.

“Authorized Denominations” means $5,000 and integral multiples thereof.

“Authorized Representative” means, when used pertaining to the Council, the Chairman
of the Council and such other designated members, agents or representatives as may hereafter be
selected by Council resolution and, when used with reference to a Borrower which is a
municipality, means the person performing the functions of the Mayor or Deputy or Vice Mayor
thereof and, when used with reference to a Borrower which is a County means the person



performing the functions of the Chairman or Vice Chairman of the Board of County
Commissioners of such Borrowers, and, when used with reference to an act or document, also
means any other person authorized by resolution to perform such act or sign such document.

“Basic Payments” means the payments denominated as such in Section 5.01 of the Loan
Agreement.

“Board” means the governing body of the Borrower.

“Bond Counsel” means Bryant Miller & Olive P.A., Tampa, Florida, or any other
nationally recognized bond counsel which is selected by the Council and acceptable to the
Trustee.

“Bondholder” or “Holder” or “holder of Bonds” or “Owner” or “owner of Bonds”,
whenever used herein with respect to a Bond, means the person in whose name such Bond is
registered.

“Bond Insurance Policy” means the financial guaranty insurance policy of the Bond
Insurer which insures payment when due of the principal of and interest on the Bonds as
provided therein.

“Bond Insurance Premium” with respect to the Bonds, means the premiums payable to
the Bond Insurer for the Bond Insurance Policy.

“Bond Insurer” means MBIA Insurance Corporation, and any successor thereto.

“Bonds” means the $ Florida Municipal Loan Council Revenue Bonds, Series
2004A-1 issued hereunder.

“Bond Service Requirement” for any Bond Year shall mean the sum of: (1) the amount
required to pay the interest becoming due on the Bonds during such Bond Year, (2) the amount
required to pay the principal of the Bonds maturing in such Bond Year, and (3) the amount
required to pay the Amortization Installment becoming due during such Bond Year.

“Bond Year” means a 12-month period beginning on July 2, ending on and including the
following July 1, except for the first period which begins on July ___, 2004.

“Borrower” means a governmental unit which has entered into a Loan Agreement and
which is borrowing and using the Loan proceeds to finance, refinance and/or be reimbursed for,
all or a portion of the costs of one or more Projects. Such Borrowers shall be those as named on
Exhibit B.

“Business Day” means a day of the year which is not a Saturday or Sunday or a day on
which the Trustee is lawfully closed or on which the New York Stock Exchange is closed.
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“Certificate,” “Statement,” “Request,” “Requisition” and “Order” of the Council mean,
respectively, a written certificate, statement, request, requisition or order signed in the name of
the Council by its Chairman, Executive Director or such other person as may be designated and
authorized to sign for the Council. Any such instrument and supporting opinions or
representations, if any, may, but need not, be combined in a single instrument with any other
instrument, opinion or representation, and the two or more so combined shall be read and
construed as a single instrument.

“Closing” means the closing of a Loan pursuant to this Indenture and a Loan Agreement.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the regulations
promulgated, proposed, or applicable thereunder.

“Commencement Date” means the date when the term of a Loan Agreement begins and
the obligation of the Borrower thereunder to make Loan Repayments accrues.

“Council” means the Florida Municipal Loan Council.

“Cost” means “Cost” as defined in the Act.

“Cost of Issuance Fund” means the fund by that name created by Section 4.02 hereof.

“Counsel” means an attorney duly admitted to practice law before the highest court of
any state and, without limitation, may include legal counsel for either the Council or the

Borrower.

“Default” means an event or condition the occurrence of which would, with the lapse of
time or the giving of notice or both, become an Event of Default.

“Depository” means the securities depository acting as Depository under this Indenture,
which may be the Council.

“Designated Member” means any designated person selected by the Council.

“Designated Office” means, with respect to the Trustee, the office set forth in or pursuant
to Section 14.05 hereof.

“DTC” means The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, and its successors
and assigns.

“Event of Default” means any occurrence or event specified in Section 9.01 hereof.

“Executive Director’” means the Executive Director of the Program Administrator and his
SuCCessor.
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“Financial Guaranty Agreement” means the agreement of that name dated ,
2004 between the Council and the Surety Bond Provider, as amended and supplemented from
time to time.

“Financial Newspaper” or “Journal” means The Wall Street Journal or The Bond Buyer
or any other newspaper or journal containing financial news, printed in the English language,
customarily published on each Business Day and circulated in New York, New York, and
selected by the Trustee, whose decision shall be final and conclusive.

“Fiscal Year” means the fiscal year of the Borrower.

“Fitch” means Fitch, Inc. d/b/a Fitch Ratings, a corporation organized and existing under
the laws of the State of Delaware, its successors and assigns and if such corporation shall be
dissolved or liquidated or shall no longer perform the functions of a securities rating agency,
“Fitch” shall be deemed to refer to any other nationally recognized securities rating agency
designated by the Council, with approval of the Bond Insurer, by notice to the Trustee.

“Florida Municipal Investment Trust” means the investment trust administered by the
Florida League of Cities, Inc., which consists of U.S. Treasuries, federal agency securities,
instrumentalities and high grade corporate securities.

“Funds” means the funds created pursuant to Section 4.02 hereof.

“Governmental Obligations” means (a) direct and general obligations of the United States
of America, or those which are unconditionally guaranteed as to principal and interest by the
same, and (b) pre-refunded municipal obligations meeting the following criteria:

(1) the municipal obligations must be rated AAA by S&P and AAA by Fitch
and may not be callable prior to maturity or, alternatively, the trustee has received
irrevocable instructions concerning their calling and redemption;

(i1) the municipal obligations are secured by cash or securities described in
clause (a) above (the “Defeasance Obligations”), which cash or Defeasance Obligations
may be applied only to interest, principal, and premium payments of such municipal
obligations;

(111)  the principal and interest of the Defeasance Obligations (plus any cash in
the fund) are sufficient to meet the liabilities of the municipal obligations;

(iv)  the Defeasance Obligations serving as security for the municipal
obligations must be held by an escrow agent or a trustee; and

(v) the Defeasance Obligations are not available to satisfy any other claims,
including those against the Trustee or escrow agent.
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Additionally, evidences of ownership of proportionate interests in future interest and
principal payments of Defeasance Obligations are permissible. Investments in these
proportionate interests are limited to circumstances wherein (a) a bank or trust company acts as
custodian and holds the underlying obligations; (b) the owner of the investment is the real party
in interest and has the right to proceed directly and individually against the obligor of the
underlying obligations; and (c) the underlying obligations are held in a special account separate
and apart from the custodian’s general assets, and are not available to satisfy any claim of the
custodian, any person claiming through the custodian, or any person to whom the custodian may
be obligated.

“Indenture” means this Trust Indenture dated as of July 1, 2004 between the Council and
the Trustee, including any indentures supplemental thereto, pursuant to which (i) the Bonds are
authorized to be issued and (ii) the Council’s interest in the Trust Estate is pledged as security for
the payment of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds.

“Insurance Proceeds” means amounts which are deposited by the Bond Insurer with the
Trustee pursuant to Article IX hereof as a condition of the direction of acceleration of all or a
portion of the Bonds by the Bond Insurer.

“Interest Payment Date” means July 1 and January 1 of each year, beginning July 1,
2005.

“Interest Period” means the period commencing on an Interest Payment Date and ending
on the day preceding the next Interest Payment Date, provided that the initial Interest Period
shall commence on the dated date of the Bonds.

“Interlocal Act” means Chapter 163, Part I, Florida Statutes.

“Interlocal Agreement” means that certain Interlocal Agreement originally dated as of
December 1, 1998, among the various governmental entities executing it from time to time,
(until the withdrawal of such members) the original parties to which are the City of Stuart, the
City of Deland and the City of Rockledge.

“Investment Securities” means any of the following investments:

A. Direct obligations of the United States of America (including obligations issued or held in
book-entry form on the books of the Department of the Treasury, and CATS and TIGRS)
or obligations, the principal of and interest on which are unconditionally guaranteed by
the United States of America.

B. Bonds, debentures, notes or other evidence of indebtedness issued or guaranteed by any
of the following federal agencies and provided such obligations are backed by the full
faith and credit of the United States of America (stripped securities are permitted only if
they have been stripped by the agency itself):

L. U.S. Export-Import Bank (Eximbank)
Direct obligations or fully guaranteed certificates of beneficial ownership
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Farmers Home Administration (FMHA)
Certificates of beneficial ownership

Federal Financing Bank

Federal Housing Administration Debentures (FHA)

General Services Administration
Participation certificates

Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA or “Ginnie Mae™)
GNMA -guaranteed mortgage-backed bonds

GNMA -guaranteed pass-through obligations

(not acceptable for certain cash-flow-sensitive issues.)

U.S. Maritime Administration
Guaranteed Title XI financing

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)

Project Notes

Local Authority Bonds

New Communities Debentures-U.S. government guaranteed debentures
U.S. Public Housing Notes and Bonds-U.S. government guaranteed public
housing notes and bonds

Bonds, debentures, notes or other evidence of indebtedness issued or guaranteed by any
of the following non-full faith and credit U.S. government agencies (stripped securities
are permitted only if they have been stripped by the agency itself):

1.

Federal Home Loan Bank System
Senior debt obligations

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC or “Freddie Mac”)
Participation Certificates
Senior debt obligations

Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA or “Fannie Mae™)
Mortgage-backed securities and senior debt obligations

Student Loan Marketing Association (SLMA or “Sallie Mae”)

Senior debt obligations

Resolution Funding Corp. (REFCORP) obligations
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6. Farm Credit System
Consolidated systemwide bonds and notes

D. Money market funds registered under the Federal Investment Company Act of 1940,
whose shares are registered under the Federal Securities Act of 1933, and having a rating
by S&P of “AAAmM-G,” “AAA-m,” or “AAA-m” and if rated by Moody’s rated “Aaa,”
“Aal” or “Aa2.”

E. Certificates of deposit secured at all times by collateral described in (A) and/or (B) above,
Such certificates must be issued by commercial banks, savings and loan associations or
mutual savings banks. The collateral must be held by a third party and the bondholders
must have a perfected first security interest in the collateral.

F. Certificates of deposit, savings accounts, deposit accounts or money market deposits that
are fully insured by FDIC, including BIF and SAIF.

G. Investment Agreements, including GIC’s, acceptable to the Bond Insurer.

H. Commercial paper rated, at the time of purchase, “Prime - 1 by Moody’s and “A-1" or
better by S&P.

L Bonds or notes issued by any state or municipality that are rated by Moody’s and S&P in

one of the two highest rating categories assigned by such agencies.

J. Federal funds or bankers acceptances with a maximum term of one year of any bank that
has an unsecured, uninsured and unwarranted obligation rating of “Prime - 1,” or “M” or
better by Moody’s and “A- 1 or “A” or better by S&P.

K. Repurchase agreements provide for the transfer of securities from a dealer bank or
securities firm (seller/borrower) to a municipal entity (buyer/lender), and the transfer of
cash from a municipal entity to the dealer bank or securities firm with an agreement that
the dealer bank or securities firm will repay the cash plus a yield to the municipal entity in
exchange for the securities at a specified date.

Repurchase Agreements must satisfy the following criteria or be approved by the Bond
Insurer:

1. Repos must be between the municipal entity and a dealer bank or securities firm

a. Primary dealers on the Federal Reserve reporting dealer list that are rated “A” or
better by S&P and Moody’s, or

b. Banks rated “A” or above by S&P and Moody’s .



12.

13.

14.

15.

2. The written repo contract must include the following:

a. Securities that are acceptable for transfer are:

(1) Direct U.S. governments, or

(11) Federal agencies backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S.
government (and FNMA and FHLMC)

b. The term of the repo may be up to 30 days

c. The collateral must be delivered to the municipal entity, trustee (if trustee is not
supplying the collateral) or third party acting as agent for the trustee (if the trustee
is supplying the collateral) before/simultaneously with payment (perfection by
possession of certificated securities)

d. Valuation of Collateral

(1) The securities must be valued weekly. marked-to-market at current market
price plus accrued interest

(a) The value of collateral must be equal to 104% of the amount of cash
transferred by the municipal entity to the dealer bank or security
firm under the repo plus accrued interest. If the value of securities
held as collateral slips below 104% of the value of the cash
transferred by municipality, then additional cash and/or acceptable
securities must be transferred. If, however, the securities used as
collateral are FNMA or FHLMC, then the value of collateral must
equal 105%.

Legal opinion that must be delivered to the municipal entity:

a. Repo meets guidelines under state law for legal investment of public funds.
The Florida Municipal Investment Trust 1 - 3 year High Quality Bond Fund.

The Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund created pursuant to Chapter 218, Part
1V, Florida Statutes for which Florida State Board of Administration acts as custodian.

The Florida Municipal Investment Trust Enhanced Cash Portfolio

Any other investment in which proceeds of the Bonds may be invested under Florida law,
provided that such investments are approved in writing by the Bond Insurer.
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“Liquidation Proceeds” means amounts received by the Trustee or the Council in
connection with the enforcement of any of the remedies under a Loan Agreement after the
occurrence of an “event of default” under a Loan Agreement which has not been waived or
cured.

“Loan” means a loan to a Borrower from proceeds of the Bonds to finance, refinance or
reimburse a Project or Projects pursuant to a Loan Agreement in the amount specified in Section
3.01 of the Loan Agreement.

“Loans” means all loans made by the Council under this Indenture to Borrowers.

“Loan Agreement” or “Loan Agreements” means the Loan Agreement or Loan
Agreements between the Council and the Borrower(s) participating in the Program with respect
to the Bonds, and any amendments and supplements thereto which are executed for the purpose
of securing repayment of the Loan made by the Council to such participating Borrower(s) from
proceeds of a Series of Bonds and establishing the terms and conditions upon which such Loans
are to be made.

“Loan Repayment Date” means December 20, 2004 and thereafter each June 20th and
December 20th or if such day is not a Business Day, the next preceding Business Day.

“Loan Repayments” means the payments of principal and interest and other payments
payable by the Borrower pursuant to the provisions of the Loan Agreement.

“Loan Term” means the term provided for in Article IV of the Loan Agreement.
“Moody’s” means Moody’s Investors Service and its successors and assigns.

“Non-Ad Valorem Revenues” means, with respect to certain Borrowers, all revenues and
taxes of such Borrower derived from any source whatsoever other than ad valorem taxation on
real and personal property, which are legally available for Loan Repayments.

“Opinion of Bond Counsel” means an opinion by a nationally recognized bond counsel
firm experienced in matters relating to the exclusion from gross income of interest payable on
obligations of states and their instrumentalities and political subdivisions, and which is selected
by the Council and acceptable to the Trustee and the Bond Insurer.

“Opinion of Counsel” means an opinion in writing of a legal counsel, who may, but need
not be, counsel to the Council, a Borrower or the Trustee.

“Outstanding” or “Bonds Outstanding” means all Bonds which have been authenticated
and delivered by the Trustee under this Indenture, except:

(a) Bonds canceled after purchase in the open market or because of payment
at maturity or redemption prior to maturity;

(b) Bonds deemed paid under Article VIII hereof; and



(©) Bonds in lieu of which other Bonds have been authenticated under Section
2.06, 2.07 or 2.09 hereof.

“Paying Agent” means the Trustee.

“Person” means any individual, corporation, partnership, association, trust or any other
entity or organization including a government or political subdivision or an agency or
instrumentality thereof.

“Principal Fund” means the fund by that name created by Section 4.02 hereof.

“Principal Payment Date” means the maturity date or mandatory redemption date of any
Bond.

“Program” means the Council’s program of making Loans under the Act and pursuant to
this Indenture.

“Program Administrator” means the Florida League of Cities, Inc., a non profit Florida
corporation.

“Project” or “Projects” means a governmental undertaking approved by the governing
body of a Borrower for a public purpose, including the refinancing of any indebtedness.

“Project Loan Fund” means the fund by that name created by Section 4.02 hereof.

“Proportionate Share” means, at the time such calculation is made, with respect to any
Borrower, a fraction the numerator of which is the outstanding principal amount of the Loan of
such Borrower made from proceeds of the Bonds and the denominator of which is the
outstanding principal amount of all Loans made from proceeds of the Bonds.

“Purchase Price” means the purchase price of one or more items of a Project negotiated
by a Borrower with the seller of such items.

“Rating Category” means one of the generic rating categories of either Fitch, Moody’s or
S&P, without regard of any refinement or graduation of such rating category by a numerical
modifier or otherwise.

“Rebate Fund” means the fund by that name created by Section 4.02 hereof.

“Record Date” means, with respect to any Interest Payment Date, the fifteenth day of the
calendar month preceding such Interest Payment Date.

“Redemption Price” means, with respect to any Bond (or portion thereof), the principal
amount of such Bond (or portion) plus the applicable premium, if any, payable upon redemption
pursuant to the provisions of such Bond and this Indenture.



“Registrar” means the Trustee.
“Representation Letter” shall mean the Representation Letter from the Council to DTC.

“Reserve Fund” means the fund by that name created by Section 4.02 hereof and all
accounts therein.

“Reserve Requirement” shall mean five percent of the original par amount of the Bonds
provided that such par amount shall exclude the par amount allocable to the loans which are
general obligations of the Borrowers.

“Revenue Fund” means the fund by that name created by Section 4.02 hereof and all
accounts therein.

“Revenues” means all Loan Repayments paid to the Trustee for the respective Accounts
of the Borrowers for deposit in the Revenue Fund and the Principal Fund to pay principal of,
premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds when due, and all receipts of the Trustee credited to
the Borrower under the provisions of the related Loan Agreement.

“S&P” means Standard & Poor’s, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc., a
corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York, its successors and
assigns, and, if such corporation shall be dissolved or liquidated or shall no longer perform the
functions of a securities rating agency, “S&P” shall be deemed to refer to any other nationally
recognized securities rating agency designated by the Council, with the approval of the Bond
Insurer, by notice to the Trustee.

“Special Record Date” means the date established pursuant to Section 9.05 as a record
date for the payment of defaulted interest on the Bonds.

“State” means the State of Florida.

“Supplemental Indenture” means any indenture hereafter duly authorized and entered into
between the Council and the Trustee, supplementing, modifying or amending this Indenture, but
only if and to the extent that such Supplemental Indenture is specifically authorized hereunder.

“Surety Bond” means the surety bond issued by the Surety Bond Provider guaranteeing
certain payments into the Reserve Fund with respect to the Bonds and any other series of the
Council’s bonds, as provided therein.

“Surety Bond Provider” means MBIA Insurance Corporation and any successors thereto.

“Term Bonds” shall mean the Bonds which are subject to Amortization Installments, and
are designated as Term Bonds.

“Trustee” means Wachovia Bank, National Association, as Trustee, or any successor
thereto under this Indenture.



“Trust Estate” means the property, rights, Revenues and other assets pledged and
assigned to the Trustee pursuant to the Granting Clauses hereof.

SECTION 1.02. Rules of Interpretation. For all purposes of this Indenture, except as
otherwise expressly provided or unless the context otherwise requires:

(a) “This Indenture” means this instrument as originally executed and as it
may from time to time be supplemented, modified or amended by any Supplemental
Indenture.

(b) All reference in this instrument to designated “Articles”, “Sections” and

other subdivisions are to the designated Articles, Sections and other subdivisions of this
instrument as originally executed. The words “herein”, “hereof”’, “hereunder” and
“herewith”, and other words of similar import, refer to this Indenture as a whole and not
to any particular Article, Section or other subdivision.

(c) The terms defined in this Article have the meanings assigned to them in
this Article and include the plural as well as the singular.

(d) All accounting terms not otherwise defined herein have the meanings
assigned to them in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

(e) The terms defined elsewhere in this Indenture shall have the meanings
therein prescribed for them.

63) Words of the masculine gender shall be deemed and construed to include
correlative words of the feminine and neuter genders.

(2) The headings or captions used in this Indenture are for convenience of

reference only and shall not define or limit or describe any of the provisions hereof or the
scope or intent hereof.
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ARTICLE II
THE BONDS
SECTION 2.01. Authorization; Book-Entry System.

(a)  Authorization, Issuance and Execution of Bonds. A single series of Bonds may be
issued hereunder in order to obtain moneys to carry out the purposes of the Program for the
benefit of the Council and the Borrowers. The Bonds shall be designated as “Florida Municipal
Loan Council Revenue Bonds, Series 2004A-17. At any time after the execution of this
Indenture, the Council may execute and the Trustee shall authenticate and, upon request of the
Council, deliver the Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of Dollars
($ ). This Indenture constitutes a continuing agreement with the Owners from time to
time of the Bonds appertaining thereto to secure the full payment of the principal of, premium, if
any, and interest on all such Bonds subject to the covenants, provisions and conditions herein
contained.

The Bonds shall be issuable as fully registered bonds without coupons and shall be
executed in the name and on behalf of the Council with the manual or facsimile signature of its
Chairman, under its seal attested by the manual or facsimile signature of its Executive Director
or Designated Member. Such seal may be in the form of a facsimile of the Council’s seal and
may be reproduced, imprinted or impressed on the Bonds. The Bonds shall then be delivered to
the Registrar, as hereinafter defined, for authentication by it. In case any of the officers who
shall have signed or attested any of the Bonds shall cease to be such officer or officers of the
Council before the Bonds so signed and attested shall have been authenticated or delivered by
the Registrar or issued by the Council, such Bonds may nevertheless be authenticated, delivered
and issued and, upon such authentication, delivery and issue, shall be as binding upon the
Council as though those who signed and attested the same had continued to be such officers of
the Council, and also any Bond may be signed and attested on behalf of the Council by such
persons as at the actual date of execution of such Bond shall be the proper officers of the Council
although at the nominal date of such Bond any such person shall not have been such officer of
the Council.

Only such of the Bonds as shall bear thereon a certificate of authentication substantially
in the form hereinafter recited, manually executed by the Registrar as hereinafter defined, shall
be valid or obligatory for any purpose or entitled to the benefits of this Indenture, and such
certificate of the Registrar shall be conclusive evidence that the Bonds so authenticated have
been duly executed, authenticated and delivered hereunder and are entitled to the benefits of this
Indenture.

(b)  The Bonds shall be initially issued in the form of a separate single certificated fully
registered Bond for each of the maturities of the Series. Upon initial issuance, the ownership of
each such Bond shall be registered in the registration books kept by the Registrar in the name of
Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC. Except as provided in this Section, all of the outstanding
Bonds shall be registered in the registration books kept by the Registrar in the name of Cede &
Co., as nominee of DTC.
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With respect to Bonds registered in the registration books kept by the Registrar in the
name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, the Council, the Registrar and the Paying Agent shall
have no responsibility or obligation to any such Participant or to any indirect participant.
Without limiting the immediately preceding sentence, the Council, the Registrar and the Paying
Agent shall have no responsibility or obligation with respect to (i) the accuracy of the records of
DTC, Cede & Co. or any Participant with respect to any ownership interest in the Bonds, (ii) the
delivery to any Participant or any other person other than a Bondholder, as shown in the
registration books kept by the Registrar, of any notice with respect to the Bonds, including any
notice of redemption, or (iii) the payment to any Participant or any other person, other than a
Bondholder, as shown in the registration books kept by the Registrar, of any amount with respect
to principal of, premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds. The Council, the Registrar and the
Paying Agent may treat and consider the person in whose name each Bond is registered in the
registration books kept by the Registrar as the holder and absolute owner of such Bond for the
purpose of payment of principal, premium and interest with respect to such Bond, for the
purpose of giving notices of redemption and other matters with respect to such Bond, for the
purpose of registering transfers with respect to such Bond, and for all other purposes whatsoever.
The Paying Agent shall pay all principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds only to or
upon the order of the respective Holders, as shown in the registration books kept by the
Registrar, or their respective attorneys duly authorized in writing, as provided herein and all such
payments shall be valid and effective to fully satisfy and discharge the Council’s obligations with
respect to payment of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds to the extent of the
sum or sums so paid. No person other than a Holder, as shown in the registration books kept by
the Registrar, shall receive a certificated Bond evidencing the obligation of the Council to make
payments of principal, premium, if any, and interest pursuant to the provisions hereof. Upon
delivery by DTC to the Council of written notice to the effect that DTC has determined to
substitute a new nominee in place of Cede & Co., and subject to the provisions herein with
respect to Record Dates, the words “Cede & Co.” in this Indenture shall refer to such new
nominee of DTC; and upon receipt of such a notice the Council shall promptly deliver a copy of
the same to the Registrar and the Paying Agent.

Upon receipt by the Council of written notice from DTC (i) to the effect that DTC has
received written notice from the Council to the effect that a continuation of the requirement that
all of the outstanding Bonds be registered in the registration books kept by the Registrar in the
name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, is not in the best interest of the beneficial owners of
the Bonds or (ii) to the effect that DTC is unable or unwilling to discharge its responsibilities and
no substitute depository willing to undertake the functions of DTC hereunder can be found which
is willing and able to undertake such functions upon reasonable and customary terms, the Bonds
shall no longer be restricted to being registered in the registration books kept by the Registrar in
the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, but may be registered in whatever name or names
Holders transferring or exchanging Bonds shall designate, in accordance with the provision
hereof.

SECTION 2.02. Maturity and Interest Rate Provisions. The Bonds shall be dated as
of , 2004. They shall be numbered consecutively from R-1 upward. They shall be in
the denomination of $5,000 each, or integral multiples thereof. Each Bond shall bear interest
from the Interest Payment Date next preceding the date on which it is authenticated, unless
authenticated on an Interest Payment Date, in which case it shall bear interest from such Interest



Payment Date, or unless authenticated prior to the first payment date, in which case it shall bear
interest from its date. The Bonds shall bear interest and shall mature at the rates, in the amounts
and on the dates set forth below:

$ Serial Bonds
Maturity
(July 1) Amount Interest Rate
$ % Term Bond Due July 1, 20__

SECTION 2.03. Payment Provisions. The principal of, premium, if any, and
interest on the Bonds shall be payable in any coin or currency of the United States of America
which on the respective dates of payment thereof is legal tender for the payment of public and
private debts. Principal of and premium, if any, on the Bonds shall be payable at the designated
corporate trust office of the Trustee, or any successor paying agent and registrar appointed
pursuant to the provisions of Sections 10.12 and 10.13 hereof (the “Paying Agent” or
“Registrar”’), and payment of the interest on each Bond shall be made by the Paying Agent on
each Interest Payment Date to the person appearing as the registered owner thereof on the bond
registration books maintained by the Registrar as of the close of business on the Record Date
preceding the Interest Payment Date (or, if interest on the Bonds is in default and the Bond
Insurer is in default under the Bond Insurance, a Special Record Date established pursuant to
Section 9.05), by check mailed on the Interest Payment Date to such registered owner at his
address as it appears on such registration books or at the prior written request and expense of an
owner of $1,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of Bonds, by bank wire transfer to a
domestic bank account, notwithstanding the cancellation of any such Bonds upon any exchange
or transfer thereof subsequent to the Record Date or Special Record Date and prior to such
Interest Payment Date. Payment of the principal (or redemption price), of the Bonds shall be



made upon the presentation and surrender of such Bonds as the same shall become due and
payable.

SECTION 2.04. Matters Concerning Bond Insurance Policy. So long as the
Bond Insurance Policy shall be in full force and effect, the Council and the Trustee hereby agree
to comply with the following provisions:

A. In the event that, on the second Business Day, and again on the Business Day
prior to the payment date on the Bonds, the Trustee has not received sufficient moneys to pay all
principal of, and interest on the Bonds due on the second following, or next following as the case
may be, Business Day, the Trustee shall immediately notify the Bond Insurer or its designee on
the same Business Day by telephone or telegraph confirmed in writing by registered or certified
mail, of the amount of the deficiency.

B. If the deficiency is made up in whole or in part prior to or on the payment date,
the Trustee shall so notify the Bond Insurer or its designee.

C. In addition, if the Trustee has notice that any Bondholder has been required to
disgorge payments of principal, or interest on the Bonds to a trustee in Bankruptcy or creditors or
others pursuant to a final judgment by a court of competent jurisdiction that such payment
constitutes an avoidable preference to such Bondholder within the meaning of any applicable
bankruptcy laws, then the Trustee shall notify the Insurer or its designee of such fact by
telephone or telegraphic notice, confirmed in writing by registered or certified mail.

D. The Trustee is hereby irrevocably designated, appointed, directed and authorized
to act as attorney-in-fact for Holders of the Bonds as follows:

1. If and to the extent there is a deficiency in amounts required to pay interest
on the Bonds, the Trustee shall (a) execute and deliver to State Street Bank and Trust Company,
N.A., or its successors under the Policy (the “Insurance Paying Agent”), in form satisfactory to
the Insurance Paying Agent, an instrument appointing the Insurer as agent for such Holders in
any legal proceeding related to the payment of such interest and an assignment to the Bond
Insurer of the claims for interest to which such deficiency relates and which are paid by the Bond
Insurer, (b) receive as designee of the respective Holders (and not as Paying Agent) in
accordance with the tenor of the Bond Insurance Policy (the “Bond Insurance Policy”) payment
from the Insurance Paying Agent with respect to the claims for interest so assigned, and (c)
disburse the same to such respective Holder; and

2. If and to the extent of a deficiency in amounts required to pay principal of
the Bonds, the Trustee shall (a) execute and deliver to the Insurance Paying Agent in form
satisfactory to the Insurance Paying Agent an instrument appointing the Insurer as agent for such
Holder in any legal proceeding relating to the payment of such principal and an assignment to the
Bond Insurer of any of the Bond surrendered to the Insurance Paying Agent of so much of the
principal amount thereof as has not previously been paid or for which moneys are not held by the
Trustee and available for such payment (but such assignment shall be delivered only if payment
from the Insurance Paying Agent is received), (b) receive as designee of the respective Holders
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(and not as Trustee) in accordance with the tenor of the Bond Insurance Policy payment therefor
from the Insurance Paying Agent, and (c) disburse the same to such Holders.

E. Payments with respect to claims for interest on and principal of Bonds disbursed
by the Trustee from proceeds of the Bond Insurance Policy shall not be considered to discharge
the obligation of the Issuer with respect to such Bonds, and the Bond Insurer shall become the
owner of such unpaid Bonds and claims for the interest in accordance with the tenor of the
assignment made to it under the provisions of this subsection or otherwise.

F. Irrespective of whether any such assignment is executed and delivered, the
Council and the Trustee hereby agree for the benefit of the Bond Insurer that:

1. They recognize that to the extent the Bond Insurer makes payments,
directly or indirectly (as by paying through the Trustee), on account of principal of or interest on
the Bonds, the Bond Insurer will be subrogated to the rights of such Holders to receive the
amount of such principal and interest from the Council, with interest thereon as provided and
solely from the sources stated in this Indenture and the Bonds; and

2. They will accordingly pay to the Bond Insurer the amount of such
principal and interest (including principal and interest recovered under subparagraph (ii) of the
first paragraph of the Bond Insurance Policy, which principal and interest shall be deemed past
due and not to have been paid), with interest thereon as provided in this Indenture and the Bonds,
but only from the sources and in the manner provided herein for the payment of principal of and
interest on the Bonds to Holders, and will otherwise treat the Bond Insurer as the owner of such
rights to the amount of such principal and interest.

G. Copies of any amendments made to the documents executed in connection with
the issuance of the Bonds which are consented to by the Bond Insurer shall be sent to S&P.

H. The Bond Insurer shall receive notice of the resignation or removal of the Trustee
and the appointment of a successor thereto.

L The Bond Insurer shall receive copies of all notices required to be delivered to
Bondholders and, on an annual basis, copies of the Borrower’s audited financial statements and
annual budget.

J. The Council agrees to reimburse the Bond Insurer immediately and
unconditionally upon demand, to the extent permitted by law, for all reasonable expenses,
including attorneys’ fees and expenses, incurred by the Bond Insurer in connection with (i) the
enforcement by the Bond Insurer of the Council’s obligations, or the preservation or defense of
any rights of the Bond Insurer, under this Indenture and any other document executed in
connection with the issuance of the Bonds, and (ii) any consent, amendment, waiver or other
action with respect to the Indenture or any related document, whether or not granted or approved,
together with interest on all such expenses from and including the date incurred to the date of
payment at Citibank’s Prime Rate plus 3% or the maximum interest rate permitted by law,
whichever is less. In addition, the Bond Insurer reserves the right to charge a fee in connection
with its review of any such consent, amendment or waiver, whether or not granted or approved.
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K. The Council agrees not to use the Bond Insurer’s name in any public document
including, without limitation, a press release or presentation, announcement or forum without the
Bond Insurer’s prior consent. In the event that the Council is advised by counsel that it has a
legal obligation to disclose the Bond Insurer’s name in any press release, public announcement
or other public document, the Council shall provide the Bond Insurer with at least three (3)
business days’ prior written notice of its intent to use the Bond Insurer’s name together with a
copy of the proposed use of the Bond Insurer’s name and of any description of a transaction with
the Bond Insurer and shall obtain the Bond Insurer’s prior consent as to the form and substance
of the proposed use of the Bond Insurer’s name and any such description.

L. The Council shall not enter into any agreement nor shall it consent to or
participate in any arrangement pursuant to which Bonds are tendered or purchased for any
purpose other than the redemption and cancellation or legal defeasance of such Bonds without
the prior written consent of the Bond Insurer.

Any notice that is required to be given to a holder of the Bonds or to the Trustee pursuant
to this Indenture shall also be provided to the Bond Insurer. All notices required to be given to
the Bond Insurer under this Indenture shall be in writing and shall be sent by registered or
certified mail addressed to 113 King Street, Armonk, New York 10504, Attention: Surveillance.

SECTION 2.05. Payments in Advance of Scheduled Maturity Dates by the
Bond Insurer. In the event that the Bond Insurer shall make any payments of principal of
and/or interest on any of the Bonds pursuant to the terms of the Bond Insurance Policy and the
Bonds are accelerated or are redeemed pursuant to Section 3.02 hereof, the Bond Insurer may at
any time and at its sole option pay all or a portion of amounts due under the Bonds to the
Bondholders prior to the stated maturity dates thereof.

SECTION 2.06. Mutilated, Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Bonds; Bonds Not
Delivered for Redemption. If any Bond is mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed, the Council shall
execute and the Registrar shall authenticate a new Bond of the same date, maturity and
denomination as that mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed; provided that in the case of any
mutilated Bond, such mutilated Bond shall first be surrendered to the Registrar, and in the case
of any lost, stolen or destroyed Bond, there shall be first furnished to the Council and the
Registrar evidence of such loss, theft or destruction satisfactory to the Council and the Registrar,
together with an indemnity satisfactory to them. In the event any such Bond shall have matured
or been called for redemption, instead of issuing a duplicate Bond, the Paying Agent may pay the
same. The Council and the Registrar may charge the Owner of such Bond with their reasonable
fees and expenses in connection with replacing any Bond mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed.

SECTION 2.07. Transfer and Exchange of Bonds; Persons Treated as Owners.
The Council shall cause books for the registration and transfer of the Bonds, as provided in this
Indenture, to be kept by the Registrar. Upon surrender for transfer of any Bond at the
Designated office of the Registrar, accompanied by an assignment duly executed by the
registered Owner or his attorney-in-fact duly authorized in writing, the Council shall execute and
the Registrar shall authenticate and deliver in the name of the transferee or transferees a new
Bond or Bonds for a like aggregate principal amount.
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Bonds of the same type may be exchanged at the Designated Office of the Registrar for a
like aggregate principal amount of Bonds of other Authorized Denominations. The Council shall
execute and the Registrar shall authenticate and deliver Bonds which the Bondholder making the
exchange is entitled to receive, bearing numbers not contemporaneously outstanding.

The Registrar shall not be required to (i) transfer or exchange any Bonds during the ten
(10) days next preceding any day upon which notice of redemption of Bonds is to be mailed or
(11) transfer or exchange any Bonds selected, called or being called for redemption in whole or in
part.

The person in whose name any Bond shall be registered shall be deemed and regarded by
the Trustee, the Registrar, the Paying Agent and the Council as the absolute Owner thereof for all
purposes, and payment of or on account of the principal of, premium, if any, or interest on any
Bond shall be made only to or upon the written order of the registered Owner thereof or his legal
representative, subject to Section 2.03 hereof, and neither the Council nor the Trustee, the Paying
Agent nor the Registrar shall be affected by any notice to the contrary, but such registration may
be changed as hereinabove provided. All such payments shall be valid and effectual to satisfy
and discharge the liability upon such Bond to the extent of the sum or sums paid.

A reasonable transfer charge may be made for any exchange or transfer of any Bond and
the Registrar shall require the payment by any Bondholder requesting exchange or transfer of a
sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to
such exchange or transfer and a sum sufficient to pay the cost of preparing each new Bond issued
upon such exchange or transfer.

SECTION 2.08. Cancellation of Bonds. Whenever any Outstanding Bond shall be
delivered to the Registrar for cancellation pursuant to this Indenture, upon payment of the
principal amount, or for replacement pursuant to Section 2.06 hereof or for transfer or exchange
pursuant to Sections 2.07 or 2.09 hereof, such Bond shall be canceled by the Registrar.

SECTION 2.09. Temporary Bonds. Pending the preparation of definitive Bonds,
the Council may execute and the Registrar shall authenticate and deliver temporary Bonds.
Temporary Bonds shall be issuable as fully registered Bonds, of any Authorized Denomination,
and substantially in the form of the definitive Bonds but with such omissions, insertions and
variations as may be appropriate for temporary Bonds, all as may be determined by the Council.
Temporary Bonds may be issued without specific terms and may contain such reference to any
provisions of this Indenture as may be appropriate. Every temporary Bond shall be executed by
the Council and authenticated by the Registrar upon the same conditions and in substantially the
same manner, and with like effect, as the definitive Bonds. As promptly as practicable, the
Council shall execute and shall furnish definitive Bonds and thereupon temporary Bonds may be
surrendered in exchange therefor without charge at the principal corporate trust office of the
Registrar, and the Registrar shall authenticate and deliver in exchange for such temporary Bonds
a like aggregate principal amount of definitive Bonds. Until so exchanged, the temporary Bonds
shall be entitled to the same benefits under this Indenture as definitive Bonds.

C-22



SECTION 2.10. Nonpresentment of Bonds. In the event any Bond shall not be
presented for payment when the principal thereof becomes due, either at maturity, or at the date
fixed for redemption thereof, or otherwise, or if any interest check shall not be cashed, if funds
sufficient to pay such Bond or interest shall have been made available by the Council to the
Trustee or Paying Agent for the benefit of the Owner thereof, all liability of the Council to the
Owner thereof for the payment of such Bond or interest, as the case may be, shall forthwith
cease, terminate and be completely discharged, and thereupon it shall be the duty of the Trustee
or Paying Agent to hold such funds, uninvested and without liability for interest thereon, for the
benefit of the Owner of such Bond or interest, as the case may be, who shall thereafter be
restricted exclusively to such funds for any claim of whatever nature on his part under this
Indenture or on, or with respect to, said Bond or interest, as the case may be, provided that any
money deposited with the Trustee or Paying Agent for the payment of the principal of (and
premium, if any) or interest on any Bond and remaining unclaimed for six years after such
principal (and premium, if any) or interest has become due and payable shall be paid to the
Council, and the Owner of such Bond or interest, as the case may be, shall thereafter, as an
unsecured general creditor, look only to the Council for payment thereof, and all liability of the
Trustee or Paying Agent with respect to such trust money shall thereupon cease; provided,
however, that the Trustee, before making any such payment to the Council, shall, at the expense
of the Council, cause to be published once, in a Financial Newspaper or Journal, notice that such
money remains unclaimed and that, after a date specified therein, which shall not be less than 30
days from the date of such publication, any unclaimed balance of such money then remaining
will be paid to the Council.

SECTION 2.11. Form of Bonds. The Bonds to be issued hereunder, and the
certificate of authentication by the Registrar to be endorsed on all such Bonds, shall be
substantially in the form set forth as Exhibit A hereto, with such variations, omissions and
insertions as are permitted by this Indenture or are required to conform the form of Bond to the

other provisions of this Indenture (any portion of such form of Bond may be printed on the back
of the Bonds).
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ARTICLE IIT
REDEMPTION OF BONDS
SECTION 3.01. Optional Redemption of the Bonds.

The Bonds maturing on or before July 1, 20___ are not subject to optional redemption
prior to their maturities. The Bonds maturing after July 1, 20__ are subject to redemption at the
option of the Council on or after July 1, 20__, as a whole or in part at any time, in any manner
determined by the Trustee in its discretion taking into consideration the maturity of the Loan
being prepaid by a particular Borrower, at the redemption price, equal to the principal amount of
the Bonds to be redeemed, plus accrued interest to the redemption date.

SECTION 3.02. Mandatory Redemption of Bonds.

The Bonds that mature on July 1, 20___ are subject to mandatory redemption, in
part, by lot, at redemption prices equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof, plus interest
accrued to the redemption date, on July 1, 20___ and on each July 1st thereafter, in the following
principal amounts in the following years:

Year Principal Amount

$

*Maturity

The Bonds are subject to extraordinary mandatory redemption as a result of acceleration of
any Loan pursuant to a Loan Agreement at any time, in whole or in part, at a redemption price of
the principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest to the redemption date, without premium, but
only with the approval of the Bond Insurer, from all Liquidation Proceeds or Insurance Proceeds
received by the Trustee as a result of an acceleration of any Loan or Loans. To the extent that all
Loans are not being accelerated, Bonds to be redeemed shall be selected by the Registrar by lot
or in such other manner as the Council in its discretion may deem appropriate; provided,
however, that only such Bonds which correspond in terms of amount and scheduled maturity
date to the principal loan payment obligations of the Loan or Loans being accelerated are subject
to such extraordinary mandatory redemption, and provided further that, in the event Liquidation
Proceeds are not sufficient to redeem all such corresponding Bonds, the portion of the
corresponding Bonds to be so redeemed shall be selected on a pro-rata basis based upon the ratio
of Liquidation Proceeds to the total amount of Bonds which correspond to the Loan or Loans
being accelerated.
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SECTION 3.03. Notice of Redemption. In the case of every redemption, the
Registrar, at the direction of the Trustee, shall cause notice of such redemption to be given to the
registered Owner of any Bonds designated for redemption in whole or in part, at his address as
the same shall last appear upon the Bond registration books by mailing a copy of the redemption
notice by first-class mail at least thirty (30) days prior to the redemption date. The failure of the
Registrar to give notice to a Bondholder or any defect in such notice shall not affect the validity
of the redemption of any other Bonds. A copy of any such notice shall also be sent by the
Registrar to the Bond Insurer and any person necessary to ensure compliance by the Council
with applicable rules and regulations regarding such notices.

Each notice of redemption shall specify the date fixed for redemption, the redemption price
to be paid, the place or places of payment, that payment will be made upon presentation and
surrender of the Bonds to be redeemed, that interest, if any, accrued to the date fixed for
redemption will be paid as specified in said notice, and that on and after said date interest thereon
will cease to accrue. If less than all the Outstanding Bonds are to be redeemed, the notice of
redemption shall specify the numbers of the Bonds or portions thereof, including CUSIP
identification numbers to be redeemed.

The Registrar also shall mail a copy of such notice by registered or certified mail or
overnight delivery service (or by telecopy where permitted) for receipt not less than thirty (30)
days before such redemption date to the following: The Depository Trust Company, 711 Stewart
Avenue, Garden City, New York 11530; provided, however, that such mailing shall not be a
condition precedent to such redemption and failure so to mail any such notice shall not affect the
validity of any proceedings for the redemption of Bonds.

SECTION 3.04. Bonds Due and Payable on Redemption Date; Interest Ceases
To Accrue. On the redemption date, the principal amount of each Bond to be redeemed,
together with the accrued interest thereon to such date, shall become due and payable; and from
and after such date, notice (if required) having been given and moneys available solely for such
redemption being on deposit with the Trustee in accordance with the provisions of this Article
III, then, notwithstanding that any Bonds called for redemption shall not have been surrendered,
no further interest shall accrue on any of such Bonds or portions thereof to be redeemed. From
and after such date of redemption (such notice having been given and moneys available solely
for such redemption being on deposit with the Trustee), the Bonds or portions thereof to be
redeemed shall not be deemed to be Outstanding hereunder, and the Council shall be under no
further liability in respect thereof.

SECTION 3.05. Cancellation. All Bonds which have been redeemed shall be
canceled by the Registrar as provided in Section 2.08 hereof.

SECTION 3.06. Partial Redemption of Bonds. Upon surrender of any Bond in a
denomination greater than $5,000 called for redemption in part only, the Council shall execute
and the Registrar shall authenticate and deliver to the registered Owner thereof a new Bond or
Bonds of Authorized Denominations in an aggregate principal amount equal to the unredeemed
portion of the Bond surrendered.
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SECTION 3.07. Selection of Bonds To Be Redeemed. The Bonds shall be
redeemed pursuant to Sections 3.01 and 3.02 only in the principal amount of an Authorized
Denomination. The Bonds or portions of the Bonds to be redeemed shall, except as otherwise
provided in Section 3.02 hereof, be selected by the Registrar by lot or in such other manner as
the Council in its discretion may deem appropriate.
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ARTICLE IV
REVENUES AND FUNDS

SECTION 4.01. Source of Payment of Bonds. The Bonds and all payments by the
Council hereunder are limited and special obligations of the Council and are payable solely out
of Revenues and certain proceeds of the Bonds as authorized by the Constitution and laws of the
State, including particularly the Act, as and to the extent provided herein. The Bonds and the
Council’s other obligations hereunder are solely and exclusively obligations of the Council to the
extent set forth herein and do not constitute or create an obligation, general or special, or debt,
liability or moral obligation of the State or any political subdivision or any municipal corporation
of the State. The Bonds shall not be or constitute a general obligation of the Council, the State of
Florida or any political subdivision or any municipal corporation thereof or a lien upon any
property owned or situated within the territorial limits of the Council, the State of Florida or any
political subdivision or any municipal corporation thereof except the Trust Estate, in the manner
provided herein and in the Loan Agreements. The Loan Agreements do not represent joint
liabilities of the Borrowers executing Loan Agreements with the Council, and shall be payable
solely as provided in such Loan Agreements.

SECTION 4.02. Creation of Funds and Accounts. There are hereby established by
the Council the following Funds and Accounts to be held by the Trustee: (1) the Project Loan
Fund, with an Account relating to each Borrower therein, (2) the Principal Fund, with an
Account relating to each Borrower, (3) the Revenue Fund, with an Account relating to each
Borrower therein (4) the Cost of Issuance Fund, with an Account relating to each Borrower
therein, (5) the Reserve Fund, and (6) the Rebate Fund.

SECTION 4.03. Project Loan Fund. Moneys in the Project Loan Fund shall be
segregated at Closing into separate Accounts for each Loan to a Borrower as provided in Section
4.07(ii1) upon the submission of the documents by Borrowers as required by, and upon the terms
and conditions specified in, Article V hereof. Interest earnings on investments in each Account
of the Project Loan Fund shall be held in and credited to such Account. Upon the occurrence of
an event of default under a Loan Agreement and the exercise by the Trustee of the remedy of
acceleration as specified in such Loan Agreement, any moneys in the Account of the Project
Loan Fund relating to such Borrower and not yet disbursed to the defaulting Borrower, if any,
shall be transferred by the Trustee to the Principal Fund and applied in accordance with the
second paragraph of Section 4.04 hereof.

SECTION 4.04. Principal Fund. Upon the receipt of Loan Repayments,
Liquidation Proceeds or Insurance Proceeds, the Trustee shall deposit in the appropriate Account
of the respective Borrower in the Principal Fund all payments or recoveries of principal of Loans
or payments to be applied to the payment of any premium due upon optional redemption of the
Bonds.

Amounts in the Principal Fund shall be used as follows: (1) to pay scheduled principal

payments of the Bonds and (2) to pay the principal of and premium, if any, on the Bonds
redeemed pursuant to Section 3.01 or Section 3.02 when required by such Sections. Upon
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acceleration of maturity of the Bonds pursuant to Section 9.02, all amounts in the Principal Fund
shall be used to pay maturing principal of and interest on the Bonds.

SECTION 4.05. Revenue Fund. Upon the receipt of Loan Repayments, Liquidation
Proceeds, Insurance Proceeds or proceeds earmarked for capitalized interest, the Trustee shall
deposit in the Revenue Fund all moneys remaining after the deposits required by Section 4.04
hereof. Such moneys shall be segregated at Closing into separate accounts for each Borrower.
All investment earnings on amounts in the Funds and Accounts (except the Rebate Fund and the
Project Loan Fund) shall be deposited in the appropriate account of the respective Borrower in
the Revenue Fund as received. Any amounts received by the Trustee hereunder which are not
required to be deposited elsewhere shall also be deposited in the appropriate account of the
respective Borrower in the Revenue Fund.

Amounts in all separate accounts of the Revenue Fund shall be used to make the following
payments or transfers in the following order of priority:

(1) On each Interest Payment Date, to pay interest due on the Bonds;

2) At such times as are necessary, to pay accrued interest due on the Bonds
redeemed pursuant to Sections 3.01 or 3.02 hereof;

3) At such times as are necessary, to pay the fees and expenses of the Trustee,
DTC, the Program Administrator, the Registrar and the Paying Agent (including the cost of
printing additional Bonds) and the fees and expenses of the Council (including costs of issuing
the Bonds if insufficient amounts are on hand in the Cost of Issuance Fund), any counsel
consulted by the Council with respect to any Loan, or of Accountants employed pursuant to
Section 4.12 hereof; provided, further, that the Bond Insurer may authorize the payment of any
such fees or expenses prior to the payment of interest on the Bonds;

4) On each Interest Payment Date of each year, all amounts remaining within
the Revenue Fund, other than fees being collected in installments pursuant to the relevant Loan
Agreement and amounts which will be credited against the relevant Borrower’s next Loan
Repayments, shall be deposited in the Principal Fund, as provided in Section 5.04 of the Loan
Agreements.

&) To the extent that the amounts on deposit in the Reserve Fund are less than
the Reserve Requirement, the Council shall make deposits into the Reserve Fund in the manner
described below from moneys remaining in the Revenue Fund. Any withdrawals from the
Reserve Fund shall be subsequently restored from the first moneys available in the Revenue
Fund, after all current applications and allocations to the Principal Fund, including deficiencies
for prior payments that have not been made in full. The Council may provide that the difference
between the amounts on deposit in the Reserve Fund and the Reserve Requirement shall be an
amount covered by a letter of credit rated in one of the two highest categories by nationally
recognized rating agencies, by a surety bond, by an Alternate Surety Bond, by the Surety Bond,
or any combination thereof. Moneys in the Reserve Fund shall be used only for the purpose of
the payment of principal of, or interest on the Bonds when the other moneys allocated therefor
are insufficient and for no other purpose.
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In the event of the refunding of all or any portion of the Bonds, the Council may withdraw
from the Reserve Fund, all or any portion of the amount accumulated therein with respect to the
Bonds being refunded and deposit such amounts as required by the documents authorizing the
refunding of such Bonds; provided that such withdrawal shall not be made unless (a)
immediately thereafter, the Bonds being refunded shall be deemed to have been paid, (b) the
amount remaining in the Reserve Fund after giving effect to the issuance of such refunding
obligations and the disposition of the proceeds thereof shall not be less than the Reserve
Requirement for any Bonds then outstanding. Any excess moneys on deposit in the Reserve
Fund shall be transferred by the Trustee, upon the written request of the Council, to the Principal
Fund.

SECTION 4.06. Cost of Issuance Fund. Moneys in the Cost of Issuance Fund shall
be segregated at Closing into separate accounts for each Borrower. Such moneys shall be used
to pay costs of issuing the Bonds to the extent not paid from other sources, which costs may
include, all printing expenses in connection with this Indenture, the Loan Agreements, the
preliminary and final Official Statements for the Bonds and the Bonds; the underwriter’s
discount for the initial purchase of the Bonds; the initial Bond Insurance Policy and Surety Bond
premiums; administrative expenses of the Council; and legal fees and expenses of counsel to the
Council, bond counsel and counsel to the Bond Insurer and fees of the financial advisor to the
Council; fees of the Program Administrator, any accounting expenses incurred in connection
with determining that the Bonds are not arbitrage bonds, the Trustee’s and the Paying Agent and
Registrar’s initial fees and expenses (including attorney’s fees), upon the submission of
requisitions by the Council signed by an officer of the Council stating the amount to be paid, to
whom it is to be paid and the reason for such payment, and that the amount of such requisition is
justly due and owing and has not been the subject of another requisition which was paid and is a
proper expense of issuing such Bonds. Any monies remaining in the Cost of Issuance Fund on
December 1, 2004 shall be transferred to the Revenue Fund and be credited on a pro rata basis
toward each Borrower’s obligation to pay Loan interest, taking into consideration the discount at
which such Loans were made as specified in Section 3.01 of each Loan Agreement.

SECTION 4.07. Application of Bond Proceeds. The proceeds of the Series 2004 A-
1 Bonds in the sum of $ shall be deposited with the Trustee as follows:

(i) In each Account for the respective Borrowers in the Cost of Issuance Fund,

the total sum of $ , allocated as follows:
(a)
(ii) In the Revenue Fund, the sum of $ , which represents

capitalized interest for the ;
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(i11))  In each Account for the respective Borrowers in the Project Loan Fund, the
total sum of $ , allocated as follows:

(a)  City of Haines City

(b)  City of Oakland Park

(c)  Village of Pinecrest

(d)  City of St. Augustine Beach

The Council understands that $ is being transmitted by the Banc of
America Securities LLC, as Underwriter, directly to Bond Insurer.

SECTION 4.08. Reserve Fund.

(a) The Trustee shall establish a Reserve Fund which shall be funded at closing in an
amount equal to the Reserve Requirement. Such Reserve Fund shall be on a parity with any
reserve fund established by the Council in any other approved series of the Council’s bonds
listed on Annex A to the Surety Bond. If any withdrawal is made under subsection (b)(i) below,
the Council shall pay to the Trustee an amount received from the Borrower pursuant to Section
5.03(c) of the Loan Agreement which is sufficient to repay the principal and interest on the
Surety Bond from such withdrawal within twelve (12) months, commencing on the first day of
the month following such withdrawal, together with any interest or other expenses due from the
Council to the Surety Bond Provider under the Financial Guaranty Agreement. The Surety Bond
shall be payable to the Trustee on any interest payment or redemption date on which a deficiency
exists which cannot be cured by funds in any other Fund or Account held pursuant to this
Indenture and available for such purpose. If at any time the Reserve Fund contains both a Surety
Bond and cash, the cash shall be drawn down completely before any demand is made on the
Surety Bond. If at any time the Surety Bond is replaced by cash, in whole or in part, prior
written consent of the Bond Insurer will be required.

The Surety Bond shall secure and satisfy the Reserve Requirement and any other reserve
requirement of bonds as listed on Annex A to the Surety Bond. The Trustee may deliver a
Demand for Payment in an amount less than or equal to the limit of the Surety Bond. If a
Demand for Payment is made on behalf of a Borrower which has an outstanding Loan
Agreement relating to the Bonds and other loan agreements relating to the other series of the
Council’s bonds, then the Council’s reimbursement, from the payments received by such
Borrower, to the Surety Bond Provider shall be applied pro-rata to the Reserve Fund and to each
reserve fund which secures such other loans. Further, if the Demand for Payment relates to one
or more reserve funds from more than one series of bonds, and such Demand for Payment
exceeds the limit of the Surety Bond, then the Surety Bond shall be allocated on a pro-rata basis
for each reserve fund from each series and for each Borrower.

The Trustee shall deliver a Demand for Payment in the form attached to the Surety Bond
at least three (3) days prior to the date on which funds are required from the Surety Bond, or as
soon thereafter as the Trustee is aware that funds are required from the Surety Bond. The
Trustee shall be responsible for maintaining records of withdrawals from the Reserve Fund and
the reinstatement thereof. In addition, the Trustee shall be responsible for maintaining records of
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all withdrawals from this Reserve Fund and other reserve funds which are covered by the Surety
Bond.

If a disbursement is made from the Surety Bond, the Council shall reimburse the Surety
Bond Provider as soon as possible, but in any case within one year of any disbursement the
amount of such disbursement. The Trustee is required to reimburse the Surety Bond Provider
with interest until the face amount of the Surety Bond is reinstated before any deposit is made to
the Principal Fund.

(b) Moneys on deposit in the Reserve Fund shall be applied as follows (unless
otherwise provided herein):

(1) On the date of each required payment of principal of or interest in respect
to the Bonds, moneys in the Reserve Fund or received from a draw on the Surety Bond shall be
applied to cure any deficiency in the Principal Fund and the Revenue Fund. The Council agrees
that any transfer from the Reserve Fund to the Principal Fund and the Revenue Fund or any
proceeds from the Surety Bond deposited into such Funds pursuant to this paragraph shall not be
construed as preventing, waiving or curing any nonpayment of any Loan Repayments required
under each Loan Agreement until the amount of such deficiency has been restored; and

(i1) In each month during the twelve-month period preceding the final
maturity date of the Bonds, so long as no Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, if
moneys are then held in the Reserve Fund such moneys shall be credited against the payment of
principal of and interest on the Bonds and shall be transferred to the Principal Fund and the
Revenue Fund for the payment of such principal and interest.

(c) The Council may issue additional bonds and the Reserve Fund may serve as the
reserve fund for such additional bonds or may be combined with the reserve funds for such
additional bonds with the prior written consent of the Bond Insurer; provided however, that such
combined reserve funds shall only be permitted if the Surety Bond is then in effect. The Trustee
is hereby authorized to accept an Alternate Surety Bond with the prior written consent of the
Bond Insurer.

SECTION 4.09. Rebate Fund. In order to insure compliance with the rebate
provisions of Section 148(f) of the Code, the Council shall create the Rebate Fund. Such Fund
shall be held by the Trustee. The Rebate Fund need not be maintained if the Council shall have
received an Opinion of Bond Counsel acceptable to the Council to the effect that failure to
maintain the Rebate Fund or such Account therein shall not adversely affect the exclusion of
interest on the Bonds from gross income for purposes of Federal income taxation. Moneys in the
Rebate Fund shall not be considered moneys held under the Indenture and shall not constitute a
part of the Trust Estate held for the benefit of the Bondholders or the Council. Moneys in the
Rebate Fund (including earnings and deposits therein) shall be held for future payment to the
United States Government as required by the regulations and as set forth in instructions delivered
to the Council upon issuance of the Bonds.

SECTION 4.10. Moneys To Be Held in Trust. With the exception of moneys
deposited in the Rebate Fund, all moneys required to be deposited with or paid to the Trustee for
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the account of any Fund or Account established under any provision of this Indenture shall be
held by the Trustee, in trust, and except for moneys deposited with or paid to the Trustee for the
redemption of Bonds, notice of the redemption of which has been duly given, and except as
otherwise provided in Section 2.10 hereof, shall, while held by the Trustee, constitute part of the
Trust Estate and be subject to the security interest created hereby.

SECTION 4.11. Reports From Trustee. Unless otherwise advised in writing, the
Trustee shall furnish monthly to the Council, the Bond Insurer and to any Borrower, upon
request, on the twentieth (20th) day of the month following the month in which the Bonds are
delivered, and on the twentieth (20th) day of each month thereafter, a report on the status of each
of the Funds and Accounts established under this Article IV which are held by the Trustee,
showing at least the balance in each such Fund or Account as of the first day of the preceding
month, the total of deposits to and the total of disbursements from each such Fund or Account,
the dates of such deposits and disbursements, and the balance in each such Fund or Account on
the last day of the preceding month.

SECTION 4.12. Certain Verifications. The Council, the Trustee and/or the Bond
Insurer from time to time may, but shall have no obligation to, cause a firm of Accountants to
supply the Council, the Trustee and the Bond Insurer with such information as the Council, the
Trustee or the Bond Insurer may request in order to determine in a manner reasonably
satisfactory to the Council, the Trustee and the Bond Insurer all matters relating to (a) the
sufficiency of projected cash flow receipts and disbursements on the Loans and Funds described
herein to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds; (b) the actuarial yields on the Loans and
on the Bonds as the same may relate to any data or conclusions necessary to verify that the
Bonds are not arbitrage bonds within the meaning of Section 148 of the Code; and (c)
calculations related to rebate liability. Payment for costs and expenses incurred in connection
with supplying the foregoing information shall be paid from moneys in the Revenue Fund
pursuant to Section 4.05(3) hereof.
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ARTICLE V
PROJECT LOANS

SECTION 5.01. Terms and Conditions of Loans. The Council will make Loans
to Borrowers in order to (i) finance the acquisition, installation and construction of Projects by
Borrowers and (i1) refund or refinance debt incurred by Borrowers, or reimburse funds
previously expended by Borrowers, to acquire, install and construct Projects, all in accordance
with provisions more fully set forth in the Loan Agreements.

SECTION 5.02. Loan Closing Submission. No Loan shall be made by the
Council unless and until the documents required by Section 4.03 of the Loan Agreements are
submitted to the Council.

SECTION 5.03. Disbursement to Borrowers From Project Loan Fund. The
moneys in the Project Loan Fund shall be applied in accordance with written requisitions
provided to the Trustee by the Borrowers in the form attached to the Loan Agreement. After
initial disbursements for payment of eligible Costs (whether from the Project Loan Fund or other
Bond proceeds), disbursement to or at the direction of the Borrower will be made only if such
Borrower is not then in default under this Indenture or their Loan Agreement or the other Bond
documents and only in accordance with such requisitions.

Except for an initial draw on the date the Bonds are issued and the final draw under the
terms of this Indenture, the Borrower shall not make more than two (2) requests for a
construction or project draw per calendar month. Each draw request must be received by the
Trustee at least four (4) days prior to the date the requested draw is to be made. The draw dates
upon which funds may be released pursuant to the written request shall be on the first Business
Day of the month and the second Business Day of the month following the 15" day of the month.

Each draw request by the Borrower shall constitute an affirmation that the material
warranties and representations contained in this Indenture and the Loan Agreement remain true
and correct and that no breach of the covenants contained in this Indenture or the Loan
Agreement has occurred as of the date of the draw, and the Trustee shall be entitled to
exclusively rely on such representation and shall be fully indemnified by the Borrower from any
liability resulting from such reliance, and shall have no liability to any other party, unless the
Trustee is notified in writing to the contrary prior to the disbursement of the requested Project
Loan Fund draw.

All requisitions received by the Trustee shall be substantially in the form attached to the
Loan Agreement as Exhibit E, as required in this Article as conditions of payment from the
Project Loan Fund, shall be conclusively relied upon by the Trustee as to the matters set forth
therein and shall be retained in the possession of the Trustee, subject at all times to the inspection
by the Council, the Borrowers and their agents and representatives thereof.
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ARTICLE VI
SERVICING OF LOANS

The Trustee shall be responsible for calculating payments due in respect of the Loans,
holding collateral pledged in respect of the Loans, if any, and enforcing the Loans; provided,
however, that the Trustee shall have no duty to take notice of any default in respect of any Loan
(other than a payment default) unless the Trustee shall be notified of such default in a written
instrument.
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ARTICLE VII
INVESTMENT OF MONEYS

Moneys in any of the Funds and Accounts shall be invested by the Trustee, at the
direction of the Council through its Program Administrator, which direction may be in writing or
telephonically, promptly confirmed in writing. The Trustee shall assume that any investment
directed by the Council or any Borrower is lawful.

Moneys in the Funds and Accounts shall be invested at the direction of the Council
through its Program Administrator in Investment Securities with respect to which payments of
principal thereof and interest thereon are scheduled or otherwise payable not later than the dates
on which it is estimated that such moneys will be required by the Trustee for the purposes
specified in this Indenture. Investment Securities acquired pursuant to this Section under a
repurchase agreement with the seller thereof may be deemed to mature on the dates on and in the
amounts (i.e., for the repurchase price) which the Trustee may deliver such Investment Securities
to such seller for repurchase under such agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Loan
Repayments may not be invested in investments described under Section 1.01 hereof,
“Investment Securities” sections L, M and N.

Investment Securities acquired as an investment of moneys in any Fund or Account shall
be credited to such Fund or Account. For the purpose of determining the amount in any Fund or
Account, all Investment Securities credited to any such Fund or Account shall be valued at
market value on the date of determination; provided, however, that repurchase agreements shall
be valued at the aggregate repurchase price of the securities remaining to be repurchased
pursuant to such agreements and investment agreements shall be valued at the aggregate amount
remaining invested therein (in each case exclusive of accrued interest after the first payment of
interest following purchase). With respect to all Funds and Accounts, valuation shall occur
annually and immediately upon a withdrawal from the Reserve Fund.

All interest, profits and other income earned from investment (other than in Loans) of all
moneys in any Fund or Account (except the Rebate Fund and the Project Loan Fund) shall be
deposited when received in the Revenue Fund, except that an amount of interest received with
respect to any Investment Security equal to the amount of accrued interest, if any, paid as part of
the purchase price of such Investment Security shall be credited to the Fund or Account from
which such accrued interest was paid. Interest earned on the Accounts in the Project Loan Fund
shall be credited to such Account.

Subject to Section 13.08 hereof and except as provided herein, investments in any and all
Funds and Accounts may be commingled for purposes of making, holding and disposing of
investments, notwithstanding provisions herein for transfer to or holding in particular Funds and
Accounts of amounts received or held by the Trustee hereunder, provided that, notwithstanding
any such commingling, the Trustee shall at all times account for such investments strictly in
accordance with the Funds and Accounts to which they are credited and otherwise as provided in
this Indenture. The Trustee may act as principal or agent in the acquisition or disposition of
Investment Securities. The Trustee may sell, or present for redemption, any Investment
Securities so purchased whenever it shall be necessary in order to provide moneys to meet any

C-35



required payment, transfer, withdrawal or disbursement from the Fund or Account to which such
Investment Security is credited, and the Trustee shall not be liable or responsible for any loss
resulting from any investment made pursuant to this Article VII.

All amounts representing accrued and capitalized interest, if any, shall be invested at the
written direction of the Council through its Program Administrator only in Government
Obligations maturing at such times, and in such amounts as are necessary to match the interest
payments on the Bonds.
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ARTICLE VIII
DISCHARGE OF INDENTURE

If the Council shall pay or cause to be paid (other than by the Bond Insurer) to the Owner
of any Bond secured hereby the principal of and interest due and payable, and thereafter to
become due and payable, upon such Bond, or any portion of such Bond in the principal amount
of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, such Bond or portion thereof shall cease to be entitled
to any lien, benefit or security under this Indenture. If the Council shall pay or cause to be paid
(other than by the Bond Insurer) to the Owners of all the Bonds secured hereby the principal of
and interest due and payable, and thereafter to become due and payable thereon, and shall pay or
cause to be paid (other than by the Bond Insurer) all other sums payable hereunder or the
Financial Guaranty Agreement by the Council, then, and in that case, the right, title and interest
of the Trustee in the related Trust Estate shall thereupon cease, terminate and become void. In
such event, the Trustee shall assign, transfer and turn over to the Council the Trust Estate and, at
the direction of the Council, cancel any outstanding Loans related to the Bonds; provided that if
the Bonds are paid from the proceeds of refunding bonds, the Loans shall at the direction of the
Council not be canceled but shall be transferred and pledged as security and a source of payment
for the refunding bonds.

Notwithstanding the release and discharge of the lien of this Indenture as provided above,
those provisions of this Indenture relating to the maturity of the Bonds, interest payments and
dates thereof, exchange and transfer of Bonds, replacement of mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen
Bonds, the safekeeping and cancellation of Bonds, nonpresentment of Bonds, the holding of
moneys in trust, and the duties of the Trustee in connection with all of the foregoing, remain in
effect and shall be binding upon the Trustee and the Bondholder.

Any Bond shall be deemed to be paid within the meaning of this Article and for all
purposes of this Indenture when (a) payment of the principal of and premium, if any, on such
Bond, plus interest thereon to the due date thereof (whether such due date is by reason of
maturity or upon redemption as provided herein), either (i) shall have been made or caused to be
made (other than by the Bond Insurer) in accordance with the terms thereof, or (ii) shall have
been provided for (other than by the Bond Insurer) by irrevocably depositing with the Trustee in
trust and irrevocably setting aside exclusively for such payment (1) moneys sufficient to make
such payment and/or (2) Governmental Obligations maturing as to principal and interest in such
amounts and at such time as will insure the availability of sufficient moneys to make such
payment, and (b) all necessary and proper fees, compensation and expenses of the Trustee, the
Council and the Bond Insurer pertaining to the Bonds with respect to which such deposit is made
shall have been paid or the payment thereof provided for to the satisfaction of the Trustee. At
such times as a Bond shall be deemed to be paid hereunder, as aforesaid, such Bond shall no
longer be secured by or entitled to the benefits of this Indenture, except for the purposes of any
such payment from such moneys or Governmental Obligations.

Notwithstanding the foregoing paragraph, no deposit under clause (a)(ii)) of the
immediately preceding paragraph shall be deemed a payment of the Bonds as aforesaid (1) until
the Council shall have given the Trustee, in form satisfactory to the Trustee, irrevocable
instructions:
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(1) stating the date when the principal of each such Bond is to be paid,
whether at maturity or on a redemption date (which shall be any redemption date permitted by
this Indenture);

(i)  to call for redemption pursuant to this Indenture any Bonds to be
redeemed prior to maturity pursuant to (i) hereof; and

(111)  if all the Bonds are not to be redeemed within 30 days, to mail, as soon as
practicable, in the manner prescribed by Article III hereof, a notice to the Owners of the Bonds
that the deposit required by (a)(ii) above has been made with the Trustee and that said Bonds are
deemed to have been paid in accordance with this Article and stating the maturity or redemption
date upon which moneys are to be available for the payment of the principal or redemption price,
if applicable, of the Bonds as specified in (i) hereof; and

2) if any Bonds are to be redeemed within the next 30 days, until proper notice of
redemption of those Bonds has been given.

Any moneys so deposited with the Trustee as provided in the two foregoing paragraphs
may at the direction of the Council also be invested and reinvested in Governmental Obligations
described in clause (i) of the definition thereof, maturing in the amounts and at the times as
hereinbefore set forth, and all income from all such Governmental Obligations in the hands of
the Trustee pursuant to this Article which is not required for the payment of the Bonds and
interest thereon with respect to which such moneys shall have been so deposited, shall be paid to
the Council as and when realized if not needed to pay any fees or expenses provided for
hereunder.

No deposit under this Article shall be made or accepted hereunder and no use made of
any such deposit unless the Trustee shall have received an Opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect
that such deposit and use would not cause the Bonds to be treated as arbitrage bonds within the
meaning of Section 148 of the Code.

Notwithstanding any provision of any other Article of this Indenture which may be
contrary to the provisions of this Article, all moneys or Governmental Obligations set aside and
held in trust pursuant to the provisions of this Article for the payment of Bonds (including
interest thereon) shall be applied to and used solely for the payment of the particular Bonds
(including interest thereon) with respect to which such moneys or obligations have been so set
aside in trust.

Anything in Article XI hereof to the contrary notwithstanding, if moneys or obligations
have been deposited or set aside with the Trustee pursuant to this Article for the payment of
Bonds and interest thereon when due and such Bonds and interest shall not have in fact been
actually paid in full when due, no amendment to the provisions of this Article shall be made
without the consent of the Owner of each Bond affected thereby.

Anything to the contrary provided elsewhere in this Indenture notwithstanding, this
Indenture shall not be discharged as long as any amounts are owing to the Bond Insurer and no
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Bond shall be deemed paid under this Indenture if the Bond Insurer shall have made any
payment under the Bond Insurance Policy or Surety Bond in respect of the principal of or interest
on such Bond until the amount of such principal or interest, together with interest thereon
provided for herein and in the Bonds on past-due principal and interest, shall have been paid to
the Bond Insurer. Furthermore, if the discharge of the Indenture is based upon, or utilizes a
forward supply contract, the Insurer’s prior written consent must be received before the
Indenture shall be discharged by the Trustee.

Prior to any defeasance becoming effective under this Indenture, (i) the Bond Insurer
shall have received an opinion of Counsel, satisfactory to the Bond Insurer, to the effect that the
proceeds of any deposit to effectuate such defeasance shall not constitute a voidable preference
in a case commenced under the Federal Bankruptcy Code by or against the Council or any
applicable Borrower, (ii) the amounts required to be deposited in an escrow fund pursuant to this
Indenture and the escrow deposit agreement entered into in order to effectuate such defeasance
shall be invested only in Government Obligations and (iii) the Bond Insurer shall have received
(a) the final official statement delivered in connection with the refunding bonds, (b) a copy of the
accountant’s verification report, (¢) a copy of the escrow deposit agreement in form and
substance acceptable to the Bond Insurer, (d) a copy of an opinion of Bond Counsel, dated the
date of closing addressed to the Bond Insurer, to the effect that the refunded bonds have been
paid within the meaning and with the effect expressed in the Indenture, and the covenants,
agreements and other obligations of the Council to the holders of the refunded bonds have been
discharged and satisfied. The opinion required by (i) above may be waived in the discretion of
the Bond Insurer at the time of such defeasance.
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ARTICLE IX

DEFAULT PROVISIONS AND REMEDIES OF
TRUSTEE AND BONDHOLDERS

SECTION 9.01. Defaults; Events of Default. If any of the following events occurs
with respect to the Bonds, it is hereby defined as and declared to be and to constitute an “Event
of Default” with respect to the Bonds:

(a) Default in the payment of the principal of or interest on any Bond after the same
has become due, whether at maturity or upon call for redemption.

(b) Default in the performance or observance of any covenant, agreement or
condition on the part of the Council contained in this Indenture or in the Bonds (other than
defaults mentioned in Section 9.01(a) and (c)) and failure to remedy the same after notice of the
default pursuant to Section 9.10 hereof.

(©) If the Council shall file a petition seeking a composition of indebtedness under the
federal bankruptcy laws, or under any other applicable law or statute of the United States of
America or of the State, or the Council declares any act of bankruptcy, or there is adjudication of
the Council as a bankrupt, or an assignment by the Council for the benefit of its creditors or the
approval by a court of competent jurisdiction of a petition applicable to the Council in any
proceeding for its reorganization instituted under federal bankruptcy laws, or under any other
applicable law or statute of the United States of America or of the State.

SECTION 9.02. Remedies; Rights of Bondholders. Upon the occurrence of an
Event of Default with respect to the Bonds, the Trustee shall have the following rights and
remedies:

(a) Subject to Bond Insurer approval, the Trustee may, and in the case of Event of
Default under Section 9.01(c) above shall, pursue any available remedy at law or in equity or by
statute, including the federal bankruptcy laws or other applicable law or statute of the United
States of America or of the State, to enforce the payment of principal of and interest on the
Bonds then Outstanding, including enforcement of any rights of the Council or the Trustee under
the related Loan Agreements.

(b) Subject to Bond Insurer approval, the Trustee may by action or suit in equity
require the Council to account as if it were the trustee of an express trust for the Owners of the
Bonds and may then take such action with respect to the related Loan Agreements as the Trustee
shall deem necessary or appropriate and in the best interest of the Bondholders, subject to the
terms of the related Loan Agreements, including the sale of part or all of the related Loan
Agreements.

(©) Upon the filing of a suit or other commencement of judicial proceedings to

enforce any rights of the Trustee and of the Bondholders under this Indenture, the Trustee shall
be entitled, as a matter of right, to the appointment of a receiver or receivers of the related Trust
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Estate and of the Revenues, issues, earnings, income, products and profits thereof, pending such
proceedings, with such powers as the court making such appointment shall confer.

(d) The Trustee shall give written notice of any Event of Default to the Council and
the Bond Insurer as promptly as practicable after the occurrence of an Event of Default becomes
known to the Trustee. If an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, the Bond Insurer
shall, subject to the provisions in the following sentence, have the right to direct the Trustee to
declare immediately due and payable the principal amount of the Outstanding Bonds, provided
that as a condition to such direction of acceleration the Bond Insurer shall have deposited
Insurance Proceeds with the Trustee in an amount equal to principal of and interest accrued and
to accrue (to a date not less than 30 days following the Bond Insurer’s notice of direction to the
Trustee of acceleration) on the Bonds Outstanding which are due as a result of such acceleration.
NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING OR ANY PROVISION HEREIN TO THE
CONTRARY, IN THE EVENT AN EVENT OF DEFAULT HAS OCCURRED BECAUSE
OF A DEFAULT UNDER LESS THAN ALL OF THE RELATED LOAN
AGREEMENTS, THE BOND INSURER SHALL ONLY HAVE THE RIGHT TO
DIRECT THE TRUSTEE TO DECLARE IMMEDIATELY DUE AND PAYABLE A
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF THE OUTSTANDING BONDS IN AN AMOUNT EQUAL
TO THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF THE LOAN OR LOANS THEN IN DEFAULT. In
such event, the Bond Insurer shall direct the Trustee as to which of the Outstanding Bonds shall
be declared immediately due and payable. In making such declaration, the Council and the Bond
Insurer may only declare Bonds immediately due and payable which correspond in terms of
amount and scheduled maturity date to the related Loan Repayments. When the Trustee is
directed that payment with respect to such Bonds is to be accelerated by the Bond Insurer
pursuant to this Section and when the Bond Insurer, in connection with acceleration of such
Bonds by the Trustee, shall have elected in its discretion to deposit Insurance Proceeds in an
amount sufficient to pay all amounts of principal and interest due on such Bonds including
principal due by reason of acceleration and has so notified the Trustee, the Trustee shall mail
notice to the registered Owners of such Bonds not less than fifteen days prior to the date (the
“Insurance Payment Date”) to which interest accrued and to accrue on such Bonds has been
provided by the Bond Insurer, which notice shall state the manner in which such Bonds may be
assigned to the Bond Insurer or to an agent or designee thereof in exchange for payment thereon
and shall state that from and after the Insurance Payment Date, interest shall cease to accrue on
such Bonds for the benefit of such registered Owners (provided that an amount equal to such
interest shall continue to accrue on such Bonds assigned to the Bond Insurer as aforesaid).

If an Event of Default shall have occurred, and if requested so to do by the Bond Insurer
or by the owners of 25% or more in aggregate principal amount of Outstanding Bonds and Bond
Insurer and indemnified as provided in Section 10.01(k) hereof, the Trustee shall be obligated to
exercise such one or more of the rights and powers conferred by this Section as the Trustee,
being advised by Counsel, shall deem most expedient in the interests of the Bondholders.

No right or remedy by the terms of this Indenture conferred upon or reserved to the
Trustee (or to the Bondholders or the Bond Insurer) is intended to be exclusive of any other right
or remedy, but each and every such right or remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition
to any other right or remedy given to the Trustee, the Bond Insurer or to the Bondholders
hereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute. The assertion or

C-41



employment of any right or remedy shall not prevent the concurrent or subsequent assertion or
employment of any other right or remedy.

No delay or omission in exercising any right or remedy accruing upon any default or
Event of Default shall impair any such right or remedy or shall be construed to be a waiver of
any such default or Event of Default or acquiescence therein; and every such right or remedy
may be exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient.

No waiver of any default or Event of Default hereunder, whether by the Trustee or by the
Bondholders, shall extend to or shall affect any subsequent default or Event of Default or shall
impair any rights or remedies consequent thereon.

No waiver of any default or Event of Default hereunder by the Trustee shall be effective
without the approval of the Bond Insurer.

SECTION 9.03. Right of Bondholders to Direct Proceedings. Anything in this
Indenture to the contrary notwithstanding, the Bond Insurer (unless the Bond Insurer is in default
under the Bond Insurance Policy) or, with consent of the Bond Insurer (provided such consent
shall not be required if the Bond Insurer is in default under the Bond Insurance Policy), the
Owners of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Outstanding Bonds shall have the
right, at any time during the continuance of an Event of Default, by an instrument or instruments
in writing executed and delivered to the Trustee, to direct the time, method and place of
conducting all proceedings to be taken in connection with the enforcement of the terms and
conditions of this Indenture, or for the appointment of a receiver or any other proceedings
hereunder; provided that such direction shall not be otherwise than in accordance with the
provisions of law and of this Indenture.

SECTION 9.04. Appointment of Receivers. Upon the occurrence of an Event of
Default, and upon the filing of a suit or other commencement of judicial proceedings to enforce
any rights of the Trustee and of the Bondholders under this Indenture, the Trustee shall be
entitled, as a matter of right, to the appointment of a receiver or receivers of the Trust Estate and
of the revenues, issues, earnings, income, products and profits thereof, pending such
proceedings, with such powers as the court making such appointment shall confer.

SECTION 9.05. Application of Moneys. All moneys received by the Trustee
pursuant to any right given or action taken under the provisions of this Article, including by
virtue of action taken under provisions of any Loan Agreement, shall, after payment of the costs
and expenses of the proceedings resulting in the collection of such moneys and of the fees
(including reasonable Trustee’s fees), expenses, liabilities and advances payable to, incurred or
made by the Trustee (including reasonable fees and disbursements of its counsel), be applied,
along with any other moneys available for such purposes, as follows:

(a) Unless the principal of all the Bonds shall have become due and payable, all such
moneys shall be applied:

FIRST -- To the payment to the persons entitled thereto of all amounts payable
pursuant to Section 4.05(1) or Section 4.05(2) and, as to installments of interest, in the
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order of the maturity of the installments of such interest and, if the amount available shall
not be sufficient to pay in full any particular installment of interest, then to the payment
ratably, according to the amounts due on such installment, to the persons entitled thereto,
without any discrimination or privilege;

SECOND -- To the payment to the persons entitled thereto of the unpaid principal
of any of the Bonds which shall have become due at stated maturity or pursuant to a call
for redemption (other than such Bonds called for redemption for the payment of which
moneys are held pursuant to the other provisions of this Indenture), in the order of their
due dates and, if the amount available shall not be sufficient to pay in full Bonds due on
any particular date, then to the payment ratably, according to the amount of principal due
on such date, to the persons entitled thereto without any discrimination or privilege;

THIRD -- To payment to the persons entitled thereto of all amounts payable
pursuant to Sections 4.05(3); and

FOURTH -- To be held as provided in Article IV hereof for the payment to the
persons entitled thereto as the same shall become due of the amounts payable pursuant to
this Indenture (including principal of such Bonds due upon call for redemption) and, if
the amount available shall not be sufficient to pay in full amounts due on any particular
date, payment shall be made ratably according to the priorities set forth in subparagraphs
FIRST, SECOND and THIRD above.

(b) If the principal of all the Bonds shall have become due, all such moneys shall be
applied to the payment of the principal of and interest then due and unpaid upon the Bonds and
amounts payable pursuant to Section 4.05(3), with Bond principal and interest to be paid first,
without preference or priority of principal over interest or of interest over principal, or of any
installment of interest over any other installment of interest, or of any Bond over any other Bond,
ratably, according to the amounts due respectively for principal and interest, and with the items
enumerated in Section 4.05(3) to be paid second to the Persons entitled thereto without any
discrimination or privilege.

Whenever moneys are to be applied pursuant to the provisions of this Section, such
moneys shall be applied at such times, and from time to time, as the Trustee shall determine,
having due regard to the amount of such moneys available for application and the likelihood of
additional moneys becoming available for such application in the future. Whenever the Trustee
shall apply such funds, it shall fix the date (which shall be an Interest Payment Date unless the
Trustee shall deem another date more suitable) upon which such application is to be made and
upon such date interest on the amounts of principal and past-due interest to be paid on such date
shall cease to accrue. Defaulted interest on a Bond shall be payable to the person in whose name
such Bond is registered at the close of business on a Special Record Date for the payment of
defaulted interest established by notice mailed by the Trustee to the registered Owners of Bonds
not more than fifteen (15) days preceding such Special Record Date. Such notice shall be mailed
to the person in whose name the Bonds are registered at the close of business on the fifth (5th)
day preceding the date of mailing. The Trustee shall not be required to make payment of
principal of any Bond to the Owner of such Bond until such Bond shall be presented to the
Trustee for appropriate endorsement or for cancellation if fully paid.
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Whenever all principal of and interest on all Bonds have been paid under the provisions
of this Section and all expenses and charges of the Trustee and the Bond Insurer have been paid,
any balance remaining in the Funds and Accounts shall be transferred to the Council as provided
in Article VIII hereof.

SECTION 9.06. Remedies Vested in Trustee. All rights of action (including the
right to file proof of claims) under this Indenture or under any of the Bonds may be enforced by
the Trustee without the possession of any of the Bonds or the production thereof in any trial or
other proceeding related thereto and any trial or other proceeding related thereto and any such
suit or proceeding instituted by the Trustee shall be brought in its name as Trustee without the
necessity of joining as plaintiffs or defendants any Owners of the Bonds, and any recovery of
judgment shall be for the equal and ratable benefit of the Owners of all the Outstanding Bonds.

SECTION 9.07. Rights and Remedies of Bondholders. No Owner of any Bond or
the Bond Insurer shall have any right to institute any suit, action or proceeding at law or in equity
for the enforcement of this Indenture or for the execution of any trust hereof or for the
appointment of a receiver or any other remedy hereunder, unless (a) a default has occurred, (b)
such default shall have become an Event of Default and the Owners of not less than 25% in
aggregate principal amount of Outstanding Bonds affected thereby, with the consent of the Bond
Insurer, or the Bond Insurer shall have made written request to the Trustee and shall have offered
it reasonable opportunity either to proceed to exercise the powers hereinbefore granted or to
institute such action, suit or proceeding in its own name, (¢) such Owners of Bonds or the Bond
Insurer shall have offered to the Trustee indemnity as provided in Section 10.01(k) hereof, and
(d) the Trustee shall for 60 days after receipt of such request and indemnification fail or refuse to
exercise the rights and remedies hereinbefore granted, or to institute such action, suit or
proceeding in its own name; and such request and offer of indemnity are hereby declared in
every case at the option of the Trustee to be conditions precedent to the execution of the powers
and trusts of this Indenture, and to any action or cause of action for the enforcement of this
Indenture, or for the appointment of a receiver or for any other remedy hereunder; it being
understood and intended that no one or more Owners of the Bonds or the Bond Insurer shall have
any right in any manner whatsoever to affect, disturb or prejudice the lien of this Indenture by
its, his or their action or to enforce any right hereunder except in the manner herein provided,
and that all proceedings at law or in equity shall be instituted, had and maintained in the manner
herein provided and for the equal and ratable benefit of the Owners of all Outstanding Bonds.
However, nothing contained in this Indenture shall affect or impair the right of any Bondholder
to enforce the payment of the principal of and interest on any Bond at and after the maturity or
redemption date of such principal or interest, or the obligation of the Council to pay the principal
of and interest on each of the Bonds issued hereunder to the respective registered Owners thereof
at the time, place, from the source and in the manner in this Indenture and in the Bonds
expressed.

SECTION 9.08. Termination of Proceedings. In case the Trustee or any Owner of
any Bonds or the Bond Insurer shall have proceeded to enforce any right under this Indenture by
the appointment of a receiver or otherwise, and such proceedings shall have been discontinued or
abandoned for any reason, or shall have been determined adversely, then and in every such case
the Council, the Trustee, the Bond Insurer and the Bondholders shall be restored to their former
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positions and rights hereunder, respectively, and with regard to the property herein subject to this
Indenture, and all rights, remedies and powers of the Trustee, the Bond Insurer and Owners of
Bonds shall continue as if no such proceedings had been taken.

SECTION 9.09. Waivers of Events of Default. The Trustee may, with the consent
of the Bond Insurer, at its discretion waive any Event of Default hereunder (other than an Event
of Default specified in 9.01(c) above) and its consequences and may rescind any declaration of
maturity of all the Bonds affected thereby (except an acceleration of maturity of all or a portion
of such Bonds directed by the Bond Insurer) and shall do so upon the written request of the Bond
Insurer or the Owners of (a) more than two-thirds in aggregate principal amount of all
Outstanding Bonds (with the consent of the Bond Insurer, unless the Bond Insurer is in default
under the Bond Insurance Policy) in the case of default in the payment of principal or interest, or
(b) more than one-half in aggregate principal amount of all Outstanding Bonds affected thereby
(with the consent of the Bond Insurer, unless the Bond Insurer is in default under the Bond
Insurance Policy) in the case of any other default; provided, however, that there shall not be
waived (i) any default in the payment of the principal of any such Outstanding Bond at the date
of maturity specified therein or (ii) any default in the payment when due of the interest on any
such Outstanding Bond, unless prior to such waiver all arrears of interest or all arrears of
payments of principal when due, as the case may be, with interest on overdue principal and
interest, and all expenses of the Trustee in connection with such default shall have been paid or
provided for, and in case of any such waiver or rescission, or in case any proceeding taken by the
Trustee on account of any such default shall have been discontinued or abandoned or determined
adversely, then, and in every such case, the Council, the Trustee, the Bond Insurer and the
Bondholders shall be restored to their former positions and rights hereunder, respectively, but no
such waiver or rescission shall extend to any subsequent or other default, or impair any right
consequent thereon. No such waiver shall affect the rights of third parties to payment of
amounts provided for hereunder.

SECTION 9.10. Notice of Defaults Under Section 9.01(b); Opportunity of
Council To Cure Such Defaults. Anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding, no default
under Section 9.01(b) hereof shall constitute an Event of Default until actual notice of such
default by registered or certified mail shall be given to the Council by the Trustee or by the Bond
Insurer or the Owners of not less than 25% in aggregate principal amount of all Outstanding
Bonds and the Council shall have had 30 days after receipt of such notice to correct the default or
cause the default to be corrected, and shall not have corrected the default or caused the default to
be corrected within the applicable period; provided, however, if the default be such that it cannot
be corrected within the applicable period, it shall not constitute an Event of Default if corrective
action is instituted by the Council within the applicable period and diligently pursued until the
default is corrected.

With regard to any alleged default concerning which notice is given to the Council under
the provisions of this Section, the Council hereby grants the Trustee full authority for the account
of the Council to perform any covenant or obligation alleged in said notice to constitute a
default, in the name and stead of the Council with full power to do any and all things and acts to
the same extent that the Council could do and perform any such things and acts and with power
of substitution.
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The Council and the Trustee shall notify the Bond Insurer within five (5) days after each
has received notice or has knowledge of (i) an Event of Default specified in Section 9.01 hereof;
(i1) the withdrawal of amounts on deposit in the Reserve Fund; or (iii) the failure to make any
required deposit to the Principal Fund or the Revenue Fund to pay principal or interest when due.

Any notice that is required to be given to the Bondholders or the Trustee pursuant to this
Indenture or any Supplemental Indenture shall also be provided to the Bond Insurer. All notices
required to be given to the Bond Insurer under this Indenture shall be in writing and shall be sent
by registered or certified mail addressed to the Bond Insurer at the address specified in Section
2.04 hereof.

SECTION 9.11. Bond Insurer to be Deemed Bondholder; Rights of Bond
Insurer. (a) Notwithstanding any provisions of this Indenture to the contrary, unless the Bond
Insurer is in default under the Bond Insurance Policy, the Bond Insurer shall at all times be
deemed the exclusive Owner of all Bonds for all purposes except for the purpose of payment of
the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds prior to the payment by the Bond
Insurer of the principal of and interest on the Bonds. The Bond Insurer shall have the exclusive
right to direct any action or remedy to be undertaken by the Trustee, by the Owners or by any
other party pursuant to this Indenture and the Loan Agreements, and no acceleration of the
Bonds shall be permitted, and no event of default shall be waived, without the Bond Insurer’s
consent. All rights to collect, receive and dispose of such collateral shall be independent of any
rights to effect acceleration of the Bonds.

(b) The Bond Insurer shall be subrogated to any and all of the rights of the Owners of
any and all of the Bonds insured by the Bond Insurer (unless the Bond Insurer is in default under
the Bond Insurance Policy) at all times for the purpose of the execution and delivery of a
Supplemental Indenture or of any amendment, change or modification of the Loan Agreements
or the initiation by Bondholders of any action to be undertaken by the Trustee at the
Bondholder’s request. In addition, the Bond Insurer’s consent to any Supplemental Indenture
and any amendment, change or modification of any Loan Agreement shall be required.

(©) Anything in this Indenture to the contrary notwithstanding, upon the occurrence
and continuance of an event of default as defined herein, the Bond Insurer, unless the Bond
Insurer is in default under the Bond Insurance Policy, shall at all times be deemed the exclusive
owner of all Bonds for all purposes and shall be entitled to control and direct the enforcement of
all rights and remedies granted to the Bondholders for the benefit of the Bondholders under this
Indenture.
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ARTICLE X
THE TRUSTEE

SECTION 10.01.  Acceptance of the Trusts. The Trustee hereby accepts the trusts
imposed upon it by this Indenture, and agrees to perform said trusts, but only upon and subject to
the following express terms and conditions:

(a) The Trustee, prior to the occurrence of an Event of Default and after the curing of
all Events of Default which may have occurred, undertakes to perform such duties and only such
duties as are specifically set forth in this Indenture. In case an Event of Default has occurred
(which has not been cured or waived), the Trustee shall exercise such of the rights and powers
vested in it by this Indenture, and shall use the same degree of care as a prudent man would
exercise or use under the circumstances in the conduct of his own affairs.

(b) The Trustee may execute any of the trusts or powers hereof and perform any of its
duties by or through attorneys, agents, receivers or employees but shall be answerable for the
conduct of the same in accordance with the standard specified above, and shall be entitled to
advice of counsel concerning all matters of trusts hereof and the duties hereunder, and may in all
cases pay such reasonable compensation to all such attorneys, agents, receivers and employees as
may reasonably be employed in connection with the trusts hereof. The Trustee may act upon the
opinion or advice of any attorneys (who may but need not be the attorney or attorneys for the
Council, the Bond Insurer or a Borrower) approved by the Trustee in the exercise of reasonable
care. The Trustee shall not be responsible for any loss or damage resulting from any action or
non-action in good faith in reliance upon such opinion or advice.

(c) The Trustee shall not be responsible for any recital herein, or in the Bonds, or for
the validity of the execution by the Council of this Indenture or of any supplements hereto or
instruments of further assurance, or for the sufficiency of the security for the Bonds issued
hereunder or intended to be secured hereby.

(d) The Trustee shall not be accountable for the use of any Bonds authenticated or
delivered hereunder. The Trustee may become the Owner of Bonds secured hereby with the
same rights which it would have if not the Trustee.

(e) Unless an officer of the corporate trust department of the Trustee shall have actual
knowledge thereof, the Trustee shall not be required to take notice or be deemed to have notice
of any default hereunder except defaults under Section 9.01(a) hereof unless the Trustee shall be
specifically notified in writing of such default by the Council or the Bond Insurer or a court of
law or by any Owner of Bonds. All notices or other instruments required by this Indenture to be
delivered to the Trustee must, in order to be effective, be delivered at the Designated office of
the Trustee and, in the absence of such notice so delivered, the Trustee may conclusively assume
there is no default except as aforesaid. The Trustee shall provide copies of any such notices as
soon as practicable to the Council, Bond Insurer and the Borrowers.

® The Trustee shall be protected in acting upon any notice, request, consent,
certificate, order, affidavit, letter, telegram or other paper or document believed to be genuine

C-47



and correct and to have been signed or sent by the proper person or persons. The Trustee shall
not withhold unreasonably its consent, approval or action to any reasonable request of the
Council. Any action taken by the Trustee pursuant to this Indenture upon the request or
authority or consent of any person who at the time of making such request or giving such
authority or consent is the registered Owner of any Bond, shall be conclusive and binding upon
all future Owners of the same Bond and upon Bonds issued in exchange therefor or in place
thereof.

(2) As to the existence or nonexistence of any fact or as to the sufficiency or validity
of any instrument, paper or proceeding, the Trustee shall be entitled in good faith to rely upon a
certificate signed by an authorized officer of the Council or by an authorized officer of the
Program Administrator as sufficient evidence of the facts therein contained and prior to the
occurrence of a default of which the Trustee has knowledge, or is deemed to have notice
pursuant to Section 10.01(e), shall also be at liberty to accept a similar certificate to the effect
that any particular dealing, transaction or action is necessary or expedient, but may at its
discretion secure such further evidence deemed necessary or advisable, but shall in no case be
bound to secure the same. The Trustee may accept a certificate of an authorized officer of the
Council under its seal to the effect that a resolution in the form therein set forth has been adopted
by the Council as conclusive evidence that such resolution has been duly adopted, and is in full
force and effect.

(h) All moneys received by the Trustee hereunder, until used or applied as herein
provided, shall be held in trust for the purposes for which they were received.

(1) At any and all reasonable times, the Trustee and its duly authorized agents,
attorneys, experts, engineers, accountants and representatives and the Bond Insurer, shall have
the right to inspect any and all of the books, papers and records of the Council pertaining to the
Revenues and receipts under the Loan Agreements and the Bonds, and to take such memoranda
from and in regard thereto as may be desired.

() The Trustee shall not be required to give any bond or surety in respect of the
execution of the said trusts and powers or otherwise in respect of the premises.

(k) Before taking the action referred to in Section 9.02 or 9.07 hereof, the Trustee
may require that satisfactory indemnity be furnished for the reimbursement of all expenses to
which it may be put and to protect it against all liability relating to such action, except liability
which is adjudicated to have resulted from its negligence or willful default.

SECTION 10.02.  Fees, Charges and Expenses of Trustee. The Trustee shall be
entitled to payment and reimbursement for reasonable fees for its services rendered hereunder
and all advances, counsel fees (including in connection with any appeal or bankruptcy
proceedings and other expenses reasonably and necessarily made or incurred by the Trustee) but
solely from moneys available therefor pursuant to Section 4.05 hereof or Section 9.05 hereof and
pursuant to the Loan Agreements.

SECTION 10.03.  Notice to Bondholders if Default Occurs Under Indenture. If
the Trustee becomes aware of an Event of Default, then the Trustee shall promptly give written
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notice thereof by registered or certified mail to the Bond Insurer and by first-class mail to the
Owners of all Outstanding Bonds affected thereby, as shown by the bond registration books.

SECTION 10.04. Intervention by Trustee. In any judicial proceeding to which the
Council is a party and which in the opinion of the Trustee and its counsel has a substantial
bearing on the interests of Owners of the Bonds, the Trustee may intervene on behalf of the
Bondholders, and shall do so if requested in writing by (1) the Bond Insurer, or (ii) the Owners of
at least 25% of the aggregate principal amount of Bonds then Outstanding, with the consent of
the Bond Insurer.

SECTION 10.05. Successor Trustee. Any corporation or association into which the
Trustee may be converted or merged, or with which it may be consolidated, or to which it may
sell or transfer all or substantially all of the bond administration portion of its corporate trust
business, or any corporation or association resulting from any such conversion, sale, merger,
consolidation or transfer to which it is a party, ipso facto shall be and become, to the extent
permitted by law, successor Trustee hereunder and vested with all of the title to the Trust Estate
and all the trusts, powers, discretions, immunities, privileges and all other matters as was its
predecessor, without the execution or filing of any instrument or any further act, deed or
conveyance on the part of any of the parties hereto, anything herein to the contrary
notwithstanding, provided, however, that written notice shall be provided to the Bond Insurer the
Council and the Bondholders.

Any successor Trustee appointed pursuant to this Section or through consolidation, sale,
or merger shall be a trust company or bank in good standing located in or incorporated under the
laws of the State or the United States, duly authorized to exercise trust powers and subject to
examination by federal or state authority, having a reported capital and surplus of not less than
$75,000,000 and acceptable to the Bond Insurer.

SECTION 10.06. Resignation by Trustee. The Trustee and any successor Trustee
may at any time resign from the trusts hereby created by giving sixty (60) days’ written notice by
registered or certified mail to the Council and the Bond Insurer and by first- class mail to the
registered Owner of each Bond, and such resignation shall take effect upon the appointment of a
successor Trustee as hereinafter provided and the acceptance of such appointment by such
successor. No such acceptance shall be effective unless the Bond Insurer has consented in
writing to such appointment.

SECTION 10.07. Removal of Trustee. The Trustee may be removed at any time,
by an instrument or concurrent instruments in writing delivered to the Trustee and to the Council
and signed by the Bond Insurer or the Owners of a majority in aggregate principal amount of all
Bonds then Outstanding, with consent of the Bond Insurer, for any breach of trust set forth
herein, provided, that all amounts owing to the Trustee shall be paid simultaneous with or prior
to such removal.

SECTION 10.08.  Appointment of Successor Trustee. In case the Trustee
hereunder shall resign or be removed, or be dissolved, or shall be in course of dissolution or
liquidation, or otherwise become incapable of acting hereunder, or in case it shall be taken under
the control of any public officer or officers, or of a receiver appointed by a court, a successor
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may be appointed by a resolution of the Council, with the consent of the Bond Insurer, or if the
Council shall not have appointed a successor Trustee, by filing with the Council an instrument or
concurrent instruments in writing signed by Owners of not less than a majority in principal
amount of Bonds outstanding, or by their attorneys in fact, duly authorized. Nevertheless, in
case of such vacancy, the Bond Insurer may appoint a temporary Trustee to fill such vacancy
until a successor to the Trustee shall be appointed in the manner above prescribed; and any such
temporary Trustee so appointed by the Bond Insurer shall immediately and without further act be
superseded by any Trustee so appointed. Notice of the appointment of a successor Trustee shall
be given by the successor Trustee in the same manner as provided by Section 10.06 hereof with
respect to the resignation of a Trustee. Every such Trustee appointed pursuant to the provisions
of this Section shall be a trust company or bank in good standing having a corporate trust office
in the State, having a reported capital and surplus of not less than $75,000,000 and subject to
examination by federal or State authority, if there be such an institution willing, qualified and
able to accept the trust upon reasonable or customary terms. The Bond Insurer shall be notified
immediately upon the resignation or termination of the Trustee and the appointment of a
successor Trustee.

SECTION 10.09. Concerning Any Successor Trustee. Every successor Trustee
appointed hereunder shall execute, acknowledge and deliver to its or his predecessor and also to
the Council and the Bond Insurer an instrument in writing accepting such appointment
hereunder, and thereupon such successor, without any further act, deed or conveyance, shall
become fully vested with all the estates, properties, rights, powers, trusts, duties and obligations
of its predecessors; but such predecessor shall, nevertheless, on the written request of the
Council, or of the successor Trustee, execute and deliver an instrument transferring to such
successor Trustee all the estates, properties, rights, powers and trusts of such predecessor
hereunder; and every predecessor Trustee shall deliver all securities, moneys, documents and
other property held by it as the Trustee hereunder to its or his successor hereunder. Should any
instrument in writing from the Council be required by any successor Trustee for more fully and
certainly vesting in such successor the estate, rights, powers and duties hereby vested or intended
to be vested in the predecessor, any and all such instruments in writing shall, on request, be
executed, acknowledged and delivered by the Council. The resignation of any Trustee and the
instrument or instruments removing any Trustee and appointing a successor hereunder, together
with all other instruments provided for in this Article, shall be filed or recorded by the successor
Trustee in each recording office where this Indenture shall have been filed or recorded. Such
successor Trustee shall give notice of such successors to Fitch and S&P.

SECTION 10.10.  Preservation and Inspection of Documents. All documents
received by the Trustee under the provisions of the Indenture shall be retained in its possession
and shall be subject at all reasonable times to the inspection of the Council and the Bond Insurer,
at reasonable hours and under reasonable conditions.

SECTION 10.11. [Reserved]
SECTION 10.12.  Paying Agent. The Council hereby appoints the Trustee as Paying
Agent. The Council may, with the approval of the Trustee and the Bond Insurer appoint

additional Paying Agents for the Bonds. Each Paying Agent shall designate to the Council and
the Trustee its principal office and signify its acceptance of the duties and obligations imposed
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upon it hereunder by a written instrument of acceptance delivered to the Council under which
such Paying Agent will agree, particularly:

(a) to hold all sums received by it for the payment of the principal of or interest on
Bonds in trust for the benefit of the Owners of the Bonds until such sums shall be paid to such
Owners of the Bonds or otherwise disposed of as herein provided;

(b) to keep such books and records as shall be consistent with prudent industry
practice, to make such books and records available for inspection by the Council and the Trustee
at all reasonable times; and

(©) upon the request of the Trustee, to forthwith deliver to the Trustee all sums so
held in trust by the Paying Agent.

SECTION 10.13. Registrar. The Council hereby appoints the Trustee as Registrar
for the Bonds. The Registrar shall designate to the Trustee its principal office and signify its
acceptance of the duties imposed upon it hereunder by a written instrument of acceptance
delivered to the Council and the Trustee under which such Registrar will agree, particularly, to
keep such books and records as shall be consistent with prudent industry practice and to make
such books and records available for inspection by the Council and the Trustee at all reasonable
times.

The Council shall cooperate with the Trustee to cause the necessary arrangements to be
made and to be thereafter continued whereby Bonds, executed by the Council and authenticated
by the Registrar or any authenticating agent, shall be made available for exchange, registration
and registration of transfer at the principal office of the Registrar. The Council shall cooperate
with the Trustee to cause the necessary agreements to be made and thereafter continued whereby
the Registrar shall be furnished such records and other information at such times as shall be
required to enable the Registrar to perform the duties and obligations imposed upon it hereunder.

SECTION 10.14.  Effect on Bondholders of Certain Actions. Notwithstanding any
other provision of this Indenture, in determining whether the rights of the Bondholders will be
adversely affected by any action taken pursuant to the terms and provisions of this Indenture, the
Trustee or Paying Agent shall consider the effect on the Bondholders as if there were no Bond
Insurance Policy.
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ARTICLE XI
SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURES

SECTION 11.01. Supplemental Indentures Not Requiring Consent of
Bondholders. The Council and the Trustee may, without the consent of or notice to any of the
Bondholders but only with the consent of the Bond Insurer, enter into any indenture or
indentures supplemental to this Indenture for any one or more of the following purposes:

(a) To cure or correct any ambiguity or omission or formal defect in this Indenture;

(b) To grant to or confer upon the Trustee for the benefit of the Bondholders any
additional benefits, rights, remedies, powers or authorities that may lawfully be granted to or
conferred upon the Bondholders or the Trustee, or to make any change which, in the judgment of
the Trustee, is not to the material prejudice of the Bondholders;

(c) To subject to this Indenture additional revenues, properties or collateral;

(d) To modify, amend or supplement this Indenture or any indenture supplemental
hereto in such manner as to permit the qualification hereof and thereof under the Trust Indenture
Act of 1939 or any similar federal statute hereafter in effect or to permit the qualification of the
Bonds for sale under the securities laws of the United States of America or of any of the states of
the United States of America, and, if they so determine, to add to this Indenture or any indenture
supplemental hereto such other terms, conditions and provisions as may be permitted by said
Trust Indenture Act of 1939 or similar federal statute; or

(e) To change or evidence or give effect to the delivery of an Alternate Surety Bond.

SECTION 11.02. Supplemental Indentures Requiring Consent of Bondholders.
Exclusive of supplemental indentures covered by Section 11.01 hereof and subject to the terms
and provisions contained in this Section, and not otherwise, the Bond Insurer and the Owners of
not less than two-thirds in aggregate principal amount of the Outstanding Bonds affected thereby
shall have the right, from time to time, to consent to and approve the execution by the Council
and the Trustee of such other indenture or indentures supplemental hereto as shall be deemed
necessary and desirable by the Trustee for the purpose of modifying, altering, amending, adding
to or rescinding, in any particular, any of the terms or provisions contained in this Indenture or in
any supplemental indenture; provided, however, that nothing in this Section contained shall
permit, or be construed as permitting (1) without the consent of the Owners of all then
Outstanding Bonds affected thereby, of (a) an extension of the maturity date of the principal of
or the interest on any Bond, or (b) a reduction in the principal amount of any Bond or the rate of
interest thereon, or (c) a privilege or priority of any Bond or Bonds over any other Bond or
Bonds, or (d) a reduction in the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds required for consent to
such supplemental indenture, or (e) except to the extent necessary to implement Section 4.08(c)
hereof, the creation of any lien hereunder other than a lien ratably securing all of the Bonds at
any time Outstanding hereunder, or (2) any modification of the trusts, powers, rights, obligations,
duties, remedies, immunities and privileges of the Trustee without the written consent of the
Trustee.
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If at any time the Council shall request the Trustee to enter into any such supplemental
indenture for any of the purposes of this Section, the Trustee shall, upon being satisfactorily
indemnified with respect to expenses, cause notice of the proposed execution of such
supplemental indenture to be mailed by registered or certified mail to each Owner of a Bond
affected thereby at the address shown on the registration books. Such notice shall briefly set
forth the nature of the proposed supplemental indenture and shall state that copies thereof are on
file at the principal corporate trust office of the Trustee for inspection by all Bondholders. If,
within sixty (60) days, or such longer period as shall be prescribed by the Council, following the
mailing of such notice, the Owners of not less than two-thirds in aggregate principal amount of
the Outstanding Bonds affected thereby at the time of the execution of any such supplemental
indenture shall have consented to and approved the execution thereof as herein provided, no
Owner of any Bond shall have any right to object to any of the terms and provisions contained
therein, or the operation thereof, or in any manner to question the propriety of the execution
thereof, or to enjoin or restrain the Trustee or the Council from executing the same or from
taking any action pursuant to the provisions thereof. Upon the execution of any such
supplemental indenture as in this Section permitted and provided, this Indenture shall be and be
deemed to be modified and amended in accordance therewith.

Notwithstanding the foregoing or any other provisions to the contrary, for as long as the
Bond Insurance Policy remains in full force and effect, consent and approval by the Bond Insurer
shall constitute the required consent and approval of the Owners of the Bonds, provided,
however, that in no event shall the Bond Insurer’s consent to the actions listed in subsection
(1)(a) through (e) of this Section 11.02 constitute consent of the Owners.

SECTION 11.03.  Notice to S&P and Fitch. The Trustee shall give notice to the

Bond Insurer, S&P and Fitch of any supplemental indentures or any amendments to any Loan
Agreement.
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ARTICLE XII
AMENDMENT OF LOAN AGREEMENTS

SECTION 12.01. Amendments, Etc., Not Requiring Consent of Bondholders.
The Council and the Trustee may, without the consent of or notice to the Bondholders, but only
with the consent of the Bond Insurer, consent to any amendment, change or modification of any
Loan Agreement that may be required (a) by the provisions of such Loan Agreement or to
conform to the provisions of this Indenture, (b) for the purpose of curing any ambiguity or
inconsistency or formal defect or omission, (c) so as to add additional rights acquired in
accordance with the provisions of such Loan Agreement, (d) in connection with any other
change therein which, in the judgment of the Trustee, is not to the material prejudice of the
Trustee or the Owners of the Bonds, or (e) in connection with the delivery of an Alternate Surety
Bond.

SECTION 12.02. Amendments, Etc., Requiring Consent of Bondholders. Except
for amendments, changes or modifications provided for in Section 12.01 hereof, neither the
Council nor the Trustee shall consent to any amendment, change or modification of any Loan
Agreement without the mailing of notice and the written approval or consent of the Bond Insurer
and Owners of not less than two-thirds in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds at the time
Outstanding given and procured as in this Section provided. If at any time the Council and a
Borrower shall request the consent of the Trustee to any such proposed amendment, change or
modification of a Loan Agreement, the Trustee shall, upon being satisfactorily indemnified with
respect to expenses, cause notice of such proposed amendment, change or modification to be
mailed in the same manner as provided by Section 11.02 hereof with respect to supplemental
indentures. Such notice shall briefly set forth the nature of such proposed amendment, change or
modification and shall state that copies of the instrument embodying the same are on file with the
Trustee for inspection by all Bondholders. Nothing contained in this Section shall permit, or be
construed as permitting, a reduction of the aggregate principal amount of Bonds the Owners of
which are required to consent to any amendment, change or modification of a Loan Agreement, a
reduction in, or a postponement of, the payments under any Loan Agreement or any changes that
affect the exclusion of interest on the Bonds from the gross income of the Holders thereof for
purposes of Federal income taxation, without the consent of the Owners of all of the Bonds then
Outstanding.

Notwithstanding the foregoing or any other provisions to the contrary, for as long as the
Bond Insurance remains in full force and effect, consent and approval by the Bond Insurer shall
constitute the required consent and approval of the Owners of the Bonds, provided, however, that
the Bond Insurer shall not be entitled to consent to a reduction in, or postponement of, the
payment due the Bondholders or any change that affects the exclusion of interest on the Bonds
from gross income of the Holders thereof for purposes of Federal income taxation.

Nothing contained in this Section shall be construed to prevent the Trustee, with the
consent of the Council and the Bond Insurer, from settling a default under any Loan Agreement
on such terms as the Trustee may determine to be in the best interests of the Owners of the
Bonds.

C-54



ARTICLE XIII
GENERAL COVENANTS

SECTION 13.01.  Payment of Principal and Interest. The Council covenants that
it will promptly pay the principal of and interest on every Bond issued under this Indenture at the
place, on the dates and in the manner provided herein and in said Bonds according to the true
intent and meaning thereof, provided that the principal and interest are payable by the Council
solely from the Trust Estate as provided in this Indenture, and nothing in the Bonds or this
Indenture shall be considered as assigning or pledging any other funds or assets of the Council
other than such Trust Estate.

SECTION 13.02. Performance of Covenants; the Council. The Council covenants
that it will faithfully perform at all times any and all covenants, undertakings, stipulations and
provisions contained in this Indenture, in any and every Bond executed, authenticated and
delivered hereunder and in all of its proceedings pertaining hereto. The Council covenants that it
is duly authorized under the Constitution and laws of the State, including particularly the Act, to
issue the Bonds authorized hereby and to execute this Indenture, to execute and deliver Loan
Agreements, to assign the Loan Agreements and collateral documents and amounts payable
thereunder, and to pledge the Revenues and any other property hereby pledged in the manner and
to the extent herein set forth; that all action on its part for the issuance of the Bonds and the
execution and delivery of this Indenture has been duly and effectively taken, and that the Bonds
in the hands of the Owners thereof are and will be valid and enforceable obligations of the
Council according to the terms thereof and hereof.

SECTION 13.03.  Instruments of Further Assurance. The Council agrees that the
Trustee may defend its rights to the payments of the Revenues for the benefit of the Owners of
the Bonds, against the claims and demands of all persons whomsoever. The Council covenants
that it will do, execute, acknowledge and deliver, or cause to be done, executed, acknowledged
and delivered, such indentures supplemental hereto and such further acts, instruments and
transfers as the Trustee may reasonably require for the better assuring, transferring, pledging,
assigning and confirming unto the Trustee all and singular the rights assigned hereby and the
amounts and other property pledged hereby to the payment of the principal of and interest on the
Bonds. The Council covenants and agrees that, except as provided herein or in the Loan
Agreements, it will not sell, convey, assign, pledge, encumber or otherwise dispose of any part of
the Revenues or the proceeds of the Bonds or its rights under the Loan Agreements.

SECTION 13.04. Rights Under the Loan Agreements. The Loan Agreements, the
form of which has been filed with the Trustee and duly executed counterparts of each of which
will be retained by the Trustee, as required by Section 13.06 hereof, set forth the covenants and
obligations of the Council and the Borrowers, including provisions that the Loan Agreements
may not be effectively amended without the concurring written consent of the Trustee, as
provided in Article XII hereof, and reference is hereby made to the Loan Agreements for a
detailed statement of said covenants and obligations of the Borrowers under the Loan
Agreements, and the Council agrees that the Trustee in its name or to the extent permitted by
law, in the name of the Council, may enforce all rights of the Council and all obligations of the
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Borrowers under the Loan Agreements (and waive the same except for rights expressly granted
to the Council) on behalf of the Bondholders whether or not the Council is in default hereunder.

SECTION 13.05.  Possession and Inspection of Loan Agreements. The Trustee
shall retain possession of an executed copy of each Loan Agreement to which it is a party or in
which it has an interest and release them only in accordance with the provisions of this
Indenture. The Council and the Trustee covenant and agree that all books and documents in their
possession relating to the Loan Agreements and to the distribution of proceeds thereof shall at all
times be open to inspection by such accountants or other agencies or persons as the other party or
the Bond Insurer may from time to time designate.

SECTION 13.06.  Provision of Documents to Bondholders. If any Bondholder
shall request of the Council or Trustee a copy of the Indenture, the Bond Insurance Policy or any
Loan Agreement, the Trustee shall, at the expense of the Bondholder, provide such Bondholder
with a photocopy or other copy of any such document requested.

SECTION 13.07. Tax Covenants.

(a) The Council shall not use or permit the use of any proceeds of the Bonds or any
other funds of the Council, and the Trustee shall not knowingly use or permit the use of any
proceeds of the Bonds or any other funds of the Council held by the Trustee, directly or
indirectly, to acquire any securities or obligations, and shall not knowingly use or permit the use
of any amounts received by the Council or Trustee with respect to the Loan Agreements in any
manner, and shall not take or permit to be taken any other action or actions, which would cause
any Bond to be an “arbitrage bond” within the meaning of Section 148, or “federally guaranteed”
within the meaning of the Code. If at any time the Council is of the opinion that for purposes of
this subsection (a) it is necessary to restrict or limit the yield on or change in any way the
investment of any moneys held by the Trustee under this Indenture, the Council shall so instruct
the Trustee in writing, and the Trustee shall take such action as may be necessary in accordance
with such instructions.

(b) The Council shall not use or permit the use of any proceeds of Bonds or any other
funds of the Council, and the Trustee shall not knowingly use or permit the use of any proceeds
of the Bonds or any other funds of the Council held by the Trustee, directly or indirectly, in any
manner, and shall not take or permit to be taken any other action or actions, which would result
in any of the Bonds being treated as a “private activity bond,” as defined in Section 141 of the
Code.

(©) The Council and the Trustee (if directed by the Council) shall at all times do and
perform all acts and things permitted by law and this Indenture which are necessary or desirable
in order to assure that interest paid on the Bonds will be excluded from gross income for
purposes of Federal income taxation and shall take no action that would result in such interest
not being excluded from Federal gross income.

(d) The Council covenants that it will maintain adequate accounting records, and
rebate investment income from the investment of proceeds of the Bonds to the United States
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Treasury within the time allowed and in the manner specified by the Code and regulations and
will otherwise comply with such laws and regulations.

SECTION 13.08. Security Interest.

(a) This Indenture creates a valid and binding assignment of, lien on and security
interest in the Trust Estate in favor of the Trustee as security of payment of the Bonds,
enforceable by the Trustee in accordance with the terms hereof.

(b) The Council has not heretofore made a pledge of, granted a lien on or security
interest in, or made an assignment or sale of such collateral that ranks on a parity with (except
the Reserve Fund) or prior to the lien, security interest or assignment granted hereby. The
Council has not described such collateral in a Uniform Commercial Code financing statement.
The Council shall not hereafter make or suffer to exist any pledge or assignment of, lien on, or
security interest in such collateral that ranks prior to or on a parity with (except the Reserve
Fund) the assignment, lien, or security interest granted hereby, or file any financing statement
describing any such pledge, assignment, lien or security interest, except as expressly permitted
hereby.
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ARTICLE XIV
MISCELLANEOUS

SECTION 14.01. Consents, etc., of Bondholders. Any consent, request, direction,
approval, objection or other instrument required by this Indenture to be signed and executed by
the Bondholders may be in any number of concurrent writings of similar tenor and may be
signed or executed by such Bondholders in person or by agent appointed in writing. Proof of the
execution of any such consent, request, direction, approval, objection or other instrument or of
the writing appointing any such agent and of the ownership of Bonds, if made in the following
manner, shall be sufficient for any of the purposes of this Indenture, and shall be conclusive in
favor of the Council, the Trustee and any subsequent Owners of the Bonds with regard to any
action taken by it under such request or other instrument, namely:

(a) The fact and date of the execution by any person of any such writing may be
proved by the certificate of any officer in any jurisdiction who by law has power to take
acknowledgments within such jurisdiction that the person signing such writing acknowledged
before him the execution thereof, or by an affidavit of any witness to such execution.

(b) The fact of ownership of Bonds and the amount or amounts, numbers and other
identification of Bonds, and the date of owning the same shall be proved by the registration
books of the Council maintained by the Registrar pursuant to Section 2.07 hereof.

SECTION 14.02.  Limitation of Rights. With the exception of rights herein
expressly conferred or as otherwise provided herein, nothing expressed or mentioned in or to be
implied from this Indenture or the Bonds is intended or shall be construed to give to any person
or company other than the parties hereto and the owners of the Bonds, any legal or equitable
right, remedy or claim under or in respect to this Indenture or any covenants, conditions and
provisions herein contained; this Indenture and all of the covenants, conditions and provisions
hereof being intended to be and being for the sole and exclusive benefit of the parties hereto and
the Owners of the Bonds as herein provided. The Bond Insurer is recognized as a third-party
beneficiary hereunder and may enforce any such right, remedy or claim conferred, given or
granted hereunder.

SECTION 14.03.  The Bond Insurer. All provisions in this Indenture regarding
consents, approvals, directions, appointments or requests by the Bond Insurer shall be deemed to
not require or permit such consents, directions, appointments or requests by the Bond Insurer and
shall be read as if the Bond Insurer were not mentioned therein during any time in which (a) the
Bond Insurer is in default in its obligation to make payments under the Bond Insurance Policy,
(b) the Bond Insurance Policy shall at any time for any reason cease to be valid and binding on
the Bond Insurer, or shall be declared to be null and void by final and conclusive judicial
determination, or the validity or enforceability of any provision thereof is being contested by the
Bond Insurer or any governmental agency or authority, or if the Bond Insurer is denying further
liability or obligation under the Bond Insurance Policy, or (c) a final determination against the
Bond Insurer, under any bankruptcy, reorganization, arrangement, insolvency, readjustment of
debt, dissolution or liquidation law of the State of New York, whether now or hereafter in effect.
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SECTION 14.04.  Severability. If any provision of this Indenture shall be held or
deemed to be or shall, in fact, be illegal, inoperative or unenforceable, the same shall not affect
any other provision or provisions herein contained or render the same invalid, inoperative or
unenforceable to any extent whatever.

SECTION 14.05. Notices. Any notice, request, complaint, demand, communication
or other paper shall be sufficiently given and shall be deemed given when delivered or mailed by
registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, or sent by telegram or telex, addressed to the parties
as follows:

Council: Florida Municipal Loan Council
c/o Florida League of Cities
301 South Bronough Street
Tallahassee, Florida 32301

Bond Insurer: MBIA Insurance Corporation
113 King Street
Armonk, New York 10504

Trustee: Wachovia Bank, National Association
Corporate Trust Department, FL0O122
225 Water Street, 3™ Floor
Jacksonville, Florida 32202
Attention: Stephanie Moore

For purposes of Bonds for transfer, exchange or payment:

Wachovia Bank, National Association
Wachovia Customer Information Center
Corporate Trust Operations

1525 West W.T. Harris Blvd., 3C3
Charlotte, North Carolina 28262-1153

The above parties may, by notice given hereunder, designate any further or different addresses to
which subsequent notices, certificates or other communications shall be sent.

SECTION 14.06. Payments Due on Saturdays, Sundays and Holidays. In any
case where the date of payment of principal of or interest on the Bonds or the date fixed for
redemption of any Bonds shall be a day which is not a Business Day, then payment of interest or
principal shall be made on the succeeding Business Day with the same force and effect as if
made on the interest payment date or the date of maturity or the date fixed for redemption.

SECTION 14.07. Counterparts. This Indenture may be simultaneously executed in

several counterparts, each of which, when so executed and delivered, shall be an original and all
of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument.

C-59



SECTION 14.08.  Applicable Provisions of Law. This Indenture shall be governed
by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State.

SECTION 14.09. Reporting Requirements. The Council will file or cause to be
filed with the Bond Insurer any official statement issued by, or on behalf of, the Council in
connection with the incurrence of any additional indebtedness by such Council.

[End of Form Trust Indenture; Exhibits Intentionally Omitted]
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APPENDIX D

FORM OF COVENANT LOAN AGREEMENT

This Loan Agreement (the “Loan Agreement” or the “Agreement”) dated as of

1, 2004 and entered into between the FLORIDA MUNICIPAL LOAN COUNCIL

(the “Council”), a separate legal entity and public body corporate and politic duly created and

existing under the Constitution and laws of the State of Florida, and [BORROWER] (the
“Borrower”), a duly constituted municipality under the laws of the State of Florida.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority of the hereinafter defined Act, the Council desires
to loan to the Borrower the amount necessary to enable the Borrower to finance, refinance or
reimburse the cost of the Projects, as hereinafter defined, and the Borrower desires to borrow
such amount from the Council subject to the terms and conditions of and for the purposes set
forth in this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Council is a separate legal entity and public body corporate and politic
duly created and existing under the laws of the State of Florida organized and existing under and
by virtue of the Interlocal Agreement among initially, the City of DelLand, Florida, the City of
Rockledge, Florida and the City of Stuart, Florida, as amended and supplemented, together with
the additional governmental entities who become members of the Council, in accordance with
Chapter 163, Part I, Florida Statutes, as amended (the “Interlocal Act”); and

WHEREAS, the Council has determined that there is substantial need within the State for
a financing program (the “Program”) which will provide funds for qualifying projects (the
“Projects”) for the participating Borrowers; and

WHEREAS, the Council is authorized under the Interlocal Act to issue its revenue bonds
to provide funds for such purposes; and

WHEREAS, the Council has determined that the public interest will best be served and
that the purposes of the Interlocal Act can be more advantageously obtained by the Council’s
issuance of revenue bonds in order to loan funds to the Borrowers to finance Projects; and

WHEREAS, the Borrower is authorized under and pursuant to the Act, as amended, to
enter into this Loan Agreement for the purposes set forth herein; and

WHEREAS, the Council and the Borrower have determined that the lending of funds by
the Council to the Borrower pursuant to the terms of this Agreement and that certain Trust
Indenture dated as of 1, 2004, between the Council and the Trustee (as defined
herein) relating to the Bonds (as hereinafter defined), including any amendments and
supplements thereto (the “Indenture”), will assist in the development and maintenance of the
public welfare of the residents of the State and the areas served by the Borrower, and shall serve



a public purpose by improving the health and living conditions, and providing adequate
governmental services, facilities and programs and will promote the most efficient and
economical development of such services, facilities and programs in the State; and

WHEREAS, neither the Council, the Borrower nor the State or any political subdivision
thereof (other than each Borrower to the extent of their obligations under their respective Loan
Agreements only), shall in any way be obligated to pay the principal of, premium, if any, or
interest on those certain revenue bonds of the Council designated “Florida Municipal Loan
Council Revenue Bonds, Series 2004A” (the “Bonds”) as the same shall become due, and the
issuance of the Bonds shall not directly, indirectly or contingently obligate the Borrower, the
State or any political subdivision or municipal corporation thereof to levy or pledge any form of
ad valorem taxation for their payment but shall be payable solely from the funds and revenues
pledged under and pursuant to this Agreement and the Indenture.

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises hereinafter contained, the
parties hereto agree as follows:

ARTICLE I
DEFINITIONS
Unless the context or use indicates another meaning or intent, the following words and
terms as used in this Loan Agreement shall have the following meanings, and any other

hereinafter defined, shall have the meanings as therein defined.

“Accountant” or “Accountants” means an independent certified public accountant or a
firm of independent certified public accountants.

“Accounts” means the accounts created pursuant to Section 4.02 of the Indenture.

“Act” means, collectively, to the extent applicable to the Borrower, Chapter 163, Part I,
Florida Statutes, Chapter 166, Part II, Florida Statutes, and Chapter 125, Part I, as amended, and
all other applicable provisions of law.

“Additional Payments” means payments required by Section 5.03 hereof.

“Alternate Surety Bond” means any letter of credit or surety bond obtained to replace the
Surety Bond then in effect pursuant to the Indenture.

“Alternate Surety Bond Provider” means any provider of an Alternate Surety Bond.
“Arbitrage Regulations” means the income tax regulations promulgated, proposed or

applicable pursuant to Section 148 of the Code as the same may be amended or supplemented or
proposed to be amended or supplemented from time to time.
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“Authorized Representative” means, when used pertaining to the Council, the Chairman
of the Council and such other designated members, agents or representatives as may hereafter be
selected by Council resolution; and, when used with reference to a Borrower which is a
municipality, means the person performing the functions of the Mayor or Deputy, Acting or Vice
Mayor thereof or other officer authorized to exercise the powers and performs the duties of the
Mayor; and, when used with reference to a Borrower which is a County means the person
performing the function of the Chairman or Vice Chairman of the Board of County
Commissioners of such Borrower; and, when used with reference to an act or document, also
means any other person authorized by resolution to perform such act or sign such document.

“Basic Payments” means the payments denominated as such in Section 5.01 hereof.
“Board” means the governing body of the Borrower.

“Bond Counsel” means Bryant Miller & Olive P.A., Tampa, Florida or any other
nationally recognized bond counsel.

“Bondholder” or “Holder” or “holder of Bonds” or “Owner” or “owner of Bonds”
whenever used herein with respect to a Bond, means the person in whose name such Bond is

registered.

“Bond Insurance” means the insurance policy of the Bond Insurer which insures payment
of the principal of and interest on the Bonds when due.

“Bond Insurance Premium” means the premiums payable to the Bond Insurer for the
Bond Insurance.

“Bond Insurer” means MBIA Insurance Corporation and any successors thereto.

“Bonds” means the $ Florida Municipal Loan Council Revenue Bonds, Series
2004 A issued pursuant to Article II of the Indenture.

“Bond Year” means a 12-month period beginning on 2 and ending on and
including the following 1, except for the first period which begins on ,
2004.

“Borrower” means the governmental unit which is described in the first paragraph and on
the cover page of this Loan Agreement and which is borrowing and using the Loan proceeds to
finance, refinance and/or be reimbursed for, all or a portion of the costs of one or more Projects.

“Borrowers” means, collectively, the Borrower executing this Loan Agreement and the

other governmental units which have received loans from the Council made from proceeds of the
Bonds.
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“Business Day” means any day of the year which is not a Saturday or Sunday or a day on
which banking institutions located in New York City or the State are required or authorized to
remain closed or on which the New York Stock Exchange is closed.

“Certificate,” “Statement,” “Request,” “Requisition” and “Order” of the Council mean,
respectively, a written certificate, statement, request, requisition or order signed in the name of
the Council by its Chairman, Program Administrator or such other person as may be designated
and authorized to sign for the Council. Any such instrument and supporting opinions or
representations, if any, may, but need not, be combined in a single instrument with any other
instrument, opinion or representation, and the two or more so combined shall be read and
construed as a single instrument.

“Closing” means the closing of a Loan pursuant to the Indenture and this Agreement.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the regulations
promulgated, proposed or applicable thereunder.

“Commencement Date” means the date when the term of this Agreement begins and the
obligation of the Borrower to make Loan Repayments accrues.

“Council” means the Florida Municipal Loan Council.
“Cost” means “Cost” as defined in the Act.

“Cost of Issuance Fund” means the fund by that name established pursuant to Section
4.02 of the Indenture.

“Counsel” means an attorney duly admitted to practice law before the highest court of
any state and, without limitation, may include legal counsel for either the Council or the
Borrowers.

“Default” means an event or condition the occurrence of which would, with the lapse of
time or the giving of notice or both, become an Event of Default.

“Event of Default” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 8.01 of this
Agreement.

“Financial Newspaper” or “Journal” means The Wall Street Journal or The Bond Buyer
or any other newspaper or journal containing financial news, printed in the English language,
customarily published on each Business Day and circulated in New York, New York, and
selected by the Trustee, whose decision shall be final and conclusive.

“Fiscal Year” means the fiscal year of the Borrower.

“Fitch” means Fitch Ratings, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the
State of Delaware, its successors and assigns and if such corporation shall be dissolved or
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liquidated or shall no longer perform the functions of a securities rating agency, “Fitch” shall be
deemed to refer to any other nationally recognized securities rating agency designated by the
Council, with approval of the Bond Insurer, by notice to the Trustee.

“Funds” means the funds created pursuant to Section 4.02 of the Indenture.

“Governmental Obligations” means (i) direct and general obligations of the United States
of America, or those which are unconditionally guaranteed as to principal and interest by the
same, including interest on obligations of the Resolution Funding Corporation and (ii) pre-
refunded municipal obligations meeting the following criteria:

(a) the municipal obligations may not be callable prior to maturity or, alternatively,
the trustee has received irrevocable instructions concerning their calling and redemption;

(b) the municipal obligations are secured by cash or securities described in
subparagraph (i) above (the “Defeasance Obligations”), which cash or Defeasance Obligations
may be applied only to interest, principal, and premium payments of such municipal obligations;

(c) the principal and interest of the Defeasance Obligations (plus any cash in the
fund) are sufficient to meet the liabilities of the municipal obligations;

(d) the Defeasance Obligations serving as security for the municipal obligations must
be held by an escrow agent or a trustee; and

(e) the Defeasance Obligations are not available to satisfy any other claims, including
those against the Trustee or escrow agent.

Additionally, evidences of ownership of proportionate interests in future interest and
principal payments of Defeasance Obligations are permissible. Investments in these
proportionate interests are limited to circumstances wherein (a) a bank or trust company acts as
custodian and holds the underlying obligations; (b) the owner of the investment is the real party
in interest and has the right to proceed directly and individually against the obligor of the
underlying obligations; and (c) the underlying obligations are held in a special account separate
and apart from the custodian’s general assets, and are not available to satisfy any claim of the
custodian, any person claiming through the custodian, or any person to whom the custodian may
be obligated.

“Indenture” means the Trust Indenture dated as of 1, 2004 between the
Council and the Trustee, including any indentures supplemental thereto, pursuant to which (i) the
Bonds are authorized to be issued and (ii) the Council’s interest in the Trust Estate is pledged as

security for the payment of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds.

“Interest Payment Date” means 1 and 1 of each year,
commencing 1, 2004.

“Interest Period” means the semi-annual period between Interest Payment Dates.
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“Interlocal Act” means Chapter 163, Part I, Florida Statutes.

“Interlocal Agreement” means that certain Interlocal Agreement originally dated as of
December 1, 1998, initially among the City of Stuart, Florida, the City of Rockledge, Florida and
the City of DelLand, Florida, together with the additional governmental entities who become
members of the Council, all as amended and supplemented from time to time.

“Liquidation Proceeds” means amounts received by the Trustee or the Council in
connection with the enforcement of any of the remedies under this Loan Agreement after the
occurrence of an “Event of Default” under this Loan Agreement which has not been waived or
cured.

“Loan” means the Loan made to the Borrower from Bond proceeds to finance certain
Project(s) in the amount specified in Section 3.01 herein.

“Loans” means all loans made by the Council under the Indenture to the Borrowers.

“Loan Agreement” or “Loan Agreements” means this Loan Agreement and any
amendments and supplements hereto.

“Loan Repayment Date” means , 2004, and thereafter each and
, or if such day is not a Business Day, the next preceding Business Day.

“Loan Repayments” means the payments of principal and interest and other payments
payable by the Borrower pursuant to the provisions of this Loan Agreement, including, without
limitation, Additional Payments.

“Loan Term” means the term provided for in Article IV of this Loan Agreement.

“Moody’s” means Moody’s Investors Service, a corporation organized and existing under
the laws of the State of Delaware, its successors and assigns, and, if such corporation shall be
dissolved or liquidated or shall no longer perform the functions of a securities rating agency,
“Moody’s” shall be deemed to refer to any other nationally recognized securities rating agency
designated by the Council, with the approval of the Bond Insurer, by notice to the Trustee.

“Non-Ad Valorem Revenues” means all revenues and taxes of the Borrower derived from
any source whatever other than ad valorem taxation on real and personal property, which are

legally available for Loan Repayments.

“Opinion of Bond Counsel” means an opinion by Bond Counsel which is selected by the
Council and acceptable to the Trustee.

“Opinion of Counsel” means an opinion in writing of a legal counsel, who may, but need
not be, counsel to the Council, a Borrower or the Trustee.
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“Outstanding Bonds” or “Bonds Outstanding” means all Bonds which have been
authenticated and delivered by the Trustee under the Indenture, except:

(a) Bonds canceled after purchase in the open market or because of payment at or
redemption prior to maturity;

(b) Bonds deemed paid under Article IX of the Indenture; and

(c) Bonds in lieu of which other Bonds have been authenticated under Section 2.06,
2.07 or 2.09 of the Indenture.

“Person” means an individual, a corporation, a partnership, an association, a trust or any
other entity or organization including a government or political subdivision or an agency or
instrumentality thereof.

“Principal Fund” means the fund by that name created by Section 4.02 of the Indenture.

“Principal Payment Date” means the maturity date or mandatory redemption date of any
Bond.

“Program” means the Council’s program of making Loans under the Act and pursuant to
the Indenture.

“Program Administrator” means the Florida League of Cities, Inc., a non-profit Florida
corporation.

“Project” or “Projects” means a governmental undertaking approved by the governing
body of a Borrower for a public purpose, including the refinancing of any indebtedness.

“Project Loan Fund” means the fund by that name established pursuant to Section 4.02 of
the Indenture.

“Proportionate Share” means, with respect to any Borrower, a fraction the numerator of
which is the outstanding principal amount of the Loan of such Borrower made from proceeds of
the Bonds and the denominator of which is the outstanding principal amount of all Loans made
from proceeds of the Bonds and then outstanding.

“Purchase Price” means the purchase price of one or more items of a Project payable by a
Borrower to the seller of such items.

“Redemption Price” means, with respect to any Bond (or portion thereof), the principal
amount of such Bond (or portion) plus the applicable premium, if any, payable upon redemption

pursuant to the provisions of such Bond and the Indenture.

“Reserve Fund” means the fund by that name created by Section 4.02 of the Indenture.
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“Revenue Fund” means the fund by that name created by Section 4.02 of the Indenture.

“Revenues” means all Loan Repayments paid to the Trustee for the respective accounts
of the Borrowers for deposit in the Principal Fund and Revenue Fund to pay principal of,
premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds upon redemption, at maturity or upon acceleration of
maturity, or to pay interest on the Bonds when due, and all receipts of the Trustee credited to the
Borrower under the provisions of this Loan Agreement.

“S&P” means Standard & Poor’s, a division of the McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc., a
corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York, its successors and
assigns, and, if such corporation shall be dissolved or liquidated or shall no longer perform the
functions of a securities rating agency, “S&P” shall be deemed to refer to any other nationally
recognized securities rating agency designated by the Council, with the approval of the Bond
Insurer, by notice to the Trustee.

“Special Record Date” means the date established pursuant to Section 9.05 of the
Indenture as a record date for the payment of defaulted interest, if any, on the Bonds.

“State” means the State of Florida.

“Supplemental Indenture” means any indenture hereafter duly authorized and entered into
between the Council and the Trustee, supplementing, modifying or amending the Indenture, but
only if and to the extent that such Supplemental Indenture is specifically authorized in the
Indenture.

“Surety Bond” means the surety bond issued by the Surety Bond Provider guaranteeing
certain payments into the Reserve Fund with respect to the Bonds and any other series of the

Council’s bonds or any Alternate Surety Bond.

“Surety Bond Provider” means MBIA Insurance Corporation and any successors thereto
or any Alternate Surety Bond Provider.

“Trust Estate” means the property, rights, Revenues and other assets pledged and
assigned to the Trustee pursuant to the Granting Clauses of the Indenture.

“Trustee” means Wachovia Bank, National Association, as Trustee, or any successor
thereto under the Indenture.
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ARTICLE 1I

REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS
OF BORROWER AND COUNCIL

SECTION 2.01. Representations, Warranties and Covenants. The Borrower and the
Council represent, warrant and covenant on the date hereof for the benefit of the Trustee, the

Borrower, the Bond Insurer and Bondholders, as applicable, as follows:

(a) Organization and Authority. The Borrower:

(1) is a duly organized and validly existing municipality of the State and is a
duly organized and validly existing Borrower; and

2) has all requisite power and authority to own and operate its properties and
to carry on its activities as now conducted and as presently proposed to be conducted.

(b) Full Disclosure. There is no fact that the Borrower knows of which has not been
specifically disclosed in writing to the Council and the Bond Insurer that materially and
adversely affects or, except for pending or proposed legislation or regulations that are a matter of
general public information affecting State of Florida municipalities generally, that will materially
affect adversely the properties, activities, prospects or condition (financial or otherwise) of the
Borrower or the ability of the Borrower to perform its obligations under this Agreement.

The financial statements, including balance sheets, and any other written statement
furnished by the Borrower to the Council, Banc of America Securities LLC, as underwriter of the
Bonds and the Bond Insurer do not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements contained therein or herein not misleading.
There is no fact known to the Borrower which the Borrower has not disclosed to the Council,
Banc of America Securities LLC, as underwriter of the Bonds and the Bond Insurer in writing
which materially affects adversely or is likely to materially affect adversely the financial
condition of the Borrower, or its ability to make the payments under this Agreement when and as
the same become due and payable.

(©) Pending Litigation. To the knowledge of the Borrower there are no proceedings
pending, or to the knowledge of the Borrower threatened, against or affecting the Borrower,
except as specifically described in writing to the Council, Banc of America Securities LLC, as
underwriter of the Bonds and the Bond Insurer, in any court or before any governmental
authority or arbitration board or tribunal that, if adversely determined, would materially and
adversely affect the properties, prospects or condition (financial or otherwise) of the Borrower,
or the existence or powers or ability of the Borrower to enter into and perform its obligations
under this Agreement.

(d) Borrowing Legal and Authorized. The execution and delivery of this Agreement
and the consummation of the transactions provided for in this Agreement and compliance by the
Borrower with the provisions of this Agreement:
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(1) are within the powers of the Borrower and have been duly and effectively
authorized by all necessary action on the part of the Borrower; and

) do not and will not (i) conflict with or result in any material breach of any
of the terms, conditions or provisions of, or constitute a default under, or result in the creation or
imposition of any lien, charge or encumbrance upon any property or assets of the Borrower
pursuant to any indenture, loan agreement or other agreement or instrument (other than this
Agreement) or restriction to which the Borrower is a party or by which the Borrower, its
properties or operations are bound as of the date of this Agreement or (ii) with the giving of
notice or the passage of time or both, constitute a breach or default or so result in the creation or
imposition of any lien, charge or encumbrance, which breach, default, lien, charge or
encumbrance (described in (i) or (ii)) could materially and adversely affect the validity or the
enforceability of this Agreement or the Borrower’s ability to perform fully its obligations under
this Agreement; nor does such action result in any violation of the provisions of the Act, or any
laws, ordinances, governmental rules or regulations or court orders to which the Borrower, its
properties or operations may be bound.

(e) No Defaults. No event has occurred and no condition exists that constitutes an
Event of Default, or which, upon the execution and delivery of this Agreement and/or the
passage of time or giving of notice or both, would constitute an Event of Default. The Borrower
is not in violation in any material respect, and has not received notice of any claimed violation
(except such violations as (i) heretofore have been specifically disclosed in writing to, and have
been in writing specifically consented to by the Council and the Bond Insurer and (ii) do not, and
shall not, have any material adverse effect on the transactions herein contemplated and the
compliance by the Borrower with the terms hereof), of any terms of any agreement or other
instrument to which it is a party or by which it, its properties or operations may be bound, which
may materially adversely affect the ability of the Borrower to perform hereunder.

® Governmental Consent. The Borrower has obtained, or will obtain, all permits,
approvals and findings of non-reviewability required as of the date hereof by any governmental
body or officer for the acquisition and/or installation of the Project, including construction and
renovation work, the financing or refinancing thereof or the reimbursement of the Borrower
therefor, or the use of such Project, and, prior to the Loan, the Borrower will obtain all other such
permits, approvals and findings as may be necessary for the foregoing and for such Loan and the
proper application thereof; the Borrower has complied with or will comply with all applicable
provisions of law requiring any notification, declaration, filing or registration with any agency or
other governmental body or officer in connection with the acquisition or installation of the
Project, including construction and renovation work necessary for such installation, financing or
refinancing thereof or reimbursement of the Borrower therefor; and any such action,
construction, installation, financing, refinancing or reimbursement contemplated in this Loan
Agreement is consistent with, and does not violate or conflict with, the terms of any such agency
or other governmental consent, order or other action which is applicable thereto. No further
consent, approval or authorization of, or filing, registration or qualification with, any
governmental authority is required on the part of the Borrower as a condition to the execution
and delivery of this Loan Agreement, or to amounts becoming outstanding hereunder.
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(2) Compliance with Law. The Borrower is in compliance with all laws, ordinances,
governmental rules and regulations to which it is subject and which are material to its properties,
operations, finances or status as a municipal corporation or subdivision of the State.

(h) Use of Proceeds.

(1) The Borrower will apply the proceeds of the Loan from the Council solely
for the financing for the cost of the Projects as set forth in Exhibit A hereto. If any component of
the Project listed in Exhibit A is not paid for out of the proceeds of the Loan at the Closing of the
Loan, Borrower shall, as quickly as reasonably possible, with due diligence, and in any event
prior to , 200___, use the remainder of the amounts listed in Exhibit A and any
investment earnings thereon to pay the cost of the Project, provided that, such time limit may be
extended by the written consent of the Council with notice to the Trustee, and provided further
that Borrower may amend Exhibit A without the consent of the Council or the Trustee (but with
notice thereto) but with a favorable opinion of Bond Counsel (to the effect that such an
amendment and the completion of the revised Project will not adversely affect the validity or tax-
exempt status of the Bonds) regarding the amended Exhibit A, to provide for the financing of a
different or additional Project if Borrower, after the date hereof, deems it to not be in the interest
of Borrower to acquire or construct any item of such Project or the cost of the Project proves to
be less than the amounts listed on Exhibit A and the investment earnings thereon.
Notwithstanding the foregoing all such proceeds shall be expended prior to ,
200___. Borrower will provide the Trustee with a requisition in the form of the requisition
attached hereto as Exhibit E for the expenditure of the remaining amounts of the Loan in the
Project Loan Fund.

2) Items of cost of the Project which may be financed include all reasonable
or necessary direct or indirect costs of or incidental to the acquisition, construction or installation
of the Project, including operational expenses during this construction period which would
qualify for capitalization under generally accepted accounting principles, the incidental costs of
placing the same in use and financing expenses (including the application or origination fees, if
any, of the Bond Insurer and the Council and Borrower’s Counsel fees), but not operating
expenses.

3) Borrower understands that the actual Loan proceeds received by it are less
than the sum of the face amount of the Loan Agreement plus the reoffering premium in an
amount equal to a discount as described in Section 3.01 hereof. Borrower will accordingly be
responsible for repaying, through the Basic Payments portion of its Loan Repayments, the
portion of the Bonds issued to fund only its Loan including the portion issued to fund the
underwriting discount, original issue discount and other fees and costs of issuing the Bonds.

4) The Borrower covenants that it will make no use of the proceeds of the

Bonds which are in its control at any time during the term of the Bonds which would cause such
Bonds to be “Arbitrage Bonds” within the meaning of Section 148 of the Code.
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5) The Borrower, by the Trustee’s acceptance of the Indenture, covenants
that the Borrower shall neither take any action nor fail to take any action or to the extent that it
may do so, permit any other party to take any action which, if either taken or not taken, would
adversely affect the exclusion from gross income for Federal income tax purposes of interest on
the Bonds.

(1) Project. All items constituting the Project are permitted to be financed with the
proceeds of the Bonds and the Loan pursuant to the Act.

() Compliance with Interlocal Act and Interlocal Agreement. All agreements and
transactions provided for herein or contemplated hereby are in full compliance with the terms of
the Interlocal Agreement and the Interlocal Act.

SECTION 2.02. Covenants of Borrower. The Borrower makes the following
covenants and representations as of the date first above written and such covenants shall continue
in full force and effect during the Loan Term:

(a) Security for Loan Repayment. Subject to the provisions of Section 2.02(k)
hereof, the Borrower covenants and agrees to appropriate in its annual budget, by amendment, if
required, and to pay when due under this Loan Agreement as promptly as money becomes
available directly to the Trustee for deposit into the appropriate Fund or Account created in the
Indenture, amounts of Non-Ad Valorem Revenues of the Borrower sufficient to satisfy the Loan
Repayment as required under this Loan Agreement. Such covenant is subject in all respects to
the payment of obligations secured by a pledge of such Non-Ad Valorem Revenues heretofore or
hereafter entered into. Such covenant and agreement on the part of the Borrower to budget and
appropriate such amounts of Non-Ad Valorem Revenues shall be cumulative, and shall continue
until such Non-Ad Valorem Revenues or other legally available funds in amounts sufficient to
make all required Loan Repayments, including delinquent Loan Repayments, shall have been
budgeted, appropriated and actually paid to the Trustee for deposit into the appropriate Fund or
Account. The Borrower further acknowledges and agrees that the Indenture shall be deemed to
be entered into for the benefit of the Holders of any of the Bonds and that the obligations of the
Borrower to include the amount of any deficiency in Loan Repayments in each of its annual
budgets and to pay such deficiencies from Non-Ad Valorem Revenues may be enforced in a
court of competent jurisdiction in accordance with the remedies set forth herein and in the
Indenture. Notwithstanding the foregoing or any provision of this Loan Agreement to the
contrary, the Borrower does not covenant to maintain any services or programs now maintained
by the Borrower which generate Non-Ad Valorem Revenues or to maintain the charges it
presently collects for any such services or programs.

During such time as the Loan is outstanding hereunder, the Borrower agrees that, as soon
as practicable upon the issuance of debt by the Borrower which is secured by its Non-Ad
Valorem Revenues, it shall deliver to the Council and the Bond Insurer a certificate setting forth
the calculations of the financial ratios provided below and certifying that it is in compliance with
the following: (i) Non-Ad Valorem Revenues (average of actual receipts over the prior two
years) must cover projected maximum annual debt service on debt secured by and/or payable
solely from such Non-Ad Valorem Revenues by at least 1.5x; and (ii) projected maximum
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annual debt service requirements for all debt secured by and/or payable solely from such Non-Ad
Valorem Revenues will not exceed 20% of Governmental Fund Revenues (defined as general
fund, special fund, debt service fund and capital projects funds), exclusive of (i) ad valorem
revenues restricted to payment of debt service on any debt and (ii) any debt proceeds, and based
on the Borrower’s audited financial statements (average of actual receipts of the prior two years).
For the purposes of these covenants maximum annual debt service means the lesser of the actual
maximum annual debt service on all debt or 15% of the original par amount of the debt, in each
case, secured by Borrower Non-Ad Valorem Revenues.

(b) Delivery of Information to the Bond Insurer. Borrower shall deliver to the Bond
Insurer and the Council as soon as available and in any event within 270 days after the end of
each Fiscal Year an audited statement of its financial position as of the end of such Fiscal Year
and the related statements of revenues and expenses, fund balances and changes in fund balances
for such Fiscal Year, all reported by an independent certified public accountant, whose report
shall state that such financial statements present fairly Borrower’s financial position as of the end
of such Fiscal Year and the results of operations and changes in financial position for such Fiscal
Year.

(c) Information. Borrower’s chief financial officer shall, at the reasonable request of
the Bond Insurer, discuss Borrower’s financial matters with the Bond Insurer or their designee
and provide the Bond Insurer with copies of any documents reasonably requested by the Bond
Insurer or its designee unless such documents or material are protected or privileged from
disclosure under applicable Florida law.

(d) [Reserved].

(e) Further Assurance. The Borrower shall execute and deliver to the Trustee all such
documents and instruments and do all such other acts and things as may be reasonably necessary
to enable the Trustee to exercise and enforce its rights under this Loan Agreement and to realize
thereon, and record and file and re-record and re-file all such documents and instruments, at such
time or times, in such manner and at such place or places, all as may be reasonably necessary or
required by the Trustee to validate, preserve and protect the position of the Trustee under this
Loan Agreement.

) Keeping of Records and Books of Account. The Borrower shall keep or cause to
be kept proper records and books of account, in which correct and complete entries will be made
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, consistently applied (except for
changes concurred in by the Borrower’s independent auditors) reflecting all of its financial
transactions.

(2) Payment of Taxes, Etc. The Borrower shall pay all legally contracted obligations
when due and shall pay all taxes, assessments and governmental charges or levies imposed upon
it or upon its income or profits, or upon any properties belonging to it, prior to the date on which
penalties attach thereto, and all lawful claims, which, if unpaid, might become a lien or charge
upon any of its properties, provided that it shall not be required to pay any such tax, assessment,
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charge, levy or claim which is being contested in good faith and by appropriate proceedings,
which shall operate to stay the enforcement thereof.

(h) Compliance with Laws, Etc. Subject to an annual appropriation of legally
available funds, the Borrower shall comply with the requirements of all applicable laws, the
terms of all grants, rules, regulations and lawful orders of any governmental authority, non-
compliance with which would, singularly or in the aggregate, materially adversely affect its
business, properties, earnings, prospects or credit, unless the same shall be contested by it in
good faith and by appropriate proceedings which shall operate to stay the enforcement thereof.

1) Tax-exempt Status of Bonds. The Council and the Borrower understand that it is
the intention hereof that the interest on the Bonds not be included within the gross income of the
holders thereof for federal income tax purposes. In furtherance thereof, the Borrower and the
Council each agree that they will take all action within their control which is necessary in order
for the interest on the Bonds or this Loan to remain excluded from gross income for federal
income taxation purposes and shall refrain from taking any action which results in such interest
becoming included in gross income.

The Borrower and the Council further covenant that, to the extent they have control over
the proceeds of the Bonds, they will not take any action or fail to take any action with respect to
the investment of the proceeds of any Bonds, with respect to the payments derived from the
Bonds or hereunder or with respect to the issuance of other Council obligations, which action or
failure to act may cause the Bonds to be “Arbitrage Bonds” within the meaning of such term as
used in Section 148 of the Code and the regulations promulgated thereunder. In furtherance of
the covenant contained in the preceding sentence, the Borrower and the Council agree to comply
with the Tax Certificate as to Arbitrage and the provisions of Section 141 through 150 of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, including the letter of instruction attached as an
Exhibit to the Tax Certificate, delivered by Bryant Miller & Olive P.A. to the Borrower and the
Council simultaneously with the issuance of the Bonds, as such letter may be amended from time
to time, as a source of guidelines for achieving compliance with the Code.

() Information Reports. The Borrower covenants to provide the Council with all
material and information it possesses or has the ability to possess necessary to enable the Council
to file all reports required under Section 149(e) of the Code to assure that interest paid by the
Council on the Bonds shall, for purposes of the federal income tax, be excluded from gross
income.

(k) Limited Obligations. Anything in this Loan Agreement to the contrary
notwithstanding, it is understood and agreed that all obligations of the Borrower hereunder shall
be payable only from Non-Ad Valorem Revenues budgeted and appropriated as provided for
hereunder and nothing herein shall be deemed to pledge ad valorem taxation revenues or to
permit or constitute a mortgage or lien upon any assets or property owned by the Borrower and
no Bondholder or any other person, including the Council, the Trustee or the Bond Insurer, may
compel the levy of ad valorem taxes on real or personal property within the boundaries of the
Borrower. The obligations hereunder do not constitute an indebtedness of the Borrower within
the meaning of any constitutional, statutory or charter provision or limitation, and neither the
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Trustee, the Council, the Bond Insurer, or the Bondholders or any other person shall have the
right to compel the exercise of the ad valorem taxing power of the Borrower or taxation of any
real or personal property therein for the payment by the Borrower of its obligations hereunder.
Except to the extent expressly set forth in this Loan Agreement, this Loan Agreement and the
obligations of the Borrower hereunder shall not be construed as a limitation on the ability of the
Borrower to pledge or covenant to pledge said Non-Ad Valorem Revenues or any revenues or
taxes of the Borrower for other legally permissible purposes. Notwithstanding any provisions of
this Agreement, the Indenture or the Bonds to the contrary, the Borrower shall never be obligated
to maintain or continue any of the activities of the Borrower which generate user service charges,
regulatory fees or any Non-Ad Valorem Revenues or the rates for such services or regulatory
fees. Neither this Loan Agreement nor the obligations of the Borrower hereunder shall be
construed as a pledge of or a lien on all or any legally available Non-Ad Valorem Revenues of
the Borrower, but shall be payable solely as provided in Section 2.02(a) hereof and is subject in
all respects to the provisions of Section 166.241, Florida Statutes, and is subject, further, to the
payment of services and programs which are for essential public purposes affecting the health,
welfare and safety of the inhabitants of the Borrower. It is the intent of the parties hereto and
they do hereby covenant and agree, that the liability of the Borrower hereunder is a several
liability of the Borrower expressly limited to the Loan Repayments and the Borrower shall have
no joint liability with any other Borrower or the Council for any of their respective liabilities,
except to the extent expressly provided hereunder.

The Council and the Borrower understand that the amounts available to be budgeted and
appropriated to make Loan Payments hereunder is subject to the obligation of the Borrower to
provide essential services; however, such obligation is cumulative and would carry over from
Fiscal Year to Fiscal Year.

1)) Reporting Requirements. (i) The Borrower will file or cause to be filed with the
Bond Insurer and with the Council any official statement issued by, or on behalf of, the Borrower
in connection with the incurrence of any additional indebtedness by the Borrower. Such official
statements shall be filed within sixty (60) days after the publication thereof.

(i1) The Borrower agrees to provide not later than December 31 of each year, a
certificate of its Chief Financial Officer stating that to the best of its knowledge the Borrower is
in compliance with the terms and conditions of this Loan Agreement, or, specifying the nature of
any noncompliance and the remedial action taken or proposed to be taken to cure such
noncompliance.
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ARTICLE III
THE LOAN

SECTION 3.01. The Loan. The Council hereby agrees to loan to the Borrower and the
Borrower hereby agrees to borrow from the Council the sum of $ ($ par
amount of Bonds plus $ reoffering premium). This amount includes an amount
equal to % which reflects the Borrower’s share of the cost of the initial issuance of the
Bonds subject to the terms and conditions contained in this Loan Agreement and in the
Indenture. The amounts advanced net of the cost of the initial issuance are to be used by the
Borrower for the purposes of financing or refinancing the cost of, or receiving reimbursement for
the equity in, the Projects in accordance with the provisions of this Loan Agreement.

SECTION 3.02. Evidence of Loan. The Borrower’s obligation hereunder to repay
amounts advanced pursuant to Section 3.01, together with interest thereon, and other payments
required under this Loan Agreement, shall be evidenced by this Loan Agreement.
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ARTICLE IV
LOAN TERM AND LOAN CLOSING REQUIREMENTS

SECTION 4.01. Commencement of Loan Term. The Borrower’s obligations under
this Loan Agreement shall commence on the date hereof unless otherwise provided in this Loan
Agreement.

SECTION 4.02. Termination of Loan Term. The Borrower’s obligations under this
Loan Agreement shall terminate after payment in full of all amounts due under this Loan
Agreement and all amounts not theretofore paid shall be due and payable at the times and in the
amounts set forth in Exhibit D attached hereto; provided, however, that all covenants and all
obligations provided hereunder specified to so survive (including the obligation of the Borrower
to pay its share of the rebate obligations of the Council owed on the Bonds and agreed to by the
Borrowers pursuant to Section 5.03(b)(7) hereof) shall survive the termination of this Loan
Agreement and the payment in full of principal and interest hereunder. Upon termination of the
Loan Term as provided above, the Council and the Trustee shall deliver, or cause to be delivered,
to the Borrower an acknowledgment thereof.

SECTION 4.03. Loan Closing Submissions. Concurrently with the execution and
delivery of this Loan Agreement, the Borrower is providing to the Trustee the following
documents each dated the date of such execution and delivery unless otherwise provided below:

(a) Certified resolutions of the Borrower substantially in the form of Exhibit B
attached hereto;

(b) An opinion of the Borrower’s Counsel in the form of Exhibit C attached hereto to
the effect that the Loan Agreement is a valid and binding obligation of the Borrower and opining
to such other matters as may be reasonably required by Bond Counsel, underwriter’s counsel and
the Bond Insurer and acceptable to Borrower’s Counsel;

(c) A certificate of the officials of the Borrower who sign this Loan Agreement to the
effect that the representations and warranties of the Borrower are true and correct;

(d) A certificate signed by the Authorized Representative of the Borrower, in form
and substance satisfactory to Bond Counsel, stating (i) the estimated dates and the amounts of
projected expenditures for the Project and (i1) that it is reasonably anticipated by the Borrower
that the Loan proceeds will be fully advanced therefor and expended by the Borrower prior to

, 200___, and that the projected expenditures are based on the reasonable
expectations of the Borrower having due regard for its capital needs and the revenues available
for the repayment thereof.

(e) This executed Loan Agreement;

® An opinion (addressed to the Council, the Trustee, the Bond Insurer and the
Borrower) of Bond Counsel to the effect that such financing, refinancing or reimbursement with
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Loan proceeds is permitted under the Act, the Indenture and the resolution authorizing this Loan
Agreement and will not cause the interest on the Bonds to be included in gross income for
purposes of federal income taxation or adversely affect the validity, due authorization for or
legality of the Bonds; and

(2) Such other certificates, documents, opinions and information as the Council, the
Bond Insurer, the Trustee or Bond Counsel may require, such requirement to be evidenced (in
the case of parties other than the Trustee) by written notice of such party to the Trustee of such

requirement.

All opinions and certificates shall be dated the date of the Closing.
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ARTICLE V
LOAN REPAYMENTS

SECTION 5.01. Payment of Basic Payments. Borrower shall pay to the order of the
Council all Loan Repayments in lawful money of the United States of America to the Trustee.
No such Loan Repayment shall be in an amount such that interest on the Loan is in excess of the
maximum rate allowed by the laws of the State of Florida or of the United States of America.
The Loan shall be repaid in Basic Payments, consisting of:

(a) principal in the amounts and on the dates set forth in Exhibit D; plus

(b) interest calculated at the rates, in the amounts and on the dates set forth in
Exhibit D;

On or before the fifteenth (15th) day of the month immediately preceding each Interest
Payment Date, the Trustee shall give Borrower notice in writing of the total amount of the next
Basic Payment due. The Basic Payments shall be due on each 20th and
20th, or if such day is not a Business Day, the next preceding Business Day (a “Loan Repayment
Date”), commencing 20, 2004, and extending through 20, 20__, unless the due
date of the Basic Payments is accelerated pursuant to the terms of Section 8.03 hereof.

SECTION 5.02. Payment of Surety Bond Costs. The Borrower recognizes that the
Surety Bond Provider has provided to the Council the Surety Bond for deposit to the Reserve
Fund in lieu of a cash payment or deposit by the Borrower. The Surety Bond shall secure and
satisfy the Reserve Requirement (as defined in the Indenture) and any other reserve requirement
of bonds as listed on Annex A to the Surety Bond. The Borrower or any other borrower whose
loan was funded with proceeds of a bond issue listed on Annex A to the Surety Bond, may draw
on the Surety Bond in an amount equal to or less than the limit of the Surety Bond, all in
accordance with Section 4.08 of the Indenture. The Borrower hereby agrees to pay to the
Trustee an amount equal to the amount drawn by the Borrower (or on behalf of the Borrower) on
the Surety Bond as set forth in subsection (c) of Section 5.03 hereof. Such Surety Bond may be
replaced by an Alternate Surety Bond issued with respect to funding the reserve fund of
subsequent bonds issued by the Council whose reserve fund shall be on a parity with the Bonds,
all in accordance with Section 4.08 of the Indenture.

SECTION 5.03. Payment of Additional Payments. In addition to Basic Payments,
Borrower agrees to pay on demand of the Council or the Trustee, the following Additional
Payments:

(a) (1) Borrower’s Proportionate Share of: the annual fees or expenses of the
Council, if any, including the fees of any provider of arbitrage rebate calculations; the Bond
Insurance Premium of the Bond Insurer (to the extent not previously paid from the Cost of
Issuance Fund); the fees of the Program Administrator and the fees of the rating agencies (to the
extent not previously paid from the Cost of Issuance Fund); and (i1) Borrower’s equal share of
the annual fees of the Trustee; annual fees of the Registrar and Paying Agent; and the Surety
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Bond premium of the Surety Bond Provider and any related fees in connection with the Surety
Bond (to the extent not previously paid from the Cost of Issuance Fund).

(b) All reasonable fees and expenses of the Council or Trustee relating to this Loan
Agreement, including, but not limited to:

(1) the cost of reproducing this Loan Agreement;

) the reasonable fees and disbursements of Counsel utilized by the Council,
the Trustee and the Bond Insurer in connection with the Loan, this Loan Agreement and the
enforcement thereof;

3) reasonable extraordinary fees of the Trustee following an Event of Default
hereunder;

4) all other reasonable out-of-pocket expenses of the Trustee and the Council
in connection with the Loan, this Loan Agreement and the enforcement thereof;

&) all taxes (including any recording and filing fees) in connection with the
execution and delivery of this Loan Agreement and the pledge and assignment of the Council’s
right, title and interest in and to the Loan and the Loan Agreement, pursuant to the Indenture
(and with the exceptions noted therein), and all expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees,
relating to any amendments, waivers, consents or collection or enforcement proceedings
pursuant to the provisions hereof;

(6) all reasonable fees and expenses of the Bond Insurer relating directly to
the Loan; and

@) the Borrower’s share of any amounts owed to the United States of
America as rebate obligations on the Bonds related to the Borrower’s Loan, which obligation
shall survive the termination of this Loan Agreement.

(©) For repayment of the Surety Bond held by the Trustee an amount equal to any
amount drawn by the Borrower (or on behalf of the Borrower) from the Surety Bond due to the
Borrower’s failure to pay its Basic Payments in accordance with Section 5.01 hereof, at the times
and in the manner and together with interest and expense due thereon all as provided in Section
4.08(a) of the Indenture undertaken in order to reinstate the Surety Bond. The Borrower shall
repay such amount drawn on the Surety Bond due to the Borrower’s failure to pay its Basic
Payments with the first available funds after payment of the current Loan Repayment. The
Borrower shall repay only the amount drawn due to its failure to pay its Basic Payment.

SECTION 5.04. Interest Earnings or Investment Losses and Excess Payments.
(a) On each Interest Payment Date the Trustee shall credit against Borrower’s

obligation to pay its Loan Repayments, Borrower’s share of any interest earnings which were
received during the prior Interest Period by the Trustee on the Funds and Accounts (except the
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Project Loan Fund) held under the Indenture, or shall increase the Borrower’s obligation to pay
its Loan Repayment, by Borrower’s share of any investment losses which were incurred during
the prior Interest Period on the Funds and Accounts (except the Project Loan Fund) held under
the Indenture.

(b) The credits provided for in (a) shall not be given to the extent the Borrower is in
default in payment of its Loan Repayments. If past-due Loan Repayments are later collected
from such defaulting Borrower, the amount of the missed credit shall, to the extent of the amount
collected, be credited in proportion to the amount of credit missed, to the now non-defaulting
Borrower from the past-due Loan Repayments.

(c) The credits may be accumulated. If the credit allowable for an Interest Period is
more than required on the next ensuing Interest Payment Date to satisfy the current Loan
Repayment, it may be used on the following Interest Payment Date.

SECTION 5.05. Obligations of Borrower Unconditional. Subject in all respects to the
provisions of this Loan Agreement, including but not limited to Section 2.02(a) and (k) hereof,
the obligations of Borrower to make the Loan Repayments required hereunder and to perform
and observe the other agreements on its part contained herein, shall be absolute and
unconditional, and shall not be abated, rebated, set-off, reduced, abrogated, terminated, waived,
diminished, postponed or otherwise modified in any manner or to any extent whatsoever, while
any Bonds remain outstanding or any Loan Repayments remain unpaid, regardless of any
contingency, act of God, event or cause whatsoever. This Loan Agreement shall be deemed and
construed to be a “net contract,” and Borrower shall pay absolutely net the Loan Repayments and
all other payments required hereunder, regardless of any rights of set-off, recoupment, abatement
or counterclaim that Borrower might otherwise have against the Council, the Trustee, the Bond
Insurer or any other party or parties.

SECTION 5.06. Refunding Bonds. In the event the Bonds are refunded, all references
in this Loan Agreement to Bonds shall be deemed to refer to the refunding bonds or, in the case
of a crossover refunding, to the Bonds and the refunding bonds (but Borrower shall never be
responsible for any debt service on or fees relating to crossover refunding bonds which are
covered by earnings on the escrow fund established from the proceeds of such bonds). The
Council agrees not to issue bonds or other debt obligations to refund the portion of the Bonds
allocable to this Agreement without the prior written consent of the Authorized Representative of
the Borrower.

SECTION 5.07. Prepayment. The Loan may be prepaid in whole or in part by the

Borrower on the dates and in the amounts on which the Bonds are subject to optional redemption
and notice provisions pursuant to Section 3.01 of the Indenture.
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ARTICLE VI
DEFEASANCE

This Loan Agreement shall continue to be obligatory and binding upon the Borrower in
the performance of the obligations imposed by this Loan Agreement and the repayment of all
sums due by the Borrower under this Loan Agreement shall continue to be secured by this Loan
Agreement as provided herein until all of the indebtedness and all of the payments required to be
made by the Borrower shall be fully paid to the Council or the Trustee. Provided, however, if, at
any time, the Borrower shall have paid, or shall have made provision for payment of, the
principal amount of the Loan, interest thereon and redemption premiums, if any, with respect to
the Bonds and shall have paid all amounts due pursuant to Section 5.03 hereof, then, and in that
event, the covenant regarding the Non-Ad Valorem Revenues and the lien on the revenues
pledged, if any, to the Council for the benefit of the holders of the Bonds shall be no longer in
effect and all future obligations of the Borrower under this Loan Agreement shall cease. For
purposes of the preceding sentence, deposit of sufficient cash and/or Governmental Obligations
in irrevocable trust with a banking institution or trust company, for the sole benefit of the
Council, the principal, interest and prepayment premiums, if any, received will be sufficient (as
reflected in an accountants verification report provided to the Trustee by the Borrower) to make
timely payment of the principal, interest and prepayment premiums, if any, on the Outstanding
Loan, shall be considered “provision for payment.” The prepayment premium, if any, shall be
calculated based on the prepayment date selected by the Borrower in accordance with Section
5.07 hereof.

If the Borrower determines to prepay all or a portion of the Loan pursuant to Section 5.07
hereof, the Council shall redeem a like amount of Bonds which corresponds in terms of amount
and scheduled maturity date to such Loan prepayment pursuant to Section 3.01 of the Indenture.

If the Borrower shall make advance payments to the Council in an amount sufficient to
retire the Loan of the Borrower, including redemption premium and accrued interest to the next
succeeding redemption date of the Bonds, all future obligations of the Borrower under this Loan
Agreement shall cease, including the obligations under Section 5.03 hereof, except as provided
in Section 4.02 hereof. However, prior to making such payments, the Borrower shall give at
least 60 days’ irrevocable notice by certified or registered mail to the Council.
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ARTICLE VII
ASSIGNMENT AND PAYMENT BY THIRD PARTIES

SECTION 7.01. Assignment by Council. The Borrower expressly acknowledges that
this Loan Agreement and the obligations of the Borrower to make payments hereunder (with the
exception of certain of the Council rights to indemnification, fees, notices and expenses), have
been pledged and assigned to the Trustee as security for the Bonds under the Indenture, and that
the Trustee shall be entitled to act hereunder and thereunder in the place and stead of the Council
whether or not the Bonds are in default.

SECTION 7.02. Assignment by Borrower. This Loan Agreement may not be assigned
by the Borrower for any reason without the express prior written consent of the Council, the
Bond Insurer and the Trustee.

SECTION 7.03. Payments by the Bond Insurer. The Borrower acknowledges that
payment under this Loan Agreement from funds received by the Trustee or Bondholders from
the Bond Insurer do not constitute payment under this Loan Agreement for the purposes hereof
or fulfillment of its obligations hereunder.

SECTION 7.04. Payments by the Surety Bond Provider. The Borrower
acknowledges that payment under this Loan Agreement from funds received by the Trustee or
Bondholders from the Surety Bond Provider do not constitute payment under this Loan
Agreement for the purposes hereof or fulfillment of its obligations hereunder.
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ARTICLE VIII
EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

SECTION 8.01. Events of Default Defined. The following shall be “Events of
Default” under this Loan Agreement and the terms “Event of Default” and “Default” shall mean
(except where the context clearly indicates otherwise), whenever they are used in this Loan
Agreement, any one or more of the following events:

(a) Failure by the Borrower to timely pay any Loan Repayment, when due, so long as
the Bonds are outstanding;

(b) Failure by the Borrower to timely pay any other payment required to be paid
hereunder on the date on which it is due and payable, provided the Borrower has prior written
notice of any such payments being due;

(©) Failure by the Borrower to observe and perform any covenant, condition or
agreement other than a failure under (a), on its part to be observed or performed under this Loan
Agreement, for a period of thirty (30) days after notice of the failure, unless the Council, the
Bond Insurer and the Trustee shall agree in writing to an extension of such time prior to its
expiration; provided, however, if the failure stated in the notice can be wholly cured within a
period of time not materially detrimental to the rights of the Council, the Bond Insurer or the
Trustee, but cannot be cured within the applicable 30-day period, the Council, the Bond Insurer
and the Trustee will not unreasonably withhold their consent to an extension of such time if
corrective action 1is instituted by the Borrower within the applicable period and diligently
pursued until the failure is corrected;

(d) Any warranty, representation or other statement by the Borrower or by an officer
or agent of the Borrower contained in this Loan Agreement or in any instrument furnished in
compliance with or in reference to this Loan Agreement, is false or misleading in any material
respect when made;

(e) A petition is filed against the Borrower under any bankruptcy, reorganization,
arrangement, insolvency, readjustment of debt, dissolution or liquidation law of any jurisdiction,
whether now or hereafter in effect, and is not dismissed within 60 days of such filing;

) The Borrower files a petition in voluntary bankruptcy or seeking relief under any
provision of any bankruptcy, reorganization, arrangement, insolvency, readjustment of debt,
dissolution or liquidation law of any jurisdiction, whether now or hereafter in effect, or consents
to the filing of any petition against it under such law;

(2) The Borrower admits insolvency or bankruptcy or its inability to pay its debts as
they become due or is generally not paying its debts as such debts become due, or becomes
insolvent or bankrupt or makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors, or a custodian
(including without limitation a receiver, liquidator or trustee) of the Borrower or any of its
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property is appointed by court order or takes possession thereof and such order remains in effect
or such possession continues for more than 60 days;

(h) Default under any agreement to which the Borrower is a party evidencing,
securing or otherwise respecting any indebtedness of the Borrower outstanding in the amount of
$100,000 or more if, as a result thereof, such indebtedness may be declared immediately due and
payable or other remedies may be exercised with respect thereto;

(1) Any material provision of this Loan Agreement shall at any time for any reason
cease to be valid and binding on the Borrower, or shall be declared to be null and void, or the
validity or enforceability of this Loan Agreement shall be contested by the Borrower or any
governmental agency or authority, or if the Borrower shall deny any further liability or
obligation under this Loan Agreement; or

) Final judgment for the payment of money in the amount of $250,000 or more is
rendered against the Borrower and at any time after 90 days from the entry thereof, unless
otherwise provided in the final judgment, (i) such judgment shall not have been discharged, or
(ii) the Borrower shall not have taken and be diligently prosecuting an appeal therefrom or from
the order, decree or process upon which or pursuant to which such judgment shall have been
granted or entered, and have caused the execution of or levy under such judgment, order, decree
or process of the enforcement thereof to have been stayed pending determination of such appeal,
provided that such execution and levy would materially adversely affect the Borrower’s ability to
meet its obligations hereunder; or (iii) the Borrower is not obligated with respect to such
judgment pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 768, Florida Statutes.

SECTION 8.02. Notice of Default. The Borrower agrees to give the Trustee, the Bond
Insurer and the Council prompt written notice if any petition, assignment, appointment or
possession referred to in Section 8.01(e), 8.01(f) and 8.01(g) is filed by or against the Borrower
or of the occurrence of any other event or condition which constitutes a Default or an Event of
Default, or with the passage of time or the giving of notice would constitute an Event of Default,
immediately upon becoming aware of the existence thereof.

SECTION 8.03. Remedies on Default. Whenever any Event of Default referred to in
Section 8.01 hereof shall have happened and be continuing, the Council or the Trustee shall, with
the written consent of the Bond Insurer or upon the direction of the Bond Insurer, in addition to
any other remedies herein or by law provided, have the right, at its or their option without any
further demand or notice, to take such steps and exercise such remedies as provided in Section
9.02 of the Indenture, and, without limitation, one or more of the following:

(a) Declare all Loan Repayments, in an amount equal to 100% of the principal
amount thereof plus all accrued interest thereon to the date on which such Loan Repayments
shall be used to redeem Bonds pursuant to Section 3.02 of the Indenture and all other amounts
due hereunder, to be immediately due and payable, and upon notice to the Borrower the same
shall become immediately due and payable by the Borrower without further notice or demand.
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(b) Take whatever other action at law or in equity which may appear necessary or
desirable to collect amounts then due and thereafter to become due hereunder or to enforce any
other of its or their rights hereunder.

SECTION 8.04. [Reserved].

SECTION 8.05. No Remedy Exclusive; Waiver, Notice. No remedy herein conferred
upon or reserved to the Council or the Trustee is intended to be exclusive and every such remedy
shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given under this Loan
Agreement or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity. No delay or omission to exercise any
right, remedy or power shall be construed to be a waiver thereof, but any such right, remedy or
power may be exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient. In order to
entitle the Council or the Trustee to exercise any remedy reserved to it in this Article VIII, it
shall not be necessary to give any notice other than such notice as may be required in this Article
VIIL

SECTION 8.06. Application of Moneys. Any moneys collected by the Council or the
Trustee pursuant to Section 8.03 hereof shall be applied (a) first, to pay any attorney’s fees or
other expenses owed by the Borrower pursuant to Section 5.03(b)(3) and (4) hereof, (b) second,
to pay interest due on the Loan, (c) third, to pay principal due on the Loan, (d) fourth, to pay any
other amounts due hereunder, and (e) fifth, to pay interest and principal on the Loan and other
amounts payable hereunder but which are not due, as they become due (in the same order, as to
amounts which come due simultaneously, as in (a) through (d) in this Section 8.06).
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ARTICLE IX
MISCELLANEOUS

SECTION 9.01. Notices. All notices, certificates or other communication hereunder
shall be sufficiently given and shall be deemed given when hand delivered or mailed by
registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, to the parties at the following addresses:

Council: Florida Municipal Loan Council
c/o Florida League of Cities
301 South Bronough Street
Tallahassee, Florida 32301

Bond Insurer: MBIA Insurance Corporation
113 King Street
Armonk, New York 10504

Trustee: Wachovia Bank, National Association
Corporate Trust Department
225 Water Street, 3™ Floor
Jacksonville, Florida 32202

For purposes other than presentation of Bonds for transfer, exchange or payment:
Wachovia Bank, National Association
Corporate Trust Department
225 Water Street, 3" Floor
Jacksonville, Florida 32202

Borrower:

Attention:

Any of the above parties may, by notice in writing given to the others, designate any
further or different addresses to which subsequent notices, certificates or other communications
shall be sent.

SECTION 9.02. Binding Effect. This Loan Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and
shall be binding upon the Council and the Borrower and their respective successors and assigns.

SECTION 9.03. Severability. In the event any provision of the Loan Agreement shall

be held invalid or unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not
invalidate or render unenforceable any other provision hereof.
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SECTION 9.04. Amendments, Changes and Modifications. This Loan Agreement
may be amended by the Council and the Borrower as provided in the Indenture; provided,
however, that no such amendment shall be effective unless it shall have been consented to in
writing by the Bond Insurer.

SECTION 9.05. Execution in Counterparts. This Loan Agreement may be
simultaneously executed in several counterparts, each of which, when so executed and delivered,
shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument.

SECTION 9.06. Applicable Law. This Loan Agreement shall be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida.

SECTION 9.07. Benefit of Bondholders; Compliance with Indenture. This Loan
Agreement is executed in part to induce the purchase by others of the Bonds. Accordingly, all
covenants, agreements and representations on the part of the Borrower and the Council, as set
forth in this Loan Agreement, are hereby declared to be for the benefit of the holders from time
to time of the Bonds. The Borrower covenants and agrees to do all things within its power in
order to comply with and to enable the Council to comply with all requirements and to fulfill and
to enable the Council to fulfill all covenants of the Indenture. The Borrower also acknowledges
that the Council has delegated certain of its duties under the Indenture to its Program
Administrator, including the direction to make investments in accordance with Article VII
thereof, including but not limited to the investment of the Borrower’s Project Loan Fund.

SECTION 9.08. Consents and Approvals. Whenever the written consent or approval
of the Council shall be required under the provisions of this Loan Agreement, such consent or
approval may be given by an Authorized Representative of the Council or such other additional
persons provided by law or by rules, regulations or resolutions of the Council.

SECTION 9.09. Immunity of Officers, Employees and Members of Council and
Borrower. No recourse shall be had for the payment of the principal of or premium or interest
hereunder or for any claim based thereon or upon any representation, obligation, covenant or
agreement in this Loan Agreement against any past, present or future official officer, member,
counsel, employee, director or agent, as such, of the Council or the Borrower, either directly or
through the Council or the Borrower, or respectively, any successor public or private corporation
thereto under any rule of law or equity, statute or constitution or by the enforcement of any
assessment or penalty or otherwise, and all such liability of any such officers, members,
counsels, employees, directors or agents as such is hereby expressly waived and released as a
condition of and consideration for the execution of this Loan Agreement.

SECTION 9.10. Captions. The captions or headings in this Loan Agreement are for
convenience only and in no way define, limit or describe the scope or intent of any provisions of
sections of this Loan Agreement.

SECTION 9.11. No Pecuniary Liability of Council. No provision, covenant or

agreement contained in this Loan Agreement, or any obligation herein imposed upon the
Council, or the breach thereof, shall constitute an indebtedness or liability of the State or any
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political subdivision or municipal corporation of the State or any public corporation or
governmental agency existing under the laws thereof other than the Council. In making the
agreements, provisions and covenants set forth in this Loan Agreement, the Council has not
obligated itself except with respect to the application of the revenues, income and all other
property as derived herefrom, as hereinabove provided.

SECTION 9.12. Payments Due on Holidays. With the exception of Basic Payments, if
the date for making any payment or the last date for performance of any act or the exercise of
any right, as provided in this Loan Agreement, shall be other than on a Business Day, such
payments may be made or act performed or right exercised on the next succeeding Business Day
with the same force and effect as if done on the nominal date provided in this Loan Agreement.

SECTION 9.13. Calculations. Interest shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day
year of twelve 30-day months.

SECTION 9.14. Time of Payment. Any Loan Repayment or other payment hereunder
which is received by the Trustee or Council after 2:00 p.m. (New York time) on any day shall be
deemed received on the following Business Day.

[End of Form Loan Agreement; Exhibits Intentionally Omitted]
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APPENDIX E
FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL

Upon delivery of the Bonds in definitive form, Bryant Miller & Olive P.A., Bond Counsel,
propose to render their separate final approving opinion in substantially the following form:

[dated date of closing]

Florida Municipal Loan Council
Tallahassee, Florida

$15,585,000
FLORIDA MUNICIPAL LOAN COUNCIL
REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2004A-1

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We have acted as bond counsel in connection with the issuance by the Florida Municipal
Loan Council (the “Council”) of its $15,585,000 Florida Municipal Loan Council Revenue Bonds,
Series 2004A-1 (the “Bonds”), pursuant to the Constitution and laws of the State of Florida,
including Chapter 166, Part II and Chapter 163, Part I, Florida Statutes, as amended and a Trust
Indenture dated as of July 1, 2004, between the Council and Wachovia Bank, National Association,
as Trustee (the “Indenture”). All capitalized terms used herein which are not otherwise defined
herein shall have the meanings ascribed in the Indenture.

The proceeds of the Bonds will be loaned to the City of Haines City, Florida; City of
Oakland Park, Florida, Village of Pinecrest, Florida, and City of St. Augustine Beach, Florida
(collectively, the “Borrowers”) for the purpose of financing, refinancing or reimbursing the cost of
qualified projects of such Borrowers, and to pay certain costs of issuing the Bonds pursuant to Loan
Agreements between the Council and such Borrowers to be executed simultaneously with the
issuance of the Bonds.

As to questions of fact material to our opinion, we have relied upon representations of the
Council contained in the Indenture and of the Borrowers contained in the Loan Agreements and in
the certified proceedings and other certifications of public officials furnished to us, without
undertaking to verify the same by independent investigation. We have not been engaged or
undertaken to review the accuracy, completeness or sufficiency of the Official Statement or other
offering material related to the Bonds. This opinion should not be construed as offering material
relating to the Bonds, but should be considered only for the opinions expressed herein. Furthermore,
we are not passing on the accuracy or sufficiency of any CUSIP numbers appearing on the Bonds.
In addition, we have not been engaged to and, therefore, express no opinion as to compliance by the
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Council or the underwriters with any federal or state statute, regulation or ruling with respect to the
sale and distribution of the Bonds.

In rendering this opinion, we have examined and relied upon the opinion of even date
herewith of Kraig A. Conn, Esquire, Counsel to the Issuer, as to the due creation and valid existence
of the Council, the due authorization, execution and delivery of the Bonds and the compliance by the
Council with all conditions contained in the resolutions of the Council precedent to the issuance of
the Bonds. Finally, we have assumed the proper authorization, execution and delivery of the Loan
Agreements by each Borrower and the validity of such Loan Agreements and in rendering this
opinion are not passing upon such matters.

The Bonds do not constitute a general obligation of the Council or the Borrowers within the
meaning of any constitutional, statutory or other limitation of indebtedness and the holders thereof
shall never have the right to compel the exercise of any ad valorem taxing power of the Council or
the Borrowers or taxation in any form of any real or personal property for the payment of the
principal of or interest on the Bonds.

Based on our examination, we are of the opinion, as of the date of delivery of and payment
for the Bonds, as follows:

1. The Council is duly created and validly existing as a separate legal entity of the State
of Florida with the power to execute the Indenture and perform the agreements on its part contained
therein and to issue the Bonds.

2. The Indenture has been duly executed by the Council and, assuming due
authorization, execution and delivery by the Trustee, constitutes a valid and binding obligation of the
Council enforceable upon the Council in accordance with its terms.

3. The Bonds have been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the Council and are
valid and special obligations of the Council enforceable in accordance with their terms, payable
solely from the sources provided therefor in the Indenture.

4. The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code’), establishes certain
requirements which must be met subsequent to the issuance and delivery of the Bonds in order that
interest on the Bonds be and remain excluded from gross income for purposes of federal income
taxation. Non-compliance may cause interest on the Bonds to be included in federal gross income
retroactive to the date of issuance of the Bonds, regardless of the date on which such non-
compliance occurs or is ascertained. The Council has covenanted in the Indenture and the
Borrowers have covenanted in their Loan Agreements to comply with such requirements in order to
maintain the exclusion from federal gross income of the interest on the Bonds.

Subject to compliance by the Council and the Borrowers with the aforementioned covenants,

(a) interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income of the owners thereof for purposes of federal
income taxation and (b) interest on the Bonds is not an item of tax preference for purposes of the
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federal alternative minimum tax imposed on individuals and corporations; however, with respect to
corporations (as defined for federal income tax purposes), such interest is taken into account in
determining adjusted current earnings for the purpose of computing the alternative minimum tax
imposed on such corporations. We express no opinion regarding other federal tax consequences
arising with respect to the Bonds.

5. The Bonds are exempt from intangible taxes imposed pursuant to Chapter 199,
Florida Statutes, as amended.

It is to be understood that the rights of the owners of the Bonds and the enforceability thereof
may be subject to the exercise of judicial discretion in accordance with general principles of equity,
to the valid exercise of the sovereign police powers of the State of Florida and of the constitutional
powers of the United States of America and to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium
and other similar laws affecting creditors’ rights heretofore or hereafter enacted.

Our opinions expressed herein are predicated upon present law, facts and circumstances, and
we assume no affirmative obligation to update the opinions expressed herein if such laws, facts or
circumstances change after the date hereof.

Very truly yours,

BRYANT MILLER & OLIVE P.A.
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APPENDIX F

SPECIMEN OF FINANCIAL GUARANTY INSURANCE POLICY
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FINANCIAL GUARANTY INSURANCE POLICY

MBIA Insurance Corporation
Armonk, New York 10504

Policy No. [NUMBER]

MBIA Insurance Corporation (the "Insurer"), in consideration of the payment of the premium and subject to the terms of this policy, hereby
unconditionally and irrevocably guarantees to any owner, as hereinafter defined, of the following described obligations, the full and complete
payment required to be made by or on behalf of the Issuer to [INSERT NAME OF PAYING AGENT] or its successor (the "Paying Agent") of
an amount equal to (i) the principal of (either at the stated maturity or by any advancement of maturity pursuant to a mandatory sinking fund
payment) and interest on, the Obligations (as that term is defined below) as such payments shall become due but shall not be so paid (except that
in the event of any acceleration of the due date of such principal by reason of mandatory or optional redemption or acceleration resulting from
default or otherwise, other than any advancement of maturity pursuant to a mandatory sinking fund payment, the payments guaranteed hereby
shall be made in such amounts and at such times as such payments of principal would have been due had there not been any such acceleration);
and (ii) the reimbursement of any such payment which is subsequently recovered from any owner pursuant to a final judgment by a court of
competent jurisdiction that such payment constitutes an avoidable preference to such owner within the meaning of any applicable bankruptcy
law. The amounts referred to in clauses (i) and (ii) of the preceding sentence shall be referred to herein collectively as the "Insured Amounts."
"Obligations" shall mean:

[PAR]
[LEGAL NAME OF ISSUE]

Upon receipt of telephonic or telegraphic notice, such notice subsequently confirmed in writing by registered or certified mail, or upon receipt of
written notice by registered or certified mail, by the Insurer from the Paying Agent or any owner of an Obligation the payment of an Insured
Amount for which is then due, that such required payment has not been made, the Insurer on the due date of such payment or within one
business day after receipt of notice of such nonpayment, whichever is later, will make a deposit of funds, in an account with U.S. Bank Trust
National Association, in New York, New York, or its successor, sufficient for the payment of any such Insured Amounts which are then due.
Upon presentment and surrender of such Obligations or presentment of such other proof of ownership of the Obligations, together with any
appropriate instruments of assignment to evidence the assignment of the Insured Amounts due on the Obligations as are paid by the Insurer, and
appropriate instruments to effect the appointment of the Insurer as agent for such owners of the Obligations in any legal proceeding related to
payment of Insured Amounts on the Obligations, such instruments being in a form satisfactory to U.S. Bank Trust National Association, U.S.
Bank Trust National Association shall disburse to such owners, or the Paying Agent payment of the Insured Amounts due on such Obligations,
less any amount held by the Paying Agent for the payment of such Insured Amounts and legally available therefor. This policy does not insure
against loss of any prepayment premium which may at any time be payable with respect to any Obligation.

As used herein, the term "owner" shall mean the registered owner of any Obligation as indicated in the books maintained by the Paying Agent,
the Issuer, or any designee of the Issuer for such purpose. The term owner shall not include the Issuer or any party whose agreement with the
Issuer constitutes the underlying security for the Obligations.

Any service of process on the Insurer may be made to the Insurer at its offices located at 113 King Street, Armonk, New York 10504 and such
service of process shall be valid and binding.

This policy is non-cancellable for any reason. The premium on this policy is not refundable for any reason including the payment prior to
maturity of the Obligations.

The insurance provided by this policy is not covered by the Florida Insurance Guaranty Association created under chapter 631, Florida Statutes.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Insurer has caused this policy to be executed in facsimile on its behalf by its duly authorized officers, this
[DAY] day of [MONTH, YEAR].

COUNTERSIGNED: MBIA Insurance Corporation
Resident l=eynfied ; g;lt ______ | Presid€i L ,[IVI™
— 4 Attest:

City, State Assistant Secretary

STD-RCS-FL-6
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APPENDIX G

Financial Information Regarding City of Haines City
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CiTY OF HAINES CITY, FLORIDA

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

GENERAL FUND

FISCAL YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,

REVENUES:
Taxes
Licenses and Permits
Intergovernmental Revenues
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeitures
Miscellaneous Revenues

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Ceneral Government
Public Salety
Physical Environment
Transportation
Economic Environment
Culture and Recreation

Totat Expenditures
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Proceeds of Long-Term Debt Financing
Operating Transfers In

Operating Transfers Out

EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES

FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1

FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30

Certain of the above revenues are not legally available to make the Loan Repayments No representation is made as to the amount of revenues

that are legally available to make the Loan Repayments

2002

£ 5,089,028
275,528
1,827,294
1,380,042
114,888
301,436

$_8.998.216

$ 1,188,487
4,484,910
1,104,017

669,095
680,368
1,467.361

$ 9,594,238
( 606,022)
535,762
926,350

( 565.887)
290,203

§ 4.853.908

§ 5.144.111

2001

b 4,836,950
283,206
2,411,910
1,260,949
111,838
464.977

$_9.369.830

3 1,367,136
4,000,570
1,033,122

779,479
513,154
1,828,478

3 9,621,939
( 252,109)
94,715
899,369

( 401,829}
340,146
$4.513.762

$4.853.908
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' UNQUALIFIED OPINION ON n;:;‘;’;;,f,,%*h
GENERAL PURFPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND Reray Hesmida®

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION H. Leo Gillran
Wikistn B Hincoek

o W, Andrew Muelfer, Jr.
To the Honorable Mayor and ,ramc}'s'f;umu =

Board of City Commissioners Chatfouie M: Sterter
City of Haines City, Florida Leslie B. Gray

: "Consularic to ¢hie, Firm
We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of the City of Haines City, Florida, as of and for the
year ended September 30; 2002, ag listed in the table of coditents (Exhibits A thmugh E). These general purpose financial
statemients are the responsibility of the City"s management Our responsrbz ity is to express an opinion on these general
purpeie financial statements based on our gudit.

We conducted ¢ur audit in accordance with auditing st:mdards generaliy accepted in the United States of America apd the
standards apphcable to financial aud its contained in Governnieni Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General af the
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perfmm the audit to obtain reasoriable assurance about whether the
general purpose financial statenients are frée of material misstatement. ‘An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the general purpose financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and sxgmf icant estimates fhadg by management, as well as evaloating the overall general purpose
financial statement pregentation. We believe that our aud:t provides a reasonable basis for our apinion.

In our ppinion, the general purpose f'mancza] statemerits referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the City of Haines City, Florida, as of Scptember 30, 2002, and the results of its operations and cash flows of its
praprietary fund type, for the year then ended, it cunformuy with accuuntmg principles generally accepted in the United States

of America.

In accordance with Gavermment Auditing Standards; we have also issued a report dated June 20, 2003, on our consideration of
the City of Haines City’s internal control over financial repamng and our tests of its, comphance with certain provisions of
laws, rekulatmns contracts and grants. That repart is an integral part of ah audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of pur audit

Our audit was performed for the purpase of forming an opinion on the general purpose financaal staternents of the City of
Haines City, Florida, taken as awhole. The combining financial statements (Exhibits F through K) Supplemental Information
(Pages 45 through 49) and Schedule of Federal, State and Logal Financial Assistance listed in the table of contents are
presented for purposes of addmonai analysis and as tequiréd by U.S. Office of Management and Budgst Circular A-133, Audits
of States, Jocal Governments, and Non-Fraofit t.‘I?.-'gz:J.wfzzmcznasR and are not a requiréd part of the general purpose financial
statements of the City of Hames City, Such mfonnatmn has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the § generel purpose financial stasemerits and, in o’ opmaon, is fairly presented in all material respects in relation to the general

purpose financial siatements taken zs a whole.
Respectﬁllly submitted,

BELLA, HERMIDA GILLMAN HANCOCK & MUELL]IR ;),f :

Belle, 4

Certified Pubf!c Accountants
June 20, 2603

1707 W, REYnOLDS STRIET * PLanT Crrv, Froripa 335634794
(813) 752« G183 » fiax (813) 752-2714
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COMBINED BALANCE SHEET ~ ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Investments held by Custodian
Receivables:
Accounts, Net of Allowance of 330,000 in Enterprise Fund
Assessments
Contribution
Accrued Interest
Due from Other Governments
Inventories
Refundable Deposits

Total Current Assets

RESTRICTED ASSETS:
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Restricted Assets

FEXED ASSETS:
Land
Buildings, Improvements and Equipment -
Less, Accumulated Depreciation
Construction in Progress

Total Fixed Assets

OTHER ASSETS AND DEBITS:
Long-Term Receivables
Deferred Charges for Bond Issuance Costs
Deferred Charges for Loan Costs
Amount Available in Debt Service Fund
Amount to be Provided for Retirement of General
Long-Term Debt and Other Obligations

Total Other Assets and Debits

TOTAL ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
SPECIAL DEBT
GENERAL  REVENUE  SERVICE
$:4,276,290 $ 8,384 $
305,183
7,779
2,579,962 130,118
30,230
, 13,687 .
7.199.444 152,189 _
734,255 | _69
734,255 . 69
9,668
9,668 . —
-$ 7,943,367 $ 152,189 $_69

The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of These Financial Statements



EXHIBIT A

Page 1
PROPRIETARY  FIDUCIARY o © TOTALS
FUND TYPES ~ FUND TYPES ACCOUNT GROUPS . _ (MEMORANDUM ONLY)
' TRUST 'GENERAL GENERAL '
N AND FIXED LONG-TERM
 ENTERPRISE AGENCY ASSETS .DEBT 2002 2001
$ 2,820,119 5 390,953 $ $ 7495746  $ 7,174,873
' 9,900,760 9,900,760 10,492,705
530,753 835,936 895,215
o 7,779 1,779
117,939 117,939 4,692
44,441 44,441 62,539
2,710,080 2,292,815
102,999 133,229 87,006
— 13,687 -
3.453,871 10.454.093 N 21.259.597 21,017.624
5,604,699 e 6,339.023 5.903.779
5,604,699 _6.339,023 5.903.779
289,901 447,999 737,900 737,500
29,259,352 12,053,787 41,313,139 40,721,754
( 11,085,074) : ( 11,085,074)  ( 10,501,410)
520.140 — . 520,140 410421
18,984,319 12,501,786 o 31.486.195 31,368,665
9,668 8,579
44,600 44,600 49,060
134,153 | 134,153 143,678
' 69 69 159
- © 5.228.839 _5,228.839 4,931,683
178753 . - 5,228,908 _5.417,329 _$:133.159.
$ 28221642 510454093 512501786 8§ 5228.908 § 64502051 3 63421227
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COMBINED BALANCE SHEET - ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2002 :

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

} . SPECIAL DEBY
LIABILITIES, FUND EQUITY AND OTHER CRED!TS GENERAL REVENUE SERVICE
CURRENT LIABILITIES PAYABLE FROM CURRENT ASSETS: .
Accounts Payable § 135,556 £ 8282 %
Deferred Revenue 2,422,951
Accrued Liabilities ‘ 187,914
Due tg Other Governments 6,096
Loans Payable — Current Portion
Capitsl Lease — Current Portion _—
Total Current Liabiiities Payablc from Current Assels 2,752.517 8,262 o
CURRENT LIABILITIES PAYABLE FROM RESTRICTED ASSETS:
Accrued Interest
Deferred Grant Revenue 46,739
Deposits :
Loaris Payable ~ Cuirrent Pertion
Other Liabilities
Bonds Payable — Cumrent Portion —
Total Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assels 46,739 —
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:
Obligetions Under Capital Leases
Estimated Liability for Compensated Absences
Bonds Payable
L.oans Payable ‘
Depaosit S S— -
Total Long-Term Liabilities —
Total Liabilities 2.799.256 8262 L
FUND EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS:
Contributed Capital
Investgnent in General Fixed Assets
Retained Earnings:
Reserved For Debt Retirement
Other Reserves
Unreserved
Fund Balances:
Reserve for Encumbrances
Reserved For Employees’ Retirement
Reserved For Debt Service 69
Other Reserves 718,048
Unreserved:
Designated 1,644,160
Undesignated - 2,781,903 143,927 .
Total Fund Equity and Other Credits 5144111 143,927 68
TOTAL LIABILITIES, FUND EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS § 7,943,367 $ 152,189 $ _69

The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of These Financial. Statements
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EXHIBIT A

Page 2
PROPRIETARY FIDUCIARY TOTALS
FUND TYPES.: FUND' TYPES - ACCOUNT GROUPS . (MEMORANDUM ONLY}
TRUST GENERAL GENERAL '
_ AND FIXED LONG-TERM
ENTERPRISE AGENCY ASSETS DEBT 200 001
3 92,685 3 5 $ § 235,503 $ 101,968
2,422,951 2,185,780
31,345 219,259 187,835
6,006 37139
276,281 275,281 268,958
. 29,963 29,963 38.487
430,274 — 3191053 2,820,167
184,579 184,579 195,353
46,739 48,669
319,610 319,610 303,023
245,150 1 245,150 238,599
13,015 13,015 13,015
__ 185,000 ‘ 185,000 175000
947.354 —— — 994,093 __973.657
675,266 §75.266 312,119
132,927 R18,642 951,569 966,373
2,589,277 2,589,277 2,770,633
8,262,572 3,735,000 11,997,572 12,579,003
10,635 — 10,635 10.626
10,984,776 10,635 5,228,908 16,224,319 16,638,754
12,362:404 10,635 5,208.908 20,409.465 20,432,578
9,572,740 . 9,572,740 9,082,513
: 12,501,786 12,501,786 12,576,325
367,207 367,207 367,207
613.454 613;454 612,759
5,305,837 5,305,837 4,948,330
. 471,887
10,443,438 - 10,443,458 10,549,310
69 159
718,048 739,169
1,644,160 1,457,027
. . 2,925,830 2,185,963
15,859,238 10,443,458 12,501,786 U 44,092,589 42,990,649
$ 28,221,642 $ 10.454,093 $ 12501786 § 5228908 § 6450205 5 3423227



COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES; EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

SPECIAL DEBT
GENERAL:  REVENUE SERVICE

REVENUES:
Taxes b 5,089,028 3 130,118 %
Licenses and Permits 275,528
Intergovernmental Revenues 1,827,294
Charges for Services 1,380,042
Fines and Forfeitures 114,888
Miscellancous Revenues 301.436 180
Total Revenues 8.98 8,2i6 130,118 1 Sl}
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
QGeneral Government 1,188,487
Public Safety 4,484 910
Physical Environment 1,104,017
Transportation 669,095
Economic Environment 680,368 104,188
Culture and Recreation 1,467,361
Debt Service: ]
Principal Retirement 202,398
Interest and Fiscal Charges 232.160
Total Expenditures 9,594,238 104,188 434,558
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES ( 606,022) 25,930 { 434,378
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): ,
Proceeds of Long-Term Debt Financing 535,762 _
Operating Transfers In 526,350 117,859 434,288
Operating Transfers Out ( 565.887 ) _ ‘
EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER SO'URCE_S OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES 290,203 143,789 { 90)
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER. 1 4,853.908 138 159
FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 § 5,144,111 $143.927 % ___.69

The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of These Financial Statements
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EXHIBIT B

 TOTALS

(MEMORANDUM ONLY)

2002 2001
$ 5,219,146 $ 4,836,950
275,528 283,206
1,827,294 12,411,810
1,380,042 1,260,949
114,888 111,838
301,616 465.450
9.118.514 9,370.303
1,188,487 1,367,136
4,484,910 4,000,570
1,104,017 - 1,033,122
669,095 779,479
784,356 613,154
1,467,361 1,828,478
202,398 165,787
232,160 223,673
10,132.984 10,011,399
( 1,014,470 (  641,096)
535,762 94,715
1,478,497 1,287,458
( _565.887 ( _.401.829)
433,502 339,248
4,854,205 _4,514.957
$ .5.288.107 5 4324200
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL —- GENERAL AND SPECIAL REVENUE FUND TYPES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30..2002

REVENUES:
Taxes
Licenses and Permits
Intergovernmental Revenues
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeitures
Miscellaneous Revenues

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
General Government
Public Safety
Physical Enviromment
Transportation
Feonomic Environmeni
Culture and Recreation

Total Expenditures

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Proceeds of Long-Term Debt Financing
Operating Transfers In
Operating Transfers Out

EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER USES

FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1

FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 38

EXHIBIT C

GENERAL FUND
VARIANCE
| FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL  (UNFAVORABLE)
$ 4991,579  $ 5,089,028 § 97,449
219,900 275,528 55,628
1,875,394 1,827,294 ( 48100)
1,321,540 1,380,042 58,502
114,900 " 114,888 ( 12)
379.510 301436 ( __78.074)
8.902.823 8.988.216 85,393
1,437,956 1,188,487 249,469
4,968,815 4,484,910 483,905
1,104,023 1,104,017 6
842,446 669,095 173,351
811,514 680,368 131,146
1.608.429 1,467,361 141,068
10.773.183 9.594.238 1.178.945
( 1,870,360)  ( 606,022) 1,264,338
548,696 535,762 ( 12934)
926,350 926,350
( __.703.807)  ( _565.887) 137920
( 1,099,121) 290,203 1,389,324
4,853,908 4.853.908 e
$ 3754787 5 Ll44.U) $ 1389324

The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of These Financinl Statements
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EXHIBIT C

._SPECIAL REVENUE FUND _ ___TOTALS - MEMORANDUM ONLY
VARIANCE VARIANCE

| - FAVORABLE FAVORABLE 2001
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) ~ BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) ACTUAL
$ 130,118  § 130,118 § | $. 5,121,697 § 5219,146 $ 97,449 § 4,836,950
219;900. 275,528 55,628 283,206

1,875,304 1,827,294 (  48,100) 2,411,910

1,321,540 1,380,042 58,502 1,260,949

114,500 114,888 ( 12) 111,838

. __379.510 301.436 ( __78.074) _464.978

130,118 130,118 - - 9,032.941 9.118.334 85.393 9.369.831
1,437,956 1,188,487 249,469 1,367,136

4,968,815 4,484,910 483,905 4,000,570
1,104,023 1,104,017 6 1,033;122;
, . 842,446 669,095 173,351 779,479 .

354,363 104,188 250,175 1,165,877 784,556 381,321 613,154
- o _ 1.608.429 . 1:467.361 141,068 1.828.478
354,363 104,188 250,175 11.127.546 9.698.426 1429120 9.621.939
(224,245) 25930 250,175 ( 2,004,605) ( 580.092) 1,514,513 (252,108
| A ‘ 548,696 535,762 ( 12934) 94,715

224,245 117.859 ( 106,386) 1,150,595 1,150,595, ( 106,386) 899,369
: N (__703.807) { ._565:887) ~137.920 ( ..401.829)
143,789 143,789 ( 1,099,121) 433,992 1,533,113 340,147 .

138 138 o 4854046 4,854,046 4,513,899

§ __ 138 $143027  § 143789 § 3254025 § 5208038 8 LSIAMY 8 4854046
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COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN RETAINED

EXHIBIT D

EARNINGS/FUND BALANCES = ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES AND SIMILAR TRUST FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

OPERATING REVENUES:
("hargcs For Semces
Contributions
Dermutualization Proce¢ds
Investment Loss
Net Dcprecmtmn in Fair Valuc of thvestmerits

Total Operating Revenues
OPERATING EXPENSES:
PersonaI Services .
Other Services @nd Charges

Depreciation '
Retirements and Terminations

Total Operating Expenses
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS}
NON—OPERATLN G REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Interest Income .
Interest and Discount on Bonds and Lpans
Miscelianeous Revenues
Total Nun~0per‘ating Revenues (Expenses)
INCOME (L.OSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS
'I‘RANSF_ERS:
" Trasisfers In
Transfers Qut

NET INCOME (LOSS)

RETAINED EARNINGS/FUND
BALANCES - OCTOBER 1

RETAINED EARNINGS/FUND
BALANCES — SEPTEMBER 30

PROPRIETARY  FIDUCIARY
FUND TYPES. _ FUNDTYPES _
ENTERPRISE = PENSION TRUST
FUNDS FUNDS
$ 3,978,695 $
967,337
371,937
(- 270,702)
SE— ( ...421,196)
1.978,695 _ 641376
954,749
865,403 89,125
583,663 - _
664,103
2,403,815 753,228
1,574,880 ( __105.852)
107,494
( 425195)
. 13633
(..304,068 )
1,270,812 (  105852)
{ _926350)
- 358,202 { 105852)
5,928,296 10,549.310
5 5286498  § 10443458

The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of These Financial Staternents
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TOTALS ‘
(MEMORANDUM ONLY)
2602 2001

§ 3,978,695 § 3885553
967,337 812,221
377,937

(270,702 ( 409,572)

( __427.196) ( __401967)
4,626,071 3.880.235
954,749 809,935
954,528 .1,022,806
583,663 588,777

- 664,103 __ 526,899
3,157,043 2.949.417
1,469,028 930,818
107,494 337,492

(  425195) (  449,394)
13,633 15160

( __304,068) ( ._.96742)
1,164,960 834,076
13,740 . 13,740

( ..926.350) ( ..899,369)

252,350 (  51,553)
16,477,606 16,529,159

S 16729956 5 16471606



‘EXHIBITE

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ENTERPRISE FUNDS
EQR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEP'I'EMBER 30,2002

2002

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating Incdme $ 1.574.880
Adjustments fo Reconcilé Operating Income '
té Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Depreciation Expense 583,663
Amortization’ Expense 13,985
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:

Increase in Actount§ Receivable ( 6,392}

1ncreasc in Inventdries ( 41,925}
Increase ifn Accounts Payable 79,044
Increase in A.;cruad Liabllities 6,934
Increase in. Customer Deposits 16,587
Increase in Estimated Lizbility for Compensated Absences 21,497
Tolal Adjustments 673,393

Net Cash.Provided by Operating Activities 2248273

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Operanno Transfcrs T ‘ 13-,'?40.
Operatmg Transfers Out (,926,350)
Net Cash Used in Noncapital Financing Activities ( _912.610)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES: ‘
Principal Payments-= Bonds Payable { 175,000)
Principal Payments - Lozns Payable { 507,557)
Principal Payménts — Capital Leases (. 38744)
Interest Payments'on Bonds and Loans Payablé ( 432,323)
Contributions Received from DeveIopers 490,227
Acquisition and Construction of Fixed Assets { 775,642)
Insurance Proceeds and Other Miscellaneous Revenue 13,633
Net Cash Used in Capital and Refated Financing Activities ( 1.425.406)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES; :
Interest and Dividends on Investments 107,494
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS: 17,751
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 8,407,067
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR § 8424818
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - UUNRESTRICTED § 2,820,119
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS = RESTRICTED 5,604,699
TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 8424818

The Accornpanying Notes até an Integral Part of These Financial Statements
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NOTES TO THE EB\IANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30 2002

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Haines,City was oragmaily mcorporated under the General Statutes of Florida as the Towa of
Haines City, on February 23, 1914 The first state legislative act affecting the City was enacted on May 29,

1919, and by Ch, 8272, itwas remcorporated under a City Council form of government. The present charter
was adapted &5 Ch. 12790 on July 1, 1927, changmg the form of government to “C‘omm:ssmn-Managel
Plan,” as amended. The City operates under a com:mssiommanagar form of government and provides the
followmg séryices as authorized by its charter Public Safety (Police and Fire), Streets and nghways

Culture-Recreation; Publlc Improvemenm Sanitation, Housiiig, Planning and Zoumg, and General
Administrative Services.

The financial statements of the City have; been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting
prmcxples (GAAP) 25 appl ied to governiment umts Thie Governimental Accounting Standards Board. (GASB)
is the accepted standard: settmg ‘body for estabhshmg governmental accounting and ﬁnancral reporting
principles. Tlie more significant of the government's accounting policies are described below.

A ‘Reporting Entity..

In BValuatmg how to define the City for financial repm‘tang purposes, management has considered all

-potential compcment upits. The decision to mc[ude a potential component unit in the reportin g entity was
made by applylng the criteria set forth in GAAP.; The basic - but not the only - criterion for including a
potential edmponent imit thhm the reporting entity is the governing bady’s ability to exercise oversight
responsibility. The. maost sagmficant mamfe;statlon of this ability is financial interdependency. Other’
‘man:festanons of the abifity to exercise responsibility include; but are nat limited to, the sélection of
goverring authcmty, the designation of management the ab:iityto significantly influence nperatlans and
accountability’ ‘for fiscal matters. * The other cnfermn used to evaluate potential cnmponent Units for
inclusion or eéxclusion from ‘the reportmg entlty is the existence of special fi inancing re]ationslups,
régardless of whether the City is-able to exercise oversight respons;bthtx&c Based upon the apphcanon of
these criteria, the financial statements of the Haines City Conimunity Redeve!opment Agency (CRA) have
been inéluded in tlie fi nanc:ai reportmg entity as a blended comiponent unit feported in a special revenue
fund. The CRA, wh;ch was created on April4, 1991 by Resolution No. 558 pursvant to the Community
Rcdeve!opment Act, a5 found in Chapter 163 of the Florida Statutes, is an entity which is legally separate
fror the City of Haines City and is govemed by a deven-member board; five board members are the City
Comrhission meémbers themse!ves and the ather two members are appomted by the City Commission. For
financial reporting purposes, the CRA i is reported as if i it were part of the City's operations because their
govemning bodies ate substantxally the same, and the purpose of the CRA is to redevelop blighted areas
within the City. The City is financially acdountable for the CRA, in that the CRA’s operations are
financed through Ipropm‘ty tax incrernents which are approved bythe City Commission, and thé City would
be secondarily liable for any debt issuances of the CRA (there are currently no debt issuances outstanding).

* Separate financial statements of the CRA can be obtained directly from its administrative office: Haines
City Community Redeveicpment Agency, P. 0. Box 1507, Haines City, Florida 33845.

B. Nature and Purpose of Funds

The accounting records of the City aré divided inta various categories, designated as funds and ascount
groups, The purpose of each fund and accaunt group is to separate financial inforimation in a mauner that
will allowthe City to cemply with legal requirements and generally accepted accountmg prmmpies

For reporting purposes, the funds have been divided into three types: governmental, proprietafy and fiduciary.
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NOTES 10 THE FB\TANCYAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30,2002

NOTE i: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

G@VERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

Gchmmcntai funds are those through which most govcrnmcntal functions typically are financed.. They
include general spemal revenue, cap:tal project and debt service funds. These types of funds use the current
financial resources measutement fosus. Ouly curfent assets and current liabilities are generally included on
their balance sheets. - Thieir operating statements presént sources and-uses of available resources dufing a

given peribd.
The City uses the following governmental funds!

General Fund = The genexal fund accounts for all financial transactions and resources other than those
requlred to be accounted for in another find,

Debt Service Fund - The debt service fund accounts for the resources accumuiated to retire long-terni debt,
and the payment of matursd principal and interest.

Special Revenug Fund ~ The special revenue fund accounts for all financial transactions of the Haines City
Community: Redevelopment Agency, which is a blended component unit of the City. Its purpose is ta
redevelop bhghted dreas wﬁhm the City.

PRQPRIETAR*&_’: FUND TYPES

Proprietary funds include enterprise funds and internal service funds. Thése funds use the economic resources
measurement focds. The accountmg principles for thiese funds are similar to those used by businesses. Fhe
City applies all apphcab le FASB pronounceménts in accountm g and reporting for its proprietary operatzons

The City uses the following proprietary finds:

Eutergnsc Fund - The Water and. Sewer Fund accounts for the operatmn of the City’s water and sewer
system: The costs of providing services are recovered pnmanly through charges to users.

Enterprise Fund - T’ne Stormwater Fund accounts for the City’s stormwater activities. The costs of providing
services are recovered p{nnanfy thiough charges to users.

FIDUCIARY FUND TYPES

JFiduciary funds are established to agcount for assets held by 4 govérnmental unit as a trustee or agent for
another orgahization or mdmdual Expendabie trust funds account for financial activity in essentially the -
S4mé manner as gcvemmemal fiinds. Pension trust futids account for financial activity essentially in the same
manner as proprietary funds. Agency funds are custodial i m structure and d6 not involve measurement of

resuits of operations.

The €ity has used tliree trust funds._ They account for asséts to be used to provide pensions for the general
emplovees of the City, its policé off‘ icers and its firefighters.

The City usés an agency ﬁmd to account for fiinds held in custody for the maintenance of Southern Dunes
right-of-way land.
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f D HAIN ORIDA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBERX 30, 2002

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
GENERAL FIXED ASSET GROUP OF ACCOUNTS

This group was established to account for the general fixed assets of the City which are not the property of the
enterprise fund. Thesé dssets are recordéd at cost and they are not depreciated.

GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT ACCOUNT GROUP

The general long-term debt account group was established to account for long-terin debt which is supported
by general revenues of the City or long-tern debt intended to be financed from governmental typé funds.

BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

As set forth in the City Charter, the City Comimission adopts an annual budget for the general fund, special
revenue "fund and enterprlse funds. Thé annual budgets for the general fund and special revenue fund are
prepared in. accordance ‘with the basis of accoummg utilized by those funds (modified accrual basis). The
budget for the enterprise funds are adopted under a basis consistent with GAAP, except that capital ¢xpenscs
are included in the budget and depreciation expense is not includéd. During the year and’ subsequent to
year—end the Cit_y Coriimission adopts budget amendments approving amended expendamres/expenses which
are funded by new or iricreased revenue satirces, Spendmg of previously approved budgeted revenue may be
transferred between depaﬂments and[or line itemns without Commission approval. The amended budgets for
the genefa! find and specidl revenue fund are presented in the Statemerit of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - General and Special Revenue Fund Types All annual
appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end. The City does not adopt a budget for the debt service fund.

IN'TERFT_H\ID PAYABLES AND RECEIVABLES

Allinterfund payables and receivablés are disclosed in the financial statements when they exist at year-end.

C. Basis of Accounting

FUND TYPES:

Governmenta] Fund Tvnes —Revenues and expenditures are recognized on the modified accrual basis.
This method rerogmzes ‘revenues in the period in which they become available and measurable
Available means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay current
liabilitles. Measirable means the amounts aré determinable. Expenditures are reeogmzed in the penod:
in which the related hab:hty is incurred, except for interest on general Iongnterm debt which js
recogmzed wheh due. While the City does niot employ an encumbrmce systern, encumbrances
outstanding (open purchase orders) at year-end are reported as reservations of fund balance for
subsequent year purchases, and aré not treated as current year expendxtures under generally aceepted

accountmg pnncaples

Proorsetarv Fund Types ~Revenues and eXpenses aré recognized on the accrual bas:s.

Fiduciary Fuid Types - Revenues and expenses are recognized on the accrual basis for trust funds.
Agency funds aré custodial in hature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve the measirement of

results of pperations




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEP"IEMBER 30,2002

NOTE 1: SUMMARY: OF. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
D: Inventories -

Inventori¢s are valued at the lower "of cost or markef on the first-in, frst-out basts. Inventories are
recorded in the Genéfal Fund and the Water and Sewer Fund and consist of repair and replacement parts
for the Water anid Sewer system and other supplies, matenals and fuel lield for future use by the City.

E. F 1xed Assets

General Fixed.Assels — Generdl fixed assets are valued at cost. If cost cannot be determined, the
estimated cost (estimated fair market value) at the time of acquisition is used. The City has decided g
omit from the general fixed assets nghtsnofaway, streéts, sidewalks, curbing, drainage facilities and other
infrastructiire, Itemns included are equipment, lagd and buildings, and other similar type :mprovemenfs and
struztures.

Entérprise Furid = Fixed Assets Enterpme ﬁmd fixed assets are recorded dt cost (including capltahzed
interest) at time of acqmsltlon Deprecratmn is calcu ated on these assets and is included in the
determination, of net Jdncome of the fund. Depremation is recorded o the straight-line basis over the
estimated useful life of each asset: Dépreciation is not taken in the year of acquisition.

Contnbutmns of fixed assets are recorded at their estimated fair market value at tlié time of regeipt.
Depreclatmn on these assets is mcluded with depregiation on purchased assets in the determination of net

incomie.

The City capitalizes net intetest costs as part of the cost of consfructing various watér arid sever projects.

F. Prtﬁper’ty' Taxes

Property tax collections are governed by Chapter 197, Florida Statutes. The Polk County Tax Collector
bills and collects all property taxes levied within the county. Discounts of 4, 3,2 4nd 1% are ‘allowed for
early paymerit i November, December, January and February, respectively.

The Tax Collector remits. collested taxes at least monthly to the Clty The City recognizes property tax
fevenue on 4 cash basis, as it is received. from the Tax Collcctor, since wrtuany atl taxes levied will be
collected through the tax ¢ollection process and the Tax Collector remittances in October and November
for prior fiscal year taxes are mszgmﬁcam

* In accordance with GASH 33, the tax levy approved il Septemnber is acérued and recorded as deferred
revenug: Since the taxgs are intended tq finance the following fiscal year’s budget, they will be earnéd as
revenue in the subsequent year. A 5% estimated allowance for uncollectible taxes has also been recorded

in accordance with, GASB 33,
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NOTE 1:

NOTE 2:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Caiendar of-events is as follows:

January 1 Properly taxes afc based on assessed valués at this date as determined by the Polk
County Property -Appraiser, and attach as an enforceable lien.

Tuly 1 | ‘Assessment roll approved by the state.

S#;ptemb‘gf 30 M'iil'é_ge resolution approved by the City Commission.
Qctober } Beginnig of fiscal year for which taxes have been levied.
November 1 Property taxes due dnd payable:

November 30 Last day for 4% aximum discount.

Apiil 1 Unpaid propésty taxes become delinquent.
Not later ‘ o o
than June ] Tax certificates are sold by the Polk County Tax Collector.

G. Statement of Cash Flows

For the purposes of tlie Statément of Césh Flows, the Water and Sewer Fund and Stormwater Fund
consider all highly liquid investmeiits (including restricted assets) with a maturity of three mdnths or less
when purchased 1o bé cash equivalents,

GENERAL FUND
Rc-{serves

For the year enided September 30, 2002, the City, in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, has “reserved” certain assets to denote that the amount of fund equity represented by these amounts
is not available for future appfopriation for general governmental expenditures.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S_EPTEMBER-S'O._ 2002

NOTE2: GENERAL FUND (CONTINUED)
Other Reserves totalifig $ 718,048 are comprised of the following:

Reserve for Construttion Projects .

Reserve for Main Street

Reserve. for Inventory

Confi scated Property

Section 8 Housing

Reserve for Law En forcement Education Trust
Rescrve for Local Law Enforcement Grént -
Reserve for Petty Cash

The Resérve for Inventc;}ry and Reserve for Petty Cash represent assets held by the City that are not readily
available for future eXpﬁnc!imres since they. have prcv:ousfy been converted to other purposes. The remaining
reserves (Construction Projects, Section 8 Housmg, Main Street, Canfiscated Property and .aw Enforcemtent
Educatich Trust) represent thé balance of monies received for these activities which bave not been spent.

Desigl_ation's

For the year ended Septémber 30, 2002, the City has designated certain amounts of fund equity foi the
purposes scheduled below.. Des:gnat:ons of fund balance are not legally restricted and feptesent tentative

management plans that are subject to change.

Fiscal. Year 2002/2003 Budget
Refuse/Sanitation Equipmient
Wcrkers Compensatlon Insurance Pool
Dernolmon

Grace Avenue Relocation
Vehmle Rep acement
Mausoleam

lerary Capital Development
Hentage Days .
Employee Hol;day Party
Christmas Lights

Fourth of July

Select Area Plan.
Cor_lsequf;nce:s of Ciime

NOTE 3: DEBT SERVICE FUND

Accounted for in the Debt Sérvice Fund are the payments for principal and interest on vanous riotes payable

and caplta] lease obhgatlons which are listed-in Note 7.

$ 606,367
35,795
30,230
22,236
18,660

3,902
558
300

$ 718.048

S 823,582
226,865
187,562
121,540
114;380

76,674
40,108
35,500
10,298
3,490
1,485
1,239
-812
625

$ 1,644,160



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 4: ENTERPRISE FUNDS

A. Restricted Adsets

SEPTEMBER 30,2002

The restricted assets of the Water and Sewer Fund at September 30, 2002 are comprised as follows:

Water and Sewer Impabt ] Fees,

$ 3,676,683

Escmw/Reserve for State Revolwng Fund Loan - Reuse 692,975
‘Bond Sinkirig Funds— Series 1991 641,489
Utility Deposxts 319,610
Renewal and Replacement F unds . 197,941
Esgrow/Reserve for State Revo!vmg Fund Loan - Pump Stations 4 and § 32,793
Escrow/Reservc for Sfatc Revoivmg"Fund Loan - Pump Stations 1 and 2 30,193

Escrow for Seties 1961 “Bornds

B. Fixed Assets

13,’(:)]5

$ 5,604,699

A schedule of the major catcgones of the Fixed Assets of the Water and Séwer Fund and th

‘ correspondmg estimated useful lives of the assets follows:

 ESTIMAIED
BALANCE L BALANCE  USEEUL
09f30/01 _ 'ADPI-'HUNS DELETIONS 09/30/02 LIVES
Land $ . 289,901 $ ‘ 5 § 289901 .
Equipment and Vehicles . 1,318,509 74,924 1,393,433 4~ 10 Years
Water Syslem . 7 019, 3 16 136,755 7156071 i0— 50 Years
Sewer System 20 238 556 454,245 20,692,801 50 Years
Othes Buildings - 17,041 N _ 17,047 5 Years
Cofstruction in Progress L 410421 - 486,391 376.672 520140
Tolal 29,293,750 1,152,315 376,672 30,069,393
Léss, Acgumulated Depréciation 10,501,410 583,664 11,085.074
TOTAL $ 18792340 S _S6B65L S RI6ED S L9RA3I0

Bond Issuanée-Costs 'a'n'd Discount

Bond issuance costs of $93, 560 incurred in conjunction with thé issue of the Revenue Refunding Bonds,
Series 1991 are being | amomzed over the life of the obhgatmn (21 years) using the straxght-lme method.
Amomzatton of issuance:costs on the 1991 bonds was $4,460 for the year ended September 30, 2002,
The unamiortized balance at September:30, 2002 is $44,600.

Bond discount, of $69,029, incurred in conjunction with the issu€ of the Revenue Refundmg Bonds,
Series 1991, is being amortized over the life of the bends using the effective interest method.
-Amartization of discount on the 1991 bonds was $3,645 for the year ended September 30, 2002
Unamorhzed bond discount of $20 723 is netted agamst bonds payable on the combined balance sheet.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

NOTE 4: ENTERPRISE FUNDS (CONTINUED)
D, Deferred Charges for Loan Costs

Capitalized loan cdists of $190;313, incurred ifi conjunction With the State Revolving Fund Loan for
wastewater freatment are being gmortized over the life of the obligation (20 years) using the straight line
method. Amortization of loan costs on the State Revolving Fund Loan was $9,526 for the year ended
September 30, 2002. The unamortized balance at September 30, 2002 is $134,153. o

E. Contributed. Capital

' The amounts and sources of contributions are as follows:

BALANCE BALANCE
SEPTEMBER 30, SEPTEMBER 30,
2001 ADDITIONS © 2002
Impact Fees $ 2,661,832 $ 490,227 $ 3,152,059
Federal Government - 2,826,811 ' 2,826,811
Contraciors _ 1690128 690,128
Federal Revenue Sharing Fund 175,999 175,999
General Goverment 2,103,232 2,103,232
Florida Départmentof o
Environmental Protection . 405,877 . 405,877
Southwest Florida Water. o :
Management District . 218,634 218634 -
TOTAL $2.082.513 -5 400,227 $ 25702740 -

Arrounts Siid_Wr; as Contrib'qtiom{' from Fedsral Government represent the total proceeds of grarts
received from, the following agencies:

Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) - $ 2,159,607
Department of Housing aind Urban Development _ 489,204
Department of Agriculturé:- Farmérs Home Administration 178,000
TOTAL $ 2.826.811

The proceeds of the EPA grants were primarily used to'partially pay the costs of additions to the City’s
water distribution facilitiés, modifications to the City's sewage treatiment plant, dnd construction of a
spray irrigation effluent dispdsal system.

Amounts reflected as Contributions from General Government ($2,103,232), include $1,929,867 in
residual equity transfers made by the General Fund to the Water and Sewer Fund during the fiscal year

ended Septémber 30, 1987, These funds were used by the Water and Sewer Fund in 1987 as part of the

“Prepaymeént Ameurit” on the City’s discount purchase of its Series 1974 and Series 1975 Revenue
Certificates:

Amduints shown as contributions from ltlfte}lflq'r‘ida Department of Environmental Protection ($405,877)
represent grant proceeds used for the construction of a water transmission main along U.S. Highway 27,
North. T '
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |
SEPTEMBER 30. 2002

NOTE 4: ENTERPRISE FUNDS (CONTINUVED)
F. Deh_t Sei"\{iée

The ordinance authorzzmg the isspance of the Water and Sewer Revenue Reﬂmdmg Bonds, Series 1991
requirés that monies be set aside in 2 separate “Sinking Fund” to pay interest and prlncnpal matunng
antivally and to creats a permanant cash “Reserve” to remain throughout the life of the bonds. The
following schedule shows the reserve {eqmrements compared to the restiicted assets pledged to meet
those requirements as of September 30, 2002:

Reserve and Sinking Fund Requiremerits $ 641,489
Assets Pledged -$ 641.489

Enterprise Fund reserves (whxch are net of current hablht:es payabie from restricted assets) congist of the
followmg at Séptember30, 2002:

Reserve for Debt Setvice $ 367,207
Reserve for Renewal and Replacement 197,941
Reserve for State Revolving Fund Loans 415,513

$ 980,661

G. Accounts Recéivable

The &ccounts receivable balance in the Enterprise Fund of $530,753 at September 30, 2002, consists of
accounts receivable of $560 753 reduced by an allowance for uncollectible accounts in the amount of
$30,000. The accounts receivable balance in the Stortwater Fund at September-30, 2002 is $16,568;

The ‘allowance 1s an amount that maitagement believes will be adéquate to absorb p0551ble losses on
account balances that may beconie uncoliect:bfe, based on priot collectibility expcrxencc The allowance
account was established through a provision for tncollectible accounts charged to expense. Specific’
account balances .will be charped aginst the allowance for uncollectible accounts with Cormmission

approval.

H. Net Working Cadital

The net working capital balance of the Water and Sewer Fund and Stormwater Fund at September 30,
2002 are $2;902,295 and $41,302, respectively.
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NOTEST O THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
‘SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

NOTE 5 RETIREMENT TRUST FUNDS
(Actuarial Valuation as of. October 1, 2001, the beginning of the plan year) -

A. Plan Description

The City Commission has established a single-emplayer public émployee retirement system to provide
defined retirement benefits to its qualifying emp!oyees Separate plans are maintained for its police
officers, ﬁreﬁghters, and other general employees. The City Commissior has established separate Boards
of Trustees for each of ‘the plans, which have the authority to ameénd plan provisions, including
contribuhon rates. Stand-alene plan findncial reports are not issued, and the plans are not :ncluded in tha
reports of any other public employee ret:rement systerm or eftity.

The following is a summary of the funding policies; contribution methods and benefit provisionsof the

defined benefit plans:
- General Employees Police Officers and Firefighters
Eligibility 16 Participate Full-time at date of hire (30 Full-time police Officers or:
hours per-week); firefighters
Determination of Cdﬁtp},butiohs’  Actuarially determined Actuarially determined
Funding of Administrdtion Costs * Included in Normal Cost Included in Noimal Cost
Period Required to Vest 20% afier 3 years of service, 100% after 10 years of
plus 20% annbally thereafter, credtted seryice
100% after 7 years for participants
hired after August 1, 1999
Requjred Coht'ribi_nio'ns ‘ 5% of total compensation 9% of salary
El: gibility for Distribytions: . .
" Normal Ret:rernent Later of age 60 or 5 years of Earlier of age 55 and 10
service; L:ater of age 60 or 7 years of service of age 52 and
years of vesting service for 25 years of service or age 60
participants Inred after August 1,
1999
Farly Retirement Age 55 and 10 years of service Age 50 and 10 years of .
- (unrediiced benefit with 25 credited service
years of service)
Benef“ t: o _
Normal Rehrement 2.5% of average compensation 3% of average final
tirries credited sérvice compensation (afc) times
credited service
Early Retirement Accrued benefit, actuarially Accrued benefit, reduced 3%
reduced for each year prior to normal
retirement

The plans also havé provisions for benefits in case of ';_ermination, disability or death.
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NOTES TO THE F INANCIAL STATEMENT S
SEPTEMBER 30 2002 '

NOTES: RETIREMENT TRUST FUNDS (CONTINUED) ‘
(Actnarial Valuatmn a§ of October 1, 2001, the begmumg of the plan year)

Membership in the plans consisted of thie following at October 1,.2001:

General Police Fire -
Employees Officers Fighters
Renrees and Beneficiaries Recexvmg o ' K
Benef ts and Temnnatcd Bmpioyces
Not Yet Receiving Benaﬁts : 75 . 10 4
Current Employees )
Fully Vested 33 9 10
Partially Vested 18
Non-Vested 43 25 do
Total Menibership 169 44 24

C Contributidns

. Participants in the Gcnerai Employees Retirenient Pldn, Police Officers’ Retirerment Trust Fund and
Firefighters’ Rctirement ‘Trust Fund are required to make contributions to the plan equal to 5%, 9% and
9% of the pammpant s earnings, respectively. Contributions from participants in the General Employees’
Retirement Plan, Police Off icers” Retirement Trust Fund and Firefighters’ Retireriient Trust Fund amotnt
to $134,425, $122,141 and :$63,405, reSpectwe!y, for ‘the yeai.” The State ahd City contribute the
remaining reqmred anrtual” contribution, which: is actuarially detérmined, and which amoun:ed to
$397,930, $123,493 and $125,943, tespectively, for thc year, :

D. Annual Pension Cost'and Net Pension Qbligition
The City's aﬂnﬁal pensi_cm_ ¢ost and net pension pbligation forthe year were as follows:

General Police . Fire =
Emplovees Officers Fighters

Annual Reéquired Contiibution $ 351,334 $ 52,214 $ 79,283
Intefest on Net Pension Obligation { 18,528)

Ad_;ustments to Annual Required Contnbutwn C 29101 C » -
Angiual Pensiori Cost | 361,907 52,214 79,283
Contributions Made” 397,930 52,214 79,283
Decrease in Net Penigion Obligation (36023 ) ,

Net Pension Excess Beginning of Year ( 247,045} : ( 15.026)

Net Pension Excess Contribution End of Year $( ;__B«' 3068) % $ ( 15,026)

Actuanai assumpilons and other mformat:lon used to' determiné the anriual requxred contributions are
Iocated in the Notes to Required Supp!cmental Information sectién of this report.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30; 2002

NOTE 5: RET IREM’ENT TRUST FUNDS' (CONTINUED)
(Actuarial Valuation as of October 1, 2001, the beginning of the plan year)

E. Three-Year Tréend Information

Percentage

Fiscal Year Annual Pension of APC Net Pension

Ending . Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
General 9/30/02 361,907 110% 0
Emiployees” 9/30/01 273,705 110% : 0
Plan 9/30/00 116,867 231% .0
Police 9/30/02 52,214 100% 0
Officers 9/30/01: 34,181 100% 0
Plan 9/30/00. 52,985 100% 0
Fire- 930102 79,283 100% 0
Fighters’ 9/30/01 54,095 100% 0
Plan 9730100 48,343 106% O

For six-year historical trend information, see Schedules 1and 2 inthe supplemental information sectwn
This provides information about progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay beaefits when
due:

F. Summnary of Sign 'iﬁ(_:a‘nt Aécbﬁntiﬁé]?olicies and Concentrations

Basis of Accounting - The Fiduciary Funds’ financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of -
accountmg Contributions are rec:ogmzed ds réyefiues in the period in which employee services are
- performed Bénefits and réfurids are recognized when due and payablé in accordance with the terms of .

each plan, .

Method Used to Value Invéstments - Investments of the General Employees’, Police Officers’ and
F irefi ghters Penswn Fonds are reported at fair market value. Gains and losses on sales and exchanges of
mvestmems are recognized on the transaction date- (trade date). Premiums and dlscounts on these
secuntles were deemed to he 1mmateraa1 anid are therefore not recorded,

Investments other :than U.S. government and U.S. government guaranteed obligations in any one
ofganization that represénts five percent or.more of plan net assets are as follows:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEI\dBER 30:2002

NOTE 5: RETIREMENT TRUST FUNDS (CONTINUED) |
(Actizarial Valuation as of Ocfober 1, 2001, the beginning of the plan year)

F. - Su_rximafv of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

General Employees’ Pensjon Fund:

Smce this funci is invested in shares of cornmmgied separate accaunts, it is not readily determinable
whlch ;nd;wdual mvestmcnts within the accounts exceed five percent. The following are investment
accounts (excludmgU S. povernmentand U.8: government puaranteed ob!rganons} for which the total
amount exceeds five percent: '

Bond and Mortgage Separate Account $ 2,402,341
Internatlonal Stock Sepa:ate Account 298,788
Large Company Growth Separate Account 405,419
Large C‘ompany Value Separate Account -594,647
Police Officeis’ Péns:qnﬁund: - None .
fifeﬁgl1§érs’ Pension Fund: None

NOTE 6: CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

The fbﬂqwﬁ;g schedule sumynarizes clianges in General Fixed Assets:

BALANCE " ~ BALANCE
SEPTEMBER . .  SEPTEMBER
o 302001  ADDITIONS ~DELETIONS 30,2002
GENERAL FIXED ASSETS: .
Land $ . 447,999 8 3 $ 447,999
Buildings and Additions 7,324,814 86,304 661,854 6,749,264
Imﬁrovén&cﬂts Oihe{"f han Buildings 95,60§ 18,657 114,266
 Aditos, Trucks and Boat 1,503,742 523,900 96,149 . 1,931,493
Machinery and Eqaip{neg;. 741,395 43,423 784,8 18
Office Equipment, Furnitire and Fixtures 1,367,870 14,753 5,553 1,376,970
Parks Facilities and Cemetery 333,198 | 333;;98
Recreation Fixtures and Equipment | _. 375.Lc';9é 2.080 763778
TOTAL GENERAL FIXED AséE‘Ts $12.576,325 3 689,117 $263.656  $ 2501786
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30 2002

NOTE 7: LONG-TERM DEBT

A. Watér and Sewer Fund Debt

Bonds Payable

The followin i is a summary of bond tra.nséctions of the City for the year ended September 30, 2002:

Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1991,

Payable at October 1 2001 3 2,970,000
Actual Bond Payments ( _175.000)
Total Bond Obligations at September 30, 2002 2,795,000
Less; Unamortized Discount : 20,723
Less, Current Maturities 185,000

Long=Term Portion of Bonds Payable .
at Septe,mb_er 30, 2002 $ 2589277

The amounts required fo tie deposited with the (’lty s paying agent to amortize bonds outstandtng for éacl
of the next five years and subsequenﬂy are shown below:

WATERAN_D _SEWER REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS. SERIES 1991

YEAR ENDING PRINCIPAL

SEPTEMBER 30;  MATURITIES = INTEREST TOTAL
12003 $ 185000 $ 173,013  § 358,013
2004 - 195,000 161,515 356,515
2005 205,000 . 149,213 354,213
3006 220,000 135927 355,927

. 2007 235000 121,536 356,536

2008 - 2013 1.755.000 362,862 2,117.862
TOTAL §2795000 § L104066 S 3,899,066

On December 5, 1991, fhc City issued the Water and Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1991, in
thé aggregate principal amount of $3,960,000. The bénds were issued by the City to advance refund the
City's cutstandmg Water'and Scwer Refundmg and Revenue Bonds, Series 1987. Bond proceeds of
$3,855,008 were deposited in an irevocable escrow account at the Fitst Union National Bank of Florida
for the purposé of defeasance of the Water and Scwer Rcfundmg and Revenue Bonds, Series 1987. .The
funds deposited, to gcther with ifiterest eamed théreon, weré sufficient to pay the interest and pnncxpa] as
they became due on the refunded bonds. Accordmgly, this debt was defeased, the lien on revenes
(under the refundcd bonds} was removed arid such refunded bonds were considered sattsﬁcd a.nd
therefore, are no longer treated s liabilities of the City.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

NOTE 7: LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) :
A Water- and Sewer Funﬂ Debt (antinued) )

The Bonds, dated Deceimber 1, 1991 were 1ssued as fully reglstcred serfal and term bonds, without coupons,
in principal denomznanons of SS 000 Semiannual interest is payable April [, and October 1, and commentced
April 1, 1992.. Serial bords, tota!mg $2,090,000 and bearing interest at rates from 4.75% to 6. 35%, mature
from, October 1, 1995, through October 1, 2006. Terin Bonds, totaling $795,000, bear interest at 6.5% and
mature on October 1, 2009, Term bonds totaling $960,000; bear interest at 6 5% and mature on October 1,
2012, The Bonds maturmg in the year 2000 and thereafter are subject to redemption pnor {o their stated dates
of maturity, af the option ¢ of the City, on and aﬁer Ocfober 1, 1999, The term bonds. maturmg in 2009 are
subject to mandatory amorttzanon redemption in the years 2007 through 2009, The term b{mds maturmg in
2012 are subject to mandatory ameortization redemphon in the years 2010 through 2012, -

The Bands are payable solely from and secured solely by the Pledged Funds consisting. of (i) the Net
Revenues of the City's combined municipal water and sewer system; and (i) the accounts in the Debt Service
Fuid and in thie Reserve Fund created for the Series 1991 Bonds (the “Pledged Accounts”)

The Bonds shall not be or constitute general pbligations or indebtedness and shall not be “Bonds” of the City’
within the meamng of kny constjtutional or. statutory provjsion, but shall be limited and special obligations of
- the City, payable solely from; and secured by, a lien upon and pledge of the Pledged Funds ‘and Pledged
Accounts; No owner of any Borid shall ever have the right to compel the exeicise of any ad va!orem taxing
power to pay such Borid or be eittitled to payinent of such Bond from any manies of thé Cily except ! from the.
Pledged Funds-and Pledgeé Accounts inthe manner and 10 the extent provided in the bond resolutzcn

anﬂs Payable':'

On November 16, 1989, the City cntcrcd into an agreemeént with the State of Florida, Department of
Enwmnmental Protennon o obtain 4 State Revolving, Fund loan of $221,000. During:-the year ended
September 30, 1991, the City arranged to borrow an-additional $215,000 under an addandum ta its Siate
Revolving Fund loan agreement for Lift Stations 4 & 5. The proceeds of this loan were 'used for the
continued acqutsxtlon and sonstruction of influent transmission facilities. The loan is bemg répaid in twenty
annual installments, including interest.at 4.20% for the original lodn amount and 4. 15% for the additional
completior loar amount, At September 30, 2002, the balarce of' ﬁns loan is $245,986.

An add:tional State Revolving Fund lodn was thamed by the City on May 30, 1991 ‘whereby the Caty
Hofrowed a total of $424,635 for Lift Stations | & 2, as per & preliminary agreement amendment. The
oroceeds of this Ioan were used to, but]d similar inflisent transmission facilities, This loan is being repaid irf
‘twenty annuai instaliments, including inferest at 3.98%. At September 30, 2002, the balaricé of this loan is

$249,288.

A third State Revolving Fund Loan was fi nahzed in June 1998. The'loan proceeds were used to finance the
constructmn of wastewater treatmient, reuse, and siudge fac:lmes The total arnount dtsburscd to the City was
$10,755 ,818, which ¢onsisted of $10,450; 872 disbufsed to the City, the loan service fee of $202,784 and
'$102 162 efacgrued capuahzed interest. The Grlgmai principal amount of theloan is $10,139,216, which is
the gmount d:sbursed as stated above less $31 1,656, which is required to be maintained in a loan repayment
reserve over ther 1ife of the Igan, The Toan:is bemg repa;d in forty semiannual loan payments of $344,773,

mcludmg mterest at2. 59% and 2. 63 %, which applies 1o varions loan increments. The balance of this loan at

September | 30, 2002 is $8 283 729,

Net revenues of the City's Water and Sewer System SETVE ag collatéral an thess obhgatlons wh;ch are
suberdinate (a junior obligation) to the City's Water and Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds, Senes 199t,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30,2002

NOTE 7: LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

A. Water dnd Sewer Fund Debt {Continued) _
Obligétioris Under Capital Lease

The City is obligated under a certain lease accounted for as 2 capital lease. The ledsed assets and rélated
obligation are acconnted for in the Water and Séwer Fund. Assets under capital leases totaled $138,615
at September 30, 2002. This amount represents the fair value of the assets at the inception of the ledse.
The following is  schedule of futurs minituin lease payments under capital leases, together with the net
' present value of the minimum lease payments s of September 30; 2002: ' '

Year Ending :
September 30 Amounts
2003 $ 30,658
2004 .
2005 .
2006 -
2007 :
Thereafter —_
Minimum Lease Paymients 30,658
Less: ‘Amount Representiﬁg. Interest . 695
Present \(aiuq of Minimum Lease Paytents $29,963

) General Long:Term Debf

. Obligations Under Capital Leases

ain leases accounted for as capital leasés. The leased assets and related

The City is obiiéatéd under cert : . ‘ s and rela
obligations ‘arg actounted for in the General Fixed Assets Account Group and the General _Lon!g».'l'em'i
Debt Account Group, respectively. Assets under capital leases totaled $1,027,361 at September 30,2002,

This amount represents the fair value of the assets at the inception of the leases, The following ic a
schedule of future migimum lease payments under capital leases, together with the et present value of the
minimurmn lease payments as of September 30, 2002;

Year Ending, -

September 30, Amounts

2003 $ 167,433

2004 132,007

2005 93,796
2006 80.982-

. 2007, 61,722

Thereafter, 233,923

Misimum Lessé Payments for all Capital Leases 769,863
Less: Amount Representing Interest, - 94,597
“Present Value of Minimuin Lease Payments $ 675,266
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NOTES'TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

NOTE 7 LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)
B. Gener’éﬂ Long»’l‘é;m Deabt (Continu‘edl

Notes -_Paxab le

On November [, 1999 the City obtained” fii inancing in thé amount of §3, 850,000 through the Florida
Municipal Loan Couneil (a speclal distrtct) for the purpose of financing construction of a new police
station, renovating City Hall and related facilities and the purchase of related furniture, fixtures and
equipment. Semiannual payments will be madeé over a 30 year period, including interest which varies
from 3.85% to 5.75%. The balance of this loan at September 30, 2002 is $3,735,000.

YEARENDING. ~ PRINCIPAL

SEPTEMBER 30, PAYMENTS
2003 3 65,000

2004 65,000

2005 70,000

2006 70,000

2007 ' 75,000
Thereafter 3.390.000

$ 3,735,000

C. Changes irf Genéral Long-Term Debt

" Changes in gehcj'éi Jong-term debt for the year ended Séptemiaei- 30, 2002, were as follows:

BALANCE
2001
GENERAL LONG-TERM
DEBT PAYABLE:
Loans Payable :$ 3,795,000

Obligations Under Capital Leases _ 281,399

4,076,899
Estimated Liability for ‘ ‘
Compensated Absences 854943
Total General Long- .
Term Debt Payable $ 4,931,842

G-30

NTEREﬂ.

§ 204,115
201,369
[98,431
195,316
192,016

2675612

$ 3,666,837

ADDITIONS.  REDUCTIONS

TOTAL

§ 269,115
266,369
268,431
265,316
267,016

6,065.612

$ 7,401,859

BALANCE
2002

§ 535,764

$ 60,000  $ 3,735,000
142,397 675,266
202,397 4,410,266
36,301 . 818,642

$238.698  § 5228908
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

NOTE 7: LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

D, Schedule of Debt Service Chargés Until Maturity

YEAR ENDING
SEPTEMBER 30

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

Thereafter

WATER AND SEWER FUND DEBT

. LOANPAYABLE LOAN PAYABLE
FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(LIFT STATIONS 4 &5) (LIFT STATIONS 1 &2)
PRINCIPAL ‘ PRINCIPAL _
PAYMENTS INTEREST PAYMENTS INTEREST
$ 23,077 $ 10,272 $ 20,783 $ 9,922
24,041 9,309 21,610 9,095
25,044 8,305 22,470 8,234
26,090 7,259 23,364 7,340
27,180 6,169 24,294 6,410
120,554 12,844 136,767 16754
$ 245.986 $ 54.158 $ 249.288 § 52155
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LOAN PAYABLE

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(WASTEWATER TREATMENT)
PRINCIPAL o
PAYMENTS INTEREST
$ 477,572 § 211,974
490,042 199,503
502,839 186,706
515,970 173,576
529,443 160,102
5.772.863 777817
$ 8,288,729 $ 1.709.678

TOTAL

§ 753,600

- 753,600

753,598

753,599

753,598

6,837,599

$ 10,605,594
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NOTE §:

NOTE 9:

NOTE 10:

u i

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEP]’EMBER 30, 2002

ACCRUED VACATION AND SICK PAY

Accumulated unpaid vacation and sick pay are decrued when incurfed in the enterprise fund. Only (a) the
current pomon of unpaid sick pay beneﬁts and (b) the unpald sick pay and accrued vacation for employees
who have reachec] retirement age are accrued in the govemmentai funds. The long-term portion of the
unpazd sick pay and the unpaid vacation pay are reported in the General Long-Term Debt Account Group
The methods of accrual are in accordance w1th Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No.

16.

Employees Who resigr after due notice, fetire, or dw are to be paid 100% of accrued medical leave up fo 2

maximum of 112 days

For emp!oyees with 10° years or less of contmuous service with the City, a total of 20 days of annual leave is
the rnaximum that may be carried over: from one vacation year to the next. For employees with more than 10
years contmuous service, a maximum of 30" days may be catried over. An employee will not be paid for
eamed annual leave in len of takmg such leave, except upon separation.

In the General Fund, tlie amount of atcrued sick, ‘vacation and longavity pay included in current Jiabilities as
“pccrued Laabtl:txes” is $16,006: The $818,642 long-term portion is included in the General Long-Term
Debt Account Group.

Tn the Water and Sewer Fund, $31;345 of agerued sick and longevity pay is included in current liabilities.as
“Accrned Liabilities,” ard $132,927 of accrued sick and vacation pay is included in long-term Habilities

_under tlie caption, ‘Estimated I, iablhty for Fompensated Absences.”

TOTALS MEMORANDUM ONLY

Thé combined ﬁnanmal statements of the City of Haines City include a total column which is a total of all
fuhds and account groups. presenteéd on gach stitement. These total columns are for memoranduni purposes-
only. They should not be thonght of as presentmg the ﬁnahmal information of the City on a consohdate{i

basis,

PRANCHISE FEIJS

On Febmary 18, 1988, the City grdnted Flonda Power the right to operate and maintain all electric power
facilities for the purpose of supplym g electricity within the corporate Jimits of the Caty for a period of thirty
years. Six percent of revenues from the salé of électrical energy to remdentxal and commiercial customers is

due monthly to the Caty

On August 14, 1996 flie C:ty granted a noi- -exclusive franchise to Central F lorida Gas Company to operate.
and inaintain & gas system in the City fora period of ten years. The company pays the City a fee equal to 6%
of gross annual fevenues from gas charges within the City.

On January 5, 1998, ilie City granted an exclusive franchise to Florida Refuse Service, Inc., 2 Repubhc
Industries, Inc. corporatmn, to provide sanitation collection service to customers within the City for a period
of three years beginning Jariuary 1, 1998. The term of the-contract has been extended for a term of 5 years
until December 31,2005, The Caoripaiiy, pays the City an gnnual franchise fee of the gredter of$151,484 or

15% of r0ss bsiimgf;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

NOTI 10: FRANCHISE FEES (CONTINUED)

For the Year Ended

o September 30,.2002

FRANCHISE FEES: ‘
Electric - $ 645,807
Solid Waste 151,484
Gas 15028
Total $812.319

All of the abgve fees are included upder the caption “Taxes” oy the Combined Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Chatiges in Fiind Balances— All Governmental Fund Types.

NOTE 11: LOCAL SERVICES COMNMUNICATION TAX

Efféctive Oetober 1, 2001, the City established a local communications services tax on any company
engaging in communications Business.within City limifs. Theé local comunicatioris services tax fate for the
City of Haines City is 5.62% and the arfiount collected was $539,447 during the fiscal year ended September
3o0,2002: ' | ‘ ' -

NOTE 12: CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The City pools the vast majority-of is cash in a single bank account that is available for use by all funds,
except the pensign tiust fands. Each fund type’s portion of this pool is displayed on the combined bajance
sheét as part of Cash and Cash-Equivalénts. - The City has entered into an agieement with the bank
concerning the sweeping of this account to pay all cleared charges against other accounts arid pay the City a
stipulated variable rate of inferest-on’ the account’s daily balance: At September 30, 2002, the carrying
amount of this account is $1 2,123,836 and the bank balance is $12,421,118. All the banks’ balances were
covered either by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or by the State of Florida Collateral Pool
(Category 1), (The Florida Statutes authorize and the State administers a collateral pool which. ensures no
loss of public funds.) At yearend, the City’s General Fund, Special Revenue Fund, Debt Service Fund,
Watér end Sewer Fund, Right-of-Way Agency Fund and General Emplpyees’ Pension Fund had $35,795,
$122, $69, $677,327, $10,633 and $380;318, respectively, in other demand deposits with bank statement
balances of $36,995, $122, $69; $677,383, $10,635 and $380,3 18, respectively. Cash on hdnd at year-end in
the gerieral fund totals $300. '

State statistes authorize the City to invest pooled cash in,obligations of the U.S. Government; time deposits,
and repurchase agreemnents. The pension funds® investment selections are also governed by Florida Statutes.”
The City'$ investmients are categorized below to give an indication of the level of risk at year-end. Category
I inclides investments that are ifisured or registered, or for which the securities afe held by the City o its
agent in the City’s name. Category II includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the
securities are h&ld by the'broker’s of dealer’s frust department or agent in the City’s name.. Category III
includes uninsured and unregisiered investments for which the securities are held by the broker or dealer, or
by its trust départiment or agent, biit not in the City’s name:
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NOTE 12:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER. 30, 2002

'CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Investments at Septémber 30; 2002, consist of the following:

Annuity Contract

' Money Market Fund
11.8. Obligations
Federal Agéricies
Corporate Bonds
Common Stocks

Total 1n\{estméntsﬁ

The pen'sibn trust fund owns 100% of the above investmemis.

Market

Value

$ 4,583,032

198,759

516,772
1,634,772
1,045,947

4,921,478

§ 9,900,760

A forther breakdewnof the types of investrents in the Policé Officers” and the Firefighters’ Pens:on Funds i is presented

‘below (at mafket)
Category II
Police
Oflicers’
. Types of Investments: Pension Fund
Trust Account at Saleni Trust:
Money Market Fund 3 93,854
USs! Obhgatmns 265,912
Federal Agencies 933,180
Corpurata Borids 597,295
Common Stacks _ 1,078,528
Totai Cash andl Investments Held by Custodian 2,968,769

Category 11

Fire:
“fighters’
Pension Fund

$ 104,905
250,360
701,592

448,652
842.950

§ 2348950

The General Fund holds $606,367 in investments which are included in “Restricted Assets ~ Cash and Cash
Equlva!ents“ because the investments are consmred cash ec;uzvaienks These investments consist of the fot!owmg

Local C:ovemment Surplus Trust Fund (SBA)
Florida Mumcjpa] Investmenit Trust - ST Bond Porifo!:o
Evergreen Insumzlonai Treasury MM Fund ‘

$ 575,662
30,675
30

The Police'Officers’ and Firefi ghiers Pénsion investments are- classified as Category IT investments. The General
Employees’ Pensior Fund investment in. Annuity Contract and the General Fund investments listed abové ave not
classifi ed mto any. nsk category because these mvestments are not securities as defined by GASB Statement No. 3.
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NOTE 12:

NOTE 13:

NOTE 14:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMEER 30,2007

CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

The State Board of Adminisiration's Loca! Government Surp!us Funds Trust Funid Investinent Pool is governed by
Chapter 19-7 of the Fidrida Administrative Code. The Fund is not a registrant wilh the Securitiés and Exchange
Cominission; however, the State Board of Administration hia$ adoptéd operating procedures consistent With the
requirements for a 2a-7 funds This tnvcss:xnent poo! purchases lowrisk government securities, high grade commercnal
debt and equity securities, cemmermal paper investment comgparies, répurchase and reverse repurchase agreements
real estate, futures, options aid a broad: range of other instruments. The City’s fair value for financial reporting is its
share. of the pool's accouiit balance, which is reponed by the pool at, amomzad cost, in accordanée with GASB
Statement 31. The fair valie of investments is determined on a monthly basis. The method used by the pool'to

. determine pamcapants’ ‘shareg so]d and redeerhed | is the amortized cost method. The pool has not provided or obtamad

any legally binding guaramees dunng the, year fo suppert the value of its shares. There 15 ne requ;lrement for
1nvo]untary participation in the pool: This’ investment pool s not msured by the State of Florida or the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corparation. GASB Statement 31 exempts siich invéstments from the creditrisk categorzacatmn requiremerit.
Separate financial statements of the State Board of Administration’s Lacal Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund
Investment Pool mav be obitained by contacting the'S/B. A. &t P.O. Box 13300, Tallahassee, Florida 32317-3300.

RIGHT-OF-WAY AGENCY FUND

The City holds $10,635 in ¢ash in custody for Southern Dunes right-of-way land maintenance.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The City has rcqcxved revenues and coritributions relatbd to grants from Federal agencies and the Staté of Florida
These grants are Tor specific purposés dnd are subject fo review and audit by the grantor agencws Such audits ceutd
result in request for reimbursernent far expend:tures disallowed under the terms of the grants. Based upon priof
experience, City management bélieves such disallowances, if any, will be immaterial

The Clry isa dq:t"endanrm legal actions w}uch in the opinion of management, will not have a material efféct on the
financial statements of the City. :

. The City is ohlsgated under certain leases accounted f‘er a3 operatmg leases. Operating Ieases do not give fise to
“property r1ghts and, therefore, the results of the lease agreements are notreflected in the (‘;ty s account greups

Allofthe City's operatmg leases aré renewedon @ monthiy or quarieriy basis; therefore, none of the leases have terms
in excess of ong year ) whwh would requne dxsclosure of future minimum lease payments.

The reptal expenditures were $16,339 and $915 for the General Fund and the Water and Sewer Furid, respectively,,
during theé year '

he City's former workers’ compensatlon insurer, Govemmenta] Risk Insurance Trust (GR_IT) a govamment't!
msurance pool, filed for Chapter 1 1 baukruptcy on March 30,2000 All claims arising on or after July 1, 1998, wilibe
ad_;usted and handled as if therg were no bankruptcy fi Emg Asto c]azms arising before July 1, 1998, GRIT has not
adjtisted claims or made paymants to cla:mants for either mdemmly or medical expenses,; or to any serviceé prowders
with.respect to claitns. The amount of these pre-ily 1, 1998 claims for the City of Hajnes City pursuant to GRIT'S
records is $348,787. Addltmnaﬂy, premmm averpaymems of $48,531 and Cuy—ﬁmdad claim paymerits of $68,027
were made by the City. The stim of these three arnounts which are owed to the City arid/or to its claimants, has been
filed by the Cuty ina "Proof of Claum‘lnserest” with the Bankruptcy Court. The amounts of any future liability or
bankruptty award are undeterrinable at this time and have therefore not been accrued in the attompdnying financial
statements, ' The City. i5 now resptmsxble fot administering the’ remaining open prs-l’uiy 1, 1998 claims, and has
recorded a designation of fund ’aalance of $1 87,562 at September 30, 2002 to help fund future claims payments.
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NOTE 15:

NOTE 16:

‘NOTE 17:

NOTE 18

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30. 2002

RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, demage to and destruction of assets; errars and
omissions; and natural disasters for which the City tarries commercial insurance. There have been no significant
reductions in insurance coverage from the previus ysar. Settlement amounts have not exceeded insurance coverage
for the current year or the three prior years:

INTERFUND ASSETS/UIABILITIES

There were ho interfund assets or liabilities as of September 30, 2002,

INTERFUND OPERATING TRANSFERS

Interfund opc;r'qting transfers for t-h;: fiscal ye'ar éndéd September 30, 2001, were as follows:

_EUND TRANSFER N TRANSFER QUT
* General $ 926,350 $ 565,887
Special Revenue 117,859 '
Deébt Service 434,288
Enterprise _ 13740 | .926350
$ 1,492,237 ¥ 1492237

CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS

In order to ielp alleviatg the shortage of decent, safe and sanitary housing for persons of low income; including families

. and elderly, handicapped and disabled persons in ihe Polk County area, the City has consented to 2 determination by

the U.S. Depaitment of Housing and Urban Development that a certain private non-profit corporation constitutes an

“instrumentalify” of the City and a “public heusing apency” for the purposes, of financing a low-income housing
project. ‘ ' :

The refated bond issues are not x‘iebis of thie City, the State of Florida, or of any municipality, county, political
subdivision or other bady cofporate and politic thereof,, nor is the City liable for such bonds.

The original Sc_'éries‘, 1982 bonds x#ere refunded asof Sc;p;ember 1, 1995, InFormation on the turrent bond issues {which
are FHA Insired Mortgage Loans - Section 8 Assisted Projects) as of September 30, 2002 is a5 follows:

Criginal Issue Balance Outsténdipgat
. Bond Issue - . — Amount September 30, 2002

Harbar Coirt beveiopr'nem,_ Inc. Mortgage -
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1595 A $ 1,375,000 £ 1,375,000

Harbor Court Development; Inc. Takable
Mortgage Revenue Refunding Bonds,

Series 1995 B 346,000 70,000°
Harbor Court Dévelopment, Inc: Subordinated ' o
Morigagé Revénue Refunding Bonds; Serics 1995 C 250,000 250.000
| $ 1,965.000 $ 1,695,000
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GENERAL FUND

FISCAL YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,

REVENUES
Ad valorem taxes
Franchise {zes
Utility taxes
Communications services tax
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Interest
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Public safety
Building, planning and zoning
Parks and recreation
Public works
Non-departmental
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiencies) of revenues
over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net changes in fund balances

Excess (deficiency of revenues and other financing

sources over expenditures and other financing uses

Fund balances, beginning

Fund balances, ending

2003

$5,234,419
913,773
1,730,870
855,387
1,416,741
1,474,967
544,766
205,925
123,922
353.892
$12.854.662

871,241
6,299,776
1,300,217
1,581,134

766,733

903,736

$11.722.837

1,131.825

(1.606029)

(474,204 )

1,351,381

$6.877.177

2002 2001
$7,403,931 $8,147,923
1,362,665 1,120,887
1,505,653 323,678
246,445 183,891
216,262 228,078
166,768 573,188
319,550 110,428
$11.221.274 $10.972.174
1,787,912 879,310
6,230,498 4,869,315
1,139,562 1,050,427
878,495 835,350
960,870 1,378,236
- 540,310
. 884,298
$10.997.337 $10.437.246
223,937 534,928
_(634.477) (4.328.965)
(634.477) (4.328.965 )
(410,540 ) -
. (3.794,037)
7.761.921 11.555.958
$ 7.351.381 $ 7.761.921

Certain of the above revenues are not legally available to make the Loan Repayments. No representation is made as to the amount of revenues

that are legally available to make the Loan Repayments
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Honorable Mayor, Village Council and Village Manager
Village of Pinecrest, Florida

We have audited the accompanying financial stetements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fimd and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Village of Pinecrest,
Florida (the Village) as of and for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2003, which, collectively, coinprise
the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Village’s management. Our respansibility is to express opinions on these financial
statemnents based on our audit.

‘We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptreller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audit provides z reasounable basis for our opinior.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fimd
and the aggregate remsining fund information of the Village, as of September 30, 2003, and the
respective chanpes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended
in conformity with accounting principles generaily accepted in the United States.

I accordance with Government Auditing Standards; we have also issued a report dated December 12,
2003 on our consideration of the Village’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. That report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in
conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis and the Required Supplementary Information on pages 3 to 11
and pages 33 to 34, respectively, are mot a required part of the basic financial statements, but are
supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied
certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods
of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did pot andit
the information and express no opinion on it.

MIAMI ® FORT LAUDERDALE = WEST PALM BEAGR » STUART

An Fudependent Member of Baker Tily International

H-2



Honorable Mayor, Village Council and Viliage Manager
Village of Pinecrest, Florida '
Page Two

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as
a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of state financial assistance is presented for
pucposes of additional analysis as required by the Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General, and the
combining and individual fund statements and schedules as listed in the table of contents and the required
supplementary information on page 33 are presented for purposes of addilional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic finrancial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly presented In
all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

The information identified in the table of contents as the Introductory and Statistical Sections has not been

subjected to the anditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial siatements, and,
accordingly, we express no opinion thereon.

Tkl LoArme §{ Moty 14F

Miami, Florida
December 12, 2003

Cobere

& foliz

Accounrares
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

SEPTEMEER. 30, 2003

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Rec.eivabies, net
Bond issue costs
Capital assets, not depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

Capital assets, net of accurnulated depreciation:

Buildings
Improvements
Equipment
Infrastructure
Totzl assefs

TIABITITIES

Liabilities: '

Accounfs payable

I.eases payable

Revenues collected in advance

Deferred revenue

Premium on bonds payable
Non-current liabilities:

Compensated absences, due within one year

Compensated absences, due in more than one year

Bonds payable, due within one yeur
Bonds payable, due in more than one year
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Restricted for transportation and public safety programs

Ugrestricted
Total net asscls

Business-
(Governmental type

Activitieg Activities Total
3 11,956,281 $1,208,558 § 13,164,839
1,091,352 25,560 1,116,912
129,174 - 129,174
16,177,529 - 16,177,529
2,573,248 - 2,573,248
3,386,390 - 3,385,390
1,451,485 - 1,451,485
935,888 - 935,888
102,993,670 2,126,691 105,120,361
140,695,017 3,360,809 144,055,826
1,044,937 1,044,837
71,102 - 71,102
- 113,600 113,600
640,201 - 540,201
245,089 - 245,089
147,520 - 147,520
26,033 - 26,033
570,000 - 570,000
13,930,000 - 13,930,000
16,674,882 113,600 16,788,482
112,626,007 2,126,691 114,752,698
1,091,999 - 1,081,559
10,302,129 1,120,518 11,422 647
$124,020,135 §324720% 5127267344

See notes to basic financial statements.
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Functions/Proorams

Gaovernments! activities:

QGenersl government

Public safety

Building, planning and zoning.

Parks and recreation

Public works

Interest on long-term debt
Total governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Stormwater

Total business-type activities
Totat

Vrirace oF PINECREST, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMAER 30, 2003

Program Revenues

‘Net {(Expensze) Revenue and

Operating Capital Chanpges m Net Assets
Charges for  Grantsand  Grants and Govermmental DBusiness-type
Expenses Services  Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Tats]
¥ 2261985 & - 5 - 3 - ¥ (2261985 § - § (2261985
6,354,107 254,538 128,720 - (5.565,849) - (5,969,849}
1,297978  [480,951 25,685 - 208,658 - 208,658
1,543,815 867,837 - 6,198,000 5,322,018 - 5522,018
4,608,117 - - 902,293 (3,705,824} - {3.705.824)
707,445 - - - {707,445) - {707,445}
16,773,451 2,603,326 155,408 7,100,293 (6,914,427 - (6,914,427
140,435 294,414 - - - 153,978 153,975
140,435 294,414 - - - 153,979 153,875
316,013,886 3$2897,740 § 155405 § 7,100,293 (6.914.427) 153,979 (6,760,448}
General Tevenues;
Ad valorem taxes 5,234,419 - 5,234,419
Franchise fees on gross receipts 913,773 - 913,773
Utility taxes 1,730,870 - 1,730,870
Communications services tax 855,387 - 853,387
Intergovernmental grants not restricted to specific programs 1,319,561 - -1,319.561
Charges for services 110,454 - 110454
Unrestricted interest eatnings 325,637 16,110 341,747
Miscellaneous 325,347 - 325,347
Total general revenues 10,815,448 16,110 10,831,558
Change in net assets 3,601.021 170.085 4071110
WNet assets - beginning 120,119,114 3,077,120 123,156,234
Net assets - ending £124020,135 § 3,247,209 $127,2687.344

See notes to basic financial starements,
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ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Recejvables, net

Total assets

VILLAGE or PmEcrEST, FLORIDA

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities;
Accounts payable
Deferred revenues

Total Habilities

Fund balances:
Reserved for encumbrances
Reserved for capital projects
Reserved for special revenue funds
Unreserved, undesignated
Total fimd balances
Total liabilities and fund balances

Amounts reported for govermnmental activities in the

statement of net assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not-reported in the funds,

Long term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable
in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds,

Net assets of governmental activities

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER. 30, 2003
{Capifal Other Total
General Projects  Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Funds Funds

$7.193.242 §3,749,375 $ 1,013,664 % 11,855,281

950,789 - 100.563 1,091,352

8,184,031  3,740375 1,114,227 13,047,633

666,653 338,705 6,946 1,013,304

540,201 - - 640,201

1,306,854 335,705 6,946 1.653,505

205,745 - 15,282 221,027

- 3232429 - 3,232,429

- - 1,091,999 1,091,999

6,671,432 177,241 - 6,848,673

6,877,177 3,409,670 1,107,281 11,394,128

58,184,031 $3,749375 § 1,114.227

127,518,210
{14.892.203)

See notes to basic financial statements,

£124,020,135



VitrAce oF PINECREST, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR EMDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Revetues:
Ad valorem faxes
Franchise fees
Utility taxes
Communications services tax
Licenses and permits
Intergovermnmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Interest
Miscellaneous

Total revenmes

Expenditures:

Current:
General govermment
Public safety
Building, planning and zoning
Purks and recreation
Public works
Non-departmental

Deht service:
Principal
Interest

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of tevenues
over expenditures

Other financing sources {uses):
Transiers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uscs)

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances, beginning

Fund balances, ending

Capital Other Total
General Projects  Governumental Governmental
Fund Fund Funds Funds
$5,234419 § - - § 3234419
913,773 - 913,773
1,730,870 - - 1,730,870
855,387 - - 855,387
1,416,741 - - 1,416,741
1,474,967 6,198,000 902,292 8,575,259
544,766 - - 544,766
205,925 - 8,599 214,524
123,922 177,893 10,923 312,738
353,892 505,836 3,368 863,096
12,854,662 6,881,729 925,182 20,661,573
871,241 1,054,827 - 1,926,068
6,299,776 - 3,255 6,303,031
1,300,217 - - 1,300,217
1,581,134 13,797,720 - 15,378,854
766,733 - 566,093 1,332,826
903,736 - - 903,736
- - 550,000 550,000
~ - 701,267 701,267
11,722,837 14,852,547 1,820,615 28,395,999
1,131,825 (7,970,818) {895,433)  (7,734,426)
- 380,770 1,251,267 1,632,037
{1,606,029) - (26,008)  (1,632,037)
(1,606,029) 380,770 1,225,259 -
(474,204) (7,590,048) 329,826  (7,734,426)
7,351,381 10,999,718 777,455 19,128,554
511,394,128

36,877,177 §3,408670 & 1,107.281
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ViLLAGE OF PINecrEST, FLORIDA

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE OF GOVERNMENTAL

Amounts reported for governmental activities are different because:
Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (Page 15)

Govemmenta] fimds report capital outlays as expenditures. However,
in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated
over their estirpated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.
This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation

in the current peried.

‘The details of the difference are a5 follows:
Loss on disposal of capital assets

Capital outlay
Depreciation
Net adjustment

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bends, master leases) provides
current financial resources to govermmental funds, while the
repayment of the principal of lang-term debt consumes the current
financial resources of governmental funds. Neither twansaction,
however, has any effect on net assets.

The details of the ditference ure as follows:

Issuance premium
Issuance costs
Principal payments
Accrued interest
Capital lease

Net adjustment

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require
the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not
reported as expenditures in governmental funds:

The detail of the difference is as follows:

Cornpensated absences

Change in net assets of governmental activities (Page 13)

FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

See notes to basic financial statements.

5(7,734,426)

§ (463,104)

16,382,484
(4,807,419)

11,111,961
$ 12,899
(6,799)
550,000
620
(58,926)

497,794

25,692

$ 3,901,021



ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Capitul assets, net
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Revenues collected in advanse

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets
Urnrestricted
Total net assets

ViLAGe oF PINECREST, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUND

SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

See notes to basic financial statements,
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Stormwater
Fund

31,208,558
23,560
2,126,691
3,360,809

__113,600

2,126,691
1,120,518
53,247,209



STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

Operating revenues:
Utlity fees

Operating expenses:
Cost of sales
Depreciation
Total operating expenses

Operating mcome

Nonoperating revenue:
Interest earnings

Charnge in net assets
Total net assets, beginning

Total net assets, ending

V1LLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

PROPRIETARY FUND
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

See notes to basic financial statements.
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Stormwater
Fund

§ 294414

96,129
44,306
140,435

153,979

16,110

170,089
3,077,120

53,247,209



VILLAGE OF PINECrEST, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF CASILFLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER. 30, 2003

Cash flows from operating activifies:
Receipts from customers and users
Payments to supplies
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest teceived

Net increase irs cash and cash equivaients

Cash and cash equivalenis, beginning
Ctash and cash equivalents, ending

Reconeiliation of operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Crperating income
Adjustments to reconeile operating income to net
cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease in accounts receivable
Increase in revenues eollected in advance
Decrease in accounts payable
Total adjustments

Net cash provided by operating activities

See notes to basic financial statements.
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Stormwater
Fund

$ 351,003

( 104,229)
246,774

16,110
262,884
945,674

51,208,558

$ 153,979

44,306

18,233
38,356

__(8,100)
92,795

§ 246,774



VILLAGE OF PINECREST
NUTES TO BASIC FI;NA_NCLAL STATEMENTS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEFTEMBER 30, 2003

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A. Reporting entity

The Village of Pinecrest was incorporated on March 12, [996 by the laws of the State of Florida
12635. 'The Village of Pinecrest aperates under a Courcil-Manager form of government and
provides the following services: public safety (police}, public works, building, planning and
zoning, code enforcement, stormwaler management, and parks and recreation. The basic
financial statements of the Village of Pinecrest have been prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for
establishing governmenta! and financial reporting principles,

The financial statcrments were prepared in accordance with GASB Statement No. 14, The
Financial Reporting Entity, which establishes standards for defining and reporting on the
financial reporting entity. The definition of the financial reporting entity is based upon the
concept that elected officials are accountable to their constituents for their actions. Ope of the
objectives of financial reporting Is to provide users of financial statements with a basis for
assessing the accountability of the elected officials, The financial reporting entity consists of the
Village of Pinecrest, organizations for which the Village of Pinecrest if financially accountable,
and other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the
Village of Pinecrest are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s fimancials
statements to be misleading or incomplete. The Village of Pinecrest is financially accountable for
a component unit if it appoints a voting majority of the organization’s governing board and it is
able to impose its will on that organization or there is a potential for the organization to provide
specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on the Village of Pinecrest.
Based upon the application of these criteria, there were no organizations that met the crteria
described above.

B. Government-wide and fund financial statements

The government-wide financial statements (i. e., the statements of net assets and the statement of
changes in net assets) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the Village of
Pinecrest. The effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements.
Governmental activities, which nonnally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues,
are reported separately from business-type activities which rely to a significant extent on fees and
charges for suppoit.

The staterment of activities demonstrates the degree 1o which the direct capenses of a given
function or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges
provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requiremnents of a particular function or segment. Taxes and
other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead us general
Tevenues.
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST

NOTES TO BASIC FINANGCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continved)

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICYES (Continued)
B. Government-wide and fund financial statements (Continued)

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and the proprietary fund.
Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as
separate columns in the fund financial statements.

C. Measurement focus, basis of accosnting, and finandal staternent presentation

The govemment-wide financial statements are reported using the econmomic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting as is used for the proprietary fund
financial statements. Revepues are recorded when eamed and expenses are recorded when a
tiability is incorred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized
as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar iterns are recognized as
revenue as soGn as all eligibility requirements imposed by the agency have been met.

Governmentzal fund financial statements are reported using the cwrent finapcial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the
carrent period. For this purpose, the Village considers revenues to be avaifable i they are
collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incumred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgrments,
are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses and interest associated with the current fiscal period are
all considered to be susceptible o accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the cument
fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and availabie only when

cash is received by the Village.
The Village of Pinecrest reports the following major governmental funds:
» The general fund is the Village's primary operating fund. It accounts for all finuncial
resources of the peneral povernment, except those required to be accounted for in another

fuad.

= The capital projects furd receives transfers from the general fund as well as grants and
accounts for purchases of land and improvements to the parks and buildings in the
Commueity.

The Village reports its only proprictary fund as a major fund:
» The stormwater fund (an enterprise fund) accounts for the stormwater coatrol activities of

the community. Funds are received from business and residential users and used to
maintain the stormwater collection system.
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YILLAGE OF PINECREST

NOTES TQ BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C. Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation
(Continued)

Private sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued piior to December 1, 1989
generally are followed in both the govermnment-wide and propristary fund financial statements to
the extent that those standards do oot conflict with or centradict guidance of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. Governments also bave the option of following subsequent private
sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise fands, subject to this same
limitation. The Village of Pinecrest has elected not to follow subsequent private sector guidance.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program
revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions. General revenues include alf taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and procucing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fand's principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of the stormwater fund are charges to business and residential
customers for stormwater systern maiptenance. Operating expenses report on the costs to
maintain the stormwater system, the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses and
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported
as non-operating revenues and expenses.

D. Assets, liabilities and net assets or equity
1. Deposits and investments

Cash and cash equivalents, which are cash and short-term investments with maturities of three
months or less, include cash on hand, a repurchase agreement and investments with the State
Board of Administration Investment Paol. Investments are yeported at fair valoe.

2. Capitn} assets

Capital assets, which include property, land, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e. g., roads,
bridges, sidewalks and similar iterns), are veported in the applicable governmental or business-
type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements, Capital assets dre
defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $10,000
{armount net rounded) and an cstimated useful fife in excess of three years. Such assets are
recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated
capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2. Capital assets (Continued)

The costs or normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend assets {ives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and
improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.

Capital assets of the Villzage are depreciated using the straight line method over the following
estimated nseful lives:

o Buildings ~ 40 years
o Improverents — 15 years
o FEquipment :
® Cars— 5 years
*  Trucks - 10 years
= Equipment - 5 year§
» Computer equipment — 3 years
o Infrastructure:
* Roads — 23 years
= Stormwater system — 30 years

3, Compensated absences

Village employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts based on length of
service and the department that the employee services.

The Village’s sick leave policy is to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused sick
pay benefits. Such leave is accrned and reported as a fund Lability when it is probable that the
Village will compensate the employze in the following fiscal year. Unused sick pay is not
pald at termination.

The Village’s vacation policy is that earned vacation must be taken within one year of the
employes's aaniversary. Carryover is limited to two hundred and forty (240) hours. Unused
vacation pay, if any, is paid with the employee’s termination or retirement. Those amounts
estimated to be liquidated with expendable availzble financial resources from the general fund
are reported as expenditures and a fund liability of the general fund.

4. Long-term obligations

I the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations
are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities or business-type activities,
Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the
life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the
applicable bond premium or discount, Bond issuance costs are reporied as deferred charges
and amartized over the term of the related debt.

H-15



VYILLAGE OF PINECREST

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continued)

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICYES (Continued)
D. Assets, liabilities and net assets or equity (Continued)
4. Long-term obligations (Continued)

[n the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond preminms and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt
issued is reported as an other financing source, Premivms received on debt issuances are
reported as an other financing source while discounts on debt issuances are repoced as an
other financing vse. Issuance cost, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds
received are reported as debt service expenditures.

5. Property faxes

Property 1axes for the current year were zssessed and collected by Miami-Dade County and
subsequently remitted to the Village. Property taxes are assessed as of January ! each year
and are first billed (levied) and due the following November 1. Under Florida law, the
assessment of all properties and the collection of all county, municipal, school board and
special district property taxes are copsolidated in the offices of the County Property Appraiser
and Coounty Tax Coltlector. The laws for the State regulating tax assessments are also designed
to assure 2 consistent property valuation method statewide. State statutés permit
nnicipalities to levy property taxes at a rate of up to 10 mills ($10 per $1,000 of assessed
taxable valuation), The millage rate assesscd by the Village for the year ended September 30,
2003 was 2.40 milis.

The tax levy of the Village is established by the Village Council prior to October 1 of each
year, and the County Property Appraiser incorporates the millage into the tax levy, which
includes Miami-Dade County, Miami-Dade County School Board and special taxing districts.

All property is reassessed according to its fair market value as of Junuary 1 of each year. Each
assessment roll is submitted to the Executive Director of the State Department of Revenue for
review to determine if the rolls meet ull of the appropriate requirements of State Statures.

All real and tangible personal property taxes are due and payable on November 1, each year or
as soon as practicable thereafter as the assessment roll is certified by the County Property
Appraiser. Miami-Dade County mails to each property owner on the assessment roll notice
of the taxes due and Miumi-Dade County also collects the taxes for the Village. Taxes may be
paid upon receipt of such notice from Miami-Dade County, with discounts at the rate of four
percent (4%) if paid in the montb of November, three percent (3%) if paid in the month of
Decermber, two percent (2%) if paid in the month of January and one percent (1%) if paid in
the month of February. Taxes paid during the month of March are without discount, and all
unpaid taxes on real and tangible personal property become delinquent and liens are placed on
April 1 of the year following the year in which taxes were assessed.  Procedures for the
collection of delinguent taxes by Miami-Dade County are provided for in the aws of Florida.
There were no roaterial delinguent property taxes at September 30, 2003
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continuved)

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continged)
D. Assets, habilities and net assets or equity (Continued)
4. Fund equity

In the fund financial staternents, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for
amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for
use for a specific purpose.

7. Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United Stares requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accorpanying notes.  Although
theses estimates are based on managemnent’s knowledge of current events and actions it may
undertake in the future, they may ultimately differ from actual results.

NOTE 2. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. Explanatien of certain differences between the goverminenial fund balance sheet and the
government-wide statemnent of net assets.

The govemmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance — total
governmental funds and net assets — governmental activitics as reported in the government-wide
staternent of net assets. One element of that reconciliation explains that long-term liabilities,
including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not
reported in the funds. The details of this difference are as follows:

Bonds payable $14,500,000
Issued premiam (to be amortized against interest expense) 245,089
Issue costs (to be amortized over life of debt) (129,174)
Accrued interest payable 31,633
Capital leases payable 71,102
Compensated absences 173,533
Net adjustment to reduce fund balance ~ total governmental funds

to arrive at net assets - governmental activities $14,892.203
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continved)

NOTE 3. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS
A. Depogits and investments
Deposits

In addition to insurance provided by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation, all
deposits are held in banking institutions approved by the State Treasurer of the State of Florida
to hold public funds. Under Florida Statutes Chapter 280, Florida Security for Public Deposits
Act, the State Treasurer yequires all Florida qualified public depositories to deposit with the
Treasurer or banking institation eligible collateral. In the event of a failure of a qualified
public deposiiory, the remaining public depositories would be responsible for covering any
resulting losses.

Investments

Village administration is authorized to invest in those instruments authorized by Florida
statutes. Cash and cash equivalents as presented on the statement of net assets and the balance
sheet include deposits (cash) and investments held under a repurchase agreement and the
Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund administered by the State Board of
Administration. The invesiment at the State Board of Administration, which is carried at
$11,259,172 at Seprember 30, 2003, is not subject to risk categorization. The Investment Pool
is reported at its fair value of its position in the Pool, which is the same as the value of the
pocl shares.

The Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund is governed by Ch. 19-7 of the Florida
Administrative Code, which identifies the Rules of the State Board of Adonistration. These
rules provide guidance and establish the general operaling procedures for the administration of
the Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fuad. Additionally, the Office of the Auditor
General performs the operational audit of the activities and investrents of the State Board of
Adrministration. The Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund is not a registrant with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC); however, the Board has adopted operating
procedures consistent with the requirements for a 2a-7 fund.

The investrrient in the repurchase agreement, which is carried at fair vaive of $1,804,193 at
Septeraber 30, 2003, is classified as a Category 1 risk - insured or registered, or securities held
by the Village or its agent in the Village’s name.

The reconciliation of the deposits and investments on the statement of pet assets is as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents $13,164.839
Carrying amount of deposits 5 101474
Carrying amount of investments 13,063,365
Total £13,164,839
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continued)

NOTE 3. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)
B. Receivables

Receivables as of September 30, 2003 for the Village's individual major and nonmajor funds, in
the aggregate, including the appliceble allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

MNonmaior  Storme

General Funds water Total

Mote receivable $ 640,201 3% - § - § 640,201
Intergovernmental 93,250 100,563 - 193,813
Franchise and utility 229,896 - - 229,8%6
Ad valorem taxes 7.701 - - 7,701
Other 19,741 - 25,560 45,301
Gross receivables 90,789 100,563 25,560 1,116,912
Less allowance for doubtful accounts - - - -

Total receivables 3 690,789 § 100,563 $ 25,560 $1,116,912

Tn December 2001, the Village executed a note receivable under a lease purchase agreement with
Miami-Dade County School Board for Jand to be used as a parking lot. Under the terms of the
agreement, the Village is to receive annual rentals of approximately $91,600 including interest,
payable in monthly installments of approximately $7,600, including interest at 3.95% beginning
in January, 2002 and through December 2011. The balance of the note receivable at September
30, 2003 of $640,201 is included in deferred revenue,

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are
not coasidered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds
also defer Tevenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet
earned.

Future minimum lease payments reflecting principal to be received are as follows:

For the year ended September 30:

2004 $ 67,637
2005 70,359
2006 73,189
2007 76,129
2008 79,553
2009-2011 273,334

$ 640,201
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 3. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)
C. Capital assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended September, 2003 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Governmental activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land 5 6336243 § 9841286 % - § 16,171,529
Construction in progress 32,643 2,520,603 - 2,573,248
Total capitai assets, not belng depreciated 6,388,888 12,361,889 - 18,750,777
Capital assets, Eaing depreciated:
Buildings 1,570,720 2,394,436 437,923 3,527,233
Improvements 1,385,946 307,217 - 1,693,163
Fquipment 1,208,331 707,984 25,181 1,851,134
Infrastructuse 148,336,838 610,958 - 148,947,796
Total capiial assets, heing depreciated 152,501,835 4,020,595 463,104 156,039,326
Less accumulated depreciation for: ‘
Buildings (115,304) (25,539} - (140,843)
Improverments (149,281} (92,397} “ {241.678)
Equipment (737.917) {217,329} - (855,246)
Infrastructure (41,481,972) (4472,154) - (43,954.126)
Total accumulated depreciation {42,484, 474) (4,867,419 - (47,291, 893)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 110,017,361 (786,824) 463,104 108,767,433
Governmental activities capital assets, net 3 116406248 5 11,575065 § 463,104 § 127,518,210
Business type activities:
Capital assets being depreciated:
Infrastructure 5 4850941 3 - % - § 4850941
Less accumulated depreciation
for infrastructure (2,679,944) (44,306) - (2,724,250)
Total capitat assets, being depreciated, net 2,170,997 (44,306} - 2,126,691
Business type activitics capital assets, nel §_ 217097 % (44,30¢) $ - § 2,126,691
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST

NOTES TQ BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 3. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)
C. Capital assets (Continued)

Depreciation expense was charged to function/programs of the primary government as follows:

Govemmental activities:

General government b 9,585
Public safety 187,156
Public works 4,540,334
Building, planniog, and zoning 11,671
Recreation 58,673

Total depreciation expense, governmental activities $4.807.419

Business type activities:

Stormwater $ 44,306

Total depreciation expense, business type activities $ 44,306

D. Transfers

The compaosition of interfund transfers as of September 30, 2003, is as follows:

Transfers out Iransfers In Amount
General Fund Debt Service $1,251,267
General Fund Capital Projects Fund 380,770
Transportation Fund Debt Service {26,008}

Total general fund $1,606,029

E. Capital Lenses

The Village leases a vehicle and office equipment under pon-cancelable capital leases expiring in
2009. Total liability for such leases was $71,102 as of September 30, 2003. The future minimam
lease payments for these leases are as follows:

Fiscal year ending September 30:

2004 521,598
2005 21,598
2006 11,274
2007 7,128
2008 7,128
2008 2,376

$71,102
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST

NQTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 3. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)
F. Long-term debt

Florica Municipal Lean Revenue Bonds, Series 1999 and Series 2002. The Village of Pinecrast
has issued two bonds as follows: The first issue was for $8,155,000 for the development of
Pinecrest Park, the Village Hall and other capital improvement projects; the second issue was for
$7,740,000 for the purchase and development of Parrot Jungle which is now known as Pinecrest
Gardens. The bonds have an outstanding balance of $14,500,000, and are due in varying
installments through May 1, 2022 and bear interest rates from 3.2% to 5.5% with interest paid
semiannually. The principal and interest on these bonds are payable from a pledge of non-ad
valorem revenues, as defined.

A deferred charge for bond issuance costs of $129,174 a decrease of $6,799 from last years
balance of $135,973 has been recorded in the government-wide Anancial statements,

Principal Interest Total
Fiscal year ended September 30:
2004 & 570,000 § 707,589 § 1,277,589
2005 590,000 685,802 1,275,802
2006 615,000 659,449 1,274,449
2007 640,000 631,484 1,271,484
2008 665,000 605,244 1,270,244
2009-2013 : 3,785,000 2,571,501 6,356,501
20142018 4,310,000 1,527,731 6,337,731
2019-2022 2,825,000 324,744 3,149,744

$14,500,000 $7,713,944 $22,213,044

Changes in long-term debt of governmental activities during the year are surmimnarized as follows:

Balance Balance  Due Within

9/30/2002  Additions Reductions  9/30/2003 One Year

Bonds payable $15050,000 3% - % 550,000 $14,500,000 % 570,000
Compensated absences 199,245 173,553 169,245 173,553 147,520

$15249.245 $173,553 § 749,245 §$14,673,553 § 717,520

Cornpensated absences are paid from the General Fund in the form of vacation pay.
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 4. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
A. Risk Management

The Village is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of or damage to and
destruction of assets, errors and omissions, injuries to empioyess, and natural disasters for which
the Village carries insurance through the Fiorida League of Cities, There were no significant
reductions in insurance coverage from the coverage in the prior year. There were no settled
claims that have exceeded insurance coverage for f:ach of the past three years.

B. Litigation

The Village is a defendant in various lawsuits incidental to its operations. Although the outcome
of these lawsuits is not presently determinable, it is the opinion of the Village’s management and
legal counsel that resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the
financial condition of the Village.

C. Contingent Liabilities

Amounts received or meceivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by
grantor agencies. Any disallowed clairms, including amounts already collected, may constitute a
liability of the applicable funds. In the opinion of management, foture disallowances of grant
expenditures, if any, would not have a material adverse effect on the Village’s financial
condition.

D. Interlocal agreement

On June 17, 1997 the Village entered into an interlocal agreement with Miami-Dade County to
pass through the Village's share of franchise fees on electricity collected from Florida Power &
Light. Under this agreement, the County remitted $831,309 to the Village for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2003. This agreement will be in effect as long as the Ordinance establishing
the collection of these fees is in place.

On July 17, 2003 the Village entered into another interiocal agreement with Miami-Dade County.
Under this agreement, the County remitred $240,577 to the Village for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2003 for the purpose of providing transportation services within the Village. This
agreemeat shall remain if effect as long as the County receives net proceeds from the Y2 cent
County Transit Systemn Sartax as authorized by Miami-Dade County Ordinance No. 02-116
pursuant to the authority of Section 212.055(1) Flornda Statates 2002.

E. Defined Contribution Plan

The Village of Pinecrest 401(a) Money Purchase Plan is a defined contribution plan established
by the Viltage to provide benefits at retirement for its employees. Al full time employees must
be a member of the plan. Plan members are required to contribute 6% of base earnings for the
plan year. The Village is required to contribute 12% of base earnings for each participant for the
plan year. Plan provisions and contribution requirements are established and may be amended by
the Village Council,
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST

. NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continued)

NOTE 4. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)
E. Defined Contribution Plan (Continued)

The Plan’s assets are administered by ICMA Retirement Corporation. The Village does not
exercise any contro! over the plan assets. Village contributions to the plan were $56’3 A70. There
are current year forfeitures of $8,887, which will be used in Lieu of Village contributions in fscal
2004. Employee contribytions were $281,735 for the year ended September 30, 2003.

F. Construction Commitments

A construction commitment is defined as the difference between the contract price of a project
and the amount paid on that contract through the fiscal year ended September 30, 2003.
Outstanding construction commitments at September 30, 2003 are approximately $2.9 million for
projects which include the development of a pew govermmental center and various park
renovations and improvements. These projects are all fully funded.
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Fiscal {(General
Year Government

2002 $2,343,210

2003 2,261,985

Public
Safety

§6,553,175

6,354,107

VILLAGE oF PINECREST, FLORIDA.
GOVERNMENT-WIDE EXPENSES BY FUNCTION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (1)

Building, Parks Inferest on

Planning, and Public Long-term
and Zoning Recreation Worls Debt Stormwater

$1,174,935 51,649,759 $5,153.407 $ 376,730 § 126274

1,297,978 1,543,819 4,608,117 707,445 140,435

(1) Information for fiscal years ended September 30, 2001 and prior is unavailable.

TABLE 1

Total
317,377,490

16,913,886
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

GOVERNMENT-WIDE REVENUES

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (1)
Program Revenues General Revenues
Charges Operating Capital Inter-
Fiseal for Grants and Grants and Governmental
Year Services Contributions Coniributions Taxes General Interest Misc.
2002 $1.870,247 § 167070 $ 823952 $7,403,931 $ 1,331.958 §252,897 5312786
2003 3,008,194 155,405 7,100,293 8,734,449 1,319,561 341,747 325347

(1) Information for fiscal years ended September 30, 2001 and prior is unavailable.

TABLE2

Total
$12.162,841

20,984,956
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Fiscal
Year

1996

1957

1998

199%

2000

2001

2002

2003

General

Government

5 198,327
4,418,431
664,927
942,232
1,168,254
2,672,903
2,286,651

2,829,804

Public
Safety

$ 104,140
2,095,487
3,824,262
3,188,554
4281848
8,620,042
6,238,449

6,303,031

VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

Building,
Planrning,

and Zoning

% -

724,070
695,314
912.126
1,067,392
1,139,562

1,300,217

Source: Genernl fund for fiscal years 1996 through 1998,
General fund and special revenue funds for fiscal year 1999,
All governmental funds for fiscal years 2000 through 2003

Note: The Village incorporated in March, 1996.

Capital outlay is distributed to the department level commencing in 2002.

This schedule 1s prepared on a GAAP basis.

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Parks
and Public
Recreation Works
h] . 5 -
3,129 126,825
- 331,817
1,976,906 1,054,790
3.492.816 502,625
1,086,937 1,413,193
1,647,616 1,366,260
15,378,854 1,332,826

GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION

Nen-

Departmental

5

217,095
354,434
459,461

540,310

Debt
Service

636,826
634,110
770,450

1,251,267

TABLE 3

Total

$ 302467
6,643,872
5,762,171
8,212,250

11,453,956
16,057,787
13,448,988

28,395,999
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TABLE 4
VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL REVENUES BY SOURCE

LASTTEN FISCAL YEARS
Licenses Charges Fines
Fiscal and Inter- for and
_{ga_r_ Taxes Permits (Governmental Services Forfeitiures Interest Mise, Total
1996 $1,153,906 b - § 220,611 3 . 3 - 5 . 3331 $1,417,848
1597 7277312 126,514 293,524 4,604 6,779 83.376 10,762 7,803,271
1998 7,360,276 893,005 314,559 77,128 137,634 240,461 27,470 8,050,533
1999 8318873 829,305 463,889 385,923 193,163 472,792 87,193 10,751,138
2000 B.423,089 1,051,945 1,488,698 447,999 229,366 1,039,238 214,836 12,895,171
2001 8,673,171 1,120,887 979,321 380716 231,873 892,535 110428 12,398,931
2002 1,403,931 1,362,665 2,322 980 246,445 215,151 252,897 321,026 12,129,095
2003 8,734,449 1,416,741 8,575,259 544,766 214,524 312,738 863,096 20,661,573

Source: General fund for fiscal years 1996 through 1998.
General fund and special revenue funds for fiscal year 1999,
All governments! funds for fiscal years commencing 2000

Note: The Village icorporated in March, 1996,
This schedule is prepared on a GAAT basis.



Fiscal
Yeur

1996
1997
1998
1999
2000
2001
2002

2003

VILLAGE oF PINECREST, FLORIDA
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

TABLE 5

Note: The Village incorporated in March, 1996

H-30

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

. Peroent of

Total Current Percent Delinquent Total Total Tax
Adjusted Tax of Levy ' Tax Tax Coliections
Tax Levy Coilections Collected Collections Collections Tax Levy
$ -3 - 00% 8 -8 . 0.0%
3,305,000 3,505,000 100.0% - 3,505,000 100.0%
3,683,036 3,558,505 96.6% 5,411 3,563,916 96.8%
3,553,794 3,421,106 26.3% 7,312 3,428412 96.5%
3,717,923 3,585,102 96.4% 14,277 3,599,379 96.8%
3,829.974 3,766,677 98.3% 8,497 3,775,174 98 6%
4,214,407 4,137,179 98.2% 7,872 4,145,051 98.4%
5,303,627 5,221,224 08.4% 13,195 5,234,419 98.7%



Fiscal
Yeur

1996
1997
1998
19589
2000
2001
2002

2003

Note : The Village incorporated in March 1996.

VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
ASSESSED VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY

Real
Property
Assessed

Yalue

1,581,300,733
1,657,437,548
1,736,986,871
1,832,884,111
2,028,549,847
2,231,723,235

2,457,111,202

Personal

Property

Assessed

Value

L )
41,182,484
42 538,893
48,367,813
49,266,728
44 (051, 288

45,728,441

42,781,470
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TABLE 6

Assessed

Property

Yalue

1,622,483,217
1,699,976,441
1,785,354,684
1,882,150,839
2,072,601,135
2,277,451,676

2,495,892,672



CeH

Village

ViLrace or PinecrEST, FLORIDA

PROPERTY TAX RATES - DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS

School

Fiscal Operating Operating Debt

Year Millage Millage Service
1996 - - -
1997 2277 9.356 1.106
1998 2.100 6,182 0.978
1999 2.100 8.054 0590
2000 2.100 8.702 0915
2001 2.100 8.528 0.848
2002 2.400 B482 0770
2003 2.400 B418  (L682

Everglades
Project

0.160
0.100
0.100
0.160
0.100
0.100

0.190

Note: The Village incorporated in March 1996.

TABLE7

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
State
South
Florida County Special Districts
Water Operating  Debt  Children’s  Fire Fire Total
Management TFIN Millage Bervice Trust Rescue Debt Library Millage
0.597 0.0500 6.023  (.929 - 2650 0075 0316 23.479
0.597 0.0470 6.023  0.837 - 2796 0068 0334 23.062
0.597 0.0440 5.809 0.816 - 2.683  0.06% 0321 22183
0.597 0.0410 5.751 0.652 - 2683 0069 0351 21861
0.597 0.0385 5713 0.582 - 2.683 0069 0451 21.680
0.597 0.0385 5.88%  (.390 - 2,582 0079 0486 21.814
0.597 0.0385 5.969 0.285 0500 2.582 0.079 0486 22137



TABLE 8
VILLAGE OF PiNeECREST, FLORIDA

PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS
SEPTEMBER. 30, 2003

Percentage
2003 of Total

Assessed Assessed

Taxpaver Type of Use Valuation Valuation
Spector & Sons Shopping Center 522,557,677 3.90%
Kendall Imports LLC Shopping Center 17,393,600 0.70%
Kendall Plaza, 1LTD Shopping Center 13,907,613 0.56%
Bell South Telephone Telecommuunications 12,862,481 0.51%
Similand Associates Shopping Center 11,465,079 0.46%
Kemneth L Shimm Shopping Center 11,306,271 0.45%
Gator Dadeland Partners, LTD Shopping Center 9,300,000 0.37%
Florida Power & Light Co. - Eleciric Power 7,425,330 0.30%
Kendall House Apartments Apartments 6,500,000 0.26%
Raymond F. Forgarty, TT Shopping Center 6,360,012 0.25%

Source: Miami-Dade County Tax Assessor's Office 2003 Tax Roll
Real/Personal Property taxable value - $2,499,892,672
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Fiscal Village

Year Population
1999 17,984
2000 18,055
2001 19,064
2002 19,078
2003 19,286

Notes: *In thousands
{1} Fiscal year 2000, US Census.

VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

RATIO OF SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT TO
ASSESSED VALUE AND BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA

Assessed
Value *

$1,736,987
1,832,994
2,028,550
2,231,723

2,457,111

SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Special
Bonded
Debt

(Pinecrest)*

$ 8,155
7,880
7,600

15,050

14,500

The Village had no bonded debt prior to 1995,

H-34

Ratio of
Ratio of Annual Debt
Bonded Service
Debtto General
Assegseci Government
Value Expenditures
0:47% 0.00%
0.43% 556%
4.37% 3.95%
0.67% 5.731%
0.59% 4.41%

Fiscal years 2002 and thercafier the population as estimated by the Bureau
of Econornic and Business Research, University of Florida as of April 1 each year.

TABLE 9

Bonded
Debt
Per
Capita

$ 453
414
399
789

752



TABLE 10
ViuLace of PmNecresT, FrLorma

COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING BONDED DERT
GENERAT, OBLIGATION BONDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Percentage Amount' Amount
Bonded Applicable  Applicable Per
Debt to to Capita
Turigdiction Outstanding Pingcrest Pinesrest  Pinecrest (1}
Direct: ‘
Village of Pinecrest § 14,500,000 100.00% $14,500,000 % 752
Overiapping: ‘
School Board (2) $ 790,200,000 0.81% ¥ 6434245 % 334
County 247,541,000 0.81% 2015616 103
$1,037,741,000 5 8449861 § 439
Notes:

(1) Based upon population; Village of Pincerest and Miami-Dade County
(2) Amounts provided by School Board are as of Jime 30th.
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Fiscal
Year

1997

1998

1999

2000

2001

2002

2003

TABLE 11

VILLAGE oF PINECREST, FLORIDA

FROPERTY VALUES, BUILDING CONSTRUCTION AND BANEK DEPOSITS

Assessed

Property
Yalue (1)

$1,622,483.217
1,699,976,441
1,785,354,684
1,882,150,839
2,072,601,135
2,277,451,676

2,499,892,672

SEPTEMBER 30, 2103
Building Constmctian.
Residential Commercial Banik
Units Value Units  Value Deposits (2)
4§ 1,750,000 3 - NA

38 14,814,555 “ NA
43 13,031,215 1 157,000 NA
50 26,655,350 3 2,042,445 NA
51 27,647,079 3 1,000,000 507,999,000 (3)
41 25,751,072 5 18,560,000 576,081,000 (3)
51 36,246,380 - - 586,514,000 (3)

Note: a) Construction refers to new constructions only; improvements are not included in these figures.
b) The Village incorporated in March, 1996.

Sources:

1) Property values are estimated at one hundred percent (100%) of assessed

real and personal property values,
2} State of Florida, Division of Banking, as of June 30 of each respective year.
3) Reflects Pinectest Banks only.
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Date of Incorporation
Population
Form of Government

Number of Employees
Full-Time
Part-Time

Area in Square Miles

Village of Pinecrest Facilities and Services:
Miles of Streets
Police Protection
MNumber of Stations
Number of Police Personnel and Officers
Number of Police Vehicles

Facilities and Services provided by agencies other than the Village of Pinecrest:

Culture and Recreation
Parks
Park Acreage
Tennis Courts

Education
Number of Public Elementary Schools (Palmetic & Pinecrest)
Number of Public Elementary Instructors
Number of Public Elementary Students
Number of Public Middle Schools (Palmetto)
Number of Public Middle School Instructors
Number of Public Middle School Stadents
Number of Public High Schools (Mianti Palmetio)
Number of Public High Schoe! Instructors
Number of Public High School Students

Facilities and Services provided by companies:
Cable Television System
Providers (Adelphia, Comeast, & Charter Commumications)
Miles of Service

H-37

TABLE 12

March 12, 1996
19,268
Council-Manager

t13

81

108

78

33

60

110
1608

68
1780

165
3400

138.5
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CITY OF OAKLAND PARK, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
GENERAL FUND
FISCAL YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,

2003 2002 2001
REVENULS:
Taxes:
Ad Valorem $ 8,950,986 $ 8,241,777 $ 6,678,911
Utility taxes 4,848,291 4,842,239 3,770,529
Franchise fees 1,855,311 1,828,291 1,188,006
Licenses and permits 849,317 918,206 928,387
Intergovernmental 3,327,550 3,163,683 3,117,084
Charges for services 5,670,462 3,020,820 3,003,564
Fines and forfeitures 434,575 516,785 372,940
Investment earnings 47,797 - -
Other 244970 65.487 247.639
Total revenues $26.309.239 $ 22,597,288 $ 20.307.060
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government 6,442,951 5,988,212 5,368,410
Public safety 10,056,236 10,242,528 11,765,114
Pubtic works 1,532,554 1,889,020 2,750,826
Community development 1,510,328 -~
Library 560,589 609,621 562,945
Parks and recreation 1,666,333 1,847,829 -
Capital outlay $43.560 336.99] 477.816
Total expenditures 22,612,551 20.914.201 20.925.111
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures 3,696,708 1,683,087 {618,051)
OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES):
Transfers in -
Transfers out ( 505,000
Capita} leases -
Total other financing scurces (uses) {505.000 )
Net change in fund balances 3,191,708
Fund balances, beginning 5.101.059 1,290,163 1.908.214
Residual equity transfer in - 2.127.809 -
Fund balances, ending § 8.292.767 3 5,101.059 $ 1.290.163

Certain of the above revenues are not lepally availablc to make the Loan Repayments No representation is made as to the amount of revenues

that are legally available (o make the Loan Repayments.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITCRS' REPORT

Honorable Mayar, Vice Mayor, City Commissioners and City Manager
City of Oakland Park, Florida

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
aclivities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Cakland Park,
Florida (the City) as of and for the fiscal year then ended September 30, 2003, which collectively
comprise the City's basic financial statements as fisted in the table of contents. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on
these basic financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
jssued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform {he audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures In the financlal statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our apinions.

As described in Nots 1, the City adopted provisions of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement {GASB) No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis -
For State and Local Governments; GASB No, 37, Baslc Financial Statements - and Management's
Discussion and Analysis - For State and Local Governments: Omnibus; GASB No. 38, Certain Financial
Statement Note Disclosures; and Inferprelation No.6, Recognition and Measurement of Cerlain Liabilities
and Expenditures in Governmental Fund Financial Statements; as of October 1, 2002. This resulied in a
change in the format an content of the basic financial statements

In ouf opinion, based on our audits, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental aclivities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Oakland Park,
Fiorida as of September 30, 2003, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where
applicable, thereof for the fiscal year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated January 9, 2004
on our ccnsideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and our lests of its compliance
with certain laws, regulations, grants and contracts. That report is an integral part of an audit performed
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in

considering the resulls of our audil.

An lndependent Member of

INFERNATIONAL
Firms In Principal Clies Worldwide

I-2



\Yﬁ

Honorable Mayor, Gity Commission and Gity Manager
Cily of Qakland Park, Florida
Page 2

Managemaent's Discussion and Analysis and the Required Supplementary Information Identified In the
table of conients, are not a required parl of the basic financial slatements but are supplementary
information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certaln limited
procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of
measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the
information and express no opinion on il '

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as
a whale. The accompanying information Identified in the table of contents as combining financial
statements and capital assets used in the operation of governmental funds are preserited for purposes of
addiional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Similarly, the
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards programs is presented for purposes of
additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is not a required part of the basic financlal
statements. Such Information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly presented in all material respects in relation to the
basic financial statements taken as a whole.

The information shown in the introductory and statistical sections listed in the table of contents has not
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and,
accordingly, we express no opinion thereon.

iim» ¢ Cowl(:n%_

January 9, 2004

Grau&Company,PA.

T cortified public accouniants
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CITY OF OAKLAND PARK, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Governmental  Business Typé

ASSETS Activities Activities Total
Cash and cash equivalents $ 10,748,932 § 5,296,980 % - 16,0450912
Accounts receivablas - net 2,812,856 2,139,559 4,852 414
Inventories 44,610 86,650 131,260
Prepaids 161,203 - © 161,203
Restricted assets:
Temporarily restricted:
Cash and cash eqguivalenis 6,511,824 6,014,872 12,526,796
intergovernmental receivable 588,751 - 598,751
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
L.and 5,503,157 58,100 6,561,257
Construction in progress 1,816,994 1,318,833 3,135,827
Buildings 2,991,670 - 2,991,670
Improvements other than buildings | 927,087 200,401 1,127,468
Machinery and equipment 2,184,858 1,584,147 3,779,006
Infrastructure 4 557 349 20,230,725 24 788,074
Tolal capital assets, net 18,591,086 23,392,206 42,383,302
Net pension asset 354,098 - 354 056
Total assets 40,223 367 36,930,367 77,163,734
LIABILITIES
Accourts payable 1,734,537 923,073 2,667,610
Accrued liabilities 318,895 52,267 371,162
Gustomer deposils - 1,002,265 1,002,265
Accrued Interest payable 310,907 131,642 442 449
Other liahilities 215,136 - 215,136
Deferred revenues 480,818 58,484 £39,300
Claims payable 400,000 - 400,000
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year 877,061 379,525 1,256,586
Due in more than one year 14,503,270 8,496,034 22,999,304
Total Liabilities 18,840,622 11,043,190 29,883,812
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debl 12,674,416 20,751,202 33,426,618
Restricted for:
Fublic safely 669,498 - 669,498
Unrestricted 8,038,831 5,138 975 13,174,806
Total net assels 3 21382745 B 25,887,177 $ 47,269,922

The notes o the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



CITY OF OAKLAND PARK, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
_ FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

61

NET (EXPENSE) REVENUE AND
PROGRAM REVENUES CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Operating Grants Capital Grants
Charges for and and Governmental  Business-type
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions activities acfivities Total
Functionsiprograms
Primary Government:
Govemmental activities:
General govemnment 1,466,069 360,012 - {1,106,057) & - $ (1,1086,057)
Public safety 16,811,156 7,181,523 300,700 {9,328,933) - (9,328,933)
Public works 1,688,833 - - (1,688,833) - (1,688,833)
Community development 1,735,333 1,099,968 128,791 928,528 - 928,526
Library 574,839 5,305 - (569,534) - {569,534)
Parks and recreation 1,777,871 136,082 80,430 (1,513,109) - {1,513,109)
inferest on long-term debt 776,634 - - (7756,634) - (776,634)
Total governmental activities 24 830,735 8,782,880 509,921 (14.054.574) - {14,054,574)
Business-type activities: :
Water and sewer 9,742,433 11,798,134 - - 2,055,701 2,055,701
Solid waste 5,881,851 6,138,710 - - 256,859 258,859
Stormwater 1,322,179 1,180,608 - - (131,671) {131,571}
Total business activities 16,946,463 19,127,452 - - 2,180,889 2,180,889
Total primary government 41,777,198 27910342 508,921 {14,054,574) § 2180985 $  (11.873,585
GENERAL REVENUES:
Properiy taxes 8,950,986 - 8,850,986
Franchise fees 1.855,311 - 1,855,311
Utility taxes 4,828,281 - 4,828,291
Unresiricted investment eamings 278,358 187,943 466,301
intergovernmenial 3,327,550 - 3,327,550
Transfers (154,641) 154,641 -
Total general revenues and transfers 18,085,855 342,584 19,428,439
Change in net assets 5,031,281 2,523,573 7.554,854
Net assets, QOctober 1 16,351,464 23,363,604 39,715,068
Net assets, September 30 21382745 $ 258871477 $ 47,260,822

The rotes to the basic financial statements are an Integral part of this statement.



ASSETS .

Cash and cash equlvalents

Accounts receivables - net

Dus from other funds

Inventories

Propalds

Temporarly restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
intergovernmental receivable- restricted
Totof assels

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabiiitles:

Accounts paysble

Due to other funds

Accrued liabliities

Gompensated absences

Other labllities

Clalms payable

Defarred ravenues

Tolal iabllities

Fund balances;
Reserved for;

Inventories

Prapaid costs

Educational training

Library services

Recraation services

City beautification

Fire depariment education

Encumbrances

Public safety

Capttal projects

Unreserved, reported in:

Ganeral fund, designated for,
Community Redevelopment Agency
Equipment repalrs and replacements
Genaral Employes's Pension/Benefits
Natural disastet/public emergency

General fund, unreserved, undesignated

Special ravenus fund
Total fund balances
‘T'otal Fabiliies and fund balances

CITY OF OAKLAND PARK, FLORIDA
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Major Funds
Smatl Town
Renalssance Other Total
Speclal Revenua Capital Projacts Governmental Governmental
General Flre Rescug Fund Funds Funds
$ B674519 § ao04tt § - % 1,174002 5 10748932
1,887,741 735,191 14,325 175,588 2,812,855
£8,723 - - " 68,723
44610 - - - 44 610
154,603 800 - 6,000 161,203
- - 6,113,652 308,172 6,511,824
- . - 588,751 - 598,754
5 10830196 % 1636202 §. 6726728 $ 1753772 $ 20,946,808
3 1,038617 3§ 380,702 % 75,328 § 2200800 § 1,734,837
- ) - - 68,723 68,723
184,923 133,872 - - 310,895
355,433 $12,108 - - 507,541
215,136 - - - 215,138
400,000 - “ " 400,000
303,320 104,770 . 72728 480,816
2,537,428 741,552 75,328 371,338 3,725,648
44,610 - - - 44 610
154,603 - - - 154,603
20,221 - - - 20,221
44,604 - - - 44,804
48,721 - . - 46,721
1.968 - - 1,968
30,653 " - - 30,653
120,153 10,657 1,677,227 395,585 2,403,622
- 883,003 - 660,498 1,553,491
- . 4,774,173 314,199 5,088,372
200,000 - - 206,000
2,433,458 - - - 2,133,459
300,000 - » - 300,000
2,641,683 - - - 2,641,883
2,853,692 - - - 2,553,692
- - - 3,151 3,151
8,482,767 B854 .550 6,65 1,382,433 17,221,250
$ 10830996 § 1636202 § 68726728 § 1783772 § 20,845,858

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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CITY OF OAKLAND PARK, FLORIDA

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Fundibalances - total government funds (Page 17)

Anfiounts reported for governmental activities in the slalement
of pet assets are different because:

Gapital assets used in governmental activities are not
financlal resources and therefore are not reported In the
dovernmental funds.

Governmental capital assets
Less accumulated depreclation

tiet pension assets resulting from overfunding
i the police, fire, and general employees penslon plans is not
teported in the funds as they are not available to pay current period
axpenditures.

Net pension asset

Bond interest payable not reported In the governmental funds
flong-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and
flayable in the current period and therefore are not reported in

the governmental funds.

Governmental bonds payable
Capital leases

(12,575,000)
(1,102.864)

Compensated absences

Net dssets of governmental activities (Page 15)

$ 17,221,250

30,873,733
(11,882,637)

354,008
(310,807)

(13,677,864)

(1,194,926}

8 24,382,745

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



CiTY OF CAKLAND PARK, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Major Funds

Small Town .
Special Renaissance Other Total
Revenue Capltal  Governmental Governmental
General  Fire Rescue Projects Fund Funds Funds
REVENUES: ‘
Taxes:
Ad Valorem § 8950986 - $ - § - § 5950986
Utllity taxes 4,828,291 - - - 4,828,291
Franchise fees 1,856,311 - - - 1,855,311
Licenses and permiis 049,317 - - - 948,317
Intergovernmental 3,327,850 - - . 3,327,550
Charges for sevices 5,870,462 4,353,337 - 1,868 10,025,767
Fines and forfeitures 434,575 - . 34,164 468,758
Fire assessment - 2,279,676 - - 2,279,678
Grants - - 1,483,350 509,921 1,983,271
Investment eafnings 47,797 15,038 192,027 23,498 278,358
Other 244 970 174 117,961 - 363,105
Total revenues 26,309,258 6,648,223 1,783,338 569,571 35,320,391
EXPENDITURES:
CGurrent:
General government 6,442,951 - - - 6,442,951
Puilic safety 10,056,236 6,172,209 - 339,853 16,668,098
Public works 1,532,554 - - - 1,532,554
Community development 1,510,328 95,241 115,158 1,720,727
Library 560,580 - - - 560,569
Parks and recreation 1,666,333 - - 21,302 1,687,635
Debt service:
Principal - - 205,000 75,351 280,351
Interest - - 664,803 18,784 684,597
Capital outlay 843,560 5419 3,309,762 753,208 4,911,949
Total expenditures 22,612,551 6,177 628 4,274,806 1,324,486 34,389,451
Excess (deficiency) of revanues
over expenditires 3,696,708 470,585 [2,481,468) {754,895) 930,940
OTHER FINANGCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in . - 505,600 95,145 600,145
Transfers out {505,000} {681,824} - (167,862) {754,786)
Capital leases - - - 1,178,215 1,178,215
Total other financing sources (uses) - (605,000) {81,824) 505,000 1,105,398 1,023,574
Net change in fund balances 3,191,708 388,771 {1,976,468) 350,503 1,954,514
Fund balances, beglnning 5,101,069 505 879 8,627,888 1,031,830 15,266 736
Fund balances, ending $ B292767 $ B94650 § 6,651,400 $§ 1382433 § 17,221,280

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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A CITY OF OAKLAND PARK, FLORIDA
RECONCILIATION OF STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND GHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEFTEMBER 30, 2003

Amouhts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of aotivities (Page 18) are different because:

Nbt change in fund batances - tota! government funds (Page 19) $ 1,954,514
Governmental funds repert capital outlays as expenditures,

Hpwevaer, In the statement of activilies, the cost of those assels
imoepreclated over thelr estimated usefu lives.

Expenditures for capital cutlays $ 4911949
Less cumrant year depreciation (671,988) 4,238 881

The Issuance of long-term debt provides current financlal resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the princlpal of long-term debt
gonsumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither
fransaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds
report the effect of lssuance costs, pramiums, discounts, and similar items
When dabt is first Issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amorlized
in the statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences
th the treatment of long-term debt and related fems.

IBONDS
Princlpal paymants 205,000

"CAPITAL LEASES
Proceeds {1,178,215)
Principal payments 75,351
Pension plan expenditures {7.389) (1,110,238

uhder the modified accrual basis of accounting used In the governmentai funds,
ezpendituras are not recognized for transactions that are normaily pald with
ekpendable avallable financlal resources. In the statement of actlvities, however,
which [s presented on the accrual basls, expenses and fiabilities are reporied
rdnardiess of when financlal resources are avalable. In addlfion, inferest on long-
{dfm debt is not recognized under the modified accrual basls of accounting until
due. rather than as it accrues.

(ﬁ:mpsnsated absences (165,924)
Akcrued Interest on long term debt (92,037) (257,961
Chandle In net assets of governmental acliviies (Page 18} 3 5,031,284

Tha nctes 1o the basic financial statements are an Integral pard of this stalement.

I-9



ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Due from other funds
Inventories

Total current assels

Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Capital assetls:
Land
Construclion in progress
Bufidings
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure
Total capital assets
Less accumulated depreciation:
Total capital assets, net
Total non-current assels

Total assels

LIABILITIES

Current fiabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued llabllities
{ue to other funds
Accrued interest
Compensated absences
Customer deposits
Deferred revenues
Current portion of bonds payable

Total current labllities

Non-current Habilities:
Compensated absences
Revenue bonds payable
Loan payable

Total non-current liabilities

Total fiabilities

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Linrestricted
Total net assets

CiTY OF OAKLAND PARK, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Water and
Sower Solld Waste Stormwater Totals
$ 5,150,295 § 146,685 § - % 5,285,960
1,340,610 627.544 171,405 2,130,558
211,867 - - 211,887
86,650 - - 85,650
8,780,422 774,229 171,408 7,736,088
583,366 - 6,431,806 6,014,972
50,500 - 7.500 58,009
887,327 - 431,608 1,318,833
440,600 - 82,394 532,994
1,403,321 2,458,589 314,920 4,176,830
27.376,513 - 8,722,750 34,090,263
30,158,261 2,458 689 7.589,169 40,188,019
{12,318,863) {1,368,685) __ _ (3,106,385) (16,793,813)
17,839,398 1,000,004 4,462,804 23,392,206
18.422 764 1,090,004 9.884410 29407178
25,212,186 1,864,233 10,065,818 37,142,234
559,302 321,158 42,613 923,073
23,322 18,846 10,099 §2,267
- - 211,867 211,887
16,175 - 116,367 131,642
18,028 13,179 7.318 39,525
839,010 163,255 - 1,002,268
50,484 8,000 . 58,484
250,000 - 80,000 340,000
1,756,321 524,438 478,264 2,758.023
86,684 60,037 33,337 180,058
3,234 870 - - 3,224,670
- - 5,081,306 5,081,306
3,321,354 60,037 5,114,643 8,486,034
5.077,675 584,475 5,592,007 11,255,057
14,938,004 1,080,004 4,723,104 20,751,202
5,196,417 189,754 {250.196) 5,136,875
5 20,134,511 § 1,279,758 & 4472908 3 25 887177

The notes to the basle financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF OAKLAND PARK, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Business-type Activitles « Enterprise Funds

Water and
Sswsr Solid Wasts Stormwater iomis
Offarating revenues:
ﬁ@arges for sales and gervices:
fletered water sales $ 6,019,730 § - § - § 6,018,730
Reweor feas pledged as security for
revenue bonds 5,338,983 - - 5,339,983
esldential solid waste service - 1,534,873 - 1,834,873
fommercial solld waste service - 4,073,275 - 4,073,275
ater instaliation and other 131,657 230,562 - 382219
tormwater foes pledged as security for
the FMLC Loan - - 4,180,608 y 1,180,608
Tda! operaling revenues 11,481,370 §,138,710 1,180,608 H1—8,820.688
Oforating expenses:

WWater system operation 3,852,198 - - 3,852,196
ewer collection and maintenance 2,840,414 . - 2,840,414
eneral and administrative 2,345,983 1,627,660 397,362 4,371,006
olid wasle collection - 202,878 - 902,878

Inecinerator and landfill fees - 3,107,687 ] - 3,107,687
tormwater system operation - - 512,032 512,032

Denreciation 504,532 239,484 117,235 861,251

Total operaling expenses 9,643,125 5,877,769 1,028,620 [’16,447.463
Oberating income 1,948,245 261,001 163,879 . 2,373,225
Nbn-operating revenues (expenses):

eglonal systemn refund 308,764 - - 306,764
Investment earnings 80,890 - 107,053 187,943
nterest and fiscal charges {199,308) {4,142) (295,550 . (499,000)
Total non-operating revenues (expenses) 188,346 (4,142} (188.497) {4,263)
Ikome (loss) before transfars 2,136,591 256,859 (24.518) 2,368,932

ﬁ:ransfer in - 167,962 - 167,962

rapsfer out - (13,321) - (13.321}
changes In net assets 2,136,551 411,500 (24,518) 2,523,573
Thtal net assets- beginning (as restated) 17,897,920 868,258 4 497,428 23,363,604
Thtal net assets- ending $ 20434511 § 1276758 § 4472908 3 25,887,177

The notes to the basie financial stalements are an integral pan of this statement.
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CITY OF OAKI.AND PARK, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash recelved from custorners and other governments
Gther oparallng cash receipts
Cash pald to suppliers
Cash pald to employees
Gash pald for Interlund services used

Net cash provided by operating activilles

Cagh flows from noncapitat financing activities:
Reglonal system refund
Transfor from other funds
Transfer to other funds
Net cash provided by noncapital
financing activilies

Cash {lows from capltal and related financing activities:
Acquisition and construction of fixed assels
Principal retirements of capital debt
interest paid on capital debt

Nat cash {used In) capital and related financing activities

Cash flows from [nvesting activitles:
Proceeds from sales and maturities of Investments
interest on investiments

Net cash provided by Investing activities

Net increase In cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, Oclober 1

Cash and cash equivalents, Seplember 30

Cash and cash equivalents per
statement of nel assets:
Unrestricted
Restricled

Total, Septeamber 30

Reconclliation of operating Income to net
cash provided by operaling activities:
Operating income
Adjustmants to reconclle operating Inceme to net
cash provided by operating activities:
Depreclation ’
Amodtization
Provision for uncollectlbla accounts
Change in assels and Hablitlzs:
{Increase) decrease i accobunts recelvable
Decraase In due from other finds
{tncrease) in inventories
Increase In sccounls payable
Increase In accrued Habliities
(Decreass) in due fo other funds
Increase In compensated absences
Increase In customer deposils
{Decrease) In defered revenues
Total adjustments
Nel cash provided by operating activities

Business-type Actlvities - Enterprise Funds

Water and

Sewar Solid Waste  Stonmwater Totais
§ 10861648 $ 6059162 § 1,223,160 F 18,143,979
438421 230,562 - €68,883
(5,698,172) (3,111,383) {126,767) {8,936,332)
(891,251) (748,510) (324,739)  (1,964,500)
_(1,681,308) (2,263.583) {426,114) (4,371,005)
3,026,338 166,238 345,548 3,541,125
308,764 - - 306,764
- 167,962 - {67,962
- {13,321) - (13,321)
306,764 154,641 - 461,405
{428,808} {170,052) {315,072} {913,832)
{240,000} - {85,000} (325,000)
{200, 188) (4,142) {297,089} {501,429)
{868,996) (174,184) {697,171) (1,740,361)
- - 3,228,585 3,228,585
£0,890 - 107,053 187,943
80,890 - 3,335,638 3,416,528
2,547,886 146,685 2,984,018 5,678,697
3,185,665 2,447,590 5,633,255
$ 5733661 $ 146685 § 5431608 3 11,311,952
$ 5,150,285 § 145,685 § - 5 5,296,980
563,366 - 5,431 606 6,014,972
$ 5733661 $ 146685 % 5431606 § 11,311.852
§ 1,948245 § 261,001 § 16397¢ § 2373225
504,532 239,484 117,235 861,251
6,534 - 11,016 17,550
75517 64,658 9,367 149,542
(269,815) 77,132 12,178 {180,505}
664,675 - « 664,675
(3,195) - - {3,195)
56,157 132,258 33,654 222,069
8,278 3,820 5,097 17,295
. (635,923) {28,752) (664,675)
42,188 14,484 21,775 78,44_7
16,567 12,224 - 28,71
{20,345 {3.800) - (23,345)
1,681,093 {84,763) 181,570 1,167,900
$ 3029338 § 166238 % 346548 3 3,541,125

Tha notes to the basic financlal statements are an integral part of this statement
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Criy oF OakLaND Park, FLoORIDA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The summary of the Gity of Ozkland Park, Florida's (the Gity) significant accounting policies is
presented to assist the reader in interpreting the basic financial statements and other data in this
report. The policles are considered essentlal and should be read In conjunction with the
accompanying basic financial statements.

The accounting policies of the City conform to accounting principles generally accepted In the
United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. This report, the accounting
systemns and classification of accounts ¢onform to standards of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB), which is the accepled standard-selting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporling principles. The accounting policles of the City
conform to Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the United States (GAAP) as applicable
o governments,

In June 1989, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Siatement #34
"Basic Financial Statements and Management Discussion and Analysis for the State and Local
Gaovernments”. This statement provides for significant changes in financial reporting. For the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2003, the City implemented the nasw financial reporting
requirements of GASE Statement No. 34. As a result, an entirely new financial presentation
format has been implemented. The more significant of the Cily's accounting policles are
described below. '

a. Reporting Entity

The City of Oskland Park, Florida is a palilical subdivision of the State of Florida. The
City, which was incorporated on June 7, 1929, is located in Broward County and operates
under the Commission-Manager form of government. The legislative branch of the City is
composed of a five member elected Commission, inckiding a rotating mayor. The City
Commission is govemned by the City Charter and by state and local laws and regulations.

The financial statements were prepared in sccordance with GASB Statement No. 14,
The Financial Reporting Entity, which establishes standards for defining and reporting on
the financial reporting enfity. The definition of the financial reporting entity is based upon
the concept that elecled officials are accountable to thelr constiluents for thelr actions.
One of the objectives of financial reporting is to provide users of financial statements with
a basis for assessing the accountabllity of the elected officials. The financial reporting
entity congisis of the Cily, organlzations for which the City is financially accountable, and
other organizations for which the nature and significarice of their relationship with the City
are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be
misteading or incomplete. The City i5 financially accountable for 2 component unit if it
appoints a voling majority of the organization’s governing board and it Is able to Impose
its wilt on that organization or there is a potential for the organization to provide specific
financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the Cily. Based upon the
application of these criterla, there were no organizations which met the criterla described
above.,
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

b,

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financlal statements (l.e., the statement of net assets and jhe
statement of activities) reporl information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the
primary government and s component units. For the mest part, the effect of Interfiind
activity has been removed from these slalements. Governmenial aclivities, which
normally are supporled by taxes and Intergovernmenial revenues, are reported
separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and
charges for support.

The stalement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses df a
given function or segmen! ars offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are thbse
that are clearly identifiable with & specific function or segment. Program revenlies
include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit flom
goods, services, or privieges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a
particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly Included ampng
program revenues are reporied instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and praprietary furlds,
Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are repotted
as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Preseniatiof

The government-wide financlal statements are reported using the economic resoufces
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund jand
fiduciary fund financlal stelements. Revenues are recorded when earned and experses
are recorded when a liability s incurred, regardless of the timing of relaled cash flows.
Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants
and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements
imposed by the provider have been met,

Governmental fund financlal statements are reporled using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues
are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and avallable, Revenues| are
considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon
enough thereafler to pay lizbilities of the current period. For this purpose, the [City
sonsiders revenues to be avallable If they are collected within 60 days of the end of the
surrent fiscal perlod. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as
under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expendifures
related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only When
payment is due.

Property laxes, sales taxes, utiiity taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and intérest
associaled with the current fiscal perlod are all considered to be susceptible to acprual
and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the pgrtion
of special assaessments receivable due within the current fiscal peried is considered {o be
susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period. ANl other revenue ftemg are
considerad to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the
governrnent.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT AGCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

c.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation
(Continued) '

The reporting practices of the Proprietary Fund Types closely parallel comparable
commercial financial reporting. Both recognize revehue when eamed and expenses
when incurred (the accrual basis) including, in the case of the Enterprise Fund,
depreciation on its exhaustible fixed assets. Earned, but unbilled service recelvables
have been accrued as revenue In the Enterprise Funds. The City has elected to follow all
GASB pronouncements and all FASB pronouncemenis issued on or before November
30, 1989, except for those that contradict a GASB proncuncement.

Ttie City reports the following major governmental funds:

The general fund is the government's primary operating fund. 1t accounts for alt financlal
resources of the general governmert, except those reguired to be accounted for in
another fund.

The speclal revenue fund (Fire rescue) accounts for revenue sources that are legally
restricted {o expenditures for specific purposes (not including major capital projects).

The capital projects fund {Small Town Renaissance Capital Projects Fund) accounts for
the acquisition of equipment and constructicn of major capital projects not being financed
by proprietary funds.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

The water and sewer fund is used to ascount for the provision of water and sewer
services to the residents and the commerce of the Cily.

The solid waste fund Is used to account for the provision of solid waste collection,
digposal and recycling far ali residential and commercial customers within the City.

The stormwater fund is used 1o account for the provision of stormwater management
and drainage services fo the residents and businesses of the City.

As a general rule, the sffect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the
government-wide financial statements. Exceptions to this genera! rule are payments-in-
lleu of laxes and other charges between the City's utilities function and various other
functions of the City. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and
program revenues reported for the various functions concerned

Amounts reported as program revenues inciude 1) charges to customers or applicants for
goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3)
capitai grants and conlributions, including special assessments. Intemnally dedicated
resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise,
general revenues include all taxes, whose purpose has not been restricted lo a specific
program.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating

ftems. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and
producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principat ongoing
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

[+

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation
{Continued)

operations. The principal operaling revenues of the City's water and sewer, solid w§
and stormwater enterprise funds, are charges lo customers for sales and services,
enferprise funds also recognizes as operating revenue the portion of tap fees lntend

enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrativa expenses, |
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definitiort
reporied as non-operating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricled resources are avallable for use, it is the %?y’s
policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricled resources as they are needs

Deposits and Investments

The ity maintains a pooled cash account for all funds. This enables the City to'r}
large amounts of idle cash for short periods of fime and to oplimize earnings poler

of the City. Interest earned on pooled cash is allocated menthly based upon ‘et
balances of the respective funds.

The City's investments are reported at fair value. The Clty’s investment in the ﬂaia
Board of Administration Investment Pool {2A-7 pool} is reported at its falr value of iis
position In the pool, which is the same as its value of the poot shares.

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows for the Proprietary Fund, cashiand
invesiments mean short term, highly liquid investments with an original maturity of lhree
months of less.

In addition, GASB Statement 31, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for C?_a]n
investments and External Investrment Pools”, requires disclosure of investmenis. att fair
value and recognition of unreallzed gain or losses, if material, for, investmentsel _

remaining maturitles of more than one year at the time of purchase. Invesimernis:
remaining maturiles of one year or less at the time of purchase are recordet
amortized cost. The City calculated the unrealized gain or loss for in've'stmems-

Receivables and Payabies

Aclivity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangg ents
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other f ds"
or “advances toffrom other funds. Any residual balances outstanding betwsen|
govemnmental activities and business activities are reporied In the govemméfnt'r' (
financlal statements as "internal balances”.

cycle billings rendered monthly. Revenues for services delivered durlng the last mofthof
the fiscal year that have not been read by September 30 are accrued based oh meter
readings for the applicable consumption period and billed in October,

Operating revenues in the water and sewer are generaily recognized on the ba&s sof

Revenues and the associated receivable balances are accrued for taxes, franchiselfees,
and other utility services based on collections within 60 days of year-end.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

e,

Receivahles and Payables (Continued)

All trade receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles. Trade accounts
receivables in excess of 60 days comprise the trade accounts receivable allowance for
uncoliectibles.

The City’s contracted service provider processes receivables associated with Emergency
Medical Services (EMS). An allowance zccount is established for EMS receivables
hased on historical collection rates.

Property Taxes

Property values are assessed as of January 1 of each year, at which time taxes become
an enforceable lien on property. Tax blils are mailed for the City by Broward County on
or about October 1 of each year and are payable with discounts of up {o 4% offered for
early paymenl. Taxes become delinguent on April 1 of the year following the year of
assesstnent and State law provides for enforcement of collection of property taxes by
selzure of the personat property or by the sale of interest-bearing tax cerlificates to satisfy
unpaid property taxes.

Assessed values are eslablished by the Broward County Property Appraiser. |In
Novemnber 1892, a Florida constitutional amendment was approved by the voters which
provides for limiling the increases in homestead property vaiuations for ad valorem tax
purposes to & maximum of 3% annually and also provides for reassessment of market
values upon changes In ownership. The County bills and collects all property taxes and
rerits them to the City. Procedures for the collection of delinquent taxes by Broward
County are provided for in the Laws of Florida. There were no material delinguent
property taxes at Septembeér 30, 2003

State stafules permit municipalities to levy property taxes at a rate of up to 10 mills {($10
per $1,000 of assessed taxable valuation). The tax levy of the Cily is established by the
GCity Commission and the Broward County Property Appraiser incorporates the City's
millage into the total tax levy, which Includes the County and the County School Board
tax requirements. The millage rate assessed by the Cily for the year ended September
30, 2003 was 5.9715 mills ($5.9715 per $1,000 of taxable assessed valuation).

Inventories and Prepaid Costs

Inventorles are valued at cost using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. The cosls of
governmental fund-type Inventories are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather
thar when purchased (consumption method). Certain payments to vendors reflect costs
applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid cosls.

Restricted Assets

Ceriain proceeds from the City's enterprise fund revenue bonds and the Florida Municipal
Loan Councll loans, as well as certain resources set aside for thelr repayment, are
classified as restricted assets on the staternent of net assets because their use is limited
by the applicable bond covenants.

The City's enterprise fund revenue bonds require certain reserves. The ‘revenue bonds

reserve” account is used to account for resources set aside to subsidize potential
deficiencies from the City's operations that coutd adversely affect debt service payments.
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

h.

Restricted Assets (Continyed)

The “"renewal and replacement” account is used to account for those funds available!to
pay current costs of operation and maintenance to Ihe extent monies on depaosit In the
Ravenue Bond Reserves are insufficient for such purposes. The “revenue borid sink ng
reserve” account is used to segregate resources accurnulated for debt servica paymefits
over the next twelve months,

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include land, buildings, Improvements other than bulldings,
machinery and equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, s!dewalks culverts,
pump statlons, stormwatler lines, catch basins, and similar items), are reppried in jhe
applicable governmentsl or business-type activities columns Jn the government-wide
financlal statements. Capital assets is defined by the City as assets witlh an initial,
Individual cost of more than $750 and an estimated useful life in excass of one year.
Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchase or
constructed. Donated capital assels are recorded at eslimated fair market Value at the
date of donation.

The cosis of normal maintenande and repalrs that do not add to the valia of tha assat or
malerially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.

Major outfays for capital assets and improvements are capltalized as they are completed.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight fine method over the following estimated
useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings 50
Improvements other than buildings 20
Machinery and Equipment §-20
System Infrastructure 50-65
Public Domain Infrastructure 50-65

Compensaied Absences

It is the City's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but uniused vacation land
sick pay bensfits. Vacation and sick pay Is accrued when earnaed in prop}:etary filnds
and Is reparted as a fund liability. Vacation pay that Is expected to be liquidated: With
expendable available financial resources is reported as an expenditure and g fund-igbllity
of the governmental funds that will pay it. Amounts not expected to be fiduidated with
expendable available financial resources are reporied as a reconciling ltemibetweet| the
fund and government-wide presentations.

I-18



1,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

k.

Long-Term Qbligations

In the government-wide financial statemenls, and proprietary fund types In the fund
financial statements, jong-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as
lizbilities in the applicable governmental aclivities, business-lype activities, or proprietary
fund type statement of net assets. Bond discounts, as well as issuance costs; are
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective Interest method.
Bonds payable are reported net of the spplicable bonds discount. Bond issuance costs
are reporled as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

in the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond proceeds and
discounts, as well as bond Issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of
debt issued Is reported as other financing sources. Discounts on debt Issuances are
reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether not withheld from the actual
debt proceeds racelved, are reporied as debl service expenditures. '

Fund Equity

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance
for amounts that are not avallable for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside
pariies for use for a specific future purpdse. The description of each reserve indicates

the purpose for which each was Intended.

Designations of fund balance represent tentalive management plans that are subject to
change. Unreserved undesignaled fund balance is the portlon of fund equity available for
any lawful use. ‘

Deferred Revenues

Deferred revenues include amounts collected before revenue recognition criteria are met
and recelvables, which, under the modified accrual basis of accounting, are measurable,
but not yel available. The deferred items consist primarily of license and permit revenues
and special assessment revenues.

{/se of Estimates

The preparation of financlal statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to tnake estimates and
assumptions that affect amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying
notes. Alhough these estimates are based on management's knowledge of current
evenls and actions it may undertake in the future, they ray ultimately differ from actual

resuits.
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DEFOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
Deposits

In addition to insurance provided by the Federal Depository insurance Corporation, la]l depaosits
are held in banking institutions approved by the State Treasurer of the State of Flofida to hold
public funds. Under Florida Statutes Chapter 280, Florida Security for Public Depo its Act, the
State Treasurer requires every qualified public depository to deposit with the Treasprer eligible
collateral. Statutes provide that if a loss to public depository is not covered by deposjt insurance
and the proceeds from the sale of securities pledged by the defaulting depository, the difference

will be provided by an assessment levied against other public depositories of tha same type as
the depository in defauit.

Investments

City administration is authorized to invest in those instruments authorized by the Florjda Statules
including the Local Government Surplus Trust Fund administered by the Statp. Board of
Administration {the Board). The Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund 15 overned by
Chapter 19-7 of the Florida Administrative Code, which identifies the Rules of the State Board of
Administration. These rules provide guidance and establish the general operating|prgcedures for
the administration of the Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund. Addilional}y, he Office. of
the Auditor General performs the operational audit of the activities and Investmests [of the State
Board of Administration. The Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund is ﬁot ia registrant
with the Securities and Exchange Commission; however, the Board has adoptdd operaling
procedures consistent with the requirements for a 2A-7 fund.

investments are classified as to credit risk, which are summarized below:

Accordingly, all City deposits are Category 1 credit risk as defined by GASB State I’Teﬁt No. 3,
which are insured or collaferalized with securities held by the Cily or by its agent inf theé City's
name.

Categary 1 Insured or registered, or securities held by the City or its agent in the City's name.

Calegory 2 Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counterparty's frust
department ar agent in the City's name.

Category 3 Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counterparty, gr by its trust
depariment or agent but not in the City's name.

The Cily does not participate in any securitles lending transactions nor has it used; hdld or written
derivative financial instruments.

At year end, the City's invesiment balances were as follows:

Invesiments not subject to categorization:
State Board of Administration Investment Pool

Per combined balance sheet;

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1q 045,912
Restricted cash and cash eguivalents 5:528:798
By category: o )
Deposils $ 3,944,316
investmenis 24.628,392
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3, RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Recelvables at September 30, 2003, were as follows:

Allowance
) Special Uncollectible
Accaunis Taxes Assescmenis Other Accounts Tatal
Governmenial Activilfes m—— —
Genaral § 1,058,361 § 1,792,038 § 0 $ 388,440  ${ 1,352,008} § 1,887,741
Fire Rescue 1,544,870 - . 305,394 {1,115,073) 735,191
Capital Projects - - - 14,325 - 14,325
Nenmajor and other funds - - - 175,598 175,508

Total government acthvities £2.604 231 81,792 038 $ § 8A3757 S(2467.171) $5812.855
Business-type Activities

Water and sewer $ 1464,714 $ - 8 74,684 3 119,804 $(318,592) $ 1,340,610
Solid waste 879,940 - B 26,185 {278,581} 627,544
Stormwater 215,612 . - - - {44,207} 171,405

Total business-type activilies § 2,560 266 o= §_74.664 £ 145909 £(641.38Q) $2,139.549

Fayables at September 30, 2003, were as follows:

Vendors
Govemmental Activitles:
General 51,038,617
Fire Rescue 390,702
Capital Projects 75,328
Nonmajor and other funds 229890
Total government activities § 1,734,537
Business-type Activities:
Waler and sewer $ 559,302
Solid waste 321,158
Stormwater 42613
Total business-type activities $ 923073

Revenues of the Water and Sewer, Solid Wasle, Stormwater and Fire Rescue funds are reporied
net of uncollectible amounts. Total uncollectible amounts related to revenuss of the current
period are as follows:

Uncollectibles related to water sales and sewer charges $ 72490
Uncollectibles related to solid waste fees 64,658
Uncoliectibles related to stormwater fees 8,367
Uncollectibles related to EMS fees 801,719

Total uncollectibles of the current fiscal year $ 948234
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4

CAPITAL ASSETS

Capltal asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2003 was as follows: '

Governmental activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in prograss

Tatal assets not being depraciated

Capital assets being depreclated:
Bulldings
Improvernents other than bulldings
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure

Taotal capltal assets being depreciated

Less accumuiated depreciation for:
Bulldings
Improvements other than bulldings
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure

Total acocumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Governmental activitles capital assets, net

Business- type activiies:

Capital assels not being depreclated:
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assels being depreciated:
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure

Total capltal assels belng depreclated

t.ess accumuiated depreclation for:
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Infrastruciure

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assels being depraclated, net

Business-type activitias capital assets, net

Balance Balance
October 1, 2002 Increases Decreades - Sept, 30, 2003
$ 1,547,174 $ 4,955,083 $ % 6,503,157
3,706,047 4,209 557 6,094,510 - 1,816,904
5,254 121 9,165,540 6.093@9 8,320,151
$ 4,505,480 § 43,715 $ . ' $ 4,639,204
1,315,185 583,890 . 1,909,075
6,053,566 1,055,484 . 7,109,050
8.817.663 78,590 - 8,896,253
20,781,903 1771679 “ | 22 553 582
(1,555,310) (62,224) . {1,647,534)
{527,455) (54,552) - {982,007)
{4,528,165) (386,028) . {4,914,191)
(4,199,719} {139,186) T (4,338,905)
(11,210,648} {671,988} - {11.882.637)
8.571.254 1,099 691 P 10,670,945

§14826375 $10266231  $£6.000510  §.18.901.008

The following is a summary of capital assets in the Enterprise Funds at September:SDl.- 200%

Balance . Balance
October 1, 2002 Increases Decredsey gagi 30, 2003
$ 58,100 3 - 5 - $ 58,100
533,109 724,793 3h,159; 1,318,833
691,299 724,793 j,159° _ 1,376,933
$ 532,994 % - $ - $ 532,904
3,087,694 189,134 . 4,178,828
34,060,104 39,159 . 34,099,263
38,580,792 228,793 38,809,085
(321,933) {10,660) - {332,593)
(2,130,243) (462,438) - (2,592,681)
{13,480,385) (388,153} - {13,868.538)
{15.932,561) {861.251) - (16,783,812
72 548.231 (632,058) - 22 015,273

$23339530  § 91835  §..49159 $23302.206

1-22



4, CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Depreciation expense was charged to funclions/programs of the City as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General government $311,843
Public safety 128,234
Public works 168,527
Community development 3,948
Library 3,289
Parks and recreation 56,147
Total depreciation expense ~ governmental activities % 671.988
Husiness-type Activities:
Waler and sewer F 504,533
Solid waste 239,484
Stormwater 117,235
Total depreciation expense - business-lype activities $ 861,252
8. INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS

Interfund balances at September 30, 2003 consisted of the following:

Stormwater Nonmajor ,

Due To Fund Governmental Tolal
General fund $ - $ 68,723 $ 68723
Water and Sewer fund 211,867 - 211,867

$211.867  $68723  $.280590

The balances of $68,723 due to the General Fund resulted from loans to the Communily
Development Block Grant (CDBG) fund for $61,812 and Summer Food Program Fund for $6,911.
The balance of $211,867 due to the Water and Sewer Fund resulted from loans to the
Stormwater Fund. These interfund balances resulted from the time lag between payment of
expenditures and when revenues of reimbursements are received.

Interfund Transfers for the year ended Septermnber 30, 2003, consisted of the following:

Transfer from

Fire Solid
Transfer to General Rescue Waste Nonrnajor
Fund Fund Fund CGovernmental Total
Capital projects fund § 505,000 $ - $ - $ - $ 505,000
Solid waste fund - - - 167,962 167,862
Nonmajor governmental funds - 81,824 13,320 - 95,144

$ 505000 $ 81824 $ 13.320 § 167962  $768,106
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INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS (CONTINUED)

Transfers are used ta {1} move revenuss from the fund that the budget reguires to collect them:
the fund that budget requires to expend them, (2} move receipts restricted to debt dervice frgm
the funds collecting the receipts o the debt service fund as debt service payments become dlie,
and (3) use unrestricled revenues collected In the general fund to finance various capital projggts
accounted for in other funds In accordance with budgetary authorizations. The followlha transfers
are explained below:

(Lo

»  5505,000 was transferred from General Fund to Capital Projects Fund fdr matcHing
requirements of capital grants;

» 381,824 was transferred from the Fire Rescue Fund to the Debt Service Fund for dabt
service,

*  $13,320 was transferred from Solid Waste Fund to the Debt Service Fund for deb{ service"

» $167,962 was fransferred from the Vehicle Replacement Capital Fund to Solid Waste Fiind
for reimbursement of vehicles purchased.

RESTRICTED ASSETS

Capital Projects Fund

Restricted assets and the related reservations of fund balance of the Capitai Prbjects Fjind
consists of $6,113,652 investments in the State Treasurer's Investment Pool at September|30,
2003. These amounts relate to the loan recelved from the Florida Municipal Loan Council Bnd
can only be expended on the approved projects.

Water and Sewer Fund

Restricted assets of the Water and Sewer Fund consist of the following balances [in the State
Treasurer's Investment Pool at September 30, 2003:

Revenue Bonds Sinking Reserve $ 36816
Revenue Bonds Reserve 444,437
Revenue and Replacement Reserve 102,113
Total Restricted Assets § 583,366
Stormwater Fund

Treasurer's Investment Pool at September 30, 2003. These amounts relate to the lgan recelved

Restricted assets of the Stormwater Fund consists of $5,431,606 invested E§ the Hiate
from the Flortda Municlpal Loan Council and can only be expended on the approved grolects;

LEASES
Operating Lease

During fiscal year 1997, the Clty entered into an operating lease agreement for Ja new rfdlo
system with another cily. In 1998, the City paid $1,086,093, which represented the} total cé ;.t of
the system. The cost is belng amortized over the eight year useful life of the $ystem | h a
straight-ine basis. The unamortized poriion of the prepald cost at September 3p, 2003 jwas
$124,297 and is recorded in the General Fund.
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LEASES {CONTINUED)

Capital Leases

The City has entered into capital lease agreement through the use of a Master Lease Agreement
for the purchase of various capital assels within the City. The Master Lease Agreement requires
no down payment and interes! rates are set at lease Inception. Upon final payment of the lease,
the capital assel {itle will revert to the Clly.

The future minimum lease obligations and the nel present value of these minimum lease
payments as of Septemnber 30, 2003 were as follows:

Governmental

Year ending September 30

2004 $ 190,289

2005 190,289

2006 180,289

2007 180,289

2008 180,289

2009-2010 285434
Total minimum lease payments 1,236,879
Less: amount representing interest at 3.36% {134,015)
Present value of minimum lease payments $.1,102 864

The assets acquired through the capital lease are as follows:

Govemnmental Business-Type

Aclivities Activities
Assel:
Machinery and equipment $1,010,253 $ 167,962
Less: Accurnulated Depreciation - -
Total $.1.010.253 $ 167,962

LONG-TERM DEBT
Business Type Activities- Long-Term Debt

Revenue Bond
Utility System Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 1994

On March 3, 1894, the City of Oakland Park issued $5,500,000 of Utility System Revenue Bonds.
The proceeds of the Series 1994 bonds and other funds made avaitable through the refunding
program were used to (i) refund and defease the Ulility System Revenue Bonds, Series 1965,
Series 1966, and Series 1973, totaling $2,215,000, {ii) make a deposit to the Reserve Account
established under the bond resoiution to fund the Reserve Requirement, {iif) set aside funds to
pay the cost of improvement to a portion of the sewer system with an estimated cost of
$3,100,000, and (iv) pay cerlain costs of issuance for the bonds. The portion of the net proceeds
from the issuance of the bonds atiributed to the defeasance were used to purchase U.S.
government securilies and these securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow
agent to provide for the interest and principaf payments on the old bonds. All the defeased bonds
were subsequently called.

I-25



LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)
Business Type Aclivities- Long-Term Debt (Continued)
Revenue Bond (Continued)

The Utility System Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds Series 1994 Is composed of Hoth
serlal and term bonds. The serial bonds are due in varying annual Instailments from the year
1994 through 2006 and the term bonds are due in varying annual Instaliments from the year 2{j07
through 2014. Bond interest rates vary from 2.50% to 5.30% with Interest payable semi-annuglly.
These bonds are limited obligations of the City, payable solely from water and sewer revenueg of
the Utility System. Net revenues are defined as being the excess of the gross reventies overlihe
cost of operatlon and maintenance.

2004, are subject to redempllon prior to their respective dates of maturity at the optlon of the -3
on or after September 1, 2003 in whole or in part, at any time in such order to maturity as the
selects, such redemption to be at the redemptlon prices set forth below (expressed
percentage of the principat amount).

Redemption Perlod Redemption Price
September 1, 2003 to August 31, 2004 102%
September 1, 2004 to August 31, 2005 101
September 1, 2005 and thereafter 100

The covenants of the Series 1994 Serial bond resolutions require that certain accountd; be
maintained as follows:

Revenue Bond Sinking Reserve - Deposits, representing one-sixth of the amount ofiithe
nex! interest payment due con the serial and term bonds, on a semi-annual basis, jand
one-twelfth of the next annual principal payment due on the serial bonds, are requirgd to
be made monthly fo this Sinking Fund. The Clty is in compliance with the Revdnue
Bonds Sinking Reserve.

Renewal and Repfacement Reserve - In addition, the bond resolution fequiresfithe
establishment of a Renewal and Replacement Reserve. The City is required"fo fund
reserve in an amount equal to the lesser of 6% of the previous fiscal year's gross revenugs or
$100,000, or such other amount as recommended to the City by its consulting engineer.}! No
further deposits shall be required to be made to the Renewal and Replacement Rest
when there shall be on deposit therein an amount equal to or greater than $100 000 or 3

the extent monies on deposit in the Revenue Bonds Reserve'are lnsuf’caent for :§
purposes. The Cily is in compliance with the Renewsl and Replacement Resi
requirement.

VES

The City is required by the bond resolution to establish, maintain and collect reasonable chey
for the services furnished by the Utility Systerm and that it will adjust such charges 45 needgl
that the gross revenues in each fiscal year will always be sufficien! to pay 115% of the Pebt
service requirements becoming due in the fiscal year on all bonds, in addition to the requiren ents
to cover the cost of operations and maintenance and pay 100% of all reserve requlremen i set
forth above. The City is In compliance with this requirement.

1-26



8.

LONG-TERM DEBT {CONTINUED)
Business Type Activities- Long-Term Debt (Continued)
Revenue Bond (Continued)

The following table reflects the debt service requirements of the Utility System Revenue
Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 1994 as of September 30, 2003:

Fiscal year ending

September 30 - Principal Interest Total
2004 250,600 182,085 432,085
2005 260,000 170,845 430,845
20086 275,000 168,885 433,885
2007 285,000 145,960 430,960
2008 300,000 130,855 430,855
2008 - 2013 1,770,000 396,615 2,166,615
2014 410,000 21,525 __ 431,525

$.3.550,000 $1,206.780 $4,756.780

Florida Municipal Loan Council - Loans

On November 15, 2000, the City entered In a loan agreement with the Florida Municlpal Loan
Council for $18,500,000. This amount wil be used for varlous capital projects to improve the
City. The loan is divided into twa parts, $5,500,000 for stormwater projects and $13,000,000
for general government projects. In accordance with the loan agreement, the $5,500,000
was recorded as a debt of the Stormwater Fund and the $13,000,000 was recorded as debt
in the government-wide financial statements for governmental activities

Pnnclpal paymenls are due on October 20™ each year with interest payments due on October
20M and April 20" and a final paymen! due in Oclober 2030. The loan bears interest at
variable rates ranging from 4.250% to 5.375%. As securily for loan repayment, the City
covenants and agrees ito appropriate In its annual budget amounts of Non-Ad valorem
revenues sufficlent to salisfy its annual debt service requirements under the loan agreement,
As of September 30, 2003, the City was in compliance with this covenant.

The following table reflects the debt service requirements of the Florida Municipal Loan

Coungcil ~ Loans as of September 30, 2003:

Business Type Activities

Governmental Activities

Principal Interest Principal inlerest
Fiscal year ending
September 30,
2004 $ 90,000 $ 277,301 $ 215,000 $ 655,589
2005 95,000 273,208 225,000 645,853
2006 100,000 268,844 235,000 635,559
2007 105,000 264,205 245,000 624,698
2008 110,000 259,286 255,000 613,259
2009 - 2013 625,000 1,212,335 1,465,000 2,870,768
2014 - 2018 800,000 1,025,419 1,895,000 2,426,426
2019 - 2023 1,040,000 777,700 2,470,000 1,839,804
2024 = 2028 1,355,000 458,353 3,205,000 1,084,944
2029 - 2031 1.000.000 82 506 2,365,000 194 987

£5320000  §4899.457 §12575000  §11592.096
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LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)
Non-Gommitment Debt- Industrial Development Revenue Bonds
economy and to increase the purchasing power and opporiunities for gainful employmant;;ihe

City authorized and Issued Industrial Development Revenue Bonds, Series 1986 (Gird Scoutd of
Broward County Praoject) In the amount of $1,600,000.

Under provisions of the Florida Industrial Development Financing Acl, to promote the Cf}ﬁ/’s

accordingly, are not reported In the accompanying basic financial statements. The
approximately $824,511 outslanding as of September 30, 2003 in Industrial Develop
Revenue Bands.

These bands do not constitute a debt or pledge of the faith and credit of the (‘lty, ﬁ{ .

Changes in Lang-Term Liabilifies

Long-term Hablliity activity for the year ended September 30, 2003 was as follows:!

Beginning Ending Due within
balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
vernmental Activities:
Binds and noles payable:
lorida Municipal Loan Council Loan §12,780,000 3§ - $ 205000 3 12,575,000 $ 215,000
apital lease - 1,178,215 75,351 1,102 6684 184,520
Tdtal bonds and notes payable 12,780,000 1,178.215 280.361 13,877,864 369,520

Qiher Liabilltles:
If.”.cnrnpensahed absences 1,655,818 800,092 753,443 1,702,487 807,541

Governmental activity long-term

Liabilitios §14435818  §1978.307 21033794  §15380337  $8/7.061

Bpsiness-type Activilles:
Bpnds and noles payable:
Litility System Revenue Refunding

i and Improvement Bond, Seres 1994 § 3,790,000 % - $ 240,000 % 3,850,000 $ 250,000

g Florida Municlipal Loan Councll Loan 5,405,000 - 85,000 5,320,000 90,000

gl ess defarrad amounts for Issuance A _

discounts (231,574) - (17.550) {214:024) -
Tétal bonds and notes payable B.963.426 - 307450 8,655976 | ...340,000
rgher liabilities

Cornpensated absances 141,136 103,851 25,404 239,58 39,525

Business-type activity long-term

b

Lisbllities $5104562 $ 103851 § 332854  $9.875550  £379.525

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS
a.  Plan Description

The City's Public Employee Ratirernent System (PERS) zdministers two slngle'empj yer
defined benefit pension plans established to provide pension, disability, and death bengfits
for its employees and beneficiaries. The two plans are the Gity of Oakland Park Ge
Employees’ Pansion Plan and the City of Qakiand Park Retirement System for Policaland
Firefighters.
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9, EMPL.OYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)
a.  Plan Description {Continued)

The City of Oskland Park General Employees' Pension Plan was esiablished by
Referendum in 1963 {collectively known as the "Referendum”) as amended September 1,
1968, as amended by Ordinances O-76-56 and O-76-25 dated April 1, 1976 and Ordinance
O-77-11 dated August 13, 1977. :

The City of Qakland Park Retirement Systern for Police and Firefighters was established
December 3, 1875 by Ordinance Q-75-18, as amended by Ordinance 0-76-23 dated
September 15, 1976, Ordinance O-83-23 dated December 21, 1983, and Ordinance 0-85-
10 dated July 5, 1995, {collectively known as the "Ordinances”}.

Fach of the Plans Issues a publicly available financial report that inciudes financlal
statemnents and required supplementary information. These financial reporls may be
oblained by writing to the Board of Trustees cfo City of Qakland Park, 3650 N.E, 1o#
Avenue, Qakland Park, Florida 33334

b.  Funding Policy

Full-time employees of the City must participate in the Plan appropriate to thelr position,
except for the executive management under contract. There are no employee contributigns
to the General Employees’ Penslon Plan and participants of the Retirement System for
Police and Firefighters are required to contribute 8.5% of their compensation. The
employer's annual required contributions for the current year were determined as part of
the most recent actuarial valuations. Contribution requirements of the Plan members and
the City are esiablished and may be amended by City Ordinance.

e Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Asset

The City's annual pension costs and net pension obligationsiasset of the City's pension
plans for the current year were as follows:

General Police and
Employees Firefighters

Annual required contribution $ 872977 $ 164,957
interest on net pension asset (19,396) {10,108}
Adjustment to annual required assel 26,482 10,391
Annual pension cost 880,063 165,240
Contributions made {672.977) (164.957)
(Increase) decrease in net pension obligation 7.086 283
Net pension (asset), beginning of year (235,108} {126.356)
Nel pension (asset), end of year §_(228.023) $(126.073)

d General Employees’ Pension Plan

The City's annual required contribution for the current year was delermined as part of the
October 1, 2002 actuarial valuation using the entry age normatl actuarlal cost method., The
actuarial assumptions included (a) 8.25% invesiment rate of relurn (net of administralive
expenses) and (b) projected salary increases of £% per year. Both (a) and (b) included an
inflation component of 4.5%. The actuarial value of assels was determined using
techniques that smooth the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of investments
gver a five-year peried. The unfunded actuarial accrued liabllity is being amortized as a
tevel percentage of projected payroll on an open basis. The remaining amorlization perlod
is 21 to 30 years.
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EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS {CONTINUED)

d,

Genoral Employees’ Pension Plan (Continued)

General Employees’ Penslon Plan
Three-Year Trend Information

{In Thousands)
Annual Pension Percentage of Net Pensidi
Flscal year ending cost (APC) APC Contributed ‘Asset
September 30, 2001 § 459 100% 211
September 30, 2002 484 100% 235
September 30, 2003 880 100% 228

Retirement System for Police and Firefighters

Participants are required to contribute 8.5% of compensation. The emplioyees an
required conlribution for the current year was deterrmined as part of the Qctdber 1,
{most recent) actuarial veluation using the entry age actuarial cast method. The acty
assumptions Included (a) 8.0% Investment rate of return {net of administrative expeg ;
and (b} projected salary increases of 6.25% per year. Both (a) and (b) Inciuded an infiglion
component of 4.0%. The actuarlal value of assets was determined using technique ithat
smooth the effects of short-term volatility In the market value of investmenits over a three-
year period. The unfunded actuarlal accrued liability Is being amortized as a {[p
percentage of projected payroll on an closed basis. The remaining amortization perio
30 years.

Retirement System for Police and Firefighlers
Three-Year Trend informatlon
{In Thousands)

Annugl Penslon Percentage of Net Pensith
Fiscal ysar ending cost (APC) APC Contrihuted Asset
September 30, 2000 $331 100% -
September 30, 2001 20 100% 126
September 30, 2002 165 100% 126

DROP Plan

Efiective January 3, 2001, the City created a Deferred Retirement Option Plan (DF »
under Ordinance 2001-001. This plan Is & defined contribution plan createf In accord

with Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. An active participariat of the Ry
Officers’ and Fire Fighters' Retirement Systern becomes eligible to participate in the 1
upon eligibility for normal service refirement at age 42 with 20 years of creditable se
Upon entry into the DROP, the member's average final compensation and\a{’ccﬁ&ad ’!‘
shall be calculated. No change in the plan benefits made subsequent fp entry intgy
DROP shall apply lo the member uniess otherwise appllcable to refired memjle
Payments shzall be made into the employee's DROF account in an amouni déterming
the employee's selection of the payment option as if the employee Ehad terming
employment in the City. The maximum period of DROP participation is five (5) vears

Defined Coniribution Plan

The Gity offers a defined contribution plan, titled the “401(a) Executive ?Iarf;" (the Hian)
created In accordance with internal Revenue Service Code Sectlon 401(a) and Ordingnce
Number 0-77-11. The Plan provides a portable retirement program for new exegjftive
management. If a participant separates from service and subsequently becpmes empidyed
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9.

10.

11.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)
g.  Defined Contribution Plan { Cantinued)

with another unit of a state or local government, then the participant may rollover the
benefits into the new employers' pension plan providing the plan permits rolffovers. Al
September 30, 2003, there were only the six (6) Plan members. Plan members are nol
required to contribute to the Plan. The Clty is required to contribute 10% of the employees
annual covered payroll to the Plan. The City contributed $34,398 to the Plan for the year
ended September 30, 2003. Provisions of the Pian may be amended by the City
Commission. The Plan Is administered by ICMA Retirement Corporation, The Plan is held
in a frust for the exclusive benefit of the participants and their beneficiarles, consequently,
the City has no fiduciary responsibility, and therefore, the net assets of the Plan are not
included in the Cily’s financial statements.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torls, theft of, damage to and destruction of
assets, errors and omissions and natural disasters for which the Cily carries commercial
insurance. The City has not had a significant reduction in insurance coverage from coverage in
the prior year by major categories of risk, and sellled claims have not exceeded the City's
retention and excess caverage In force for each of the past three years.

In prior vears, the Cily was self-insured under Professional Administration, Inc. and as of
September 30, 2003, three cases covered under the old plan remain open while the carrier
atlempts to close the cases. The Cily has accrued $400,000 in the General Fund as claims
payable for the open cases.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Contingencies

The Cily is currently a defendant in several pending claims and legal proceedings incidental to the
operations of the City. The City is aggressively defending each action. The ultimate liability
related to these claims is not presently determinable. Furthermore, it is the opinion of the City's
management and legal counsel that the final resolution of these claims and legal proceedings
would not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the City.

Grants

Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject fo audit and adjustment by
grantor agencies. Any disallowed claims, Including amounts already collected, may constitute a
lfability of the City. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor
cannot be determined at this time aithough the City expecls such amounts, if any, to be

immaterial.
Eire Protection and Emergency Medical Services
On August 2002, the City executed an Interlocal Agreement with Broward County for the delivery

of Fire Protection and Emergency Medical Services by the Cily to a portlon of Unincorporated
Broward County. The agreement is effective October 15, 2002 and continues through September

30, 2008.
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COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

Fire Protection and Emergency Medical Services (Continued)

Compensation to the Cily for these services is as follows:

Seplember 30

2004 $ 1,257,000
2005 1,319,000

Thereafter, for the remalning term of this Interlocal Agreement, compengation: for| the seriilces
provided by the City increase by the Consumer Price index of the South Florida Replon up cf
maximum of five percent (5%) per year.

Police Services

Effective Augtst 1, 2000, the Clty entered into a five year contract with the Browh
Office {BSO) for police services, This contract included the transfer of all of the City's ‘
lo the BSO. The contract calls for the Cily to pay BSO approximately $64B 000 plys fuel ue
monthly and B3O reimburses the City for any staffing shortages. With !he tran fer of these
services, the Gity also transferred its police vehiclss. but maintained ownershnp of thé pro

|5 Rt

BSQ. The City recorded expenses of $7,815,696 under the contract for the fiscal vear =)
September 30, 2003,

Al the date of the contract, the Clty had eleven police officers that were’ eligiblé f;
The accrued compensated absence amount for these officers was approximatel
September 30, 2003, which remains the respons!bt!lty of the Clty, This hab!iity is r

account. The compensated absences liabliity for the remalning officers: \was tran erred ] the
B3O.

Wastewater Services Interlocal Agreement

On November 2, 1988, the City entered into an agreement with Broward|County, |
transmission, treatment and disposal of wastewater. The charges for service provid
Counly include operating, maintenance and debt service charges for the facnlltles angl the
improvement, Repair, and Replacement Fund Surcharge. The charges are adjusifed

based upon actual costs incurrad In the prior year.

For the fiscal year ended Seplember 30, 2003, the City recorded expenseds of 35
this agreement. The agrsement will continue in existence and cannot be ¢ 2Ny
condition except by mulual cancellation agreement between the City;and F
Management considers cancellation of this agreement as remote. In addition,} fut
under this agreement cannot be estimated.
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COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCGIES {CONTINUED)

Construction Commitments

The City has the following outstanding construction as of September 30, 2003:

Sewer improvements $ 112,624

Stormwater drainage and improvements 924,710

Street repair and construction 1.766.373

Total construction commitments $2.803,707
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

The schedule below detalls changes made to capital assets and the beginning net assets of the
enterprise funds due to physical Inventories and appraisals performed with the adoption of GASB
34

Solid
Water and Waste Stormwater
Sewer Fund Fund Fund
Fund balance at October 1, 2002, as
previously reported $ 20,863,048 §(101,619) § 4,880,434
Adjustments to capital assels (2.865,128) 969,877 (383,008)

Fund balance at October 1, 2002, as restated  $17,997,920 $868.9568 §$4.497,426
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CITY OF OAKLAND PARK, FLORIDA

GOVERNMENT-WIDE REVENUES BY SOURCE
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal
Year

Charges
for Services

Uperating
Grants
and
Contributions

Capital Grants

and
Contributions

Property
Taxes

1994
1985
1996
1997
1998
1993
2000
2001
2002

2003

$

27,910,342

$

508,521

§

1,483,350

8,950,985

Franchise
Fees

1,885,311

(1) information for fiscal years ended September 30, 1994 to 2002 are unavailable.

Utility
Taxes

4,828,291

Unrestricted
Investment
_Eamings

inter-

governmental

466,301

E

3,327,580

Total

48,332,052



CITY OF OAKLAND PARK, FLORIDA
GOVERNMENT-WIDE EXPENSES BY FUNCTION®
Last Ten Fiscal Years

9¢-1

Interest on
Fiscal General Public Public Commurtily Parks and Long Term Water and

Year Govemnment Safety Waorks Development Library Recreation Debt Sewer Solid Waste Stormwater Tolzl

1994 $ -5 - $ - 3 - 3 -3 - $ -8 -3 -3 - % -
1985 - - - . '
1996 . - - -
1997 - - - -
1998 . - - -
1999 - - -

2000 - - -

2001 . - - - -

2002 - - - - - - -

2003 1,066,069 15,811,156 1,688,833 1,735,333 574839 1,777,871 776634 9742434 5881851 1,322,179 41,377,199

{1} Information for fiscal years ended September 30, 1994 to 2002 are unavatiable.



Fiscal
Year

1994
1996
1996
1997
1998
1999
2000
2001
2002

2003

Note: Generat fund only

(1) Includes Community Development and Parks and Recreation

General

Government

2,567,757
2,732,047
3,224,584
3,481,843
3,302,876
3,643,321
4,510,409
5,368,410
6,607,587

6,042,951

CITY OF OAKLAND PARK, FLORIDA
GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTIONS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Public
Safely

8,883,621
9,893,401
0,885,657
10,774,330
11,070,769
11,594,091
11,948,032
11,765,114
10,242,528

10,056,230

Public Works (1)
2,162,276
2,338,441
2,330,580
2,627,133
2,216,132
2,276,009
2,628,597

2,750,826

3,117,474

4,709,216

1-37

Library
348,131
383,611
372,126
475,897
409,353
500,559
546,128
562,845
609,621

560,589

Other
1,899,462
2,083,245
785,026
1,083,594
811,075
1,037,128
901,280
477,816
336,591

843 560

Tota!
15,961,247
17,430,746
16,597,973
16,442,797
17,810,205
19,051,108
20,534,446
20,825,111
20,914,201

22,212,551



lacal
Year

11504
[1ee5
[ioes
1g87
1988
1899
2000
2001
2002

003

Property
Taxes

6,198,636
5,864,673
5,734,839
5,743,689
5,530,202
5,669,603
6.214,725
6,678,911
8241777

8,950,906

Note: Generat fund only

Franchisg
Fees and
Utllity
Taxes

4,851,440
5,205,691
5,102,172
5,405,865
5,180,127

5,347,076

§,538,854
5,858,535
6,670,630
6,663,602

CITY OF CAKLAND PARK, FLORIDA

GENERA], GOVERNMENTAL REVENUES BY SOURCE

Licenses
and
Permilis
853,956
879,669
773,081
823,154
1,062,920
1,307,834
1,156,187
928,387
918,208

949,317

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Charges

inter- for
Govermmenlal  Seivices
2,729,212 2,134,884
2,959,719 2,208,302
2,964,569 1,846,081
2,840,027 2,196,212
2,930,428 2,172,368
3,289,644 2,333,846
3,047,903 2,860,244
3,117,684 3,003,564
3,163,683 3,020,820
3,327550 5,670,462

1-38

Flnes
and

Forlelturas
448,113

390,091
367,050
418,733
318,835
254,515
255,010
372,940
516,785

434,575

Other
257,766
493,135
339,560
439,928
556,306
448,106
721,839
247,699
65,487
292,767

Totals
17,474,417
18,002,280
17,147,352
17,967,605
17,761,287
16,640,684
19,784,762
20,307,060
22,507,268
26,309,259



Fiscal
!ear

1894
1895
1996
1897
1998
1999
2000
2001
2002

2003

Tax
Rell

1993
1994
1995
1996
1997
1998
1999
2000
2001

2002

_CITY OF OAKLAND PARK, FLORIDA
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Amouhl Percent Amount
of of of
Total Gurrent Current Delinquent
Tax Taxes Taxes Taxes
Levy * Collected * Collectad Coltecled
6302282 6,049,477 95.99 149,159
6,045,630 5,771,367 8546 93,306
5,948,455 5,702,092 94.33 37,630
6,034,054 5,701,053 94.48 42 636
5,773,154 5,475,281 094.84 54,921
5,848,045 5,593,914 94.04 65,689
6,531,028 6,156,100 84 25 58,326
6,806,562 6,576,308 94,13 102,603
8,771,481 8,214,584 03.66 27,183
9,565,701 8,020,742 93.36 21,244

*» Gross taxes before discounts exclusive of voted debt lavies.

Source: Broward County Revenue Collector

1-39

Total

Coliected
for

Year
$6,198,636
$5,864,673
$5,740,622
$5,743,689
$5,630,202
$5,659,603
36,214,425
$6,678,911
$8,241,777

$8,050,986

Ratio
of
Total
Taxes
Collected
Total

Current Levy
98.36
97.01
96.50
95.19
95.79
95.15
95.15
95.60
93.97
93.57



Fiscal
Year

1994
1995
1996
1697
1998
1999
2000
2001
2002

2003

Tax
Roll

1893
1994
1995
1996
1997
1998
1999
2000
2001

2002

CITY OF DAKLAND PARK, FLORIDA
ASSESSED VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Total
Assessed
Value
1,276,570,231
1,298,381,234
1,366,680,155
1,386,961,717
1,405,371,303
1,609,760,392
1,673,841,477
1,690,690,333
1,867,500,123
2,113,055,051

Homestead
Exemption

131,026,435
134,978,195
132,917,190
139,074,260
141,856,370
140,548,510
142,745,400
144,886,880
149,803,580
152,273,630

Qther |
Exsmption

72,031,281

78,833,040

138,274,055
162,770,717
138,648,107
172,082,143
176,652,686
205,481,616
248,805,800
358,213,197

Assessed
Value
For

Operations
1,072,612,515
1,084,568,999
1,094,488,810
1,094,216,720
1,124,866,826
1,107,118,738
1,254,543,491
1,340,321,837
1,468,800,743
1,602,568,224

Note: Local law requires that assessed values be established at 100% of estimated actual

velue.

Fource; Broward County Property Appraiser
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Fiscal
Year

1894
1998
1996
1997
1998
1999
2000
2001
2002

2003

Tax
Roll

1993
1994
1995
1996
1997
1998
1899
2000
2001

2002

Total
City
Operations

6.0000
5.6283
5.5395
5.5145
5.1323
4.9715
5.2059
5.2126
5.9715

5.9715

CITY OF OAKLAND PARK, FLORIDA
PROPERTY TAX RATES
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Per $1,000 of Assessed Valuation)

Broward
County
Qperations

8.1327
8.0343
8.1165
7.1487
7.8380
7.5710
7.5710
7.6250
7.4005

7.3650

South

Florida
Broward Water
County Management Hospital
Schools District District
9.8197 0.8970 2.4753
10.0259 0.5970 2.4459
10.0368 D.6470 2.4327
9.4460 0.6970 21132
0.9745 0.6970 2.4087
8.7256 0.6970 2.5000
0.1283 0.6970 2.4895
8.9553 0.6970 2.4803
8.7544 0.6870 2.4803
8.8825 | p.8970 24803

Florida
Intand
Navigation
District
0.0510
0.0480
0.0400
0.0500
0.0500
0.0470
0.0440
0.0410
0.0386

0.0385

Tolal
City
Wide
27.0757
26.7804
26.8100
24,9694
26.1005
25.5121
25.1357
24.9112
26.6474

257664

State law requires all counties to assess values at 100% of estimated values and {imits millage for operating

purposes to ten mills.

Source: Broward County Property Appraiser.

I-41



1?iﬁ
earl
fio04
haos
joss
f1997
}oos
jtoss
£000
£oo1

booz

£003

CITY OF OAKLAND PARK, FLORIDA
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BILLINGS AND COLLECTIONS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Tolal
Amount Of Amount of
Special Special
Assessments Assessments
Receivable Becoming Special
Beginning Due During Assassment
of Year Fiscal Year Collected
16,810 28,627 36,108
9,328 11,792 14,304
6,726 8,791 13,013
2,504 14,175 6,667
10,012 4,078 4,468
9,622 176 2,887
6,911 19 19
6,911 - 2,599
4,312 - 2,253
2,089 - 2,059

Note: General fund only
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Total
Amount of
Special
Assessments
Receivable
End of Year
9,328
6,726
2,504
10,012
9,622
8,911
6,911
4,312
2,059



CITY OF OAKLAND PARK, FLORIDA
COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Assessed valuation 2003 roll

Bonded debt limit - 15% of assessed value
Total bonded debt- Water and Sewer Fund $ 3,550,000

Amount of debt applicable

Legal debt margin

Note: City Charter sets limit of bond indebledness at 15% of assessed valuations.
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3 2.113,055,051
$ 316,858,258

3,550,000
3 313,408,258




CITY OF OAKLAND PARK, FLORIDA
COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT
GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Overiapping
Net Percent Net
Debt Applicable * Debt
Chy of Oakland Park $ 12,575,000 100% $ 12,475,000
gloward County School Districts 125,882,169 1 295% 1,630,175
Bjoward County 330,057,970 1.265% 4,285,908
Thtal Direct and Overlapping Debt $ 1345191‘(181

*Percentage based on assessed valuations.
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CITY OF OAKLAND PARK, FLORIDA
REVENUE BOND COVERAGE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Net Revenue
Available
For

Fiscal Gross Operaling Debt Cebt

Year Revenue Expenses * Service Sepvice™* Coverane
1994 8,148,315 6,912,436 1,935,880 940,720 3‘675
1985 8,115,027 6,695,656 1,420,523 433,115 3.280
18956 8,653,057 6,820,429 1,732,628 433,165 4,000
1987 8,156,932 7,219,051 937.881 432,245 1.000
1998 8,145,082 7,266,001 879,081 430,595 2.042
1998 8,361,272 7,642,361 708,911 433,380 2.042
2000 8,344,723 7,642,361 702,362 435,385 1613
2001 9,279,666 8,078,342 1,201,324 448,580 2.604
2002 10,344,470 8,573,795 1,770,675 439,254 4,031
2003 11,798,134 9,543,126 2,255,008 439,300 5134

Note: Water and Sewer Fund

* Total expenditures excluding debt service on revenue bonds.
** Includes principal and interest.
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CITY OF OAKLAND PARK, FLORIDA
PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS

Percentage

of Total

Taxable Taxable

Taxpayer Type of Business Vajuation Valuation
shitake, Inc. Apartments $ 159,894 1.82%
Bldgewater Place Asscciation Apartments 136,537 1.56%
Weingarten Nostat, Inc. Shopping Center 109,123 1.24%
SEC Properly Holdings Inc. Warehouse 98,569 1.12%
Waterlon Park LLC Apartments 98,051 1.12%
GMD Southwest, Inc. Office Building 91,099 1.04%
Mohammad R Mazaherl Apariments 90,426 1.03%
Florida Health Complex, Inc. Hospital 88,660 1.01%
glimmerlake-Oakland Park, Ltd. Apartments 87,663 1.00%
Shuthern Tier Southeast Apartments 73,774 0.84%
$ 1,033,786 11.79%

Spurce: Broward County Tax Records
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Fiscal Year

1994
1995
1998
1597
1998
1999
2000
200
2002
2003

1,276,570,231
1,298,361,234
1,366,680,155
1,386,861,717
1,405,371,303
1,502,069,202
1,673,841,477
1,680,690,333
1,867,600,123
2,113,055,061

~ . CITY OF OAKLAND PARK, FLORIDA
PROPERTY VALUE, CONSTRUCTION AND BANK DEPQSITS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Properly Value Construction **

24,078,203
14,921,351
17,663,379
29,509,329
33,058,260
61,241,039
37,317,302
21,730,564
23,650,057
23,174,303

* Florida Bankers Association commercial deposits as of September 30

** City of Oakland Park Building Permits
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Commercial Bank

Deposits *
483,702,000

681,363,000
718,065,000
1,863,205;000
808,844,000
1,382,264,000
1,380,262,000
1,374,147,000
1,672,159,000
455,218,000



CITY OF OAKELAND PARK, FLORIDA
DEMOGRAPHIC AND MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

D.Fte of incorporalion Public Educatlion
Jijne 10, 1928 Number of Schools 4

. Number of Teachers 218
Df{e of Adoption of City Charler Number of Sludsnts 4,520
Jily 15, 1959 (Amended) Total of all facully 200
Férm of Clty Government Area 7
a)mmissEon ! Manager Squares miles 8.8
Blgiiding Permits this Period Streels, Sldewalks, Sewers
Sterm Drainage
Phrmits Issued 2,948 Miles of strests 107.1
timated value 23,174,303 Miles of sidewalks 28
Miles of sanitary sewers 101.8
Miles of storm drainage 21

reation Waterways
Piblic park facllities 179 acres Miles of canals and waterways 9.2

ennis counts, boat ramp Acres of lakes 347
aseball, basketball, pionic areas, soccer, football,

Handball, volleyball, par course, ete. Water and Sewer Utllitles Water Wastewaler
n-line Roller Hockey Rink Actlve accounts 9084 ' 6,965
Miles of mains 197.38 24.9
Fire hydrants 1,125 N/A
88 Wastewater pump stations N/A 31
empt classification 8 '
Flre Union 68
Fid. or Public Empl. 63
Population and Growth Comparison
Per Bureau Of Census and Bureau of Economlc and Business Research
Qakland Park Broward County United States
% of % of % of
Year Population Change Population Chanae Populalion Change
1940 815 0.00% 39,794 0.00% 131,160,000 0.00%

1950 1,295 58.89% 83,933 110.91% 151,326,000  58.80%

1950 5,331 311.68% 333,046 74.87% 179,323,000 311.66%

1970 16,261 205.03% 620,100  B5.69% 203,235,000  205.03%

1980 23,038 41.66% 1,048,133  69.03% 226,505,000 41.66%

1990 26,326 14.28% 1,255,488 10.78% 248,709,873 §4.28%

2000 30,866 9.67% 1,623,018 8.90% 281,421,808 13.15%
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CITY ST. AUGUSTINE BEACH, FLORIDA
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GENERAL FUND
FISCAL YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,

2003 2002 2001
REVENLIES
Taxes $ 1,888,541 $ 1,839,928 $1.593,205
Licenses and Permits 201,989 258,617 148,026
Intergovernmental 465,179 503,927 401,114
Charges for Services 144,355 161,456 108,737
Fines and Forfeitures 72,031 76,042 52,171
Interest 27,118 82,434 74,893
Miscellaneous 5916 41315 11,774
TOTAL REVENUES 2,805,129 2,963,719 2,380,920
EXPENDITURES
Curmrent:
General Government 554,046 452,103 1,322,432
Public Safety 1,251,075 1,346,910 1,247,915
Physical Environment 465,637 460,131 345,689
Transportation - - -
Economic Environment 200 190 190
Human Services 19,544 16,794 16,790
Culture and Recreation QR8 3,258 1,930
Debt Service:
Principal 27,630 24,560 24,800
Interest and fiscal charges 65.318 66.267 67.992
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2.384.438 2.370.213 3.027.738
EXCESS OF REVENULES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES 420,691 593.506 (637.818)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds of bond - 14,060 017,957
Interfund Transfers In - -- --
Interfund Transfers Out ( 207.405) (116.866) ( 200.000)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (207,405 (102.806) 711,957
EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES
QVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES 213,286 490,700 80,139
FUND BALANCES, beginning (as restated) 1.877.210 1,386.510 1,194,303
FUND BALANCES, ending $2.090,496 $1.877,.210 $1.274.442

I'he obligation of the City of St. Augustine Beach to pay the Loan Paymenis is Himited to the Pledged Funds, as described in the Official
Statement. Certain of the above revenues are not legally available to make, nor are any of the above revenues (except for the Pledged
Revenues) pledged to, the Loan Repayments. No representation is made as to the amount of revenues that are legally available to make
the Loan Repayments.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Honorable Mayor,
Members of the City Commission, and City Manager
City of St. Augustine Beach, Florida

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the City of St
Augustine Beach, Florida (the “City™) as of and for the year ended September 30,
2003, as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the
respons:bzllty of the City’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material risstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the general purpose financial statements referred to above present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the City as of September 30,
2003, and the results of its operations for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued 2 report
dated January 16, 2004 on our consideration of the City’s internal control over
financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read
in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.

e, o, {Compeny?

January 16, 2604
Palatka, Florida
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COMBINED BALANCE SHEET - ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS
SEPTEMBER 30,2003
CITY OF ST. AUGUSTINE BEACH, FL.ORIDA

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES ACCOUNT GROUPS

GENERAL GENERAL TOTALS
SPECIAL FIXED LONG-TERM {MEMORANDUM
GENERAL REVENUE ASSETS DEBT DHLY)
ASSETS
Cash and Equivalents $ 290,194 § 32957 ¢ - 3 - $ 323,151
Investrnent in State Pool 1,731,725 519,248 - e 2,250,973
Accounts Receivable 66,263 - - - 66,265
Due From Other Governments 88,577 51,037 - - 146,014
Due From Other Funds 1,189 3,093 - - 4,282
Inventory k 1,249 336 - - 1,585
General Fixed Assets - - 5,331,072 n 5,331,072
Amount to be Provided - - = 2,245,685 2,245,685
TOTAL ASSETS $2,179,599 $606,67% $5,331,072 $2,245,685 510,363,027
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities $ 79,340 § 23,606 b - 3 - 102,946
Due to Other Funds 3,093 1,189 - - 4,282
Deferred Revenue 6,670 e - - 6,670
General Long-Term Debt - - o 2,245 685 2,245,685
TOTAL LIABILITIES §9,103 24,795 - 2,245,685 2,359,583
EUND EQUITY
Investment in General Fixed Assets - - 5,331,072 - 5,331,072
Fund Balances:
- Regerved:
Inventory o 1,249 336 - - 1,585
Unexpended Restricted Funds 38,518 4,356 - -- 42,874
Designated:
Capital Projects 120,450 235,150 - - 355,600
Compensated Absences 110,685 - - - 110,685
Emergencies end Contingencies 46,600 25,000 - - 71,600
Unreserved, Undesignated 1,772,594 317,034 - -- 2,090,028
TOTAL FUND EQUITY 2,080,496 581,876 5,331,072 - 8,003,444
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY $2,179,599 $606,671 $5,331,072 $2.,245 685 $10,363,627
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COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003
CITY OF ST. AUGUSTINE BEACH, FLLORIDA

TOTALS
SPECIAL (MEMCRANDUM
GENERAL REVENLIE ONLY)
REVENLES
Taxes 51,888,541 $223,801 52,112,342
Licenses and Pennits 201,989 e - 201,989
Intergovernmental 465,179 41,959 507,138
Charges for Services 144,335 38,809 183,164
Fines and Forfeitures 72,031 - 72,031
Interest ) 27,118 9,260 36,378
Miscellaneous 5,916 2,081 7,997
TOTAL REVENUES 2,805,129 315,910 3,121,039
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government 554,046 - 554,046
Public Safety 1,251,075 — - 1,251,075
Physicat Environment 465,637 - 465,637
Transporiation - 644,218 644,218
Economic Environment 200 - 200
Human Services 19,544 - 19,544
Culture and Recreation 988 - 938
Deht Service:
Principal 27,630 17,370 45,000
Interest 65,318 41,063 106,381
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,38{438 702,651 3,087,089
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES 420,691 {386,741) 33,950
OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES)
Interfund Transfers In - 207,405 207,405
Interfund Transfers Out (207,405} - (207,405)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (207.405) 207,465 -
EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER SdURCES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES 213,286 (179,336) 33,950
FUND BALANCES, Qctober 1, 2002 1,877,210 761,212 2,638,422
FUND BALANCES, September 30, 2003 $2,090,496 £581,876 $2,672,372
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COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL ~ ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES '
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003
CITY OF ST. AUGUSTINE BEACH, FLORIDA

GENERAL FUND SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
VARIANCE VARJANCE
FAVORABLE FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL  {UNFAVORABLE) BUDGET  ACTUAL {(UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES
Taxes 91,804,194 $1,888,541 $ 84,347 £185,000 5223801 $38,801
Licenses and Permits 216,000 201,989 (8,011} - - -
Intergovernmental 371,000 465,179 94,179 38,100 41,959 3,859
Charges for Services 130,500 144,355 13,855 35000 38,309 3,809
Fines and Forfeitures 73,050 72,031 (1,019) - - -
Interest 35,200 27,118 (8,082) 10,527 9,260 {1,267)
Miscellaneous . 4,500 5,916 1,416 25,000 2,081 (22,919)
TOTAL REVENUES 2,628,444 2,805,129 176,685 293,627 315910 22,283
EXPENDITURES
Current;
General Government 608,989 554,046 54,943 - - -
Public Safety 1,347,173 1,251,075 96,098 - - -
Physical Environment 508,161 465,637 42,524 - — -
Transportation - - - - 680,720 644,218 36,502
Economic Environment 225 200 25 - - -
Human Services 19,550 19,544 6 - - -
Culture and Recreation 2,000 988 1,012 - - -
Reserve for Contingencies 11,603 - 11,603 - - -
Debt Service:
Principal 27,630 27,630 - 17,370 17,370 -
Interest 65,877 65,318 559 41,438 41,063 175
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,591,208 2384438 206,770 738,528 102,651 36,877
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES 37,236 420,691 383455  (445,901) (386,741) 59,160
QOTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Interfund Transfers in - - — 207,405 207,405 -
Interfund Transfers Out {207,405)  (207,405) - v - -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) (207,405) _ (207,405) ~ 207,405 _ 207,405 -
EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER
SOURCES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES (170,169) 213,286 383,455 {238,496) (179,336) 59,160
FUND BALANCES, October 1, 2002 1,871,210 1,877,210 — 761,212 761212 -

FUND BALANCES, September 30, 2003 §1,707,041- $2,090,456 $383,455  $322,716 $581,876 $59,160




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2603
CITY OF ST. AUGUSTINE BEACH, FLORIDA

NOTE ! - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of the City of St. Augustine Beach (the “City”) conform to U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles as applicable to governments. The following is a summary of the
more significant policies:

Reporting Entity

The City was constituted a municipality on June 20, 1959, under the provisions of Chapter 59-
1790, Laws of Florida, Acts of 1959, The City operates under a commission/manager form of
government and provides the following services as authorized by its charter: law enforcement,
planning and zoning, code enforcement, building inspection, solid waste collections, road and
right of way maintenance, maintenance of City buildings, drainage and storm water management,
and street lighting.

As required by US. generally accepted accounting principles, the accompanying financial
statements present the City as a primary government, Component units, if any, would also be
presented. Component units are entities for which a primary government is considered to be
financially accountable.

‘There are no component units included in the City’s financial reporting entity.

The City did not participate in any joint ventures during the 2002-03 fiscal year.

Fund Accounting

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds and account groups, each of which is
considered a separate accounting entity. In the accompanying financial staternents, there are two
generic fund types and one broad fund category as follows:

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

General Fund — The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to
account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another

fund.

Special Reverue Fund — The City has one Special Revenue Fund, used to account for
specific revenue sources which are legally restricted to expenditures for specified

purposes.

Fixed Assets and Long-Term Liabilities

‘The accounting and reporting treatment applied to the fixed assets and long-term liabilities
associated with a fund are determined by its measurement focus. All governmental funds are
accounted for on a spending or “financial flow™ measurement focus. This means that only current
assets and current liabilities are generally included on their balance sheets. Their reported fund
balance is considered a measure of “available spendable resources.” Governmental fund operating
statements present increases and decreases in net current assets. Accordingly, they are said to
present a summary of sources and uses of “available spendable resources” during a period.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003
CITY OF ST. AUGUSTINE BEACH, FLORIDA

NOTE 1 -~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fixed Assets and Long-Term Liabilities (concluded)

Fixed assets used in governmental fund type operations (general fixed assets) are accounted for in
the General Fixed Assets Account Group, rather than in governmental funds. Public domain
(“infrastructure”™) general fixed assets are not capitalized aiong with other general fixed assets. No

depreciation has been provided on general fixed assets.

General fixed assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual cost is not
available. Donated general fixed assets are valued at their estimated fair value on the date
donated.

Long-term liabilities expe;:ted to be financed from governmental funds are accounted for in the
General Long-Term Debt Account Group, not in the governmental funds.

The two account groups are not “funds.”® They are concerned only with the measurement of
financial position. They are not involved with measurement of results of operations.

Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and
reported in the financinl statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the measurements
made, regardless of the measurement focus applied.

All governmenta! funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Their
revenues are recognized when they become measurable and available as net current assets.
Generally, taxes and intergovernmental revenues constitute the most significant revenue sources
that are considered to be susceptible to accrual,

Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the
related fund liability is incurred. However, principal and interest on general long-term debt are
recognized when due.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

Budgets are prepared and adopted on a basis which does not differ materially from generally
accepted accounting principles. The preparation, adoption, and amendment of the budgets are
governed by Chapter 166, Florida Statutes. The fund is the legal level of control. Budgetary data
presented in the accompanying financial statements represent the “final” budget daia; ie, the
effects of budget amendments have been applied to “original” budgetary data, Appropriations
lapse at year-end,

Investments

The City follows the provisions of Section 218.413, Florida Statutes, which allows for surplus
funds to be invested in the Local Government Surplus Funds Trust fund (the “State Pool”) or any
intergovernmental investment pool; Securities and Exchange Comumission regisiered monsy
market funds; certificates of deposits and savings accounts in state-certified qualified public
depositories and direct obligations of the U.S. Treasury.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003
CITY OF 5T, AUGUSTINE BEACH, FLORIDA

NOTE | - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Inventory

Inventory is accounted for under the consumption method and is valued at cost based on the first-
in, first-out method.

Compensated Absences
The City’s policies allow limited vesting of unused employee leave time for fulltime employees.

The City’s liability for compensated absences has been accrued. Since this liability will not be
liquidated with current resources (“expendable available financial resources™), the liability has
been reported in the General Long-Term Debt Account Group, rather than in the governmental

funds.,

Fund Balance Reserves/Designations

In the accompanying firancial statements, use of the term “reserved” is limited to indicating that
a portion of reported fund equity is legally restricted to a specific use, or is not available for
appropriation or expenditures. “Designated” portions of fund equity represent-management’s
tentative future spending plans. Such designations should be clearly distinguished from reserves,
since managerial plans are subject to change and may never be legally authorized or result in
actual expenditures,

Total Columns on Combined Statements

The total columns on the combined statements are captioned “(Memorandum Only)” to indicate
that they are presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in these columns do not present
financial position or results of operations in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles. Neither is such data comparable to 2 consolidation. interfund eliminations have not
been made in the aggregation of this data,

Property Taxes

The St. Johns County Tax Collector bills and collects property taxes for the City. Property tax
revenues are recognized when levied, to the extent that they result in current receivables.

Details of the City’s property tax calendar are presented below:

Lien Date January 1

Levy Date October 1

Discount Period November - February
Delinquent Date April 1

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make various estimates and assumptions. Actual resuits could

vary from the estimates that were used.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
~ SEPTEMBER 30,2003
CITV OF ST. AUGUSTINE BEACH, FLORIDA

NOTE I — SUMMARY QOF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (concluded)

Impending Change in Accounting Principle

Statement No. 34 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board is not yet required to be
implemented and the City has not elected to adopt the standard early. The future implementation
of this standard will require the restatement of the financial statements because of the retroactive
application of the new standard.

NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Deposits

All deposits are placed in a bank that qualifies as a public depository, as required by law (Florida
Security For Public Deposits Act). Accordingly, all deposits are insured by Federal depository
insurance and/or entirely collateralized pursuant to Chapter 280, Florida Statutes.

Investment in State Pool

The State Pool is not a registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission; however, the
pool has adopted operating procedures consistent with the requirements for a 2a-7 like fund. The
fair value of the position in the pool is equal to the value of the pool shares.

The City’s investment cannot be classified in any credit risk category pursuant to GASB
Statement 3 because the investment is not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book

entry form.

NOTE 3 - CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

A summary of changes in general fixed assets follows:

BALANCE
OCTOBER BALANCE
1,2002 SEPTEMBER

{Restated) ADDITIONS DELETIONS 30,2003
Land $1,309,259 $ 600 § - $1,309,859
Buildings and Improvements 2,926,695 1,225 “ 2,927,920
Machinery and Equipment 937,323 135,970 - 1,093,293
Total $5,173,277 $157,795 $§ - $5,331,072

The balances at October 1, 2002 were restated to reflect $232,204 of machinery and equipment
that was disposed of in the prior year but reported in previously-issued financial statements for
the year ended September 30, 2002.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

CITY OF ST. AUGUSTINE BEACH, FLORIDA

NOTE 4 ~ GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT

A summary of changes in general long-term debt follows:

BALANCE BALANCE
CCTOBER ‘ SEPTEMBER
1,2002 ADDITIONS DEDRUCTIONS 30,2003
Bonds Payable $2,180,000 $ - $45,000 $2,135,000
Compensated Absences 117,518 e 6,833 110,685
Total _ $2,297,518 $ - $51,833 $2,245,685

Bonds Payable

The City has a $2,180,000 serial bond to Florida Municipal Loan Council at interest rates
between 3.52% and 5.13%. The bond issue is payable from and secured by non-ad valorem
revenues. Principal and interest are due semi-annuaily on April 1 and October I, matoring on
April 1, 2029, The bond issue contains certain covenants requiring that debt service payments be
budgeted, non-ad valorem revenues cover projected maximum annual debt service by at least 1.5-
times and that annual debt service requirements not exceed 20% of non-ad valorem taxes. The

City was in compliance with these covenants.

Aggregate maturities of the bonds are as follows:

YEAR ENDING

SEPTEMBER 30, PRINCIPAL INTEREST TOTAL
2004 $ 45,000 $ 102,472 % 147472
2005 45,000 100,808 145,808
2006 : 50,000 99,706 149,706
2007 50,000 97,076 147,076
2008 50,000 95,076 145,076
2009-2013 295,000 440,394 735,394
2014-2018 380,000 362,819 742,819
2019-2023 475,000 259,788 734,788
2024-2028 605,000 128,750 733,750
2029 140,000 7,000 147,000
Totals $2,135,000 $1,693,889  $3,828,889
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003
CITY OF ST. AUGUSTINE BEACH, FLORIDA

NOTE 5 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

Plan Description. The City contributes to the Florida Retirement System (“System”), a cost-
sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of Florida,
Department of Administration, Division of Retirement. The System provides retirement,
disability or death benefits to retirees or their designated beneficiaries. Chapter 121, Florida
Statutes, establishes the authority for benefit provisions. Changes to the law can only occur
through an act of the Florida Legislature. The System issues a publicly available financial report
that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the System. That
report may be obtained by writing to the Florida Retirement System, 2639 North Monroe Street,
Tallahassee, Florida 32399, or by calling (850) 438-5706.

Funding Policy. The System is employee noncontributory. The City is required to contribute at an
actuarially determined rate. The rates at September 30, 2003 were as follows: Regular
Employees 7.39%; Special Risk Employees 18.53%; Senior Management 9.37%; Elected
Officials 15.23%. The contribution requirements of plan members and the City are established
and may be amended by the Florida Legislature. The City’s contributions to the System for the
years ending September 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001 were approximately $132,000, $136,000 and
$153,000, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year.

NOTE 6 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to general liability, workers’ compensation,
public liability, health benefits, property damage, and errors and omissions. To manage its risks,
the City participates in the Florida League of Cities Self Insurance Fund (the Fund) a public entity
risk pool currently operating as a common risk management and insurance program for member
cities. The City pays an annual premium to the Fund for its coverage. The premiums are designed
to fund the liability risks assumed by the Fund and are based on certain actual exposures of each
member. The City’s settled claims have not exceeded coverage in any of the past three fiscal

years.
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